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Mark Nellthorp  Non-Executive Director 
David Parfitt  Non-Executive Director 
Christine Slaymaker Non-Executive Director 

Mark Cubbon  Chief Executive 
Tim Powell  Director of Workforce  
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Theresa Murphy Interim Director of Nursing 
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In Attendance: Peter Mellor  Director of Corporate Affairs 
Teresa Cunningham PA to Trust Board (minutes) 
Nicky Carter  Head of Health Safety and Wellbeing Service 
Eliot Wilkinson  Consultant in Emergency Medicine 
Helen Peet  Consultant in Critical Care and Anaesthetics 
Honor Hinxman Critical Care and Anaesthetics Doctor 

Item 
No 

Minute 

187/17 Apologies: No apologies were given 

Declaration of Interests: 
There were no declarations of interest. 

188/17 Staff Story 

Nicky Carter and Eliot Wilkinson attended the meeting and delivered their presentation, see 
below. 

Staff Story 
Presentation.pptx

Christine Slaymaker asked whether Aquilis was a contracted in service or a service that was 
provided by the Trust’s own staff. Nicky Carter confirmed that the Aquilis service is a 
separate organisation that is employed by NHSP. It is a completely confidential service. Eliot 
Wilkinson added that he thought it important that the service be independent. 

The Medical Director asked whether the different options for extending the service had been 
explored. Nicky Carter replied that she and colleagues were considering the options and 
also the possibility of having a Clinical Psychologist role as part of the service. This role 
exists in Solent NHS Trust and has a positive impact on long term sickness. 
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The Chairman referred to the stigma that surrounds mental health and asked how the Trust 
could help mainstream mental health into wellbeing more effectively. Eliot Wilkinson replied 
that his sessions worked well but they had to be held outside working hours as staff were 
unable to attend during a busy working day. There needs to be a more open approach to 
mental health, a better understanding and support needs to be available at all levels. There 
are no specific actions for the Trust Board at this time other than to support the service. 

189/17 Minutes of the Last Meeting – 5 October 2017 

Other than a minor adjustment, the minutes were agreed as a true and accurate record. 

190/17 Matters Arising/Summary of Agreed Actions 

Ligature Assessment – The Medical Director confirmed that the work continues across the 
Trust in areas of perceived risk. Alison Fitzsimons is the risk mitigation lead and the 
mitigation work will run alongside the ligature assessments. 

CCG Peer Review - The Interim Director of Nursing confirmed that the CCG had recently 
carried out a peer review inspection and she will share the outcome at the next Trust Board 
meeting. This inspection was one of a programme that had so far included ED, AMU, 
Gynaecology and Paediatrics. No areas of serious concern had yet been found. 

All actions were completed or on the agenda. 

191/17 Notification of Any Other Business 

None. 

192/17 Chairman’s Opening Remarks 

The Chairman thanked Mark Nellthorp for his support, commitment and sterling contribution 
to the Trust throughout his term as a Non-Executive Director and, more recently, whilst 
Interim Chairman.  He will be leaving the Trust at the end of November. 

The Chairman reported that the Non-Executive Director recruitment campaign was well 
underway and that interviews will be scheduled for the end of November. 

193/17 Chief Executive’s Report 

The Chief Executive was delighted to welcome Melloney Poole to the role of Chairman and 
thanked Mark Nellthorp for his service as a Non-Executive Director of the Trust. 

He highlighted the following key areas of his report: 
 Strengthening Leadership
 Urgent Care
 Governance
 Public Meetings
 Flu Vaccinations

The Chief Executive confirmed that he, the Chairman and the Director of Finance would be 
meeting with NHS Improvement later in November to discuss the projected end of year 
financial outcome.  Considerable attention was being given to developing and enacting a 
recovery plan. He was pleased to announce the publication of the Portsmouth Hospitals 
NHS Trust Quality Improvement Plan on Monday 30th October and committed to publishing 
monthly progress reports. 

The Chief Executive reported that a letter had been received from the Secretary of Health 
acknowledging the improvements to the Trust’s diagnostic performance. 
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The Chief Executive discussed his three key areas of concern: 

1) Urgent Care – the number of patients who are medically fit and ready for discharge 
had increased to circa. 290; these patients should be receiving care elsewhere and 
should not be in an acute hospital setting.  He confirmed that all of the Trust’s health 
system partners were working hard to resolve the challenges. 

2) Financial position – there is a clear link between urgent care and the Trust’s financial 
position 

3) Governance – still work to be done but improvements are being made 
 
The Chairman noted that the planned timeline for completing staff flu vaccinations was 
February but thought it likely that flu might be well be prevalent by then .. The Chief 
Executive replied that February was the reporting deadline for the number of vaccinations 
that had been carried out but the intention is to have completed the programme of 
vaccinations by the end of November. The Medical Director added that there was evidence 
to suggest that a higher number of flu cases are likely this Winter. He confirmed that the 
vaccination can take up to three weeks before becoming fully effective and that this 
particular vaccine does cover the strain experienced in Australia. 
 
Christine Slaymaker felt that the Trust Board would benefit from a dedicated session to be 
able to discuss and think laterally about how we might best support those patients who were 
medically fit for discharge but were unable to leave the hospital. It would be helpful to get a 
sense of what had been successful in other Trusts and to better understand what is driving 
the delays and what our partners are doing to resolve the issue. 
 
Christine Slaymaker asked the Chief Executive what effect the Winter Plan might have on 
the financial position. The Chief Executive replied that it was difficult to quantify exactly as 
the situation would constantly change throughout the winter period and the Plan would need 
to adapt to deal with those changes. Christine Slaymaker asked if the Plan would affect the 
Trust’s scheduled care service provision. The Chief Executive replied that it had been 
decided to open a dedicated frailty unit that would provide better outcomes for frail elderly 
patients and would also help support the unscheduled care pathway as the Trust’s 
approaches Winter.  The unit was now open and working well. There is a resultant 
temporary reduction in the routine Orthopaedic service output which will continue until 
March 2018. The Director of Finance added that discussions were underway with the Trust’s 
Commissioners to fully understand what the financial impact might be as a consequence of 
this reduction in elective surgery. David Parfitt asked for the financial implications to be 
shared once they had been quantified.  
 
The Chairman confirmed that she had asked the Director of Finance to quantify the financial 
consequences of the assumptions within the Winter Plan and any other likely Winter 
pressures.  She asked that this be completed by the end of November to allow for 
discussion at the Trust Board meeting in December. 
Action: Director of Finance 
 

194/17 Integrated Performance Report  
 
Quality 
 
The Medical Director drew attention to the following areas, with supporting comment from 
the Interim Director of Nursing: 

 Mental Health: 
o The Trust-wide ligature audit had been completed on Wards AMU Red and 

C5. These audits will help inform a full risk assessment, resulting in a clear 
plan for action 

o A Mental Health and Mental Capacity Board had been established with the 
first meeting to be held on 24th October. This will be chaired by a Non-
Executive Director 

 Infection Control: 
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o MRSA - The Trust had reported 1 patient with MRSA bacteraemia in 
September. Following Post Infection Review (PIR), the case had been 
referred to NHS England for arbitration and third party attribution had been 
requested. The case was provisionally assigned to Portsmouth CCG 

o C.Difficile - The Trust reported 4 patients with C.Difficile attributed to the Trust 
in September (2x Medicine, 1x Surgery and 1x AMU) against a monthly 
objective of 3 

 HSMR: 
o The updated Trust HSMR for the 12 months to June 2017 was 112.4; 

representing an increase on the rate previously reported to May 2017 of 
111.3. This sits within a confidence interval of 107.6 – 117.4 and is 
statistically higher than expected. Work in reviewing the reasons for the 
increase in HSMR continues 

o Both the weekday and weekend HSMR for emergency admissions are 
considered to be higher than expected. The weekend / weekday split is 
based on the patient’s admission date 

 SHMI: 
o The latest SHMI publication (April 2016 to March 2017) shows the Trust to 

have a SHMI of 108.89, which is a decrease on the last reported figure of 
110.02 for the 12-months of January to December 2016. This is classified as 
‘within expected range’ 

o The specific “in-hospital deaths” within SHMI rests at 106.61, which again is a 
decrease on the previous reported figure of 107.12 

 SIRIs: 
o 46 SIRIs were reported in September; 32 breaches of DTA, 2 Formal 

Ambulance Diverts and 12 clinical SIRIs, compared to 11 clinical SIRIs in 
August 

o A total of 4 events resulted in the death of the patient; 2 of these may not be 
attributable to error or omission but to natural causes 

o There were no never events report in September 
 VTE: 

o The VTE risk assessment figure for September is 95.34% (subject to 
validation); compared to the August figure of 95.21% 

o The National average for VTE assessment (NHS England, Q4 2016-17) is 
95.53% 

 Dementia: 
o There has been a decrease in compliance with dementia screening in 

September to 70.7%, compared to 75% in August (4.3% reduction) 
o The concerns about the consistently low performance have, again, been 

formally escalated to the Medical Director 
 Pressure Ulcers: 

o There have been 5 confirmed cases of avoidable grade 3 pressure ulcer 
damage; 1x Medicine, 1x MOPRS, 1x Renal (this is currently under 
investigation for potential downgrade) and 2x Surgery and Cancer. There has 
been zero confirmed grade 4 pressure ulcer damage. This compares with 2 
confirmed grade 3 damage in August 

o 1 incident reported in May has been downgraded to unavoidable and; 
therefore, removed from the Trust figures 

 Duty of Candour: 
o There has been 1 confirmed breach within MSK relating to a fall reported in 

August. The patient had not received a letter to confirm the investigation 
 Medication Safety: 

o There have been no severe or moderate harm incidents confirmed in 
September 

 Falls: 
o There have been a total of 2 confirmed severe harm falls incidents in 

September; both incidents have been reported as SIRIs and are currently 
under investigation 

     1 fall within Emergency Medicine (ED) potentially resulting in head injury and 
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     subsequent death 
                       1 fall within MOPRS resulting in fractured neck of femur 

o 1 incident reported in May within Emergency Medicine (AMU) has been 
confirmed as resulting in moderate harm 

 Stroke: 
o The Trust has provisionally achieved 9 of the 13 key measures for August 

based on 61 cases (clock starts) 
o Scan within 1hr: not achieved, 26.27% (standard 48%) 
o Direct Admission to Stroke Unit: not achieved but improved at 40% (standard 

90%) 
o Swallow screen ≤ 4hrs: not achieved but improved at 76.7% (target 85%) 
o Speech and language assessment within 72hrs: not achieved 47.1% 

(standard 90%) 
 

Operations 
 
The Chief Operating Officer highlighted the following key areas from the report: 

 Urgent Care: 
o The urgent care centre did not open as a unit on 1st November. However, GP 

streaming will be running from the Emergency Department, led by GP 
colleagues. Whilst there is a delay in the physical building work, the service 
itself will go live on 13th November. GPs will be working to three different 
shifts to cover the core hours 

 A&E: 
o 4 hour standard performance was 77.09% (73.95% last month) 
o There were 32 breaches of the 12 hr Trolley Wait Standard 
o Bed occupancy was 96.0% (maximum of 99.7%) 
o Delayed transfers of care were 8.4% 

 MFFD : 
o There were an average for the month of 242 patients medically fit for 

discharge compared to 214 last September 
 RTT: 

o Performance 90.82% (standard & improvement trajectory 92%) 
o Total number of patients waiting increased to 30,978 
o Numbers waiting more than 18 weeks increased by 123 to 2,843 
o 10 more patients waiting more than 35 weeks 
o 1 breach of the 52 wk. maximum wait standard 

 Diagnostics: 
o Trust performance was 99.12% against the 99% diagnostic standard and 

improvement trajectory of 99.1%. There were 56 breaches of the standard 
o No breaches of the standard in audiology 
o CT 24 and MRI 8 breaches due to capacity and cancellation of outpatient 

diagnostics to support discharge of non-elective inpatients 
o Capacity shortfall for non-obstetric ultrasound (14 breaches) and endoscopy 

(10 breaches) 
 Cancer: 

o The Trust is currently forecasting achievement of 7 of the 8 key national 
standards, provisionally 62 day first definitive treatment has not been 
achieved, however validation is not completed and performance is expected 
to improve once all treatments are recorded and breaches validated but this 
is unlikely to improve sufficiently to achieve the standard 

o Provisionally 6 patients who were treated in excess of 104 days. ( 5.5 of 
these would be attributable to the Trust) 

o 62 day first definitive treatment – the provisional performance for September 
is 77.9% and not achieved. Validation is on-going and breach sharing 
guidance has not yet been applied 

 
The Chairman pointed out that neither the quality nor the operational outcomes were of the 
required standard and asked if there was a proper understanding of why they were not. The 
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Chief Operating Officer replied that there was an understanding of why improvements could 
not be sustained and that the main issues are with increasing occupancy.  There are a 
number of internal and external challenges but the drive to improve the necessary flow 
through the hospital would continue. 
 
The Medical Director added that the length of patient stay was an issue but that different 
internal process failings and inefficiencies had been identified and were being addressed.  
The changes to discharge processes were already being seen to have a positive effect. 
 
The Medical Director described the improvements that are necessary to improve the quality 
of the Stroke service.  Workforce was the main issue. The Stroke service is an area of 
particular focus. 
 
David Parfitt asked if there were enough GPs in place to properly staff the Urgent Care 
Centre. The Chief Operating Officer replied that whilst there were a few gaps within the rota, 
the service is ready to start. 
 
The Chief Executive confirmed that the RTT would be affected by the Orthopaedic surgery 
downturn and that as a consequence, the constitutional standard would not be met for this 
year.  He added that whilst he recognised that to achieve the 62 day Cancer wait standard 
was particularly challenging, it was also most important that the Trust did and that this issue 
needed to be addressed at pace.  He described the steps that were being taken to help 
improve the MRI and CT capacity during the winter period. 
 
Finance 
 
The Director of Finance drew attention to the following areas of the report: 

 Deficit - The internal financial variance (i.e. pre-STF) for M6 was £1.6m adverse. The 
key factors contributing to the deficit are covered in the relevant individual slides of 
the report. The Trust is commissioning a piece of work to review the baseline 
position and which will help to identify the significant actions before reporting back to 
the Regulator in November. An exercise to revise the financial plan and present a 
detailed forecast to the Trust Board is the first phase of a longer term plan to build a 
robust strategy for improvement and recovery which is due for completion by the end 
of the financial year 

 Cash - The cash balance at 30th September includes £3.1m of the £4.1m capital 
cash carried forward from 2016/17. The target cash balance was therefore £4.1m 
compared to the plan balance of £3.1m. A sum of £1.0m of the capital carry forward 
has now been spent. The Trust has submitted a request for interim financial support. 
It received a sum of £5.0m in October. A further sum of £5.8m for November has 
been requested as per the mandate request to the Trust Board in September. The 
Trust continues to maintain a dialogue with NHSI regarding its cash position. A cash 
support application has been made. 

 Income - The clinical income variance year to date is behind plan by £5.5m. There 
are several key factors contributing to this. The AIC contract has an over-
performance against plan of £2.2m (comprising drugs exclusions of £0.7m, over 
performance on non-elective activity of £0.9m in Q1 and an over-performance on 
elective activity of £0.6m in Q1). Of these factors only the drugs exclusions remain in 
the forecast outturn as a potential claim upon the AIC contract Risk Pool at this time. 
The NHSE Specialised services PbR contract of has an over performance of £2.0m. 
An adverse variance of £8.0m exists that covers the NHSI plan which was set with 
STP growth and demand, before 3 CCG QIPP taken into account (This accounts for 
£3.1m of the adverse variance). This adverse variance is materially offset by 
reserves within non pay provided to undertake growth in activity 

 Operating Expenditure - Pay expenditure was £8.2m adverse to plan year to date. 
The pay over-spend links to a continued reliance on premium rate medical staff costs 
in both unscheduled and scheduled care to maintain capacity and safety. The Trust 
continued to use an exceptional level of medical and nursing agency staff in 
September as that seen in August. This conflicts with the original plan profiling 
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assumptions which were based on material reductions in premium rate costs by this 
point in the financial year. The Non-pay expenditure position is favourable to plan by 
£7.6m, this includes a favourable reserve provision for cost/income pressures of 
£8.9m which contributes to offsetting the adverse income position, and for drug 
budgets of £0.4m. Outsourcing commitments to non-NHS providers exceeded 
planning assumptions by £2.1m in the year to date 

 Capital - The Trust has spent £4.7m of capital YTD. NHSI approved carry forward of 
unspent CRL into 2017/18 and this is reflected in the Capital Resource Limit. The 
Trust continues to seek a resolution to the confirmed CRL position and we have 
recorded our dispute in relation to this within/alongside our planning submissions. 
The forecast variance to plan of £0.9m relates to the A&E Streaming project (DH 
approved the PDC for this in July). The Board approved the capital programme in 
September 

 Cost Improvement Plans - The CIP challenge for 17/18 is significant and the Trust is 
approaching this through a system wide approach with partners across the health 
system, though there remains a significant risk to the delivery of the programme in 
full. The detailed programme of work to produce a revised financial plan and detailed 
forecast for the remainder of 17/18 includes a full review of savings plans and 
delivery and risk management arrangements. There remains a significant gap in 
terms of the realistic case against the CIP target for the year. The Trust response to 
this risk assessment has been set out in full within the revised plan presented to the 
Trust Board in October and will be presented to the Regulator in November 

 
David Parfitt expressed his concern at the long term capital resource challenge and that the 
Trust Board needed to remain aware of the situation.  He was also concerned at the Trust’s 
ability to comply with the NHSi temporary staffing requirements whilst trying to manage the 
high number of patients who were medically fit and ready for discharge and the sheer 
volume of patients accessing the Trust on a daily basis. 
 
Workforce 
 
The Director of Workforce drew attention to the following areas of the report: 

 The total workforce capacity had increased by 89 FTE to 7001 FTE in September 
and is 135 FTE over the funded establishment 

 The temporary workforce capacity had increased by 37 to 519 FTE in September, 
this comprised 7.4% of the total workforce capacity. This is a small increase in 
comparison to August  

 The number of shifts that have breached the capped rates or are off-framework have 
decreased by 126 shifts to 2887 shifts in September  

 The evidence collected for September indicates that overall staffing levels have 
increased from 102.6% to 102.9% compared to planned levels 

 Urgent Care workforce summits will take place in order to understand the current 
situation and what is required to get back to a sustainable workforce. This will be 
brought back to the Trust Board as it progresses 

 The evidence collected for September indicates that overall CHPPD is 5 hours for 
RNs. This is similarly reported in the previous month and 2.8 for HCSWs 

 Appraisal compliance has increased and currently records at 78.1% in September  
but remains below the 85% target 

 Essential skills compliance is 88.7%, and continues to record above the 85% target 
 Sickness Absence Rate (12 month rolling average) increased at 4% in August and 

remains above the target. In-month sickness absence decreased to 3.3% in August  
and is above the target 

 Annual Rolling Turnover Rate - 12 month rolling average has decreased to 11.7% in 
September but remains above the 10% target 

 No whistleblowing referrals, professional registration referrals or safeguarding 
referrals were reported in September  

 
The Chairman said that she considered appraisals to be a huge benefit to staff and that they 
needed to be seen in a positive light as they were a good opportunity for staff to discuss 
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their aspirations and developmental needs. David Parfitt wholeheartedly agreed.  
 
David Parfitt raised concern around the DNA (did not attend) rate for learning and 
development courses and asked what were the reasons behind them. The Director of 
Workforce agreed that there was a high number of DNA’s and that one of the main reasons 
why staff were withdrawn from courses, or courses were postponed, at the last minute was 
because of operational pressures. There was evidence that demonstrated that having 
trainers attend departments improves uptake and he is hoping to facilitate this.  Face to face 
training is a requirement for certain training but e-learning is used where it can be. 
 
Christine Slaymaker recalled that the Director of Workforce had mentioned at a previous 
meeting that he was keen to introduce some harder indicators, alongside the softer ones, to 
departmental performance reviews. The Director of Workforce confirmed that he would be 
discussing with colleagues how performance reviews might best be structured and what 
data should be presented and considered. He was hoping that the new Integrated 
Performance Report would be available for the December Trust Board. 
 

195/17 Care Quality Commission Update 
 
The Interim Director of Nursing drew the trust Boards attention to the following highlights.  
      Compliance and Regulation Steering Group 

 The Compliance and Regulation Steering Group, reporting to the Governance and 
Quality Committee, meets weekly with a CSC to discuss its progress and any 
concerns in achieving compliance with the required standards 

Quality Improvement Plan – Phase 1 
 The final version of the Quality Improvement Plan, outlining the next steps of the 5 

areas of focus (Valuing the Basics, Supporting Vulnerability in Patients, Organisation 
that Learns, Moving Beyond Safe and Leading Well through Good Governance) is 
due to be published at the end of October 2017 

Section 31* (AMU) issued 3rd March 2017 following inspection - 28th February 
2017 
 The Trust ensures staffing is at the required level and continues to report compliance 

to the CQC fortnightly, detailing all incidences where staffing levels have not been 
achieved and the actions taken to mitigate risks 

 The AMU MDT have been  awarded a team Quality Improvement Fellowship 
Section 31* (Mental Health) issued 12th May 2017 following inspection 10th and 
11th May 2017 
 The Trust continues to meet the CQC requirement to submit weekly compliance 

information 
 The Trust-wide ligature audit has commenced. It has been completed on AMU red 

ward and C5 ward 
Section 29a re-issued 4th July 2017 following inspections 16th, 17th and 28th 
February and 10th and 11th May 2017 
 The Trust is required to make significant improvements by 31st October 2017. The 

evidence is currently being collated and verified to enable the Chief Executive to 
provide the CQC with a position statement against the Section 29a on 31st October. 

Section 31 (Diagnostic and Screening Procedures) issued 28 July 2017 
 Weekly data submission to the CQC commenced 6th September. No further 

correspondence has been received from the CQC to date 
 CQC Specialist Inspector had fed back verbally that the data submitted was of a high 

standard 
 

The Trust Board has been asked to agree the level of detail it wishes to receive regarding 
the action plans to support the delivery of all the Regulatory requirements. Christine 
Slaymaker requested a deep dive workshop to discuss CQC documentation, requirements 
and the necessary level of detail being provided to the Trust Board to ensure that members 
are fully sighted and assured. The existing assurances in terms of CQC compliance were 
discussed. The Interim Director of Nursing was pleased to report that there is a regular and 
honest dialogue with the CQC regarding different pressures within the Trust and where 
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improvements were being made. The Medical Director agreed that the regular conversations 
with the CQC were most valuable but he recognised that the content of, and outcome from, 
those conversations was not currently shared with members of Trust Board and that it 
should be. He also said that the relationship between the Trust and the CQC had improved 
immensely and this is recognised by both organisations. 
Action: Interim Director of Nursing / Director of Corporate Affairs 
 
The Chief Executive informed the Board that there is a Compliance and Regulatory 
Committee, chaired by the Interim Director of Nursing which oversees Trust compliance with 
the different actions and that this Committee would be able to provide the necessary 
assurance. He added that he would also be accessing support on a regular basis from 
external organisations and partners to help provide assurance e.g.  The Trust has asked an 
external mental health provider to carry-out a non-bias review in order to provide assurance 
around the evidence that has been gathered and to ensure that the Trust is compliant. 
 
Christine Slaymaker asked if the Interim Director of Nursing could provide an overview 
diagram of the different mechanisms for assurance. 
Action: Interim Director of Nursing 
 

196/17 Quality Performance Report (Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation) 
 
The Interim Director of Nursing reported that the current SIRI report format was under 
review to ensure that it was clear, robust, accurate and correctly focussed. She presented 
the report for this month and drew attention to: 
SIRI summary – September 2017 

 A total of 46 SIRIs had been reported in September; 32 breaches of DTA, 2 Formal 
Ambulance Diverts and 12 clinical SIRIs: 

o 5 x avoidable level 3 hospital acquired pressure damage 
o 1 x inappropriate discharge following surgery, patient readmitted with bladder 

perforation 
o 1 x incorrect cervical screening results involving two patients 
o Complex emergency department admission with a fall, with possible serious 

harm 
o 1 x fall resulting in a fractured neck of femur 
o 1 x Unexpected sudden deterioration of patient leading to death, cause 

unknown at present 
o 1 x Unexpected death of patient being cared for by QA@H, cause unknown 

at present 
o 1 x unexpected death of child following discharge from CAU 

 This compares to 11 clinical SIRIs that had been reported in August 
 Of the 12 clinical SIRIs reported in September; all patients or relatives, where 

applicable or appropriate, were informed of the incident within the deadline and are 
aware of the on-going investigation with the exception of 3 instances within Surgery 
& Cancer, where an exemption has been agreed with the CCG 

 204 SIRIs remain open on STEIS (Compared with 152 in August), 144 of these are 
Breaches of DTA. 

 86 SIRIs are in the process of investigation within the Trust (46 DTA breaches) 
 6 clinical SIRIs and 1 Formal Ambulance Divert have had their investigation 

completed and the reports have been submitted to the Commissioner for review and 
sign off, all of these are awaiting closure by the CCG 

 1 event on completion of investigation was agreed with the CCG to be downgraded 
from SIRI status. This was an avoidable pressure damage event reported in May 
within Medicine CSC, now deemed unavoidable 

 There is a focus on providing high quality reports in a timely manner 
 In November 2017 there will be a focus on managing timelines for completion. The 

Director of Nursing and the Head of Quality for the CCG have agreed their 
attendance at the final panel meetings to prepare reports in a timely manner 
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October 2017 
 As of 09 October, 4 Clinical SIRIs have been confirmed 

 
Mark Nellthorp referenced the reports that should have been be closed by the CCG but had 
not been. The Interim Director of Nursing replied that the CCG is now included as part of the 
panel which has helped to identify improvements.  
 

197/17 Example of Incidents 
 
The Chairman asked why this report was missing. The Interim Director of Nursing replied 
that although this report was provided on a bi-monthly basis, it was felt that the example that 
had been selected for this month’s report was not appropriate. 
 
David Parfitt asked if trends could be added to the report to provide a broader picture rather 
than just individual cases being presented. The Interim Director of Nursing agreed. 
 

198/17 Annual Staff Health and Wellbeing Report 
 
The Director of Workforce drew attention to the following: 

 The importance of health safety and wellbeing for Trust staff  
 Cost of absence to the Trust £10.2 million for 2016/17 
 Key activities undertaken in 2016/17 focussing on absence management, fit for work, 

health and safety statistics, manual handling, staff counselling and external income 
generating activity. Safety with sharps is a concern and is being focused on 

 CQUIN health and wellbeing target and delivery of the CQUIN health and wellbeing 
action plan was achieved resulting in £750,000 income 

 CQUIN Flu target 72.5% achieved in 2016/17 £375,000 payment made 
 
The Chairman sought clarification regarding the relocation of Occupational Health and any 
associated problems. The Director of Workforce confirmed that because of the nature and 
importance of their work it was recognised that an alternative to their current location 
needed to be provided on the Queen Alexandra Hospital site. 
 
David Parfitt asked whether there was any further income growth opportunity in providing 
Occupational Health services to other organisations. The Director of Workforce that there 
was potential for the service to grow. 
 
The Chief Operating Officer expressed his concern at the number of sharps incidents.  The 
Chief Executive said that there must be more focus on sharps awareness and safer 
practice. 
 

199/17 Board Assurance Framework 
 
The Director of Corporate Affairs asked colleagues to note the updates contained within it. 
Trust Board members were asked whether any further assurance relating to the progress 
with the mitigation of the different risks was required. He reiterated from the last meeting 
that each risk has an executive lead who will be monitoring the progress of the risks and 
mitigations. 
 
The Chief Executive said that the Framework will be an operational tool that would be used 
in helping manage objectives. He added that a summary paper would be included in future 
reports that would pinpoint any changes that had been made from the previous month. 
 
Some suggestions were given on how the Board Assurance Framework might be improved 
visually and Christine Slaymaker asked if some of the actions could be made sharper and 
includes the impacts. 
 
The Director of Corporate Affairs confirmed that he had asked all committees to reflect at 
the end of their meetings whether a risk had been identified that was so significant that it 
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might need to be included in the Framework and to be sighted on the existing risks within 
the Framework. 
 

200/17 Recovery Trajectories for Diagnostics, RTT and Cancer 
 
The Chief Operating Officer apologised that the Cancer action plan was not being presented 
today. He assured the Trust Board that work was continuing and that there was a revised 
trajectory in place to make sure improvements are made to the 62 day wait cancer 
performance. He presented the RTT paper and drew attention to the following key points: 

 Current 18 week RTT performance and cause of deterioration 
 Recovery actions for key specialties 
 Indication of impact of temporary reduction in Orthopaedic elective activity on 18 

week RTT performance 
 Forecast trajectory of 18 week RTT performance for remainder of 2017/18 
 The Trust Board is asked to note the conclusions in the paper and to agree the 

forecast trajectory for the remainder of the year 
 The operational and clinical teams will continue to deliver safe patient care on an 18 

week RTT pathway, in line with the agreed trajectories 
 This will be shared with NHSi as requested 

 
The Chairman asked if the Executive group had confidence in the plan. The Chief Executive 
replied that he had confidence in the numbers detailed in the plan. There is little else that 
can be done in terms of mitigating the winter pressures impact on the elective work because 
most of the work is inpatient Surgery and Cancer.  Both the Medical Director and Interim 
Director of Nursing echoed the Chief Executive’s statement. The Interim Director of Nursing 
added that it is not an easy task cancelling patients and should only be done as a last resort. 
 
Christine Slaymaker asked exactly what was meant by ‘outsourcing Orthopaedic work’. The 
Chief Operating Officer explained that the Trust was paying for routine Orthopaedic work to 
be carried out at a local private hospital facility to help support the RTT agenda.  Outpatient 
and follow–up appointments were carried out at Queen Alexandra Hospital. The Medical 
Director added that it was hoped that the hospital’s own theatre staff could be used in the 
private facility thus helping to minimise the cost to the Trust. 
 
David Parfitt asked how the Trust would reach the 18 week target for next year. The Chief 
Executive replied that the Trust had both a full book of activity and a backlog to get through 
and that it would be essential to protect the elective programme. Mark Nellthorp added that 
the RTT data would look worse for a short while whilst the Trust cleared the backlog. 
 

201/17 SIRO Report 
 
The Director of Corporate Affairs presented this report, drawing attention to the following key 
points: 

 The Trust achieved a ‘satisfactory’ rating for 2016/17 
 There had been a decrease in compliance this year to 68% compared with 75% in 

2015/16. However, we comply with the National Governance Toolkit 
 Consistency of incident grading is assisted by changes to the DatixWeb system. 

Only actual or potential IG breaches are now graded 
 The Trust reported four data protection incidents to the Information Commissioner’s 

Office but no further regulatory action was required.   
 We continue to improve CSC compliance with ensuring contracts, asset registers 

and flow mapping are accurate and up to date 
 Training of staff remained a challenge. 95% achieved on final day of submission 

 
The Director of Corporate Affairs credited the Information Governance Manager, Emile 
Armour, for the work undertaken and gave a brief description of the process that takes 
place. 
 
He confirmed that there were many different documents that supported this report and was 
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happy to share them if anyone would like to see them. 
 

202/17 Charities Act Compliance 
 
The Chairman and Director of Corporate Affairs had been asked to ensure that the Trust 
Board was meeting its responsibilities as required by the Charities Act. The Director of 
Corporate Affairs anticipated providing a formal report to Trust Board in February. The 
Chairman wished to understand the skill sets of the ‘soon to be appointed’ new Non-
Executive Directors before deciding who best to ask to sit on the Charitable Funds 
Committee.  
 
The Chairman asked if it was thought appropriate for each Trust Board Committee to 
provide a regular report summarising their agendas, actions, minutes and risks. If so, then 
she would like the Chairman of each committee to present a report at Trust Board meetings. 
The Interim Director of Nursing thought this to be a sensible suggestion and suggested that 
a template could be designed to ensure reporting consistency. 
  

203/17 Trauma Incident Management (TRiM) 
 
Helen Peet and Honor Hinxman had been invited by the Medical Director to come and 
showcase this initiative. Please see the attached presentation for full details.  
 

Psychological 
support in PHT.pptx  
 
Christine Slaymaker asked if there was any innovation funding available to support this 
project. Helen Peet replied that funding could come as a research element from Portsmouth 
University. Helen emphasised that she was not asking for anything from the Trust Board at 
this stage but was just keen to raise awareness.  
 
The Chief Executive praised Helen for her excellent presentation and the wonderful work 
being undertaken and offered his support. Trust Board members were unanimous in 
echoing the Chief Executive in offering their support. 
 

204/17 Charitable Funds Update 
 
The Director of Corporate Affairs highlighted the following key points: 

 Total Funds 
o Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust General Charitable Fund has a fund 

balance of £1,340,463 as at 30th September 2017 
 Charitable Income - during the month, the charity received donations, legacy and 

fundraising income totalling £122,310. Charitable Expenditure - during the month, 
expenditure of £51,545 had been processed. 

 The Rocky Appeal needs to raise £317,000 to complete its appeal in June 2018. 
This had been discussed at the charitable funds committee meeting as there is 
concern that the appeal will not raise sufficient funds to cover the cost of the final 
payment for the Da Vinci Robot. If the target is not achieved the Trust will be liable 
for the payment (or part payment) and this will mean VAT will be incurred, increasing 
the final payment required by approximately £74,000. The committee will monitor the 
progress of the appeal over the coming months and will keep the Trust Board up to 
date 

 Investments - the only investment held is with CCLA of £124,000 
 
The Director of Corporate Affairs thanked the News for its continued and regular support of 
the hospital’s charitable fund activities. 
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205/17 Non-Executive Directors’ Report 
 
Nothing further to add. 
 

206/17 Summary of Governors Business 
 
The Director of Corporate Affairs presented the report. The Governors offered their support 
in any way that it might be of most use. This was gratefully acknowledged and the Chairman 
will take this dialogue forward. 
 

207/17 Company Secretary Papers for Noting 
 
Papers noted. 
 

208/17 Annual Work plan 
 
The work plan was discussed and it was felt that it should be reviewed and made more 
relevant/topical. The Director of Corporate Affairs to review the Annual Workplan. 
Action: Director of Corporate Affairs 
 

209/17 Record of Attendance 
 
Noted. 
 

210/17 Opportunity for the Public to ask questions relating to today’s Board meeting 
 
There were no questions from the public. 
 

211/17 Any Other Business 
 
None. 
 
The meeting closed at 12:38am. 
 

212/17 Date of Next  Meeting:   
Thursday 7 December 2017 
Venue: Lecture Theatre, Queen Alexandra Hospital 
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 ROLLING ACTION POINTS FROM: Trust Board Meeting in Public     Thursday 2 November 2017 
 

2017 
Minute Agenda Topic Summary of Action required Responsibility for Action 

is with Due Date  

193/17 Chief Executives 
Report 

The Chairman has asked for the Director of Finance to 
finalise the financial implications forecast for winter 
pressures and provide the Board with an overview. To 
be completed in November in order to go on the 
agenda for December. She requested the forecast to 
include the assumptions on which the plan is based and 
actions in order to deliver those assumptions - 
Completed 
 

Director of Finance December 

195/17 Care Quality 
Commission Update 

Christine Slaymaker requested a workshop to discuss 
CQC documentation and the appropriate level of detail 
being provided to Trust Board 

Interim Director of Nursing 
/ Director of Corporate 
Affairs 

December 

195/17 Care Quality 
Commission Update 

The Interim Director of Nursing to provide a quick view 
diagram of the mechanisms for assurance used for 
Trust Board 

Interim Director of Nursing December 

208/17 Annual Workplan The Director of Corporate Affairs to review the Annual 
Workplan 

Director of Corporate 
Affairs December 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017              Agenda Item Number: 219/17 
        Enclosure Number: (1) 

Subject:  Report from the Chief Executive 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

 Mark Cubbon, Chief Executive 

Purpose of paper  To update the Board on national and local items of interest 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

 Note the contents of the report 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

 None required, for information 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

 None 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

None 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

None 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities  

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference  

Risk Description  

CQC Reference  

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 
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Chief Executive’s Board Report 
7th December 2017 

 
 

1. Commitment to our Nurses from the European Union 
 
There has been a notable decline in nurses making the career decision to bring their 
skills to the UK over the past year. As a Trust we have recruited in a number of 
European countries over the years and we enjoy the cultural mix this brings to our 
workforce. 
 
Following on from Theresa May’s open letter in October to all EU nationals confirming 
her intention that “EU citizens living lawfully in the UK today will be able to stay”, I wrote 
to all our EU nurses, individually, who work at the Trust.  I expressed our sincere 
gratitude that they have chosen to relocate and set up home here in Portsmouth, to 
pursue a career with us and to be a key part of the team. 
 
I followed this up with a face to face session with a group of nurses on 30th November to 
hear more about their experience of working at Portsmouth, but also to reiterate our 
support and commitment to them.  
 
 

2. CQC Report – Radiology 
 
On the 1st December the Care Quality Commission (CQC) recently published their 
report into the Radiology Services at the Trust which has highlighted delays to patient 
care. 
 
We have issued an unreserved apology to the families of the three patients who 
experienced harm because of the delays to their care.  It is of deep regret to all of us, 
that we did not deliver the high standards of care everyone should expect from our 
hospital.  Any delays to patient care are totally unacceptable to us, and we have read 
and accept the CQC inspector’s report highlighting delays in reporting some chest        
x-rays. 
 
When these issues were raised with us in July of this year we immediately put in place a 
range of improvements, dealing with the backlog of chest x-rays, by increasing our 
capacity. We have worked hard to ensure all patients attending our Emergency 
Department have a healthcare professional who is appropriately trained to undertake a 
second review of chest and abdominal x-rays. All x-rays have been reviewed by the 
referring clinician, but it is the second review, usually undertaken by a radiologist, which 
has not previously been happening consistently. We have taken steps to clear the 
backlog of second reviews as quickly as possible and expect these to be cleared in 
February. I have launched a formal investigation to understand the circumstances which 
led to this situation and have committed to publish the findings as soon as we know 
more.  
 
In the meantime our absolute focus is to ensure we are able to provide as much support 
to any patient or family member who has a concern and a helpline has been up and 
running since the publication of the report. 
 
We are totally committed to improving care and quality outcomes for our patients, to 
ensure we provide consistent care for all, whatever their needs, always. We are 
confident that together the Trust leadership and our professional and dedicated staff are 
making the improvements that are needed.  
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3. Best People Awards 
 

On 23rd November we hosted the annual 2017 Best People Awards at a ceremony in 
the Guildhall, Portsmouth.  The Best People Awards provide an opportunity to recognise 
outstanding achievements; to showcase best practice; demonstrate commitment to the 
Portsmouth Values and to reward those who exceed expectations or any exceptional act 
by individual staff and teams.  It was a huge honour to participate in the event and to 
hear the wonderful stories of staff and teams who have gone that extra mile, to deliver 
the very best care for every patient. The event was a great success and I look forward to 
next year’s event and the opportunity to hear even more stories. Full details of those who 
received an award are available on the Trust website and have been made available on 
social media. 

 
 
4. Urgent Care  

 
We continue to implement our urgent care improvement programme and are starting to 
see a range of tangible improvements in the waiting times for patients and the 
experience for our staff and our patients. We are working in full collaboration with our 
partners across Portsmouth and South East Hampshire to deliver these improvements 
at pace and to ensure they are sustained. 
 
We had a visit from the national Emergency Care Improvement Team to support our 
improvements and the feedback obtained has been incorporated into our plan. A further 
update will be provided by the Chief Operating Officer as part of their update on 
performance.  
 
 

5. Appointments 
 
We have continued to make progress with the final appointments to the executive team. 
I now have the pleasure of welcoming Emma McKinney who joined the Trust as the 
Director of Communications and Engagement on 4th December 2017. 
 
Following the announcement of the appointment of Theresa Murphy as Chief Nurse, I 
can confirm that Theresa’s official start date with us will be 1st January 2018.   
 
I am pleased to announce that Penny Emerit has been appointed to the role of Director 
of Strategy and Performance and will be joining us in January 2018. She brings a wealth 
of experience to the Trust and I am looking forward to welcoming her into the team. 
 
I have also appointed Lois Howell as the Interim Director of Integrated Governance in 
recognition of the scale of the work underway to strengthen our governance processes. 
Recruitment to the substantive post is currently underway.  

 
 
6. 100 Days – Big Conversations 

 
A series of Big Conversations have been taking place throughout November and 
December - when 100 days of listening are turned into 100 days of action. The sessions 
have been very well attended showing a high level of engagement and commitment 
from staff to get involved in making the Trust an even better place to work. Our staff are 
working collaboratively to drive further changes across the Trust in response to the six 
themes of feedback gained throughout my first 100 days in the Trust. 
 
I look forward to sharing the final outputs from the sessions with all staff and our patients 
early in the New Year. 
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7. Visits to the Trust 
 
There are two notable visits we have hosted over the past month.  
 
The first was Jon Wilks, Director for the Academy of Fabulous Stuff, and his colleagues, 
who visited us on 16th November and were hugely impressed by what they saw and 
heard whilst they were here. They gave a special mention to the presentations given by 
our Renal dieticians, members of the surgical team who created videos to improve 
information given to patients, and the focussed work being undertaken in the Maternity 
Assessment Unit. They also highlighted the teams in AMU and MOPRs for piloting the 
national work to end patient PJ paralysis.  
 
We were also pleased to host Mr Patrick Mitchell, South Regional Director for Health 
Education England on 23rd November. He was joined by members of his team who 
stimulated a useful discussion around our thoughts about future workforce planning 
opportunities. We look forward to building on the very positive working relationships 
which exist between our teams to as we plan to address the current and future workforce 
challenges here at the Trust.    
 
 

8. Top 3 Concerns 
 
The three main concerns I bring to the Boards attention this month are: 
 
1. The reliability of the governance systems in place across the Trust remains a 

challenge. While we have a very active programme of work in place to address this, 
there is more work to do. 

 
2. Our financial position is not improving at the pace our initial plan had intended. We 

are taking a number of actions in response to this, to strengthen our in year position 
and our plan for a sustainable recovery. 

 
3. While there is some progress with delivery of urgent care standards, there is much 

work to do to deliver sustained improvements throughout the winter period. 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017     Agenda Item Number: 220/17 
        Enclosure Number: (2) 

Subject: Integrated Performance Report (s) – October 2017 

Prepared by  
 
 
 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Jane Lowe Head of Performance & Scheduled Care 

Tracey Stenning Head of Governance 

Leah Wilson Workforce Planning and Intelligence Manager 

Steve Smith Head of Financial Management 

Paul Bytheway Chief Operating Officer 

Purpose of paper The Board are asked to note the two IPR reports for October 2017. 
A standard report and a report in a new format for consideration, 
The reports identify risks and improvement in relation to: 

· National & Constitutional Standards 

· Regulatory requirements 

· Contract Requirements and 

· Trust priorities  

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
 

Please refer to the Integrated Performance Reports: 

· Performance Outcomes 

· KPI and dashboards and 

· Executive Summary 

Options and decisions 
required 

The Board is asked to note the performance at the end of October 
2017 

Next steps / future actions: 

 

On-going measurement of all standards 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

N/A 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Strategic Aims, Assurance 
Framework/Corporate Risk Register 

Strategic Aim Strategic Aims 1,3,4 and 5 

BAF/Corporate Risk Register 
Reference (if applicable) N/A 

Risk Description N/A 

CQC Reference N/A 

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been approved: N/A Date 19
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QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Integrated Performance Outcomes – October 2017 
• There is an overall positive position against the quality metrics.  However, there has been a Never Reported and a deterioration noted 

in C.difficle cases and patient moves and outliers. 
• A&E performance was 76.4% (against a revised improvement trajectory of 83%) 
• Performance 0.67% lower than last month with 10 more type attendances per day than last month. 
• The average number of medically fit for discharge patients (MFFD) increase to 250/day compared to 242 in September. 
• 12 hour standard – there were 6 breaches of the standard ( 32 last month) reflecting poor flow and long waits to be seen at night. 
• RTT standard 90.4% (against the maintenance trajectory of 90.7%) in addition to the planned reduction in orthopaedic elective 

treatments further patients were cancelled to maintain the safety of the hospital and this impacted on performance. 
• There were 3 breaches of the 52 wk standard. These were all found in review of previous clock closes which were found to be 

incorrect. All patients have been re-checked and the patients who breached the standard have been treated or have a plan in place. 
• 6 of the 8 key national cancer standards were achieved. 62 day standard not achieved provisional performance is 81.1% and ahead 

of improvement trajectory of 80.6%. The 62 day screening standard was not achieved, 27 patients treated with 4 breaches 2 of which 
were complex patients. 

• 6 wk Diagnostic standard performance was 99.8% and achieved (standard 99%) 
• The Trust is reporting a £19.4m year to date deficit for the 7 months to the end of October 2017. This is £15.5m adverse to the 

Financial Plan submitted to NHS Improvement.  
• It had a cash balance at the end of October 2017 of £4.2m. 
• The Trust has spent £2.4m of a £8.4m non-PFI capital programme in the year to date. 
• Temporary usage recorded at 581 fte a month and comprises 8.1% of the total workforce capacity. 
• The total workforce capacity increased by 99 FTE to 7155 FTE in October 17 and is 292 FTE over the funded establishment  
• Appraisal compliance continues to be below 85% target currently recording at 79.2% 
• Sickness absence rate has decreased in – month to 3.4% 
 

29/11/2017 

En
ab

le
rs

 –
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 O

ut
co

m
es

 

22



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 11/29/2017 

Quality of Care Overview – October 2017 
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Quality of Care Overview – October 2017 
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Quality of Care Key Exceptions – October performance 

29/11/2017 
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y Exceptions in performance to note 
Indicator Aug Sept Oct Comment 

Sa
fe

 

Mental Health Not applicable 

• The Trust-wide ligature audit has been completed on  AMU Red and C5.  The audits will inform a full risk assessment with a 
clear plan for action.  

• A Mental Health and Mental Capacity Board has been established with the first meeting held on 24th October. This will be a 
sub-Committee of Trust Board and chaired by a Non-Executive Director. 

Pressure ulcers 
(grade 3 avoidable) 2 4 1 

• 1 confirmed case of avoidable grade 3 pressure ulcer damage in October.  This occurred within Renal and resulted in low 
harm. 

• The Trust year-to-date position is 11 avoidable grade 3 and 0 (zero) grade 4 pressure ulcers. 

C.Difficle 2 4 6 
• 6 patients reported with C.Difficile attributed to the Trust; 2x Gynae, 2x MSK, 1x Renal, 1x Surgery) against a monthly 

objective of 3.  
• The Trust’s year-to-date position is 26 cases against a target of 23 cases (annual objective 40 cases).   

Serious 
Incidents 
Requiring 
Investigation 

16 46 17 • 17 SIRIs were reported in October .  3 breaches of Decision to Admit (DTA) standard and 14 clinical SIRIs, compared to 12 
clinical SIRIs in September. 

Never Event 1 0 1 • There has been 1 Never Event reported in October relating to a retained foreign object from a procedure undertaken in 2016. 
• The Trust year-to-date position is 2 Never Events. 

Central Alert 
System (CAS) 
Alerts over 
deadline 

0 0 1 • 4 Patient Safety Alerts remain outstanding for the Trust, three of which are overdue actions are underway. 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 

CQUIN – National 
requirements Not applicable 

• Amber rated areas relate to: 
- Healthy food:  Within Trust controlled areas an action plan is under way with audits planned. There is an emerging risk 

with non-Trust controlled areas. Discussions are underway with Carillion. 
- Identification and treatment of Sepsis:  Internal action plan under way.  Sepsis Group / Infection / Nursing currently 

devising remedial action plan to regain performance.  
- Mental Health: Internal action plan under way and on track.  Extension of Q2 audit requested to the CCG to provide 

higher quality data. 

Sepsis CQUIN Not applicable 

a. Timely identification of sepsis in emergency departments and acute inpatient settings.  98.85% compliance against a target 
of 90%; an improvement on the 97.83% compliance noted in quarter 1 and an overall improvement in ED and in-patient 
settings. 

b. Treatment of sepsis in emergency departments and acute inpatient settings:  72.84% compliance against a target of 90%.  
An improvement on the 70.74% compliance noted in quarter 1, An improvement is noted in ED areas; however, there has 
been a reduction in compliance in in-patient areas. 
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Quality of Care Key Exceptions – October performance 

29/11/2017 
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HSMR 
111.03 

(June ‘16 – 
May ‘17) 

112.4 
(July ‘16 – 
June ‘17) 

111.5 
(Aug. ‘16 – 

July‘17) 

• The updated Trust HSMR for the 12 months to July 2017 is 111.5; representing a decrease on the rate 
previously reported to June 2017 of 112.4.  This sits within a confidence interval of 106.7 – 116.5; remaining 
significantly higher than expected. 

• An improvement in the last two individual months for HSMR performance has been seen, which may reflect 
the work in progress to cleanse the classification of data. The 12 month rolling trend data demonstrates a 
recent improvement and is a more accurate indicator than monthly data. 

C
ar

in
g 

Dementia 
screening 75% 70.7% 70.1% 

• There is on-going non-compliance. 
• The Trust Quality Improvement Plan contains an action to review the dementia screening process to ensure it 

fits with clinical practice, the aim being to achieve the national standard. 

National ED 
patient 
experience 
survey 2016 

Not applicable 

• Overall the responses show the patient experience to about the same. 
• From the survey areas for focus have been identified as requiring: 

- Improvement in the provision of patient information for those waiting to be seen. 
- Improvement in privacy for patients.   
- Improved administration of pain relief. 
- Improved access to food and drink. 

R
es

po
ns

iv
e 

Patient moves 
(non-clinical) 
between 
0001:0700 
(average per day) 

131 
(4.4) 

96 
(3.6) 

137 
(4.4) 

• October was a challenging month for the organisation as the number of patients who became medically fit for 
discharge reached 300 by the end of the month.  This was an increase of over 60 compared with the 
September position. 

• As a result the operational pressures the organisation faced saw an increase in medical and MOPRS outliers 
despite an additional ward being designated for MOPRS on D1 from mid October. 

• Elective surgery was curtailed and escalation areas reopened with most of October spent on OPEL 3 and 
OPEL 4 escalation. 

Outliers 2,594 2,221 2,221 

W
el

l-l
ed

 Friends and 
Family Test ED 
response rate 

11.7% 10.7% 10.6% 

 

• The ED response rate has decreased slightly to 10.6% in October.  This is lower than the national average of 
12.5% in September and below the required 15% contracted target. The team in ED are working through an 
improvement plan that focusses on daily response rates and involves the whole professional team in the 
collection of feedback.  

• The ED reported satisfaction rate has increased to 96.3% and continues to exceed the national benchmark of 
87% in September, demonstrating a significantly higher patient satisfaction.  The number of patients who 
would not recommend ED has decreased to 1.4% in September, remaining significantly better than the 
national average of 7% in September. 

• The in-patient response rate has decreased to 28.1% in October; however, remains above the national 
average of 24.6%.   

• The in-patient  reported satisfaction rate has increased slightly to 96.8% ; above the national average of 96% 
in September.  The number of patients who would not recommend on-patient areas has increased slightly to 
0.7%, below the national average of 2% in September. 
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Mental Health Act Compliance 

29/11/2017 
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• The Trust continues to meet the Care Quality Commission (CQC) requirements to submit weekly compliance information in relation to 
the Section 31 Enforcement Notice Conditions.   
 

• The Trust-wide ligature audit has been completed on AMU Red and C5 by Solent NHS Trust. The audits will inform a full risk 
assessment with a clear plan for action.  
 

• The first meeting of the Mental Health and Mental Capacity Board took  place at the end of October. This meeting was well attended, 
with the Terms of Reference and work-plan for the group being agreed. 
 

• As can be seen below, there has been increased and sustained performance with Mental Health Risk Assessments for patients 
attending ED. The number of mental health attendances shows no significant trends. Similarly, there are no trends apparent in the 
proportion of all ED attendances which were mental health presentations. 
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Pressure Ulcers (reporting only) 
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October position  
Avoidable hospital acquired grade 3 and 4 pressure ulcers 
• There has been 1 confirmed case of avoidable grade 3 pressure ulcer damage in 

October.  This occurred within Renal and resulted in low harm.   This compares 
with 4 confirmed grade 3 pressure ulcer damage in September. 

 

• 1 incident reported in September within Renal has been downgraded to 
unavoidable and; therefore, removed from the Trust figures. 

 

• The Trust year-to-date position is 11 avoidable grade 3 and 0 (zero) grade 4 
pressure ulcers. 

 

Unavoidable hospital acquired pressure ulcers 
• The Trust confirmed 1 unavoidable grade 3 pressure damage in September; 

compared with 2 reported in August.  
 

Grade 1 and 2 pressure ulcers 
• The Trust confirmed a total of 6 grade 1 and 6 grade 2 pressure ulcers in 

October compared to 6 grade 1 and 5 grade 2 in September. 
 

Actions and progress to date 
• The Tissue Viability Nurse (TVN) team are continuing to train members of staff 

on PURPOSE T and are reviewing the associated paperwork and care plans to 
ensure ease of use. 

 

• National Stop the Pressure Day will be celebrated in the Trust on 16th November 
with trolley dashes offering micro teaching sessions on pressure ulcer 
prevention. 

 

Present on admission 
• A total of 127 ‘present on admission’ pressure ulcers were reported in October 

compared to 122 in September. 
 

• Following review by the TVN team of all present on admission pressure damage, 
47 of the 127 reported incidents were deemed to be pressure damage. 

 

Per 1,000 occupied bed days (OBD) 
• The Trust has reported 0.0 confirmed grade 3 or 4 avoidable pressure ulcers per 

1,000 bed days in October, compared to 0.1 in September. 
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October position  
Target: Monthly monitoring of incidents resulting in moderate, severe or catastrophic harm. 
 

• There has been a total of 1 confirmed severe harm fall in October.  
- 1 fall within Medicine  resulting in subdural haemorrhage. 

• 1 moderate harm fall occurring in September has been confirmed in October; 
the September figure has been updated accordingly. 

 

• The current year-to-date position is 17 confirmed falls incidents, 13 
resulting in severe harm and 4 resulting in moderate harm. 
 
 

• There has been one clinical serious incident reported relating to the unexpected 
death of a patient post fall.  This is currently under investigation. 
 

• There are currently 7 reported  moderate harm falls  incidents (1x Emergency 
Medicine 2x Medicine ,1x MOPRS,1 x MSK and 2x Surgery and Cancer); all of 
which are currently under investigation. 
 

• This compares favorably to the October 2016/17 year to date total of 21 
reported severe harm falls. 

 

Actions and progress to date 
• The comprehensive falls training Programme continues. 
• The falls champion network continues to develop with level 4 falls training 

provided in September. 
• A falls awareness drop in event was held at the beginning of October with 125 

attendees. 
• Ward areas updated their falls information boards for falls awareness week. 
• Falls champions have commenced completing root cause analysis of falls within 

their clinical area, with associated action plans. 
• The falls collaborative education and post fall SWARMs continue within AMU, 

D8, G1 and C5. 
• The Trust celebrated the falls collaborative work with NHS Improvement in 

October, sharing quality improvements in falls with other trusts. 
 

Falls per 1,000 occupied bed days 
Target: Quarterly rate of falls incidents resulting in moderate, severe or catastrophic harm 

per 1,000 occupied bed days of ≤ 0.2 on average each quarter. 
• The Trust has reported 0.0 confirmed falls incidents per 1,000 bed days in 

October, compared to 0.1 in September. 

Falls (Quality Contract) 
Total reported falls incidents – October2017 

CSC 
Level of harm 

Near 
miss None Low Mod. Severe Death 

Clinical 
Support 0 2 0 0 0 0 

Corporate 0 1 1 0 0 0 
Emergency 
Medicine 0 13 9 0 0 0 

Head & Neck 0 9 2 0 0 0 
Medicine 0 37 23 1 1* 0 
MOPRS 2 43 13 0 0 0 
MSK 0 17 3 2 0 0 
Renal 1 9 4 0 0 0 
Surgery & 
Cancer 0 19 9 1 0 0 

Women & 
Children 0 0 2 0 0 0 

Total 3 150 66 4 1 0 
* Reported as a SIRI. 
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October position  
Target: Monthly monitoring of incidents resulting in moderate, severe or 

catastrophic harm.  
 
 

• There have been no severe or moderate harm incidents confirmed in 
October. 

 

• The current year-to-date position is 3 confirmed moderate harm 
medication incidents (1x community incident). 
 

• There are currently 14 moderate harm incidents under investigation; 3x 
Medicine, 5x Emergency Medicine, 1x Surgery and Cancer, 2x Clinical 
Support, 2x Women’s and Children, and 1x CHAT. 
 

• A total of 260 medication incidents were reported in October; the 
highest recorded monthly figure. 

 

Actions and progress to date 
• The rate of medicines reconciliation completed by pharmacy staff within 

24hrs was reported at 82% in October achieving the 80% target; there 
was a large audit response of 844 patients. Medicines reconciliation 
reporting is now aligned with the national hospital benchmarking 
standard. 
 

• Recommendations and actions are underway following the recent 
medicines refrigerator audits and reports. Feedback and regular audits 
will now be conducted to ensure fridges are locked, connected via 
fused spurs and correct daily fridge monitoring is carried out. An agreed 
standard fridge specification is being developed. 
 

 

Medication incidents per 1,000 occupied bed days 
Target: Quarterly rate of medication incidents resulting in moderate, severe or 

catastrophic harm per 1,000 occupied bed days of≥ 0.01 on average each 
quarter. 

 

• The Trust has reported 0.0 confirmed medication incidents per 1,000 
bed days in October, this has remained a constant position since June 
2016. Sa
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Medication (Contract & Quality Account) 

Total reported medication incidents – October 2017 

CSC 
Level of harm 

Near 
miss None Low Moderate Severe Death 

CHAT 3 9 3 1 0 0 
Clinical Support 8 18 3 0 0 0 
Emergency Medicine 4 22 3 5 0 0 
Head & Neck 0 7 1 0 0 0 
Medicine 7 53 11 1 0 0 
MOPRS 2 13 5 0 0 0 
MSK 0 11 2 0 0 0 
Renal 1 3 3 0 0 0 
Surgery & Cancer 6 26 7 0 0 0 
Women & Children 5 13 3 1 0 0 

Total 36 175 41 8 0 0 
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October position  
Target: Submit data to the National Patient Safety Thermometer 
 

• The Trust achieved 100% data collection for October.  
 

• To date the Trust has maintained high submission rates, with 100% 
being achieved each month. 
 
 

Actions and progress to date 
• Sustain 100% audit submission on all patients and validation of all harm 

events. 
 

 

Percentage of harm free care (contract) 
Target: Report percentage of harm free care. 
• In October, the Trust recorded in-patient harm free care of 98.8%; an 

improvement on September’s data. 
 

• The total harm free care, which includes pre-hospital admission harm 
events, was 96.7% in October, an increase on the 94.7% recorded in 
September. However, this remains above the national average of 
94.3% (NHS Improvement published 11th October 2017). 

• There were decreases in all of the harm categories except new VTE’s.  
 

Actions and progress to date 
• Continued monthly reporting to the Director and Deputy Director of 

Nursing and Head of Nursing for each CSC with feedback to ward 
teams. 
 

• Specialist nurses working on education. 
• Clinical Dashboard available as a hard copy and via the intranet. 
• Service improvement work streams for all harm events. 

Patient Safety Thermometer (Contract) 

The Trust total harm-free care rate is directly affected by these harm categories. 
An increase in numbers of these categories will result in a decrease in the rate of harm-free care. 

Harm free care 

Month 
Total Harm Free Care 

(data collection from number of 
patients) 

Trust 
Harm Free 

Care 

October 2017 96.7%                
(1,078) 

98.8% 

September 2017 94.7%                
(1,087) 

97.6% 

 August  2017 95.8% 
(1,064) 

98.0% 

Types of harm 

Types of harm August 2017 September 
2017 October 2017 

Pressure ulcers 
(new and old) 

19 23 19 

Falls 6 10 3 
Catheter and UTI 15 25 13 
VTE (new) 6 1 2 
Total patients 1,064 1,087 1,078 
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Healthcare Acquired Infection (National) 
October position  
 

MRSA (Incidence more than 48 hours after admission) 
Target: 0 (zero) avoidable 
 

• The Trust reported 1 patient with MRSA bacteraemia in October. The case has been 
provisionally assigned to Fareham & Gosport CCG as the blood culture was taken 
on admission. The Post Infection Review has been scheduled for 22nd November. 

• The Trust’s year-to-date position is 2 unavoidable and 1 avoidable cases, 
against an objective of 0 (zero) avoidable cases. 

 

C.difficile (Incidence more than 72 hours from admission) 
Target : 40 cases 
 

• The Trust reported 6 patients with C.difficile attributed to the Trust in October (2x 
Gynae, 2x MSK, 1x Renal, 1x Surgery) against a monthly objective of 3.  

• Four of the cases reported since 1st April were due to late sampling of patients, i.e. 
patients admitted with C.difficile but not sampled before the 72hour cut off for 
community attribution of cases.  2 cases were due to erroneous re-sampling of 
known cases of C.difficile after the 28 day cut-off deadline. 

• The increase in C.difficile cases is concerning especially when considered in the 
context of lower than acceptable compliance with hand hygiene and national 
cleaning standards. Cross transmission of C.difficile cases is suspected in 3 cases, 
yet to be confirmed by laboratory tests. This supports the concerns regarding poor 
hand hygiene compliance, environmental cleanliness and prompt isolation of 
suspected cases. A comprehensive action plan to address these concerns is being 
monitored through the Infection Prevention and Management Committee. 

• The Trust’s year-to-date position is 26 cases against a target of 23 cases 
(annual objective 40 cases).   

 

MSSA bacteraemia (Incidence more than 48 hours after admission) 
MSSA bacteraemia are not subject to DH trajectories, but are closely monitored by the Trust due 
to the high incidence of morbidity and mortality associated with these infections. 
 

• There was 1 patient reported with MSSA bacteraemia attributed to the Trust in 
October. 
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Venous Thrombo-embolism Screening (National) 
  October position  

 

VTE Screening 
Target: 95% per month 
• The VTE risk assessment figure for October is 95.16% (subject to validation); 

compared to the September figure of 95.34%.  
 

• The National average for VTE assessment (NHS England, Q4 2016-17) is 
95.53%. 
 

VTE Appropriate prophylaxis 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
• The VTE appropriate prophylaxis figure for October is 99.02% (subject to 

validation); comparable to the September figure of 99.01%.   
 

VTE Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRIs) and Incidents 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
• There have been 0 reported VTE SIRIs in October and 0 moderate harm events. 

 

• 80 VTE events were reported in October compared to 78 in September: 
- 20 were hospital associated events (HAT), compared to 23 in September and 

60 were community associated events (CAT) compared with 65 in September. 
 
VTE Root Cause Analysis (RCA) 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
• All VTE HAT events undergo RCA investigation (100%).  
 
Actions and progress to date 
• Several CSC’s continue to have variable performance, in particular Emergency 

Medicine, Surgery and Cancer, Medicine and MOPRS. CSC management teams 
are aware. 
 

• Surgery CSC is undertaking an Improvement Project to try and improve VTE risk 
assessment on Surgical patients admitted via SAU.  

33



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 29/11/2017 

Sa
fe

 –
 S

er
io

us
 In

ci
de

nt
s 

Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation 
 (SIRIs)  (Contract and National) 
October position 
 

SIRIs (including HCAIs and as reported on STEIS)  
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
 
 

• 17 SIRIs were reported in October (3 breaches of Decision to Admit 
(DTA) standard and 14 clinical SIRIs), compared to 12 clinical SIRIs in 
September. 

• A total of 7 events resulted in the death of the patient; 3 of these may 
not be attributable to error or omission but to natural/other causes. 

• This equates to 0.5 SIRIs per 1,000 occupied bed days, compared to 
1.5 in September. 

SIRIs over 60 day deadline 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
• There were 9 open SIRIs at the end of October which exceeded the 

target date of 60 working days for submission to the Commissioners. 1 
has been discussed and an extension approved, 1 cannot be 
investigated until completion of a police investigation, 1 has been 
requested to be downgraded. 6 have not had an extension approved; 
5 within Medicine CSC and 1 within Emergency Medicine. 

Never Events  
Target: 0 (zero) 
• There has been 1 Never Event reported in October relating to a 

retained foreign object from a procedure undertaken in 2016. 
• The Trust year-to-date position is 2 Never Events. 
Duty of Candour  
The Trust is required to inform the patient and/or other relevant person within 10 
operational days that the safety incident (moderate and severe harm) has 
occurred or is suspected to have occurred.  
• For those events reported in October, all patients or their relatives, 

where applicable, were informed of the incident within the deadline 
and are aware of the on-going investigation. 

SIRI CSC 
Failure to re-sample INR, patient subsequently admitted 
with stroke.* Clinical Support 

Breach of DTA x3 Emergency Medicine 
Multiple patients in ED requiring Mental Health 
intervention  Emergency Medicine 

Failure to follow up chest x-ray findings in 2014 Emergency Medicine 
Bleed from tracheostomy site 10 days post tongue & 
neck disection* Head and Neck 

Delay in treatment for glaucoma resulting in vision loss Head and Neck 
Patient died under section 5 (2) CQC notified* Head and Neck 
Fall resulting in subdural haemorrhage* Medicine 
Patient death potentially from self administered opiates* Medicine 
Delay in hepatology outpatient follow-up appointment, 
patient died whilst on OWL* Medicine 

Unexpected death of patient post fall.* MOPRS 
Retained foreign object discovered during C Section 
from  2016 procedure – NEVER EVENT Surgery and Cancer 

Hospital acquired level 3 pressure damage Renal 
Unintended injury resulting in admission to ICU Women and Children 
Inadequate excision of vulval biopsy Women and Children 
*Resulting in the death of the patient 
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Patient safety incidents (excluding SIRIs) (Contract) 
October position 
Target: Increase in overall reporting of low and no 
harm incidents and reduce severity of harm 
 

• At the time of reporting 1,770 Safety Learning 
Events (SLE - incidents) had been reported in 
October; the top three reported incident 
categories are: 

- Non Clinical Event: 369 events (20.8%). 
- Pathology/Blood: 302 events (17.1%). 
- Clinical Event: 272 events (15.4%). 

 

• This compares to Non Clinical Event, Clinical 
Event, and Tissue Damage in September. 

 

• The reported tissue damage incidents include 
present on admission from the community. 

 

• There were no reported severe harm incidents 
relating to admission, discharge or transfer.   

 

Actions and progress to date 
• Monthly reports detailing the current position of 

investigations for all moderate, severe harm or 
death SLEs remain on-going. 

Month 
Reported 

incidents at 
time of report 

Confirmed 
incidents at time 

of report 

October 2017 1,770 439 

September 2017 1,573 814 

August 2017 1,659 1079 
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Patient safety incidents (Contract) 

Definitions of harm:  
Severe : Any patient safety incident that appears to have resulted in permanent harm (directly related to the incident and not related to the natural course of the patient’s illness or underlying condition and defined as 
permanent lessening of bodily functions, sensory, motor, physiologic or intellectual, including removal of the wrong limb or organ, or brain damage) to one or more persons receiving NHS-funded care. 
Moderate : Any patient safety incident that resulted in a moderate increase in treatment (defined as a return to surgery, an unplanned re-admission, a prolonged episode of care, extra time in hospital or as an 
outpatient, cancelling of treatment, or transfer to another area such as intensive care as a result of the incident) and which caused significant but not permanent harm, to one or more persons receiving NHS-funded 
care. 
Low: Any patient safety incident that required extra observation or minor treatment (defined as first aid, additional therapy, or additional medication) and caused minimal harm, to one or more persons receiving NHS-
funded care.  

• The ‘Total PHT reported Patient 
Safety Learning Events October 
2015 – October 2017 graph 
represents the total number of 
all patient safety  incidents 
reported by Trust staff  
(including community 
incidents). 

 
• There is a continued positive 

trend showing a sustained 
increase in the number of 
reported incidents. 

 
• The second graph shows total 

confirmed incidents by severity 
for the period April 2017 – 
October 2017. Severity is 
coded by the reviewing 
manager at close of 
investigation. 

 
• It should be noted that all 

incidents including SIRIs are 
graded on the severity of actual 
harm suffered by the patient.  
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October position  
 

Coroners recommendations – Regulation 28 reports (preventing future deaths) 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 

 

• The Trust has received no Regulation 28 reports in October.  
 

Central Alert System (CAS) Alerts over deadline 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
 

• 7 alerts were issued in October: 
- 1 is currently being assessed for relevance and has a deadline date of 30th November 2017. 
- 6 were assessed for relevance to the Trust and subsequently closed as action was not required 

 

• There remains 1 alert that is still being assessed for relevance; deadline date of December 2017. 
 

• 4 Patient Safety Alerts remain outstanding for the Trust, three of which are overdue: 
- June 2017 (‘Restricted use of open systems for injectable medication’.  Deadline 7th June 2017). 

One action remains outstanding.  This relates to Cardiology and is a recognised national issue which has been raised with 
NHS Improvement. 

- July 2017 (‘Reducing the risk of oxygen tubing being connected to air flowmeters’.  Deadline 4th July 2017). 
All CSCs have been asked to provide information on the number of nebulisers they require to replace piped air. This 
information is awaited from a number of CSCs and is actively being pursued. 

- October 2017 (‘Resources to support the safety of girls and women who are being treated with valproate’.  Deadline 6th October 2017). 
Paediatrics have provided assurance of compliance with the recommendations.  Adult service is provided by University 
Hospital Southampton and the team have yet to provide assurance of compliance. 

- November 2017 (‘Risk of severe harm and death from infusing total parental nutrition too rapidly in babies’.  Deadline 8th November 2017). 
 

• 1 alert in relation to Anti-Barricade Devices remains open on the Central Alert website as actions are ongoing within the Trust; 
however, this alert has a deadline of February 2018. 
 

• All CAS / Medical Device Alerts (MDA) are now uploaded to Datix with the actions module being used to forward these on to the 
relevant staff members for their update and action. 

 

Actions and progress to date 
• All actions resulting from the internal CAS audit have been completed and are on-going. Sa

fe
  
Coroner’s recommendations and CAS alerts (Contract) 
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October position 
Summary of scheme status: Green £6,492m,  Amber - £132k (£6,624 full year value)  (adjusted from last month - moving 1% to local 
collaboration CQUINs) 

CQUIN Details October 2017 (M7) Status  
1a Staff Health & Wellbeing  
(£276k - £24k risk) 

• 5% point improvement in NHS 
annual staff survey questions on 
MSK and stress.  

Green - Internal action plan under way and on track - managed by Occupational 
Health. Some additional actions planned to raise staff awareness of facilities 
available to them prior to publication of the staff survey. 

1b Healthy food 
(£276k - £24k risk) 

• Reduction in display and sale of 
unhealthy foods for NHS staff, 
visitors and patients  

Amber - PHT-controlled areas – action plan under way with audits planned, Non-
PHT-controlled areas’ engagement is an emerging risk  Managed by Dietetics 
Department 

1c Staff Flu vaccinations 
(£276k - £24k risk) 

• Improving the uptake of flu 
vaccinations for front line clinical 
staff  

Green - Internal action plan under way and on track - managed by Occupational 
Health 
 

2a/b Identification & 
treatment of sepsis 
(£414k - £36k risk) 

• Timely identification & treatment 
of patients with sepsis in 
emergency departments and 
acute inpatient settings. 

Amber - Internal action plan under way and on track - managed by Nursing / 
Quality. Indicator 2b failed in Q1. Q2 remains a risk.  Sepsis Group / Infection / 
Nursing currently devising remedial action plan to regain performance.  
 

2c/d Antibiotic consumption 
(£414k - £36k risk) 

• Clinical antibiotic review of 
patients with sepsis 

• Reduction in antibiotic 
consumption per 1,000 
admissions 

Green – Internal plan being managed by Infection Control Department. 
Reinvestment agreement with CCG linked to the Local Antibiotic Stewardship 
plan.  Internal review of action plan progress under way. 

4 Mental Health 
(£828k - £72k risk) 

• Reduce regular attenders with 
mental health needs who present 
to A&E 

Amber - Internal action plan under way and on track - managed by Emergency 
Department. Requested extension of Q2 audit from CCG to provide higher 
quality data. 
 

6 Advice and guidance 
(£828k - £72k risk) 

• To set up and operate A&G 
services for non-urgent GP 
referrals.  

Green - Local  Advice and Guidance plan agreed by CCG – managed by Alex 
Lister/ (Martin Fuller TBC). 
 

7 e-Referrals  
(£828k - £72k risk) 

• Expand e-Referrals to include all 
incoming referrals / specialties. 

Green - Local  Advice and Guidance plan agreed by CCG – managed by Alex 
Lister/ (Martin Fuller TBC). 

8 Supporting proactive and 
safe discharge 
(£828k - £72k risk) 

• Increase proportion of 
emergencies discharged to usual 
place of residence within 7 days.  

Green - Local  system collaboration and action plan agreed by CCG.   
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CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) is a national quality incentive scheme which enables Commissioners to reward excellence, by linking a proportion of the providers' income to the achievement of quality improvement goals. 

The quarter 2 audit was submitted to the 10th November deadline.  
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Sepsis – reducing the impact of serious infections (National CQUIN 
2017/2018) 
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a) Timely identification of sepsis in emergency departments and acute inpatient settings. 
Payment based on % eligible patients screened. 
- Less than 50.0% - no payment.  50.0% - 89.9% - 10% payment. 90.0% or above – full payment 
 

• A total of 435 patients required screening, 430 of which received screening: 98.85% compliance against a target of 90%.  
• This represents an improvement on the 97.83% compliance noted in quarter 1 (461 patients required screening, 451 of which received 

screening) and an overall improvement in ED and in-patient settings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b) Treatment of sepsis in emergency departments and acute inpatient settings. 
Payment based on % eligible patients with sepsis treated within 1 hour. 
- Less than 50.0% - no payment.  50.0% - 89.9% - 10% payment.  90.0% or above – full payment 
 

• 416 patients required antibiotics, 303 of whom received antibiotics within 1 hour of diagnosis of sepsis:  72.84% compliance 
against a target of 90%.   

• This represents an improvement on the 70.74% compliance noted in quarter 1 (441 patients required antibiotics, 312 of whom received 
antibiotics within 1 hour of diagnosis of sepsis).  An improvement is noted in ED areas; however, there has been a reduction in 
compliance in in-patient areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Departments and Direct Admit Areas – screening compliance 

Month Patients requiring 
screening 

Patients received 
screening 

Patients who did 
not receive 
screening 

Compliance 

July 149 148 1 99.33% 
August 123 123 0 100% 

Sept 90 88 2 97.78% 
Total 362 359 3 99.17% 

Acute in-patient settings – screening compliance 

Month Patients requiring 
screening 

Patients received 
screening 

Patients who did 
not receive 
screening 

Compliance 

July 41 40 1 97.56% 
August 17 16 1 94.12% 

Sept 15 15 0 100% 
Total 73 71 2 97.26% 

Emergency Departments and Direct Admit Areas – IV antibiotic administration & 
empiric review 

Month Patients  
audited 

Patients 
requiring IV 
antibiotics 

Patients 
who did not 
receive IV 
antibiotics 

Patients who 
received IV 

antibiotics within 1 
hour of diagnosis 

of sepsis 

Compliance 

July 149 145 0 113 77.93% 
August 123 122 0 90 73.77% 

Sept 90 84 0 84 89.29% 
Total 362 351 0 278 79.20% 

Acute in-patient settings – IV antibiotic administration & empiric review 

Month Patients  
audited 

Patients 
requiring IV 
antibiotics 

Patients 
who did 

not receive 
IV 

antibiotics 

Patients who 
received IV 

antibiotics within 1 
hour of diagnosis of 

sepsis 

Complianc
e 

July 41 38 0 15 39.47% 
August 17 13 1 4 30.77% 

Sept 15 14 0 6 42.86% 
Total 73 65 1 25 38.46% 

39



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) is a national quality incentive scheme which enables Commissioners to reward excellence, by linking a proportion of the providers' income to the achievement of quality improvement goals. 
 

The quarter 2 audit was submitted to the 31st October deadline  

29/11/2017 

Sepsis – reducing the impact of serious infections (National CQUIN 
2017/2018) 
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c) Antibiotic review 
Assessment of clinical antibiotic review between 24-72 hours of patients with sepsis who are still in-patients at 72 hours. 
Payment based on % eligible patients screened.  Perform an empiric review for at least: 
- Quarter 1: 25% of cases in the sample. 
- Quarter 2: 50% of cases in the sample. 
- Quarter 3: 75% of cases in the sample. 
- Quarter 4: 90% of cases in the sample. 

 

• Quarter 2: 100% compliance achieved, comparable with quarter 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Antibiotic review 

Quarter Total no. of patients audited  
(same patients as part a). 

Total no. antibiotic 
prescriptions included for 

assessment 

Total number of antibiotic 
prescriptions which had 

been reviewed  
Compliance 

2 30 34 34 100% 
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Local and specialised CQUINs: used as an incentive to ensure providers of specialised services offer continuous improvement in line 
with best practice, benchmarked utilisation, appropriate care and quality indicators.  
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October position 
Summary of scheme status: Green £1,786k, Amber - £0k (£1,786 full year value)  

CQUIN Details October 2017 (M6) Status  
Specialised 1 (£327k):  
CA2 Standardised dose banding for 
Chemotherapy. 

• Adoption of standardised doses for Chemotherapy 
to reduce production costs and safety incidents. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Actions under way to achieve, monitored and tracked 

internally. 

Specialised 2 (£327k):   
CA3 Palliative care shared decision 
making. 

• Ensure effective and documented peer discussion 
and patient involvement for patients with low 
response to treatment. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Trust-agreed actions under way to achieve, 

monitored and tracked internally.  

Specialised 3 (£421k): 
GE1 CUR software evaluation project. 

• Controlled 6-month evaluation of CUR bed 
utilisation system alongside Trust Bed View 
system. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE to complete 6 
months data and review against other Trust system. 

• Q2 Staff risk mitigated. Other actions completed. 
Report being finalised within due dates. 

Specialised 4 (£327k): 
GE3 Medicines Optimisation. 

• Adoption of best value medicines in Specialised 
patients, and additional reporting. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Actions under way to achieve, monitored and tracked 

internally.  
Specialised 5 (£90k): 
Dental managed clinical networks. 

• Attendance at Network meetings by clinical leads. • Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Actions under way, monitored internally using joint 

steering group plan. 
Specialised 6 (£90k):  
Orthodontic outcome reporting. 

• Recording of PAR scores pre/post treatment & 
performance reporting / review of improvement. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Actions under way, monitored internally using agreed 

joint steering group plan. 
Specialised 7 (£70k):  
Breast screening programme. 

• Develop service improvement action plan with 
commissioners, and implement under agreed 
monitoring. 

• Green - NHSE agreed plan & Q2 report 
• Trust-agreed actions under way, internally monitored 

using proposed plan.  
Specialised 8 (£70k):  
Bowel screening programme. 
 

• Develop service improvement action plan with 
commissioners, and implement under agreed 
monitoring. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Trust-agreed actions under way, internally monitored 

using proposed plan.  

Specialised 9 (£64k):  
Armed Forces Covenant. 
 

• Embedding the Armed Forces Covenant to 
improve access to elective services for Armed 
Forces Personnel. 

• Green - Plan agreed with NHSE 
• Actions under way, monitored internally using agreed 

joint steering group plan. 
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Acute Kidney Injury (Contract & Quality Account) 
October position  
 
 

Acute Kidney Injury (AKI)  
Target:  

• 90% (on average each quarter) compliance with reporting the 4 mandated data sets on discharge summaries. 
• Reduction in hospital acquired stage 3 AKI (reviewed 6 monthly) based on 2016/2017 data. 

  
• The Trust achieved 90% compliance with the mandated items on the discharge summary in October, compared to 91% in September. 

 
• The Trust is aiming to reduce the number of hospital acquired Stage 3 AKIs (AKI Alerts triggered ≥48 hours after admission); this is 

currently being reviewed by comparing AKI episodes recorded during the 2016/17 financial year. 

• To make it easier to assess the severity of the 
acute kidney injuries, they are categorised into 
3 stages of alerts depending how much the 
persons creatinine has increased from their 
baseline level.  

- Stage 1 Alert: An increase in a persons 
creatinine  that is 1.5 to 1.9 times higher than 
their baseline. This is often called a “mild 
AKI”. 

- Stage 2 Alert:  Same applies as for stage 1 
but the increase for a stage 2 alert must be 
2.0 to 2.9 times higher than the persons 
baseline. Stage 2 AKI are more detrimental to 
a persons health than a stage 1. 

- Stage 3 Alert:  The increase for a stage 3 alert 
must be 3 times or more higher than the 
persons baseline. Stage 3 alerts are the most 
severe AKIs. 
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Acute Kidney Injury (AKI) 
Target: Reduction (from 2016/17) in hospital acquired stage 3 AKI (reviewed 6 monthly) 
 
• The Trust is aiming to reduce the number of hospital acquired AKI Stage 3 Alerts (Alerts triggered ≥48 hours after admission). 

 
• Calculated by comparing data from 1st of April to 30th September 2017 to the same time period in 2016 the results show: 

 

- A hospital acquired AKI Stage 3 decrease of 10 patients (11.4%) between the two time periods.  
 

- Numbers of community acquired AKI Stage 3 has also reduced by 36 patients (10.5%) between the two time periods. 
 

Acute Kidney Injury (Contract & Quality Account) 
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Mortality indicators: HSMR and SHMI (Contract and Quality Account) 
October position  
 

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR)  
Target: To be within expected range. 
• The updated Trust HSMR for the 12 months to July 2017 is 111.5; representing a 

decrease on the rate previously reported to June 2017 of 112.4.  This sits within a 
confidence interval of 106.7 – 116.5; remaining significantly higher than expected. 

• The weekday HSMR for emergency admissions has shown a decrease from the 
previously reported figure, whereas the weekend HSMR shows an increase. The 
weekend / weekday split is based on the patient’s admission date.  

• The graphs demonstrate an improvement in the last two individual months for 
HSMR performance, which may reflect the work in progress to cleanse the 
classification of data.  The additional graph illustrates the 12 month rolling trend 
which demonstrates a recent improvement and is a more accurate indicator than 
monthly data. 
 

Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI)  
Target: To be within expected range. 
 

• The Trust SHMI for April 2016  to March 2017 is 108.89; a slight decrease from the 
previous reported quarter’s figure of 110.02.  Whilst this figure is above the 
National Average of 100, it is within the official control limits. 
 

Actions 
• The factors contributing to the increases continue to be investigated through the 

Mortality Review Group. 
• Feedback from recent coding audits has shown there to be no inconsistencies or 

causes for concern. 
• The Mortality Review Tool (MRT) is being incorporated when validating all Dr 

Foster alerts.  Patients that flag within specific raised alerts are now cross-matched 
with the MRT to determine whether a Morality Review Panel has been completed 
and for the outcome. 

• A new process for investigating Stage 1 and Stage 2 reviews (the later of which will 
include a full structure judgment review) has been outlined and will feed into the 
Mortality Review Group each month. 

• Work continues to establish whether HSMR includes the correct number of 
‘expected’ deaths within its algorithm by investigating the coding of admission 
source, comorbidities, palliative care and how these are processed by Dr Foster. 

Definitions: 
HSMR:    
The Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) is an indicator of healthcare quality that 
measures whether the mortality rate at a hospital is higher or lower would be expected.  The 
national average is 100 and a score of below this indicates less deaths than this average.  
HSMR covers 56 groups of diagnosis and only relates to patients that have died whilst in 
hospital. 
SHMI:   
The Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI) is a high level mortality indicator that 
is published by the Department of Health on a quarterly basis. It follows a similar principal 
than HSMR, however SHMI covers all diagnosis groups and relates to all patients that have 
died (whether the patient died whilst in hospital or not).  It does not take account of 
deprivation. 
SHMI adjusted for palliative care: 
The variables used in the method to calculate the expected number of deaths differ 
between the SHMI and the HSMR, for example, the HSMR includes an adjustment for 
palliative care whereas the SHMI does not.  
An adjustment/allowance is made to the indicator ‘SHMI adjusted for palliative care’ to allow 
for the number of expected deaths where palliative care is coded.  

HSMR: Emergency weekday and 
weekend  
August 2016  - July 2017 
Weekday HSMR: 110.8 
Weekend HSMR: 112.2 

SHMI: April 2016 to March 2017 
• SHMI: 108.89  (within expected range) 
• Adjusted for palliative care: 112.12 (within expected range) 
• In-hospital deaths: 106.61 (within expected range) 
• HSMR for the same period: 113.87 (within expected range) 

HSMR:   
August 2016 – July 2017 
HSMR: 111.5 
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October position  
 

Step 1: Find, Assess, Investigate and refer* 
Target: 90% on average over each quarter for the three steps. 
 

• Compliance has remained consistent with September at 70.1%. 
 

• A total of 405 patients have been assessed, from a maximum of 578 
eligible patients; similar in the number of patients requiring assessment for 
the last 6 months. 

 

• The Trust Quality Improvement Plan contains an action to review the 
dementia screening process to ensure it fits with clinical practice, the aim 
being to achieve the national standard. 
 

• The concerns about the consistently low performance have, again, been 
formally escalated to the Medical Director. 

 

• Performance data continues to be sent monthly to the Chiefs of Service to 
instigate actions to recover the position and the daily distribution lists for all 
outstanding assessments is cascaded wider across the clinical leadership 
teams. 

 

• Discussions continue with IT to determine if screening could be included on 
the BedView System to aid compliance.  
 

Step 2: Diagnostic assessment* 
Target: 90% on average over each quarter for the three steps. 
 

• 100% of all eligible patients (76 in total) received a diagnostic assessment. 
 

Step 3: Referred for further diagnostic advice* 
Target: 90% on average over each quarter for the three steps. 
 

• The Electronic Discharge Summary (EDS) includes a mandatory field to 
inform the GP of any patients who have had a positive diagnosis of 
dementia in order that the GP can complete further investigations if 
required.  However, as EDS usage is currently variable across the CSCs, a 
spread sheet is kept of all patients who have a positive diagnosis of 
dementia to ensure a letter is generated and sent to the GP. C
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Dementia (Contract) 

* Definition of steps: 
Step 1 – Case finding: 
• The number of patients >75 admitted as an emergency who are reported as 

having a known diagnosis of dementia or clinical diagnosis of delirium, or who 
have been asked the dementia case finding question, excluding those for 
whom the case finding question cannot be completed for clinical reasons (e.g. 
coma). 

Step 2 - Assessment: 
• Number of above patients reported as having had a diagnostic assessment 

including investigations. 
Step 3 – Onward referral – under development: 
• Numbers of above patients who have a plan of care on discharge that is 

shared with general practice.  

Dementia compliance 
August 2017 September 2017 October  2017 

Step 1 75% 
 

70.7% 
 

70.1% 

Step 2 100% 100% 100% 

Step 3 100% 100% 100% 
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Mixed Sex Accommodation (National) 
October position  
 

Non-clinically justified single sex accommodation breaches 
Target: 0 (zero) 
 

• There have been no non-clinically justified mixed sex accommodation breaches in October. 
 

• The Trust year-to-date position is 8 occasions of non-clinically justified single sex accommodation breaches affecting 62 
patients.  Therefore, a total of 62 breaches. 
 

Clinically justified single sex accommodation breaches 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
 

• There have been no clinically justified breaches in October. 
 

• The Trust year-to-date total is 1 clinically justified single sex accommodation breaches. 
 

Facilities single sex accommodation breaches 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
 

• There have been 0 (zero) single sex accommodation breaches relating to facilities in September.  
 

• The Trust year-to-date total is 0 (zero) single sex accommodation breaches relating to facilities. 
 
Actions 
 

• The Delivering Single Sex Accommodation policy has been updated with guidance on the use of screens to avoid potential breaches. 
The policy was ratified at the Trust Governance and Quality Committee in November. 
 

• The four potential breach investigation panels relating to Respiratory High Care Unit (RHCU) have demonstrated significant 
improvements in practice and escalation. ‘Grab packs’ are now available to ensure correct actions are taken for a potential breach.         
 

• There are ongoing observations of care and meetings with RHCU and Cardiac Day Unit staff regarding the use of screens and 
maintaining privacy and dignity for patients. 
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October position  
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
 

• A total of 69 complaints were 
received in October; a similar 
increase when compared to 
the same month last year.    
 

• Reporting per 1,000 contacts 
is one month arrears; data for 
September equates to 0.56 
compared to 0.68 in August.  

   

• To date 9 complaints received 
in September have been 
responded to within the 
expected timeframe (30 
working days).  24 have 
missed the expected deadline 
and the Complaints Team are 
working closely with those 
CSCs to try to expedite the 
investigations and responses. 
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Complaints (Contract and National) 

SEPTEMBER 2017 UPDATE - Complaints 
Sent within 30 working days 9 20% 
Sent after 30 working days 2 5% 
Ongoing past 30 working days 24 53% 
Ongoing still on target 10 22% 

CSC Sep-17 Oct-17 

CHAT 1 2 

CSS 3 5 

CORP 1 4 

EMERGY 8 8 

H&N 2 9 

MED 7 9 

MOPRS 1 2 

MSK 4 5 

RENTRA 0 0 

S&C 13 15 

W&C 5 10 

TOTAL 45 69 
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October position  
Complaint 
acknowledgment rate 
(national requirement) 
Target: Monitoring and 

reporting 
 
 

• 100% of complaints were 
acknowledged within the 
3 working day target. 

 

Parliamentary Health 
Service Ombudsman 
(PHSO) (National 
requirement) 
Target: Monitoring and 
reporting 
 

• The Trust received 1 new 
notifications from the 
PHSO during October. 

 

Plaudits 
Target: Monitoring and 

reporting 
 

• The Trust received 702 
messages of appreciation 
during October. 
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Complaints (Contract and National) 

PHSO
Total 
rec'd

Under 
review Upheld

Part 
upheld

Not 
upheld

2014-15 16 0 3 9 4
2015-16 14 0 0 2 12
2016-17 13 3 0 2 8
2017-18 10 9 0 0 1

Complaints Subjects - October 2017 
ACT Aspects of clinical treatment  22 32% 
AOS Attitude of staff 15 22% 
CPWO  Communication  8 12% 

ADT Admission, discharge & 
transfer 7 10% 

APDELI Inpatient Appt Delays and 
Cancellations 6 9% 

APDELO Outpatient Appt Delays and 
Cancellations 5 7% 

POLICY Policy  2 3% 
PCARE Patient care 1 2% 
PRDIG Privacy & dignity  1 1% 
EOLC End of Life Care 1 1% 
TRANS Transport 1 1% 
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Complaints, PALS (Contract) 
October position  
 

PALS contacts  
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
• 429 contacts were handled by PALS in October, a slight 

increase from 396 in September. 
 

Types of contacts (concerns) 
• 161 contacts involved concerns about care and treatment.  

 

Types of contacts (other) 
• 268 of contacts related various elements including providing 

signposting or advice to visitors and support to the Overseas, 
Patient Services and Health Information. 

• 340 (82%) of all contacts were resolved within 5 working 
days. 
 
 

PALS conversion to complaints 
Target: Monitoring and reporting 
• 5 cases were converted to a formal complaint. 

 
 

Trust-wide themes 
• Common themes through complaints and PALS include 

delays in treatment and communication (in particular at 
Cardiology, Urology and Fracture Clinic).   

October - Trust wide themes Complaints PALS Total 
Aspects of Clinical Treatment 22 28 50 
Outpatient Delays & Cancellations 5 43 48 
Attitude of staff 15 26 41 
Communication 8 28 36 
Admission, discharge & transfer 7 6 13 
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National ED Patient Experience Survey 2016 

• The survey comprises of nine key elements. 
 

• The diagram demonstrates survey outcomes in 
comparison to other Emergency Departments. 
 

• Overall the responses show the patient experience 
to be “about the same” as other trusts. 
 

• From the survey areas for focus have been 
identified as requiring: 

- Improvement in the provision of patient 
information for those waiting to be seen. 

- Improvement in privacy for patients.   
- Improved administration of pain relief. 
- Improved access to food and drink. 
 

• The delivery of improvements will be monitored 
through the Emergency Medicine Governance 
Meetings. 

• The national Emergency Department Patient Experience Survey 2016, was published in Autumn 2017. The previous survey was in 
2014. 

• Patients aged 16 years or older who had attended an emergency department during September 2016 and were not staying in hospital 
were invited to participate. 

• A total of 272 questionnaires were returned; providing a response rate of 30% against a national response rate of 28%.   

Current projects to support the delivery of required improvements: 
• Quality Improvement Plan. 
• Ambulance handovers/placing on ED trolley in STAR suite for dignity and privacy. 
• Navigator in Minors and PITSTOP to reduce time to be assessed and streamed to correct area. 
• Enhanced Urgent Care Centre model. 
• Bristol Safety Checklist implemented to deliver analgesia and food and drink for long stay patients, this enhances intentional rounding 

which has been in place for 18 months. 
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Patient Moves and Outliers 
October position  
Target: <3 non-clinical moves after 2100 
 
 

• October was a challenging month for the organisation as 
the number of patients who became medically fit for 
discharge reached 300 by the end of the month.  This was 
an increase of over 60 compared with the September 
position. 
 

• As a result the operational pressures the organisation faced 
saw an increase in medical and MOPRS outliers despite an 
additional ward being designated for MOPRS on D1 from 
mid October. 
 

• Elective surgery was curtailed and escalation areas 
reopened with most of October spent on OPEL 3 and OPEL 
4 escalation. 

Operational Pressures Escalation Level (OPEL) 
 OPEL 1 (Green) 
The local health and social care system capacity is such that organisations are able to maintain patient flow and are able to 
meet anticipated demand within available resources. Additional support is not anticipated. 
OPEL 2 (Amber) 
The local health and social care system is starting to show signs of pressure. The Local A&E Delivery Board will be required to 
take focused actions in organisations showing pressure to mitigate the need for further escalation.  Any additional support 
requirements should also be agreed locally if needed. 
OPEL 3 (Red) 
The local health and social care system is experiencing major pressures compromising patient flow and continues to increase. 
Actions taken in OPEL 2 have not succeeded in returning the system to OPEL 1. Further urgent actions are now required 
across the system by all A&E Delivery Board partners, and increased external support may be required.  
OPEL 4 (Black) 
Pressure in the local health and social care system continues to escalate leaving organisations unable to deliver 
comprehensive care. There is increased potential for patient care and safety to be compromised. Decisive action must be taken 
by the Local A&E Delivery Board to recover capacity and ensure patient safety. All available local escalation actions taken, 
external extensive support and intervention required.  Where multiple systems in different parts of the country are declaring 
OPEL 4 for sustained periods of time and there is an impact across local and regional boundaries, national action may be 
considered. 

Medical patient outliers 

Month No. Average 
per day 

Oct. ‘17 2,859 74 

Sep. ‘17 2,221 56 

Aug. ‘17 2,594 84 

July ‘17 2,538 82 

June ‘17 2,382 79 

May ’17 2,708 87 

April ‘17 2,863 95 

Patient moves 

Month 
2100 - 0000 0001 - 0700 

No. Average 
per day No. Average 

per day 

Oct. ‘17 138 4.5 137 4.4 

Sep. ‘17 121 4.5 96 3.6 

Aug. ‘17 158 5.3 131 4.4 

July ‘17 174 5.6 154 5.0 

June ‘17 235 7.8 140 4.7 

May ‘17 201 6.5 141 4.5 

April ‘17 230 7.7 89 3.0 51
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National 
data Trust data 

Maternity Services 
• 99.3% recommend. 
• 0.3% not recommend. 

Inpatient and day cases 
• 96.8% recommend. 
• 0.7% not recommend. 
• 28.1% response rate against 

national average of 24.6%%  

Emergency Department 
• 96.3% recommend. 
• 1.4% not recommend. 
• 10.6% response rate against 

national average of 12.5%. 

Outpatient Departments 
• 94.7% recommend. 
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October position  
Target: Inpatient response rate target to be similar or above national average but not 
fall below 15%. ED response rate target to be 15% or statistically significant 
response rate  
 

• The in-patient response rate has decreased to 28.1% in October; 
however, the rate remains above the national average of 24.6%.  This 
equates to over 2,300 patients having taken the time to provide feedback.   
 

• The Emergency Departments response rate has also decreased slightly 
to 10.6% in October.  This is lower than the national average of 12.5% in 
September and below the required 15% contracted target. The team in 
ED are working through an improvement plan that focusses on daily 
response rates and involves the whole professional team in the collection 
of feedback.  This includes: 
- The FFT protocol has been designed and agreed with the ED team. 
- The emphasis is on embedding FFT as a sustainable method to 

understand what matters to patients. 
- Daily check by the Patient Experience Team to support the delivery of 

the improvement of response rate to ensure data is reliable and valid. 
- Practice based checks by Patient Experience Team to assess 

compliance with protocol. 
- Escalation process in place to address issues of concern. 

 
Outpatient Department (OPD) 
• There was a decrease in the number of responses seen in October, with 

the positive response rate remaining consistent at 94%. 
 

Actions and progress to date 
• Overall review and refresh via clinical leaders for all services. 
• Delivery of focused support to day case areas.  W
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Inpatient responses against national 
average 

Emergency Department responses 
against national average 

Friends and Family Response rates 

Month 

Total response rate 
(responses / eligible patients) 

ED 
Target: 15% 

In-patient 
Target:  not fall below 15% 

Trust National 
average Trust National 

average 

Oct ‘17 10.6% 
1121/10539 - 28.1% 

2345/8345 - 

Sept ‘17 10.7% 
1066/9994 12.5% 30.2% 

2409/7975 24.6% 

August 
‘17 

11.7% 
1173/10026 13.6% 30.3% 

2436/8042 25.8% 
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Friends and Family Test Improving positive responses in ED, 
In-patient areas and maternity(National) 

October position  
 

Improving positive responses 
Emergency Department: 
 

• The reported satisfaction rate has increased to 
96.3% in October and continues to exceed the 
national benchmark of 87% in September, 
demonstrating a significantly higher patient 
satisfaction. 
 

• The number of patients who would not recommend 
the Emergency Department has decreased to 1.4% 
in September and remains significantly better than 
the national average of 7% in September. 
 

In-patient areas: 
 

• The reported satisfaction rate has increased slightly 
to 96.8% in October. This is above the national 
average of 96% in September. 

 

• The number of patients who would not recommend 
In-patient areas has increased slightly to 0.7%. This 
is below the national average of 2% in September. 

 

Maternity: 
 

• The number of patients who would recommend 
Maternity has remained constant at 99.3%. This 
remains consistently high against the national 
benchmark of 96%.  
 

• The percentage who do not recommend will 
continue to be monitored. There are no themes with 
negative responses. 

Emergency Department satisfaction against 
national average 

Inpatient satisfaction against national average 

Emergency Department - Improving positive 
responses 

Month 

% recommend 
(positive) 

% not recommend 
(negative) 

Trust National 
average Trust National 

average 

Oct ‘17 96.3% - 1.4% - 

Sept ‘17 94.5% 87% 2.2% 7% 

August ‘17 95.3% 87% 1.7% 7% 

In-patient - Improving positive responses 

Month 

% recommend 
(positive) 

% not recommend 
(negative) 

Trust National 
average Trust National 

average 

Oct ‘17 96.8% - 0.7% - 

Sept ‘17 96.3% 96% 0.5% 2% 

August ‘17 96.9% 96% 0.6% 2% 

Maternity - Improving positive responses 

Month % recommend 
(positive) 

% not 
recommend 
(negative) 

Oct ‘17 99.3% 0.3% 

Sept ‘17 99.6% 0.4% 

August ‘17 99.5% 0.5% 
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October position  
Target: Response rate for question 2 to be similar or above the national average but not fall below 15%. 
 

• Women are asked to complete a Friends and Family form at four points of contact and 
respond to four specific questions. 

 

• The national benchmark and; therefore, contract requirement is based on question 2. The 
response rate has increased to 28.3 % from 24.3% in September.  The rate is above the 
National Average of 15% and remains consistently high in comparison to national average. 
 

Actions and progress to date: 
 

• Although the satisfaction rates remain consistently high the response rate has significantly 
dropped down to 9.8%. This will be raised urgently with the teams via the daily safety 
huddles and ward leads. 
 

Response themes: The majority of responses are positive. 
 
Positive comments:  
 

Very good care and very friendly staff. QA was very good. The staff were all amazing and 
helpful. The staff always came to me after my c section, they gave lots of advice and help with 
breast feeding. The services provided by the midwives was excellent. 
 
Negative comments:  
 

• My midwife left and got another job and didn’t tell me - This was an unfortunate situation as 
the midwife changed her role at short notice and was not able to communicate this to all 
women on her caseload on an individual basis. 
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Friends and Family Test – Maternity (National) 

Maternity Friends and Family questions 

Q1.  Antenatal care  
community based care up to 36 weeks). 

Q2.  Intrapartum labour care. 

Q3.  Immediate postnatal care. 

Q4.  Postnatal care up to discharge to Health 
Visitors. 

Maternity Friends and Family response rates 

Q. August 
2017 Sept 2017 Oct 2017 

1. 3.3% 8.9% 2.8% 

2. 22.1% 24.3% 28.3% 

3. 15.9% 16.9% 29% 

4. 10.8% 10.6% 9.4% 

Rate 12.9% 15% 9.8% 
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Performance Against NHSi Accountability Framework October 2017 
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RTT & Cancer Forecast September, October & November 
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Unscheduled Performance Against Key Indicators - October 
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October performance against the 4-hour A&E and 12 hr Trolley 
Wait standards. 
• 4 hr standard performance was 76.42% (77.09% last month)   
• There were 6 breaches of the 12 hr Trolley Wait Standard.(32 last 

month) 
Contributing factors 
• QA type 1 attendances 316 per day and higher than October last year 

(307). The conversion rate to admission improved to 29.9% compared to 
an average of 30.7% 

• Bed occupancy was 96.1% (maximum of 99%) This includes the use of 
unfunded escalation beds in CDU and RDU. 

• Delayed transfers of care improved to 7.5% (8.4% last month) 
• There were an average of 250 patients medically fit for discharge 

compared to 242 in September. 
• Long waits to be seen at night in ED  
• Periods of poor flow and ED overcrowding 
• PHT bed de escalation programme behind trajectory;  
• MFFD trajectory behind schedule 
Actions and progress to date 
• Additional bed capacity for MOPRS has been created through a 

reduction in MSK elective operating from Mid- October.  This has given 
MOPRS 28 additional beds for step down patients 

• G4 became a frailty unit in Mid October with an aim to ensure that 60% 
of patients were discharged in 72 hours positive improvements are being 
noted. 

• Trust Red2Green Campaign relaunched on 10/10. This is still 
embedding with some work planned for early December.  

Actions leading to improved position 
• Additional CT scanning in place from December 17 

11/29/2017 

Exception Report : A&E waiting time standard performance 
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Exception Report: Referral to Treatment (RTT) 
October Performance against Incomplete RTT standard  
• Performance 90.4% (standard of 92% & trust trajectory 90.7%) 
• Total number of patients waiting increased by 445 to 31,423 
• Numbers waiting more than 18 weeks increased by 181 to 3,024 
• 52 more patients waiting more than 35 wks. 
• 3 breaches of the 52 wk. maximum wait standard. 
Contributing factors 
• Reduction in elective orthopaedic bed capacity to support 

unscheduled, mitigated by outsourcing and use of private beds, 
however this has impacted on performance and additional patients 
cancelled to create capacity to support unscheduled care. 

• Cardiology have provided additional weekend clinics to reduce 
waiting times and improve performance. 

• Breaches of the 52 wk maximum waiting time standard due to re-
validation of clock closes which has lead to clocks being reopened, 2 
of the patients have been treated and 1 has a date in November. 

Actions, progress to date and risks 
• Revised trajectory agreed supported by speciality level action plans 

focused on maintaining performance at 90% . 
• Risks remain in respect of short notice cancellation of patients to 

maintain safey of the hospital. 
• Clinical vacancies in gastroenterology and diagnostics mean that 

demand and capacity are not aligned with reliance on additional 
sessions from existing staff. 

• Diagnostic wait to test and wait to report improving which is reducing 
overall waits to treatment. 

• Financial cost of outsourcing and waiting list initiatives, are being 
reviewed with a view to reducing and managing patients within the 
Trust and part of overall financial recovery plan. 
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Patients waiting longer than clinically determined date to be 
seen for an outpatient follow-up 
Patients waiting longer than clinically appropriate date to be seen 
Continued reduction in the number of patients waiting more than 4 months past 
clinically appropriate date to be seen ( 5,796 a reduction of 1,782 since May)  
No patients waiting more than 2 yrs to be seen and a reduction of  168 in the 
patients waiting more than a year. 
Contributing factors 
• Capacity constraints and the need to balance this between new, urgent and 

cancer patients as well as patients who have had treatment or who require 
further monitoring. 

• Changing clinical management of frequency of review of patients not 
consistently applied to existing patients, e.g. extending to 1yr, 2yr 5yr review 

• Patient compliance (cancellation and DNA) 
• Administrative shortfall has meant that validation routines have not been 

rigorously applied.  
Actions,  progress to date and minimising risk of harm 
• Clinical harm review process has been developed supported by NHSI and 

has commenced. 
• NHSI undertaking a review of gastroenterology pathways and processes 

against best practice guidance. 
• Management and administration team in gastroenterology has been 

strengthened. 
Gastroenterology  

• 812 patients have been clinically validated (in addition to administrative 
validation) Of these: 

• 201 (25%) have been discharged 
• 315 (39%) review frequency extended as per best practice guidance 
• 37 patients have been booked to urgent appointments 
• 210 patients (26%) require routine follow-up. 
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Exception Report: Diagnostic 6 wk. referral to test standard 
October performance against the 6 wk. diagnostic standard 
Trust performance was 99.8% against the 99% diagnostic standard and  
improvement trajectory of 99.1%.  There were 16 breaches of the 
standard.  
Contributing factors 
• There were 5 Non-obstetric ultrasound, 8 endoscopy, 2 MRI and 1 CT 

breaches of the standard. 
Actions and progress to date 
• Continued detailed management of patients to reduce risk of month end 

breaches, supplemented by additional clinical capacity and outsourcing 
of diagnostics and reporting where appropriate. 

• Clinical support Services have developed a recovery plan and 
improvement trajectory to return to sustainable delivery of the standard. 

Risks 
• Continued reliance on locum capacity to fill clinical gaps and therefore 

unstable and unsecure workforce. 
• Financial impact of use of locums and national clinical shortfall leading 

to inability to recruit substantively. 
• Histological clinical shortfall and inability to recruit substantively, with 

medium term planned sickness leading to reporting delays.  
• Demand greater than capacity for non-obstetric ultrasound and cardiac 

CT means performance continues to be a risk. 
• Cancellation of outpatient diagnostics to progress discharge of 

emergency inpatients. 
• Endoscopy at Gosport is now partially operational, capacity is being 

carefully managed between the 2 sites to maximise patient throughput. 
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Exception Report: Cancelled Operations 28 day Guarantee 

11/29/2017 

October Performance Cancelled Operations 28 day 
Guarantee  
• There were 3 urgent operations cancelled in October all patients 

have now been treated, and none of these  patients were 
cancelled for a second time 

• 2 urology-1 due to anaesthetist availability, 1 due to list overrun 
• 1 general surgery due to bed availability. 
• All patients have now been treated.  
• There were no breaches of the 28 day zero tolerance standard. 
• 59 patients in total were cancelled on the day for non-clinical 

reasons in October. Of these 59%  were due to bed availability and 
30% due to list over-runs. 

Contributing factors 
• Careful management of the elective programme reduced the 

number of patients cancelled on the day. 
• Patients cancelled in advance where practicable. 
• Orthopaedic elective programme temporarily reduced to create 

capacity for frailty unit. 
• The Trust declared an internal incident during October which 

increased the number of cancellations due to bed availability. 
Actions, progress to date and risks 
• Patients previously cancelled and subject to the 28 day standard 

are monitored at the weekly assurance meeting. 
• All patients with new dates close to breach date have contingency 

plans in place to reduce risk of a second cancellation. 
• The temporary reduction in elective orthopaedic beds to support 

unscheduled care demand means that if patients are cancelled it 
will be very difficult to rebook them in 28 days as the bed base is 
reduced. 
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Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 11/29/2017 

Exception report:  Cancer Standards (provisional position) 

October provisional performance against national cancer standards and contributing factors ( national reporting 
deadline 6th December 2017 performance subject to change including additional shared breaches until submission deadline) 

• The Trust is currently forecasting achievement 6 of the 8 key national standards, provisionally 62 day first definitive treatment and 
62 day screening have not been achieved, however validation is not completed and performance is expected to improve once all 
treatments are recorded and breaches validated but this is unlikely to improve sufficiently to achieve the standards.  

• There are provisionally 8 patients who were treated in excess of 104 days (6 attributable to the Trust) 
• The Trust has agreed an improvement trajectory for the 62 day standard supported by a detailed action plan to move back to 

sustainable cancer delivery. (see below) This is being monitored weekly and the trust is ahead of trajectory for October. 
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Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Exception report:  Cancer Standards continued 
 

11/29/2017 

October Performance 62 day first definitive treatment against 
recovery trajectory  (standard 85% trajectory 80.6%) 
October provisional performance 80.8% and in line with improvement trajectory 
and may improve further when all treatments confirmed by histology. ( if breach 
sharing guidance applied this would improve to 81% as 1 patient was referred at 
123 days and treated within 24 days of referral)   
Actions and progress to date 
• The cancer recovery plan and trajectory has been reviewed and 

strengthened to include diagnostic recovery plan. 
• Continued focus on backlog clearance has reduced the backlog from 104 to 

66 and focusing on moving to a sustainable position from February. 
• Focus on progressing treatment of patients who have breached the standard 

with 31.5 breached patients treated compared to an average of 24.  
• Weekly review of patients 14 days to breach on an individual basis to ensure 

treatment plan in place and delays mitigated, with root cause analysis of 104 
day breaches. 

• Additional diagnostic and theatre capacity for urology patients has been 
delivered in October and in place for November.  

• Streamlining of the diagnostic pathway for lower GI patients is progressing  
On-going Risks 
• Diagnostic delays in lower GI and urology have impacted on the 62 day 

standard, this is improving in lower GI but remains a concern in urology and 
patients are being treated in excess of 62 days and this is expected to 
continue into October as the backlog of breached patients is treated.  

• Locum shortfall for lower GI both surgical and radiologist is impacting on 
capacity and therefore performance against standard, work ongoing to 
address. 

• Histopathology shortfall means that if multiple or late diagnostics are required 
the turnaround time for results is not fast enough to recover the lost time in 
pathway. 
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Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Exception report:  Cancer Standards continued 104 day 
maximum wait for treatment provisional 
 

11/29/2017 

Contributing factors and actions taken 
• Provisionally 8 patients treated in excess of 104 days. ( 6 

of these would be attributable to the trust) 
 
• 2 lower GI patients 
 1 treated at 110 days, complex with multiple diagnostics 

and then treatment postponed as patient unwell. 
 1 treated at 113 days complex pathway with multiple 

diagnostics and  cardiac review required prior to 
treatment. 

 
• 3 urology patients  
 1 late referral at day 99, treated at 133 days following 

choice delay. (shared breach) 
 1 treated at 132 days, 22 day delay as unable to contact 

patient to agree treatment type. 
 1 late referral day 52, treated at day 164, original surgical 

treatment cancelled due to equipment failure, then patient 
changed choice of treatment. (shared breach) 

 
• 2 Respiratory patients  
 1 late referral at day 123, treated at 144 days as this was 

less than 24 days from receipt this breach would not be 
attributable to the Trust. 

 1 late referral at day 50, treated at 120 days due to 
oncology capacity.(shared breach) 

 
• 1 Head & Neck patient 
 Treated at 105 days, patient choice to delay diagnostics 

and this cannot be deducted from pathway. R
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Exception Report: Stroke Contract Service Standards  
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September  Provisional Performance against key Sentinel Stroke 
National Audit Programme (SSNAP) using DIY analysis toolkit: 
Reported in arrears 
• The Trust has provisionally achieved 9 of the 13 key measures for September 

(see table) based on 63 cases (clock starts)  
• Scan within 1hr: not achieved but improved, 41.3% (standard 48%)  
• Direct Admission to Stroke Unit: not achieved but improved, 50.8% (standard 

90%) 
• Swallow screen ≤ 4hrs: not achieved at 66.7% (target 85%) 
• Speech and language assessment within 72hrs: not achieved 45.0% (standard 

90%) 
• Formal SSNAP report for period Apr – Jul published showing overall level 

dropped from C to D 
Contributing factors 
• On-going unscheduled care pressures continue to have a direct impact on the 

ability to ring-fence beds for acute Stroke patients and directly transfer patients 
from the Emergency Department to Stroke Unit within the 4hr target. 

• Gaps within Stroke Specialist Nurse team remain, impacting on ability to 
undertake early assessments and diagnosis of patients. 

• Significant shortfall of Speech and Language Therapist (SLT) resource across 
the pathway continues to impact on performance and patient outcomes.  

Actions and progress to date 
• Plan developed with actions agreed to improve performance, with named leads 

accountable for delivery on each element and timescales set. 
• Business Case for additional B6 SLT being developed to support dysphagia 

training to nursing team and improve assessments within 72hrs. 
• Advert out for Specialty Doctor post to support earlier decision making at the 

Front Door. 
• B6 secondment to Stroke Specialist Nurse team to start 20/11/17.  Business 

case being developed to ensure team resilience and to support extended hours. 
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Finance and Use of Resources Metric R (Surplus)/Deficit R Cash A

Liquidity Capital   
Servicing Overall Plan Actual Variance Plan

Actual / 
Forecast Variance

Year to Date 4 4 4 In Month £k (2,976) 3,428 (6,404) Year to Date £k 2,899 4,181 1,282
Year End Forecast 4 3 3 Year to Date £k 3,872 19,393 (15,521) Year End Forecast £k 1,000 1,000 0

Income R Operating Expenditure R Capital G

Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance Plan
Actual / 

Forecast Variance
In Month £k (47,791) (46,124) (1,668) In Month £k 41,649 46,344 (4,695) Year to Date £k 1,752 5,778 (4,026)
Year to Date £k (324,409) (314,198) (10,211) Year to Date £k 306,054 311,295 (5,241) Year End Forecast £k 14,164 15,019 (855)

Cost Improvement Plans R Pay bill R Agency Cap R
Plan Actual Variance Year to Date £k Plan Actual Variance Ceiling Actual Variance

Year to Date £k 13,638 9,887 (3,751) Substantive 158,864 161,475 (2,611) Year to Date £k 8,777 12,056 (3,280)
Bank 9,382 11,430 (2,048)
Agency 6,659 12,056 (5,397)

174,905 184,961 (10,056)
The 2017-18 plan submitted to the Regulator included detailed workforce expenditure 
commitments for both substantive and temporary workforce costs. The plan reflected a moderate 
increase in the size of the substantive workforce in the course of the year. This was offset by a 
more substantial reduction in the use of temporary workforce costs, in particular high cost 
agencies and premium rate internal locum costs. On-going unscheduled care pressures and the 
costs of maintaining high levels of extra capacity with safe staffing levels including through 
material premium rate costs means that the paybill is continuing to exceed planned levels and is 
placing a material pressure on the Trust’s financial position.

The Trusts external reporting includes the monitoring of its agency 
staffing as a component part of temporary workforce costs. This covers in 
month costs and performance against agency caps. The rules require 
compliance against a ceiling set for total agency expenditure, the use of 
approved frameworks to procure all agency staff at rates set at or below 
the capped rates. Trust plans to reduce premium rate agency spend was 
set out in the revised plan presented to the Board in October. 

The Trust has spent £5.8m of capital YTD. NHSI approved carry forward 
of unspent CRL into 2017/18 and this is reflected in the Capital Resource 
Limit. The Trust continues to seek a resolution to the confirmed CRL 
position and we have recorded our dispute in relation to this 
within/alongside our planning submissions.  NHSI have now responded 
and we are reviewing this response in order to provide an update to the 
Board.

The forecast variance to plan of £0.9m relates to the A&E Streaming 
project (DH approved the PDC for this in July). 

The Finance and Use of Resources Metric came into effect from 
November 2016 and adds 3 further metrics to Monitor's Continuity of 
Services Risk Rating. The Trust’s overall rating at the end of the month 
is a ‘4’, as is the end of year forecast a '3' (1 is the best on a scale of 1 
to 4).  These metrics reflect the current liquidity issues the Trust is facing 
(NB  - the best overall use of resources score that a Trust scoring 4 on 
any individual metric can obtain is a 3). This does not reflect the new 
continued use of resources rating and the Trust is currently developing 
its reporting arrangements to reflect these changes.

The month 7 financial position shows a continuation of the significant levels of 
expenditure reported in previous months, especially in relation to pay. As a result of 
this, and the significant month on month financial improvements required to achieve 
the year end surplus control total, the adverse variance to plan in month is 
proportionally worse than in the earlier part of the year. The year to date deficit in 
now £19.4m against a planned deficit of £3.9m of which £4.3m relates to the 
Sustainability and Transformation funding which the Trust will not be able to receive 
as a result of adverse financial and operational performance. The month 7 financial 
performance places greater pressure on the Trusts forecast and recovery plan 
which will be presented to the regulators on the 28 November and the outcome of 
these discussions will be reflected in future finance reports.

The cash balance at 31st October was £4.2m including £3.0m of the 
£4.1m capital cash carried forward from 2016/17.  The target cash 
balance was therefore £4.1m compared to the plan balance of £3.1m.  
The Trust drew down £5.0m of Interim Financing to supplement the 
working capital measures being used to manage the in-year cash 
position.

The Trust submitted a request for interim financial support of £5.7m for 
November and £5.0m for December as per the mandate request 
approved by the Board in September and is in dialogue with NHSI 
regarding this. The November financial support was received in the week 
commencing 13/11/17.

The Trust is reporting an adverse variance against plan year to date of 
£10.2m against all forms of income.  The key components of this 
underperformance are SLA (clinical contractual) income (£5.7m) and 
Sustainability and Transformation Funding (£4.3m).  The SLA income 
variance is partially offset by planning reserves established to mitigate 
risk associated with growth assumptions contained within the income 
plan. The income position does assume Commissioner funding for the 
Frailty Intervention Team (£0.56m) and access to the AIC risk pool 
(£0.65m). 

Pay expenditure was £10.1m adverse to plan year to date. The pay overspend links to a 
continued reliance on premium rate medical staff costs in both unscheduled and scheduled care 
to maintain capacity and safety. The Trust continued to use an exceptional level of medical and 
nursing agency staff in October. This conflicts with the original plan profiling assumptions which 
were based on material reductions in premium rate costs by this point in the financial year. The 
Non-pay expenditure position is favourable to plan by £4.8m year to date, this includes a 
favourable reserve provision for cost/income pressures of £10.7m which contributes to offsetting 
the adverse income position. Drug expenditure exclusions are £1.0m adverse but matched with 
the equivalent of clinical income. Outsourcing commitments to non-NHS providers exceeded 
planning assumptions by £2.6m in the year to date.

The CIP challenge for 17/18 is significant and the Trust is approaching this through a 
system wide approach to improvement with partners across the health system, though 
there remains a significant risk to the delivery of the programme in full at this time. The 
detailed programme of work to produce a revised financial plan and detailed forecast for 
the remainder of 17/18 includes a full review of savings plans and delivery and risk 
management arrangements.  There remains a significant gap in terms of the realistic 
case against the CIP target for the year.  The Trust response to this risk assessment has 
been set out in full within the revised plan presented to the Trust Board in October and 
will be presented to the Regulator in November. There are significant risks associated 
with the delivery of savings in particular those associated with workforce and agency 
costs, the use of unfunded extra capacity and the realisation of productivity and system 
benefits, all of which are impacted materially by the operational pressures reported 
elsewhere.
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Finance Report Month 7 2017/18 (Surplus)/Deficit R

In Month Year to date
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance

£k £k £k £k £k £k

Surplus deficit - pre application of STF (1,633) 3,428 (5,061) Surplus deficit - pre application of STF 9,916 21,105 (11,189)
STF allocation (1,343) - (1,343) STF allocation (6,044) (1,712) (4,332)
Net (Surplus)/Deficit (2,976) 3,428 (6,404) (Surplus)/Deficit 3,872 19,393 (15,521)

In Month Plan Actual Variance Year to date Plan Actual Variance
£k £k £k £k £k £k

Income (47,791) (46,124) (1,668) Income (324,409) (314,198) (10,211)
Pay 25,006 26,887 (1,881) Pay 174,905 184,961 (10,056)

Non-Pay 16,643 19,456 (2,813) Non-Pay 131,149 126,334 4,815
EBITDA * (6,142) 220 (6,362) EBITDA * (18,355) (2,902) (15,452)
EBITDA % 12.9 -0.5 EBITDA % 5.7 0.9

Profit / Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets - - - Profit / Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets - (13) 13
Interest Payable 1,593 1,596 (3) Interest Payable 11,009 11,019 (10)
Interest Receivable (3) (2) (1) Interest Receivable (22) (19) (4)
Depreciation 1,478 1,517 (38) Depreciation 10,553 10,630 (77)
Adjustment for donated asset income (25) (9) (16) Adjustment for donated asset income (175) (131) (44)
Impairments - - - Impairments - - -
Public Dividend Capital 182 182 (0) Public Dividend Capital 1,275 1,275 (0)
Net (Surplus) / Deficit (2,917) 3,504 (6,421) Net (Surplus) / Deficit 4,286 19,859 (15,574)
Technical adjustment - donated assets (59) (76) 17 Technical adjustment - donated income (414) (466) 53
Technical adjustment - IFRIC 12 - - - Technical adjustment - IFRIC 12 - - -
Performance against Control Total (2,976) 3,428 (6,404) Performance against Control Total 3,872 19,393 (15,521)

Surplus % 6.2 -7.4 Surplus % -1.2 -6.2
* EBITDA Earnings before Interest Taxation Depreciation and Amortisation

The tables below set out the summary Income and Expenditure account position for the Trust for the month of October and the year to date at this point. The 
key factors contributing to the adverse financial position are set out in the relevant sections of the report. The Trust has undertaken a number of pieces of 
work aimed at improving the in year income and expenditure trends as well as to inform the development of a financial sustainability plan going forward. This 
includes a detailed financial baseline review and the development of a schedule of efficiency opportunities to supplement existing plans, a comprehensive 
focus on grip, control and accountability arrangements, the strengthening of planning, monitoring, reporting and delivery, capacity and capabilities and 
targeted support for the most challenged areas. The Trust will be reporting on all of these matters to the Board and the regulator at the end of 
November/beginning of December 2017.  
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Finance Report Month 7 2017/18 Income R

In Month Year To Date
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance
£k £k £k £k £k £k

Total Income (47,791) (46,124) (1,668) Total Income (324,409) (314,198) (10,211)

In Month Year to Date
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance
£k £k £k £k £k £k

Income Income
 SLA income (41,703) (41,478) (225)  SLA income - CCG (286,224) (280,537) (5,687)
 Private Patients (457) (248) (210)  Private Patients (2,423) (2,056) (367)
 RTA / Overseas (92) (150) 58  RTA / Overseas (456) (654)  197 
 Other income for patient care (90) (93) 3  Other income for patient care (629) (642)  12 
Income For Patient Care (42,342) (41,968) (374) Income For Patient Care (289,732) (283,888) (5,844)
 Education, Training and Research (1,589) (1,589) (0)  Education, Training and Research (11,093) (11,102)  9 
 Income Generation (1,038) (1,038) 0  Income Generation (7,057) (6,909) (148)

 Non patient care services to other bodies (57) (36) (21)
 Non patient care services to other 
bodies (472) (396) (77)

 Rental income from operating leases (140) (136) (4)  Rental income from operating leases (1,036) (1,021) (16)
 Other Income (1,282) (1,356) 74  Other Income (8,974) (9,170)  196 
 STF (1,343)  0 (1,343)  STF (6,044) (1,712) (4,332)
Other Operating Income (5,449) (4,156) (1,294) Other Operating Income (34,677) (30,310) (4,367)

Total Income (47,791) (46,124) (1,668) Total Income (324,409) (314,198) (10,211)

The clinical income variance year to date is behind plan by £5.7m. There are several key factors contributing to this. The AIC contract has an overperformance 
against plan of £2.7m (comprising drugs exclusions of £0.8m, over performance on non-elective activity of £0.8m in Q1 and an overperformance on elective activity 
of £0.5m in Q1 and assumed access to the AIC risk pool for cost pressures).  An adverse variance of £8.7m exists that covers the NHSI plan which was based on 
STP growth and demand planning assumptions before 3 CCG QIPP had been taken into account. This is then materially offset by reserves within non pay provided 
to undertake growth in activity. The Trust has not delivered a financial performance for quarter 2 or month 7 in line with the requirements of the Sustainability and 
Transformation Fund (STF) and this accounts for an in-month income shortfall against plan of £1.343m. The cumulative shortfall for the year to date is £4.332m. 
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Finance Report Month 7 2017/18 Operating Expenditure R

In Month Year To Date
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance

£k £k £k £k £k £k
Pay 25,006 26,887 (1,881) Pay 174,905 184,961 (10,056)

Non Pay 16,643 19,456 (2,813) Non Pay 131,149 126,334 4,815
Operational Costs 41,649 46,344 (4,695) Operational Costs 306,054 311,295 (5,241)

In Month Year To Date
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance
£k £k £k £k £k £k

Pay Pay
 Medical and Dental 7,996 8,952 (956)  Medical and Dental 56,339 59,389 (3,050)
 Nursing & Midw ifery 10,128 10,459 (331)  Nursing & Midw ifery 71,492 73,825 (2,333)
 Scientif ic 4,126 4,156 (30)  Scientif ic 28,720 28,911 (190)
 Administrative & Ancillary 3,375 3,276 100  Administrative & Ancillary 23,464 22,527 938
 Pay reserves 130 - 130  Pay reserves 882 - 882
 Pay savings target (844) (51) (793)  Pay savings target (6,655) (358) (6,297)
Apprentice levy 95 96 (1) Apprentice levy 663 668 (6)

 Total Pay 25,006 26,887 (1,881)  Total Pay 174,905 184,961 (10,056)
Non-Pay Non-Pay
 Drugs & Medical Gases 5,570 6,691 (1,121)  Drugs & Medical Gases 38,145 38,880 (735)
 Supplies and Services - Clinical 4,557 4,720 (163)  Supplies and Services - Clinical 31,778 32,311 (533)
 Supplies and Services - General 146 183 (37)  Supplies and Services General 1,182 1,169 13
 Establishment Expenses 425 433 (8)  Establishment Expenses 2,765 2,629 135
 Consultancy Services 61 92 (31)  Consultancy Services 411 405 5
 Transport Expenses 40 32 7  Transport Expenses 267 332 (65)
 Premises 1,102 1,089 12  Premises 8,107 7,951 156
 PFI Operating Costs 2,566 2,537 29  PFI Operating Costs 17,177 17,099 78
 CNST Premium 1,848 1,848 (0)  CNST Premium 12,939 12,939 (0)
 Auditors remuneration 8 6 2  Audit fees 62 61 1
 Education and Training 164 119 45  Education and Training 1,008 734 274
 Services from Other NHS Bodies 273 282 (9)  Services from Other NHS Bodies 2,132 2,243 (111)
 Purchase of Healthcare from Non NHS provider 658 1,199 (541)  Purchase of Healthcare from Non NHS provider 5,289 7,903 (2,614)
 Non pay reserves 464 136 328  Non pay reserves 11,879 1,151 10,728
 Non Pay savings target (1,440) - (1,440)  Non Pay savings target (2,967) - (2,967)
 Other Non Pay 199 87 112  Other Non Pay 974 526 448

 Total Non-Pay 16,643 19,456 (2,813)  Total Non-Pay 131,149 126,334 4,815
Total Expenditure 41,649 46,344 (4,695) Total Expenditure 306,054 311,295 (5,241)

The pay variance year to date is £10.1m adverse to plan. There is a continued reliance on premium rate medical staff costs in unscheduled and scheduled care to 
maintain capacity and quality. This is particularly evident in the use of additional temporary medical and nursing staff in the provision of escalation capacity. This covers 
additional bed capacity on wards (£2.3m adverse variance), ward E4 (£0.3m adverse variance) and in external capacity in unfunded further assessment beds (£0.3m 
adverse variance). The Trust continued to use a heighthened level of premium rate agency nursing staff (£0.18m) in October, compared to the average of last financial 
year, though the costs are half of the costs seen in August and September (Year to date costs are £1.8m).   Planning assumptions in 2017-18, as indicated by the pay 
savings target (£6.3m adverse variance), were that a reliance on premium rate pay commitments were expected to reduce. Further improvements to the control 
environment relating to pay expenditure have been introduced across the Trust and will continue to be developed in line with the output of a detailed programme of work. 
Non-pay is favourable to plan by £4.8m, this includes a favourable net reserve provision for cost pressures and activity of £10.7m. Drug exclusion costs are £1.1m 
adverse to plan which correlates with the equivalent clinical income. Outsourcing commitments to non-NHS providers exceeded planning assumptions by £2.6m, mainly 
effecting Orthopaedics (£1.6m adverse variance) and Gastro (£0.7m adverse variance). Both services have identified a sustained reliance on additional capacity to 
maintain RTT performance. 
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Finance Report Month 7 2017/18 Cash A

Year To Date Year End Forecast
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
£k £k £k £k £k £k

Cash Balance 2,899 4,181 1,282 Cash Balance 1,000 1,000 -

Year to Date Year End Forecast
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance
£k £k £k £k £k £k

Operating Surplus 7,975 (7,596) (15,571) Operating Surplus 29,894 29,130 (764)
Depreciation 10,206 10,630 (424) Depreciation 17,500 18,234 734

Other Non Cash I&E Items (322) (131) (191) Other Non Cash I&E Items (552) (300) 252
Movement in Working Capital 1,993 13,973 (11,980) Movement in Working Capital (8,391) (19,620) (11,229)
Provisions - - - Provisions - - -

Cashflow from Operations 19,852 16,876 (28,166) Cashflow from Operations 38,451 27,444 (11,007)
Capital Expenditure (5,860) (6,783) 923 Capital Expenditure (14,464) (15,319) (855)
Cash receipt from asset sales - 22 (22) Cash receipt from asset sales - 22 22

Cashflow before financing 13,992 10,115 (3,877) Cashflow before financing 23,987 12,147 (11,840)
PDC Received - - - PDC Received - 855 855
PDC Repaid - - - PDC Repaid - - -
Dividends Paid (997) (1,093) 96 Dividends Paid (1,994) (2,172) (178)
Interest on Loans, PFI and leases (10,978) (11,019) 41 Interest on Loans, PFI and leases (18,735) (18,874) (139)
Interest received 26 19 7 Interest received 38 38 -
Capital element of PFI payment (4,009) (3,770) (239) Capital element of PFI payment (6,876) (6,435) 441
Donated Capital Receipts 175 131 44 Donated Capital Receipts 300 300 -
Draw dow n on debt - 5,001 (5,001) Draw dow n on debt - 10,754 10,754
Repayment of debt (410) (410) - Repayment of debt (820) (820) -

Cashflow from financing (16,193) (11,141) 5,052 Cashflow from financing (28,087) (16,354) 11,733
Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) (2,201) (1,026) (1,175) Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) (4,100) (4,207) (107)
Opening Cash Balance 5,100 5,207 (107) Opening Cash Balance 5,100 5,207 107
Closing Cash Balance 2,899 4,181 1,282 Closing Cash Balance 1,000 1,000 -

The cash balance at 31st October was £4.2m including £3.0m of the £4.1m capital cash carried forward from 2016/17.  The target cash balance was therefore 
£4.1m compared to the plan balance of £3.1m.  The Trust drew down £5.0m of Interim Financing to supplement the working capital measures being used to manage 
the in-year cash position.

The Trust submitted a request for interim financial support of £5.7m for November and £5.0m for December as per the mandate request approved by the Board in 
September and is in dialogue with NHSI regarding this. The November financial support was received in the week commencing 13/11/17.

The cash balance at 31st October includes £3.0m of capital cash carried 
forward from 2016/17 and reflects improved working capital position 
compared to plan (increase in creditors, decrease in debtors).

The cash forecast at present materially reflects the 2017-18 NHSI planning 
submission and assumes no repayment of any interim financing in 2017/18. This will 
be comprehensively updated to reflect the output of the revised forecast to be 
presented subsequently to the Board and NHS Improvement.The Trust has 
accessed interim financial support through agreement with NHS Improvement to 
assist with the management of the liquidity and cash position. As part of the Trusts 
year end forecast review we are developing a supporting cash forecast. 

72



QAH Hospital 

 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Progress Report: Capital 

29/11/2017 

En
ab

le
rs

 - 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Finance Report Month 7 2017/18 Capital G

Year To Date Year End Forecast
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance

£k £k £k £k £k £k
Capital Balance 1,752 5,778 4,026 Capital Balance 14,164 15,019 855

Year to Date Year End Forecast
Plan Actual Variance Plan Forecast Variance

£k £k £k £k £k £k
Medical Equipment Replacement 231 1,363 1,132 Medical Equipment Replacement 4,100 5,786 1,686

Information Technology 39 863 824 Information Technology - 1,632 1,632
Service Investment 30 166 136 Service Investment - 331 331
To be allocated - - To be allocated 4,259 610 (3,649)
Total excluding MES 300 2,392 2,092 Total excluding MES 8,359 8,359 -
Medical Equipment Replacement via MES IFRIC 4 - - - Medical Equipment Replacement via MES IFRIC 4 - - -
Service Investment via MES IFRIC 4 - - - Service Investment via MES IFRIC 4 - - -
Capital expenditure excluding IFRS 300 2,392 2,092 Capital expenditure excluding IFRS 8,359 8,359 -
IFRS Capital Expenditure 1,452 3,386 1,934 IFRS Capital Expenditure 5,805 5,805 -
A&E Streaming (PDC Approved by DH in July) - - - A&E Streaming (PDC Approved by DH in July) - 855 855
Disposals and Transfers - - - Disposals and Transfers - - -
Donated Assets 75 131 56 Donated Assets 300 300 -
Gross Capital expenditure including IFRS 1,827 5,909 4,082 Gross Capital expenditure including IFRS 14,464 15,319 855
Less donated additions (75) (131) (56) Less donated additions (300) (300) -
Disposals and transfers - - - Disposals and transfers - - -

- -
Charge against CRL Inc. IFRS impact 1,752 5,778 4,026 Charge against CRL Inc. IFRS impact 14,164 15,019 855

The 17/18 Capital Programme remains severely challenged at £4.2m 17/18 capital and £4.1m carried forward from 2016/17.  The Trust continues to liaise with NHSI colleagues over the methodology 
for calculating capital cash sources.  The Capital Priorities Group (CPG) reviewed capital requirements and recommended a programme to the Board which was approved at the September Board 
meeting.  The CPG continues to monitor progress against the plan and consider identified re-prioritisation requests.  DH has confirmed PDC of £0.9m for the A&E Streaming project.

Risks

The Trust has spent £5.8m of capital YTD. NHSI approved carry forward of unspent Capital Resource Limit (CRL) from 2016/17 into 2017/18 and this is reflected in 
the CRL. The Trust has made representation to NHS Improvement in relation to concerns about the revised methodology for the calculation of the Trust's CRL.  NHSI 
have now responded and the Trust is reviewing the responses given in order to provide an update to the Trust Board. We are continuing a dialogue to find a 
resolution to these issues.
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Performance Theme 
 

• The total workforce capacity increased by 99 FTE to 7155 FTE in October 17 and is 292 FTE over the funded establishment. 
 
• The temporary workforce capacity increased by 62 FTE to 581 FTE in October 17 and comprises 8.1% of the total workforce capacity. 

 
• The number of shifts that have breached the capped rates or are off-framework have increased by 24 shifts to 2911 shifts in October 

17. 
 
• The evidence collected for October 17 indicates that overall staffing levels have increased from 102.9% to 106.4% compared to 

planned levels. 
 
• The evidence collected for October 17 indicates that overall CHPPD is 5 hours for RNs. This is similarly reported in the previous 

month and 2.8 for HCSWs for PHT. 
 
• Appraisal compliance has increased and currently records at 79.2% in October 17 but remains below the 85% target. 

 
• Essential skills compliance increased to 89.2%, and continues to record above the 85% target. 
 
• Sickness Absence Rate (12 month rolling average) maintained at 3.8% in September 17 and remains above the target. In-month 

sickness absence increased to 3.4% in September 17 and is above the target. 
 

• Turnover Rate (12 month rolling average) has maintained at 11.9% in October 17 and remains above the target. 
 

• Two whistleblowing referrals were received in October 17. No professional registration and safeguarding referrals were reported.  
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Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks 
Target: Establishment of 6,596 FTE, with target of substantive staff in post at 100% of 

establishment 

Key Terms and Definitions 
• Funded establishment excludes CIP and includes investments around 

anticipated activity growth and patient demand in 17/18. 
• Total workforce capacity is the sum of the substantive establishment plus the 

temporary workforce. 
• Temporary workforce capacity is the sum of the bank and agency workforce. 
Trends and Patterns 
• The funded establishment has decreased by 10 FTE to 6863 FTE for 

October 17. This has increased by 68 FTE since April 17. 
• The total workforce capacity increased by 99 FTE to 7155 FTE in October 17 

and is 292 FTE over the funded establishment. 
• Substantive workforce capacity has increased to 6574 FTE in October 17. 
• The temporary workforce capacity increased by 62 FTE to 581 FTE in 

October 17 and comprises 8.1% of the total workforce capacity. This is a 
significant increase in comparison to October 17. 

Root Cause analysis and insights 
• A significant temporary staffing resource is still required to fill existing 

vacancies across all areas. Workstreams are in place to switch off high cost 
temporary staffing and to recruit to these positions substantively. 

• Temporary staffing is also being used due to increased patient demand and 
increased patient acuity, sickness and specialling. 

• Weekly monitoring and reporting of temp usage and the price caps for 
temporary workers continues and fortnightly meetings are held with each 
CSC to drive further reductions in temporary usage and overall pay bill where 
possible. 

Actions and progress to date 
• Recruitment will take place, targeting and providing a focus on the ‘hard to 

recruit’ areas to close the vacancy gap and drive reductions in the temporary 
workforce. 

CHAT 

Clinical Support 

Emergency 

Head & Neck 

Medicine 

MOPRS 

Musculo-skeletal 

Renal 

R&D 

Surgery & Cancer 

Women's & Children's 

Corporate Functions 

Total Trust 

CHAT  

Clinical Support  

Emergency  

Head & Neck  

Medicine  

MOPRS  

Musculo-skeletal  

Renal  

R&D  

Surgery & Cancer  

Women's & Children's  

Corporate Functions  

Total Trust  

Funded 
Establishmen

Vacancies

757 6

371

Substantive

646

1397 80
472 -11

23 774

751
1316
483

500 30
371 18

471
353

389 19
728 82

285 7278
84 82 1

578 549 29

594

Temporary Total Workforce
Workforce Capacity FTE

578 15
708 695 13

581 7155

20 299
0 82
25 603
28 722
14 563

Substantive Staffing FTE

47 401

22 1339
91 574

394
150 796
137 608

24

6863 6574 290
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Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks 
Target: Planned staffing levels are 100%, planned skill mix 70.4% RN:29.6% 

HCSW ratio 

Trends and Patterns 
• The evidence collected for October 17 indicates that overall 

staffing levels have increased from 102.9% to 106.4% 
compared to planned levels. 

• The kill mix for October increased to 64.1% Registered 
Nurses (RNs)  with 35.9% Health Care Support Workers 
(HCSWs). 

Root Cause analysis and insights 
• Increase in turnover and vacancy in some CSCs. Supported 

by the temporary workforce. New starters due in Autumn, 
monitoring impact on safety and quality. Concerns regarding 
vacancy levels in some CSCs. 

Actions and progress to date 
• Recruitment continues locally, nationally and internationally. 

Very successful open day for HCSWs recruited 100 staff 
between Trust and NHSP. Retention and Recruitment Day for 
Registered Nurses on the evening of the 19th October 17. 

Registered 
Nurses HCSW

% %
Sep-16 91.1% 113.9% 70.8% : 29.2% 66.0% : 34.0%
Oct-16 93.3% 116.0% 70.5% : 29.5% 65.8% : 34.2%
Nov-16 95.2% 116.4% 70.8% : 29.2% 66.4% : 33.6%
Dec-16 93.1% 109.3% 70.4% : 29.6% 66.9% : 33.1%
Jan-17 93.0% 113.5% 70.4% : 29.6% 66.0% : 34.0%
Feb-17 92.5% 115.7% 70.4% : 29.6% 65.5% : 34.5%
Mar-17 93.7% 118.3% 70.0% : 30.0% 64.9% : 35.1%
Apr-17 93.5% 125.7% 70.3% : 29.7% 63.8% : 36.2%

May-17 94.4% 127.9% 70.2% : 29.8% 63.5% : 36.5%
Jun-17 93.7% 127.6% 70.1% : 29.9% 63.3% : 36.7%
Jul-17 92.8% 127.5% 69.9% : 30.1% 62.8% : 37.2%

Aug-17 91.8% 127.7% 69.9% : 30.1% 62.5% : 37.5%
Sep-17 93.6% 124.3% 69.8% : 30.2% 63.5% : 36.5%
Oct-17 98.6% 124.0% 69.2% : 30.8% 64.1% : 35.9%

RN:HCSW RN:HCSW

Actual Staff Numbers and Skill Mix

Skill Mix

Planned Actual

Average Fill Rate

P A % P A % P A %

17811 17565 98.6% 7937 9838 124.0% 25748 27403 106.4%

Planned vs Actual Staff Numbers
These figures include ED, Day Units, and Flexible/Unfunded Capacity

Registered Nurse Healthcare Support Worker Combined

Queen Alexandra Hospital

NHS Choices
These figures do not include ED, Day 

Units, or Flexible/Unfunded Capacity

Planned vs Actual Staff Hours (Day and Night)

Combined RN & HCSW figure

P

232771 238535

A %

102%

P A % P A %

92365 86585 93.7% 43392 49588 114.3%

NHS Choices
These figures do not include ED, Day 

Units, or Flexible/Unfunded Capacity

Queen Alexandra Hospital

Planned vs Actual Staff Hours (Day)

Registered Nurse Healthcare Support Worker

P A % P A %

69104 67540 97.7% 27911 34822 124.8%

NHS Choices
These figures do not include ED, Day 

Units, or Flexible/Unfunded Capacity

Queen Alexandra Hospital

Registered Nurse Healthcare Support Worker

Planned vs Actual Staff Hours (Night)
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Introduction 
• To provide a single consistent way of 

recording and reporting deployment of staff 
working on patient wards/units, NHS 
Improvement have developed, tested and 
adopted  Care Hours per Patient Day 
(CHPPD). 

• CHPPD is calculated to by adding the hours 
of Registered Nurses (RNs) and Health Care 
Support Workers (HCSWs) per ward and 
dividing by the Midnight bed occupancy 
figures for the ward. CHPPD reports split out 
RNs and HCSWs to ensure skill mix and care 
needs are met. 

• The metric aims to illustrate how many hours 
each patient receives from either a RN or 
HCSW within any 24 period over the course 
of a month. 

 

Trends and Patterns 
• The evidence collected for October 17 

indicates that overall CHPPD is 5 hours for 
RNs. This is similarly reported in the previous 
month and 2.8 for HCSWs for PHT. 

• HCSWs have continued to be above plan 
over the last 12 months and during that same 
period RNs have continued to be below the 
planned number of hours. 
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Months 

Planned RN CHPPD
Planned HCSW CHPPD
Actual RN CHPPD2
Actual HCSW CHPPD3
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Trends and Patterns 
• The number of shifts that have breached 

the capped rates or are off-framework 
have increased by 24 shifts to 2911 shifts 
in October 17. 

 
Root Cause analysis and insights 
• A significant temporary staffing resource is 

still required to fill existing vacancies 
across all areas. Workstreams are in place 
to switch off high cost temporary staffing 
and to recruit to these positions 
substantively. 

• Temporary staffing is also being used due 
to increased patient demand and 
increased patient acuity, sickness and 
specialling. 

• Agencies are not supplying staff at capped 
rates. 

• Weekly monitoring and reporting of temp 
usage and the price caps for temporary 
workers continues and fortnightly meetings 
are held with each CSC to drive further 
reductions in temporary usage and overall 
pay bill where possible. 

 
Actions and progress to date 
• Complying with “Taking further action to 

reduce agency spending”. (NHS 
Improvement, 7th October 2016) 

Staff Groups No
v-

16

De
c-

16

Ja
n-

17

Fe
b-

17

M
ar

-1
7

Ap
r-1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

Au
g-

17

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

MEDICAL 515 962 789 852 1090 740 738 1003 564 703 783 851
All Price Cap, Wage Cap and Framework 16 24 20 31 24 21 10
Both Price Cap & Wage Cap 452 848 722 762 909 558 532 803 460 673 770 196
Framework Only 2 3
Price Cap Only 44 84 37 67 124 107 108 107 60 5 642
Wage Cap Only 19 30 30 23 41 51 78 62 20 4 1
Price cap and Framework 10

REG NURSING 754 1213 1054 881 1250 932 1239 1637 1373 2175 1986 1994
All Price Cap, Wage Cap and Framework 114 296 155 164 205 340 547 390 452 910 677 194
Both Framework & Price Cap 3 3
Both Price Cap & Wage Cap 608 869 851 672 994 552 664 1214 878 1203 1209 370
Price Cap Only 21 34 30 34 48 40 25 30 42 59 92 1260
Wage Cap Only 11 14 18 11 3 1 3 8
All Price Cap, Wage Cap and Off Framework 100
Price cap and Framework 70

STT & AHP 79 171 130 120 185 157 163 160 115 130 117 61
Both Price Cap & Wage Cap 79 171 130 120 185 151 132 121 87 87 89 20
Price Cap Only 19 20 41
Wage Cap Only 6 12 19 28 43 28

HCS 13 19 16 15 20 15
Both Price Cap & Wage Cap 13 19 16 15 20
Framework Only 15

NON-REG NURSING 2
Both Price Cap & Wage Cap 2

ADMIN 20 40 23 20 25 18 19 24 20 5 1 5
Both Price Cap & Wage Cap 10 35 13 18 9
Wage Cap Only 10 5 10 20 25 10 24 20 5 1 5

Grand Total 1381 2405 2012 1888 2570 1862 2159 2826 2072 3013 2887 2911
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Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks 
Target: The compliance target for Appraisals is 85%  

Trends and Patterns 
• Appraisal compliance has increased and currently records at 79.2% in October 

17 but remains below the 85% target. 
Root Cause analysis and insights 
• In October 17, the 85% appraisal target has been met by CHAT, Clinical 

Support and Research & Development CSC. 
• Appraisal compliance has increased in month for majority of the CSCs, with the 

exception of Emergency, Head & Neck, Renal and Women’s & Children’s CSC. 
Actions and progress to date 
• A targeted approach to address appraisal compliance has been adopted, which 

will involve informal warnings issued to managers of non-compliant staff. 

Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks 
Target: the compliance target for Essential skills  is 85% (Target  for Information Governance is 95%) 

Trends and Patterns 
• Essential skills compliance increased to 89.2%, and continues to record above 

the 85% target. 
Root Cause analysis and insights 
• Overall Safeguarding Children compliance (All Levels) is currently at 89.2% and 

is above the 85% target. Level 2 has decreased to 92.1%, and Level 3 
continues to be below target and compliance currently records at 80.7%. 

• Fire Safety (face to face training) increased to 71.5%. 
• Information Governance Training has increased to 91.0% 
Actions and progress to date 
• The L&D team are highlighting staff who are out of date with 3 or more essential 

skills.  Chiefs of Service are being provided with regular information on Medical 
and Dental compliance to help meet the requirements of the CQC Action Plan. Es
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TARGET
CHAT 86.9%  89.6% 

Clinical Support 87.6%  92.6% 

Emergency 62.1%  85.5% 

Head & Neck 84.6%  86.4% 

Medicine 69.9%  84.6% 

MOPRS 60.5%  88.7% 

Musculo-skeletal 69.5%  87.3% 

Renal 82.1%  88.3% 

R&D 89.2%  93.7% 

Surgery & Cancer 84.2%  88.5% 

Women's & Children's 84.5%  90.5% 

Corporate Functions 76.3%  93.3% 

Total Trust 79.2%  89.2% 

Appraisals & Essential Sklls
Appraisals Essential Skills

85% 85%
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Learning & Development - DNA (Did Not Attend) Rates 

29/11/2017 

8% 

Course DNA (Did Not Attend) Rate 

Corporate Induction Day 1 DNA Rate 

 4% 

Targets  ≤5%  6 – 10%  >10% 
Trends / Patterns 
In October, Course DNA rate increased by 3% on the previous month and 
remains a significant challenge for the Trust 
Root cause analysis / insights 
As in the previous month, the course with the most DNAs in October was 
Understanding MCA & DOLS; a course created to fulfil part of the CQC Action 
Plan.  The other 4 courses (see left) are all mandatory training courses that are 
below their Essential Skills Compliance target of 85%.  MOPRS CSC had the 
highest DNA rate in October with over a quarter (28%) of all places booked 
unattended.  In the few instances where reasons for DNAs were provided, the 
most common was short staffed departments.  There were 17 course 
cancellations in October; the majority at the trainer’s request or due to insufficient 
bookings. 
Actions / Progress to date 
L&D continue to raise awareness of this issue via an electronic notice board in 
the Education Centre and on the Education Dashboard which is accessible to all 
staff via the Trust intranet. The DNA rate of nursing and midwifery staff is 
presented monthly at the Professional Nursing & Midwifery Forum. L&D have a 
text reminder service where everyone booked on a course is sent two text 
messages; one two weeks prior to the course and another the day before the 
course. 

Targets  ≤5%  6 – 10%  >10% 
Trends / Patterns 
Corporate Induction attendance was 5.4% in October only just falling into the 
amber zone of >5%.  9 people did not attend over the course of the month in 
which 3 Corporate Inductions took place. 
Root cause analysis / insights 
Of the 9 DNAs, 4 had not started their role but the Learning and Development 
department were not informed.  There were 5 other DNAs; 2 of which were the 
same person not attending induction twice during the month. 
Actions / Progress to date 
Managers are contacted and asked to rebook staff onto a future Induction. 80
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New Apprenticeships & Care Certificates Achieved 

29/11/2017 

Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks 
Target: Health Education England set a target of 2.39% of our workforce (160) that have started an apprenticeship 

by the end of 2017/18. 
Trends / Patterns 
14 new apprenticeships started in October 2017; 5 based in CHAT CSC, 5 in Clinical 
Support CSC, 3 in Corporate Functions CSC, and 1 in Renal CSC. This gives us a total 
of 69 so far.  Numbers remain much lower than at the same point last year due to 
changes in guidelines and funding. 
Root cause analysis / insights 
Apprenticeship Categories: 
   43   Business & Administration (7 in October) 
   16   Healthcare Support Worker 
     8   Healthcare Science Assistant  (7 in October) 
     2   I.T. 
Actions / Progress to date:  Learning and Development continue to meet with CSC 
management teams to promote Apprenticeships in the workplace. 

1% 

Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks 
Target: All clinical new starters at bands 1 – 4 are to complete the Care Certificate within 12 weeks of their start date 

at the Trust.  The Trust has set the 6 month period as the final completion date to correspond with the 
probationary period. 

Trends / Patterns 
In October there were 14 staff due to complete within 6 months of their start date, all of 
whom did so, giving us a rate of 100%. This is a fantastic achievement particularly when 
considering the position the Trust was in at the start of the financial year. The next 
challenge, along with maintaining the current success, is to improve the rate of staff 
completing within 12 weeks. 
Root cause analysis / insights 
6 staff were from MOPRS CSC, 4 were from MSK CSC, 3 were from Clinical Support 
CSC, and 1 was from Women & Children CSC. 
Actions / Progress to date 
Compliance will continue to be addressed through the Nursing & Midwifery Professional 
Forum.  Learning & Development’s  e-mail reminder system  will continue to be used.  A 
Care Certificate Facilitator has been recruited to support the current team. 

New Apprenticeships 

Care Certificate achieved within 6 
Months 

Care Certificates currently in progress: 100     
On target to achieve: 93 (93%)      
Target already breached: 7 (7%) 
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Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks Target: < 10% 
 

Trends and Patterns 
• Turnover Rate (12 month rolling average) has maintained at 11.9% in 

October 17 and remains above the target. 
 
Root Cause analysis and insights 
• Majority of the CSCs, with the exception of Head & Neck and 

Women’s & Children’s CSC are above the rolling 12 month turnover 
target. 

 
Actions and progress to date 
• Focus on inductions for staff. 
• Focus on role clarity and objectives for all staff. 
• Review of National Staff Survey results and action planning. 
• Focus on staff development. 
• Focus on managing staff attendance. 
 

TARGET
CHAT 1.1%  10.9% 

Clinical Support 1.1%  13.3% 

Emergency 0.8%  11.7% 

Head & Neck 0.3%  6.4% 

Medicine 1.6%  15.7% 

MOPRS 0.3%  13.4% 

Musculo-skeletal 1.2%  10.9% 

Renal 1.7%  10.4% 

R&D 1.3%  12.1% 

Surgery & Cancer 0.5%  11.1% 

Women's & Children's 0.8%  9.6% 

Corporate Functions 2.0%  12.5% 

Total Trust 1.0%  11.9% 

Turnover rate
In month Rolling 12 months

10% 10%
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Where we want to be: targets and benchmarks Target: < 3% 

Trends and Patterns 
• Sickness Absence Rate (12 month rolling average) maintained at 3.8% in 

September 17 and remains above the target. In-month sickness absence 
increased to 3.4% in September 17 and is above the target. 

Root Cause analysis and insights 
• MOPRS, Renal and Research & Development CSC have the highest rate of in 

month sickness absence.  
• Majority of the CSCs, with the exception Head & Neck, Surgery & Cancer 

CSC and Corporate Functions, are above the in-month 3% target in 
September 17. 

Actions and progress to date 
• HR Manager identified to specifically work with CSCs to reduce sickness 

absence. 
• Due to in-month sickness slowly increasing over previous months, letters have 

been sent out to managers to distribute to staff who have met the sickness 
absence triggers as per the sickness absence policy to drive sickness 
absence down and turn off temporary workforce where possible and 
necessary. 

Occupational Health and Safety Report 
• There was no RIDDOR incidents reported in October 17.  
• The were 10 sharps injuries reported in October 17. These were reported 

within CHAT, Corporate Functions, Emergency Care, Head and Neck, 
MOPRS and Surgery and Cancer. 

TARGET
CHAT 4.0%  4.5% 

Clinical Support 2.8%  3.3% 

Emergency 3.1%  4.1% 

Head & Neck 2.6%  2.7% 

Medicine 2.9%  3.2% 

MOPRS 4.9%  5.6% 

Musculo-skeletal 3.2%  3.8% 

Renal 5.2%  5.3% 

R&D 7.5%  5.0% 

Surgery & Cancer 2.8%  2.8% 

Women's & Children's 4.1%  4.9% 

Corporate Functions 2.5%  2.3% 

Total Trust 3.4%  3.8% 

Sickness Absence rate
In Month Rolling 12 Months

3% 3%
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Flu Campaign 
 
Flu Report based on information entered by 15 November 
2017: 
• Junior Drs who are trained workplace vaccinators have 

been encouraged to vaccinate staff 
• Emergency Medicine have had the highest uptake and 

most improved in comparison with last year 
• 64% (2419) of the vaccinations have been delivered by 

workplace vaccinators 
• All CSCs have been given more detailed lists of low 

uptake areas 
• 856 more front line staff need to be vaccinated to meet the 

70% target 

Staff vaccinated Frontline 
% 
Vaccinated 

Staff Group Yes Frontline % 

Add Prof Scientific and Technic 111 64.2% 

Additional Clinical Services 957 56.6% 

Administrative and Clerical 533 58.9% 

Allied Health Professionals 300 62.8% 

Healthcare Scientists 102 55.4% 

Medical and Dental 522 53.0% 

Nursing and Midwifery Regist 1271 56.7% 

Total 3796 57.1% 
 

Staff vaccinated Frontline 

  

      

CSC Vaccinated Declined Contraindicated 
Not 
responded Headcount 

% 
Vaccinated 

CHAT CSC 500 32 1 262 795 62.9% 

Clinical Support CSC 824 39 5 508 1376 59.9% 

Corporate Functions 72 2 1 53 128 56.3% 

Emergency Care CSC 326 23 5 160 514 63.4% 

Head and Neck CSC 208 40 

 

157 405 51.4% 

Medicine CSC 341 11 1 319 672 50.7% 

MOPRS CSC 281 5 3 219 508 55.3% 

Muscular Skeletal CSC 189 4 1 184 378 50.0% 

Renal CSC 147 14 5 132 298 49.3% 

Research and Develop Division 46 1 

 

35 82 56.1% 

Surgery and Cancer CSC 333 11 2 279 625 53.3% 

Trading Division 35 4 

 

30 69 50.7% 

Women's and Children's CSC 487 25 4 270 786 62.0% 

Total 3789 211 28 2608 6636 57.1% 
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Whistleblowing / Safeguarding / Professional Registration 
• No Professional Registration referrals were received and reported in October 17. 

• Two whistleblowing referrals were reported in October17. 

• No safeguarding referral was received or reported in October 17. 

Revalidation of Medical Staff 
• No doctors have been revalidated as at 31st  October 17. Due to how the revalidation dates have been set by the GMC the numbers 

due to revalidate are expected to fall this year and next year. The numbers will begin to increase approximately in April 2018 which 
will be the start of the second cycle. 

• No doctors has been deferred as at 31st  October 17. 

• All medical staff are engaged in the validation process. 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017  Agenda Item Number: 221/17 
        Enclosure Number: (3) 

Subject: Care Quality Commission Update 

Prepared by: 
 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Joan Wilson, Head of Assurance 

Tracey Stenning, Head of Governance and Quality  

Theresa Murphy, Interim Director of Nursing  

John Knighton, Medical Director 

Purpose of paper To provide an update on progress against the CQC 
Regulatory requirements. 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

Compliance and Regulation Steering Group 
· Compliance and Regulation Steering Group 
· The Compliance and Regulation Steering Group continue 

to meet weekly. 
· Discussions with CSCs continue to discuss their progress 

and any concerns in achieving compliance with the 
required standards.   

· Following the publication of the Quality Improvement Plan 
(QIP), discussions are underway to establish the 
processes by which to monitor the implementation of the 
Plan to ensure actions have been completed and robust 
evidence is available to support compliance and 
sustainability. 

Quality Improvement Plan  
· The final version of the QIP, outlining the next steps of 

the 5 areas of focus (Valuing the Basics, Supporting 
Vulnerability in Patients, Organisation that Learns, 
Moving Beyond Safe and Leading Well through Good 
Governance) was published on the 31st October 2017. 

· A detailed QIP is being finalised to support delivery of the 
overall plan. 

· There are a total of 22 actions within the QIP which have 
a deadline of 31st November, of these 13 have been 
completed, 4 are on track for completion to the deadline.   
5 actions are not on track to meet the deadline; review of 
these is underway to determine a revised deadline. 

Section 31 (AMU) issued 3rd March 2017 following 
inspection 28th February 2017 
· The Trust continues to monitor staffing levels on AMU to 

ensure staffing, as far as possible, is at the required level.  
There are occasions when it is deemed safe to mange 
with two nurses instead of three in Ambulatory 
Emergency Care. Compliance is reported to the CQC 
fortnightly. 

· The Nurse in Charge must report any shortfalls in staffing 
to the Matron in hours or the duty matron or H@N team 
out of hours.  A daily staffing status report from the Nurse 
in Charge is sent to the Deputy Director of nursing.   

· All incidents when there are more than 6 GP patients 
waiting in reception are recorded as a SLE.  The AMU 
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reception staff record the time that patients wait.  All 
patients that wait greater than an hour and any incidents 
of more than 6 patients waiting are reported to the CQC 
fortnightly. 

Section 31 (Mental Health) issued 12th May 2017 following 
inspection 10th and 11th May 2017 
· Continued compliance with the CQC requirements to 

submit weekly compliance information in relation to the 
Section 31 Enforcement Notice Conditions. 

· Ligature risk assessments have been completed in ED 
and on AMU with mitigations noted and work plans 
agreed.    There is a continued plan to risk assess key 
areas across the Trust. 

· MCA and DoLS intensive training Programme (vulnerable 
adults) commenced on 11th September 2017. To date 
1,200 staff have been trained.  

· A Mental Health and Mental Capacity Board has been 
established with the first meeting having taken place. 

Section 29a re-issued 4th July 2017 following inspections 
16th, 17th and 28th February and 10th and 11th May 2017 
· Appointment of an Associate Chief Nurse to support 

patient flow, SAFER and Red2Green. The role will also 
have oversight on the prevention of inappropriate patient 
moves and strengthening ‘getting it right first time’ to 
improve patient flow 

· A gap analysis against compliance with the requirements 
of the Section 29a notice has been completed.  A table 
top exercise to review the evidence has been undertaken 
with the Chief Executive Officer and Non-Executive 
Director. As a result of this exercise, the gap analysis has 
been strengthened with additional evidence. This is with 
the Director of Nursing for final approval. 

Section 31 (Diagnostic and Screening Procedures) 
issued 28 July 2017  
· The CQC Report into the Radiology visit is due to be 

published on 1st December 2017.  In the report the CQC 
have cited the plain film backlog and three serious 
incidents.  

· A full harm review is under way, starting with a 
retrospective review of unreported ED plain film x-rays, 
which will then move on to audits of potential harm in 
other clinical areas. 

· CQC Specialist Inspector has fed back verbally that the 
data submitted is of a high standard, clear and easy to 
understand. The Inspector has agreed the Trust approach 
adopted related to prioritising of tasks contained within 
the Section 31 notice. 

· CQC Specialist Inspector will contact the Trust to cease 
reporting of certain metrics as these will not change and 
are not being measured. 

· 13,200 reports issued in total, over trajectory by 1,300 
week ending 12th November 2017 and on trajectory to be 
completed by February 2018.  ED reporting backlog 
cleared back to mid May 2017 with less than 100 events 
left to report in May.  

· 1 undetected cancer subsequently diagnosed.  This has 
been discussed at panel with the outcome of no harm.  3 
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further Safety Learning Event submissions to assess level 
of harm on misdiagnosed CXRs. 

Care Quality Commission update 
• The results of the 2016 children and young people’s 

survey were published on 28th November. The Trust was 
identified as about the same for aged 0-7 years category 
and as ‘worse than expected’ for the experiences of 
children aged 08-15 years.  

• The quarterly engagement meeting with the CQC is 
scheduled to take place on Wednesday 20th December 
2017. 

• The CQC have provided a ‘Provider Engagement Record 
Tool’ to inform the discussions at the engagement 
meeting using intelligence from the CQC Insight 
Dashboard, information from the public, inspection 
findings and Trust action plans.  

• Of the 77 Trust indicators in the November CQC Insight 
Dashboard (which compares the Trust with other 
organisations), 1 is categorised as much better, 0 as 
better, 3 as worse and 2 as much worse. 37 indicators 
have been compared to data from 12 months previous, of 
which 3 have shown an improvement and 3 have shown 
a decline (HSMR, NRLS Consistency of reporting and 
Patient-led assessment for dementia care). 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

· Trust Board to agree the level of detail they wish to 
receive regarding the action plans to support the delivery 
of all the Regulatory requirements. 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

· Monthly reporting to Board, CCG and Regulators. 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

· Compliance with the Health and Social Care Act. 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

· Reputational impact. 

· The Quality Improvement Plan is being implemented with 
stakeholder engagement. 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities 1. Deliver safe, high quality, patient centred care (PS). 
2. Continually improve the patient experience (PE). 
3. Create a health organisational culture where staff report 

they are well led and have high levels of satisfaction 
working in the Trust (OC). 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference 2d 

89



Risk Description Maintenance of compliance with CQC regulations 

CQC Reference All 

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

None n/a 
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Section 31 (AMU - issued 3 March 2017) 
Actions: 
 
 

• The Trust continues to monitor staffing levels on AMU to  ensure staffing, 
as far as possible, is at the required level.  There are occasions when it is 
deemed safe to mange with two nurses instead of three in Ambulatory 
Emergency Care. Compliance is reported to the CQC fortnightly.  The 
report to the CQC details all incidences where staffing has not been 
achieved and the actions taken to mitigate risks. 

• There is a targeted recruitment programme within AMU to decrease the 
vacancy levels across RNs and HCSW. 

• The Nurse in Charge must report any shortfalls in staffing to the Matron 
in hours or the duty matron or H@N team out of hours.  A daily staffing 
status report from the Nurse in Charge is sent to the Deputy Director of 
nursing.   

• All incidents when there are more than 6 GP patients waiting in reception 
are recorded as a SLE.  The AMU reception staff record the time that 
patients wait.  All patients that wait greater than an hour and any 
incidents of more than 6 patients waiting are reported to the CQC 
fortnightly. 

 

Exceptions and Risks: 
 

• Arrival of GP referred patients in “clusters” linked to GP visiting times. 
• Maintaining effective flow of patients requiring simultaneous admission 

from the GP and ED referral pathways at times of pressure. 
• High nursing vacancies on AMU causing difficulties covering adequate 

staffing levels, this means a high use of temporary staff. 
 

Assurance: 
• Fortnightly assurance meetings and reporting against the CQC 

requirements. 
• Matron completing hot topic check list weekly. 
• Continue to make good progress against the internal AMU plan which is 

reviewed at the Executive led AMU support meetings. 
• Perfect Care Event arranged for 2 days in November 2017. 

1. Ensure that beds only remain open in respect of which the 
required level of staffing can be provided. The Registered 
Provider must ensure that beds are opened for patient use, 
and closed to patient use if care and treatment at the 
appropriate level can no longer be provided for patients on the 
Acute Medical Unit. 
 

2. Must ensure that the GP triage referral area has in place, and 
operates effectively a clearly defined standard operating 
procedure for crowding and escalation for patient safety 
concerns. This includes having clearly defined trigger points 
for escalation of crowding and safety concerns in the GP 
triage referral area.  
 

3. Must ensure that there are a sufficient number (based on 
demand) of suitably qualified, competent, skilled and 
experienced clinical staff placed in the corridor/waiting area, 
of the Acute Medical Unit entrance and GP triage referral area. 
The Registered Provider must ensure that staffing is flexed 
appropriately to meet the acuity and dependency of patients 
waiting to be seen, treated or admitted to the hospital, so as to 
ensure their safety.  
 

4. Must, as soon as is reasonably practicable, and in any event 
by 12pm on 6 March 2017, describe the system the Registered 
Provider is operating in the Acute Medical Unit at Queen 
Alexandra Hospital, which incorporates the GP triage referral 
area and escalation area, so as to comply with the above 
conditions. The trust must send the Care Quality Commission 
an update every two weeks in this respect from the week 
commencing 13 March 2017 at 3pm.  
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Section 31 (Mental Health – issued 12 May 2017) 
1. Ensure sufficient numbers of suitably qualified and competent 

staff in the emergency decision unit in the emergency 
department to provide safe, good quality care to patients with 
mental health problems along with all other patient. Staffing 
levels and skill mix must take into account the acuity of all 
patients in the department at any given time.  
 

2. Ensure that all patients presenting to the emergency 
department with mental health problems receive a full 
assessment of all risks assessment and corresponding risk 
management plan/care plan. 
 

3. Identify, monitor and observe detained and / or high risk 
patients with mental health concerns or vulnerable 
safeguarding issues across the hospital and have oversight of 
the location of these identified and plan of care of patients at all 
times.  
 

4. Ensure there are clearly identified leads for mental health 
provision within the emergency department and acute medical 
unit at all management levels. Ensure that there is executive 
level leadership that has accountability for mental health care, 
safeguarding and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards within the 
hospital.  
 

5. Ensure that Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards are applied as 
per the requirements of Mental Capacity Act, 2005, prior to 
depriving a person of their liberty.  
 

6. Immediately take action to ensure patients are safe. As a 
minimum, deploying sufficient, suitably qualified and 
competent staff and completing robust risk assessments, plans 
and delivering the identified care and treatment for patients 
presenting with mental health issues. The trust must send the 
CQC an update weekly in this respect from the week 
commencing 22nd May 2017  

Actions: 
 

• The Trust continues to meet the CQC requirements to submit weekly 
compliance information in relation to the Section 31 Enforcement Notice 
Conditions. 

• Ligature risk assessments have been completed in ED and on AMU with 
mitigations noted and work plans agreed.    There is a continued plan to 
risk assess key areas across the Trust. 

• MCA and DoLS intensive training Programme (vulnerable adults) 
commenced on 11th September 2017. To date 1,200 staff have been 
trained.  

• A Mental Health and Mental Capacity Board has been established with 
the first meeting having taken place. 

• Engagement with the ACS mental Health improvement plan continues.  
Discussions are under way regarding the changes to the Law relating to 
Section 136. 
 

Exceptions and Risks: 
• The Trust is seeking, from partners, a Trust-wide basic e-learning Mental 

Health awareness course. 
• Reliance on agency staff to provide mental health workforce. 
• The Trust has received the report of the whole system external 

Safeguarding review, commissioned by Portsmouth Safeguarding Adult 
Board.  A thematic analysis is currently underway with a clear plan for 
action to take to Board.  The first meeting of the Portsmouth Children's 
and Adults Board is scheduled to meet on 24th November 2017.  this 
Board will take forward actions and recommendations. 
 

Assurance: 
• System-wide escalation process Standard Operating Procedure in place.  
• Fortnightly system call continues. 
• Weekly Mental Health project meetings continue; working to the Mental 

Health Quality Improvement Plan. 
• Engagement with third sector stakeholder group. 
• Increased and sustained performance with Mental Health Risk 

Assessments for patients attending ED. 
• Continued compliance with safe staffing requirements, balancing staffing 

against patient acuity. 
• Weekly MCA and DoLs audits completed and fed back to teams. 
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Section 29a Warning Notice (re-issued 4 July 2017)  
Themes:  
 
• Privacy & Dignity 

 
• Medication Administration 

 
• Medication storage  

 
• Nursing Care and 

Leadership 
 

• Health and Safety 
 

• Patient confidentiality  
 

• Mixed Sex Accommodation 
 

• Poor documentation – 
patient care  
 

• Poor documentation – 
Incidents  
 

• Medical assessments 
 

• Medical Staff Engagement  
 

• Patient Flow 
 

• Training and Development  
 

• Safeguarding Adults, 
Children and Young People 
 

• Whistle Blowing/ Speak Up 
 

• Governance processes 

Actions: 
• Perfect Care Event taking place in AMU on 28th and 29th November 2017. The aim is to focus on patient care and patient 

safety.  Initiatives taking place will include: 
- A safety huddle.  
- A SWARM team approach to incidents (a number of experts will congregate on AMU to provide analysis and feedback 

learning in the immediate aftermath of any safety incidents). 
- Observations of care. 
- Patients will be shadowed by non-clinical staff to observe care from the patient’s perspective. 
- Allied Health Professionals and Specialist practitioners to assist the clinical teams and patients. 
- A patient safety questionnaire for staff. 
- Feedback of the day’s results. 
- Coaching sessions supported by the Learning and Development team to aid in the implementation of post- perfect 

care learning and change. 
- Evaluation of the programme. 
 

• Appointment of an Associate Chief Nurse to support patient flow, SAFER and Red2Green. The role will also have 
oversight on the prevention of inappropriate patient moves and strengthening ‘getting it right first time’ to improve patient 
flow 

 
• A gap analysis against compliance with the requirements of the Section 29a notice has been completed.  A table top 

exercise to review the evidence has been undertaken with the Chief Executive Officer and Non-Executive Director. As a 
result of this exercise, the gap analysis has been strengthened with additional evidence. This is with the Director of 
Nursing for final approval. 

 
• Weekly audits of 10 ‘hot topics’ instigated to enhance monitoring of areas requiring further improvement. 
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Section 29a Warning Notice (re-issued 4 July 2017)  
Themes:  
 
• Privacy & Dignity 

 
• Medication Administration 

 
• Medication storage  

 
• Nursing Care and 

Leadership 
 

• Health and Safety 
 

• Patient confidentiality  
 

• Mixed Sex Accommodation 
 

• Poor documentation – 
patient care  
 

• Poor documentation – 
Incidents  
 

• Medical assessments 
 

• Medical Staff Engagement  
 

• Patient Flow 
 

• Training and Development  
 

• Safeguarding Adults, 
Children and Young People 
 

• Whistle Blowing/ Speak Up 
 

• Governance processes 

Exceptions and Risks: 
• The gap analysis review has highlighted areas where further assurance and evidence is required to demonstrate 

sustainability of actions implemented. These areas include documentation, care of patients living with dementia, meeting 
nutritional needs of patients, implementation of the new medical model, infection control, safeguarding, governance, 
staffing and medicines management. 
 

 

Assurance: 
• The final version of the Quality Improvement Plan, outlining the next steps of the 5 areas of focus (Valuing the Basics, 

Supporting Vulnerability in Patients, Organisation that Learns, Moving Beyond Safe and Leading Well through Good 
Governance) was published 31st October 2017. A detailed QIP is being finalised to support delivery of the overall plan. 
Responsible leads are currently providing evidence of progress against all actions with a deadline of 30th November 2017. 
 

• The Section 29a gap analysis has identified significant progress in a number of areas. 
 

• CCG review of governance arrangements completed. Draft report received and factual accuracy comments drafted. 
Areas for improvement incorporated within the detailed QIP plan. 
 

• External peer review on child protection in ED, returned a good level of assurance. 
 

• Revised new Board Assurance Framework (BAF) in place, on going external governance review underway. 
 

• CCG Head of Quality now attending final SI panels to provide external scrutiny over process and quality of reports. 
 

• A review of the Resuscitation trolley audit was undertaken following feedback.  The new audit forms are now in use. 
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Section 31 (Diagnostic and Screening procedures – issued 28th July 2017) 
1. The Registered Provider must take evidenced based 

appropriate steps to resolve the backlog of radiology 
reporting using appropriately trained members of staff. This 
must include a clinical review, audit and prioritisation of the 
current backlog of unreported images, (including those 
taken before January 2017); assess impact of harm to 
patients, and apply Duty of Candour to any patient 
adversely affected.  
 

2. The Registered Provider must ensure that they have robust 
processes to ensure any images taken are reported and risk 
assessed in line with Trust policy. 
 

3. The Registered Provider must submit their evidenced based 
decision-making on how the backlog will be addressed to 
the Commission by the 21 August 2017. 
 

4. From 6 September 2017, and on the Wednesday of each 
week after, the Registered Provider must report to the Care 
Quality Commission, NHS Improvement and the NHS 
England Local Area Team: 
- The total number of images remaining in the backlog 

(including unreported images pre-January 2017) shown 
by year of image taken. 

- The current trajectory date of when the backlog 
(including unreported images pre-January 2017) will be 
cleared. 

- The proportion of patients waiting less than the trusts 
KPI for x-rays, CT and MRI. 

- The average waiting time (in days and hours) for a 
reported plain film(excluding GP requests). 

- The average waiting time (in days and hours) for chest 
and abdominal films (excluding GP requests). 

- Number of plain film requests (excluding GP requests). 
- Longest waiting time for a reported radiology plain film 

request. 

Actions: 
• CQC Specialist Inspector has fed back verbally that the data submitted is of a 

high standard, clear and easy to understand. The Inspector has agreed the 
Trust approach adopted related to prioritising of tasks contained within the 
Section 31 notice. 

• CQC Specialist Inspector will contact the Trust to cease reporting of metrics 
certain metrics as these will not change and are not being measured. 

• 13,200 reports issued in total, over  trajectory by 1,300 week ending 12th 
November 2017 and on trajectory to be completed by February 2018. 

• ED reporting backlog cleared back to mid May 2017 with less than 100 events 
left to report in May.  

• 1 undetected cancer subsequently diagnosed.  This has been discussed at 
panel with the outcome of no harm. 

• 3 further Safety Learning Event submissions to assess level of harm on 
misdiagnosed CXRs. 

• 32 further patients have been recalled to ensure infective changes resolved. 
• Chest Infection follow up pathway to be agreed with Respiratory, as this is a 

gap in the current pathway. 
• ED process for follow up yet to be agreed, meeting to be rescheduled. 
• Reporting work list developed from which the reporting radiographer team will 

report the cases. However, most cases, due to age, have been archived off site 
so require manual recall. This is slowing down the reporting. 
 

Risks: 
• The CQC Report into the Radiology visit is due to be published on 1st 

December 2017.  In the report the CQC have cited the plain film backlog and 
three serious incidents.  As noted above, an intensive harm review is being 
undertaken to ensure the safety for all patients for which there was a potential 
risk over a specific time period. 

• Archived cases, time taken to recall imaging, cannot be automated unless at 
cost from PACS supplier. 

• Resource within the team to undertake the required work and improvements.  
• Financial risks involved. 
Assurance: 
• Verbal feedback from the CQC regarding quality of data submission. 
• A full harm review is under way, starting with a retrospective review of 

unreported ED plain film x-rays, which will then move on to audits of potential 
harm in other clinical areas. 
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Quality Improvement Plan (published 31st October 2017) 
Actions: 
 

• The final version of the Quality Improvement Plan (QIP), outlining the next steps of the 5 areas of focus (Valuing the Basics, 
Supporting Vulnerability in Patients, Organisation that Learns, Moving Beyond Safe and Leading Well through Good 
Governance) was published on the 31st October 2017. 

• A detailed QIP is being developed to support delivery of the overall plan. 
 

Quality Improvement Plan update on actions: 
 

• Responsible leads have provided an update against their actions with a deadline of 30th November 2017. 
• There are a total of 22 actions within the QIP which have a deadline of 31st November, of these 13 have been completed, 4 are 

on track for completion to the deadline.   5 actions are not on track to meet the deadline review of these is underway to 
determine a revised deadline. 

Quality Improvement Plan – Actions with deadline of 31st November 2017 

Theme Actions due 
30.11.17 

Actions 
complete 

Action 
on track 

Action not 
on track Comments for actions not on track 

Valuing the 
Basics 3 2 0 1 

Action 1.1 (4):  Embedding of the principles of ‘1000 days to die’.  The Trust is in the process of 
developing a robust urgent care transformation plan and a delivery structure.  An initial meeting, chaired 
by the Chief Operating Officer (COO), has taken place.  There has been the recruitment of an Associate 
Director of Nursing – Operations to support the delivery of the plan.  The extension to the deadline is 
currently being discussed with the COO. 

Supporting 
Vulnerability 

in patient 
4 2 2 0 Nothing to note. 

Organisation 
that Learns 6 3 1 2 

Action 3.1 (3): Appointment of Freedom to Speak up Guardian.  Interviews have been arranged for the 
19th December 2017. The deadline for this action has been extended to 31st December 2017 to allow for 
the recruitment process. 
Action: 3.2 (4.2):  NHS Improvement culture and leadership programme.  A session with the Trust Board 
has been deferred to the January 2018 Board Workshop.  The deadline for this action has been 
extended to 31st January 2018. 

Moving 
Beyond Safe 6 4 0 2 

Action 4.1 (2): Please refer to action 1.1 (4) above (valuing the basics).  
Action: 4.4 (1):  SOP ratified and implemented for patient placement for use by the Operations team.  An 
initial mapping meeting has taken place with a further meeting planned for the 1st December 2017 to 
clarify the next steps prior to the SOP creation.  A revised deadline will be determined at that meeting. 

Good 
Governance 3 2 1 0 Nothing to note. 97
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Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 11/30/2017 

Care Quality Commission update 
Children and Young People’s Survey 2016 
 

• The results of the 2016 children and young people’s survey were published on 28th November.  These results show that the majority of children and young 
people who stayed in hospital overnight or were seen as a day case patient were happy with the care they received. 

• Each trust has been categorised into one of five bands: ‘much worse than expected’, ‘worse than expected’, ‘about the same, ‘better than expected’ or 
‘much better than expected’.  Trusts were categorised into two bands; one for experiences of children aged 15 days to 7 years and one for children and 
young people aged 8 to 15. 

• The Trust was identified as about the same for aged 0-7 years category and as ‘worse than expected’ for the experiences of children aged 15. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
• The Trust was pleased to have participated in the National Children and Young People Inpatient and Day Case survey to help us better understand what our 

children and young people, and their families, experience when using our services. 
 

• The survey is an important method of feedback and supports our own sources of information such as the Friends and Family test questionnaire and our 
‘Elephant’ survey.  We are pleased to see some of the really positive feedback, but also disappointed that some of our patients tell us we could do much 
better. 
 

• We are already working hard to make improvements, particularly related to play, communication and privacy.  We hold regular parent/carer open events to 
ensure we strive for continuous improvement.  In addition, following feedback received from young people, and with a kind donation from parents, we have 
turned one of our playrooms into a room specifically for the older children we care for and the playroom has specific games and activities for them.  The 
Paediatric Unit is also partnering with the Scouts and Scout leaders who regularly visit the wards and participate in activities with the older children.     
 

• We have also partnered with the University of Portsmouth and will be holding a surgical familiarisation drop-in event using the theatre simulation suite at the 
University. In addition to offering a wide range of fun activities, the event will allow children who have planned surgery at Queen Alexandra Hospital to 
experience what they will encounter with they visit the Operating Department.  They will be able to interact with some of the equipment and will also be able 
to ask questions.  Portsmouth Hospital NHS Trust is totally committed to providing our children and young people consistent outstanding care at all times 
and will continue to look for ways to improve their experiences with us. 
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Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 11/30/2017 

Care Quality Commission update 
CQC Engagement meetings 
• The next quarterly engagement meeting with the CQC is scheduled to take place on Wednesday 20th December 2017. 
• The CQC have provided a ‘Provider Engagement Record Tool’.  This new document is designed to inform the discussions at the engagement meeting using 

intelligence from the CQC Insight Dashboard, information from the public, inspection findings and Trust action plans.  This document is currently being 
worked through. 
 

CQC Insight Dashboard 
• The CQC Insight Dashboard is used to monitor potential changes to the quality of care provided and brings together in one place the information the CQC 

hold about services.   
• CQC inspectors will check the Insight Dashboard regularly. If it suggests an improvement or decline in the quality of care for a service, the CQC may follow 

this up between inspections, ask for further information or discuss during the regular engagement management meetings. The CQC may also decide at their 
internal planning meeting to re-inspect that service; if there are significant concerns they may carry out a focused inspection. 

• The November dashboard demonstrates: 
- The current composite indicator score is similar to other acute trusts that were more likely to be rated as requires improvement. 
- Outliers, Trust-wide and core service indicators: 

There are currently 0 active outliers for maternity and 3 for mortality. For maternity 0 are with the panel and 0 are with the regional team. For mortality 1 
are with the panel and 2 are with the regional team. 

- The Trust is reported as 1 indicated being much better than when compared nationally, 3 improvements, 2 much worse than when compared nationally 
and 3 deteriorations in performance. 

- 37 indicators have been compared to data from 12 months previous; 3 have shown an improvement and 3 have shown a decline (as noted below): 
Much better compared 
nationally: 
• Sick days for medical 

and dental staff.  Set 
target 3.5% - Trust 
performance 0.99% 
(July ’16 – June ‘17). 

Improved: 
• Deaths in Low-Risk 

Diagnosis Groups 
• Flu vaccination 

uptake. 
• NRLS - Proportion of 

reported patient. 

Much worse compared nationally: 
• Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) - 

113.9 (April ‘16 – March ’17).   
The Trust rate for the period August ‘16 – July ‘17 is 
111.5.  Although this is a reduction in the rate noted 
within the dashboard, with a confidence interval of 
106.7 - 116.5 this is significantly higher than 
expected,  An improvement in the last two individual 
months for HSMR performance has been seen, 
which may reflect the work in progress to cleanse the 
classification of data. The 12 month rolling trend data 
demonstrates a recent improvement and is a more 
accurate indicator than monthly data. 

• Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (Weekday) – 
115.4 (April ‘16 – March ‘17). 

The Trust rate for the  period August ‘16 – July ‘17 is 
110.8. 

Declined: 
• Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (Weekday) 

Please see previous comment. 
• NRLS - Consistency of reporting.  

It is thought that this indicator relates to the frequency of reporting 
incidents to the NRLS.  Some organisations report daily, whereas 
the Trust reports these on a less regular basis.  However, a new 
appointment has been made to the Risk team which will enable 
more frequent upload.  Performance, as noted in the dashboard 
remains about the same as other organisations. 

• Patient-led assessment of environment for dementia care. 
The Trust scored 77.2% an increase against the national average 
of 76.71%.  In 2016 the Trust scored 87.06%, an increase against 
the national average of 75%.  It is worth noting that the criteria for 
2017 was amended.  In 2017 all wards, including paediatrics and 
maternity were required to be reviewed rather than just the two 
MOPRS wards required in 2016. 99



 
 

  
         
 
TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017    Agenda Item Number: 222/17 
            Enclosure Number: (4) 

Subject: Quality Performance Report to the Trust Board  
(October 2017 position) 

Prepared by: 
   Sponsored & Presented by: 

Annie Green, Head of Risk Management 
Theresa Murphy, Interim Director of Nursing 

Purpose of paper 
 

This report updates the Trust Board on significant incidents.  

Discussion requested by Trust Board 
Regular Reporting 
For Information / Awareness 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet point 
format the main points and key 
issues that the Trust Board 
members should focus on 
including conclusions and 
proposals 

Trust Board is asked to consider alongside the Integrated 
Performance Report.  

SIRI summary – October 2017 
· A total of 17 SIRIs were reported in October; 3 breaches of DTA 

and 14 clinical SIRIs one of which was a ‘Never Event’: 
- 1 x avoidable level 3 hospital acquired pressure damage. 

(a) 
- 1 x unexpected death post fall. (b) 
- 1 x failure to re-sample for INR test, potentially contributing 

to subsequent stroke. (c) 
- 1 x multiple patients requiring mental health intervention in 

ED. (d) 
- 1 x fall resulting in subdural haemorrhage contributing to 

death. (e) 
- 1 x death as a result of catastrophic bleed 10 days post 

tongue and neck dissection. (f) 
- 1 x unexpected death potential self administered 

unintentional overdose. (g) 
- 1 x Delayed hepatology follow up impacting on palliative 

options. (h) 
- 1 x failure to follow up abnormal x-ray resulting in 

widespread metastatic disease. (i) 
- 1 x piece of tubing discovered during c-section from 

procedure in 2016 Never Event (j) 
- 1 x delayed treatment for glaucoma resulting in visual field 

damage. (k) 
- 1 x unexpected admission to ITU following haemorrhage 

post bladder repair. (l) 
- 1 x incomplete vulval biopsy excision impacting on 

treatment options. (m) 
- 1 x death of patient under Section 5 (2). (n) 

 
This compares to 12 clinical SIRIs reported in September. 
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· Of the 14 clinical SIRIs reported in October; all patients or 
relatives, where applicable or appropriate, were informed of the 
incident and are aware of the on-going investigation. 

· 208 SIRIs remain open on STEIS (Compared with 204 in August), 
144 of these are Breaches of DTA. 
- 90 SIRIs are in the process of investigation within the Trust (49 

DTA breaches).  
- 9 clinical SIRIs and 1 Formal Ambulance Divert have had their 

investigation completed and the reports have been submitted 
to the Commissioner for their review and sign off, all of these 
are awaiting closure by the CCG. 

- 2 events on completion of investigation were agreed with the 
CCG to be downgraded from SIRI status.  These were; a 
potential delayed treatment reported in July within the 
Emergency Medicine CSC and an avoidable pressure damage 
event reported in September within Renal CSC, now deemed 
unavoidable. 

  
 November 2017 

As of 13 November, 6 Clinical SIRIs have been confirmed. 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that are 
to be considered and any 
decisions required 

Trust Board is asked to note the report and feedback any areas of 
concern or where further information is required. 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

This quality report forms part of the Integrated Performance Report 
and will continue to be submitted for information on a monthly basis. 

Consideration of legal issues 
(including Equality Impact 
Assessment)?     

Potential for clinical negligence claims in relation to events 
b,c,e,h,i,j,k,l,m detailed above 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

None – private report. 

 
 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance Framework / 
Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities Organisational priority 1:  Deliver safe, high quality patient centered care. 
Organisational priority 2:  Continually improve the patient experience. 

Board Assurance Framework / 
Risk Register Reference 

 

Risk Description  

CQC Reference All domains 
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Committees/Meetings at which paper has been approved: Date 

None  
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Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation  
Monthly Update – October 2017 

 
This report aims to provide the Trust Board with assurance that serious incidents requiring investigation 
(SIRI’s) including Never Events are identified, reported, investigated fully and lessons learnt across Portsmouth 
Hospitals NHS Trust. The Trust approach to SIRI’s is to be open and transparent and to use incidents as an 
opportunity for the Trust to learn and improve care for patients. 

 
Current SIRI Position 2016/17 

SIRI Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct 
New 

 11** 9 15*** 40 94 115 55 58# 19 9” 16 45* 17 

Under 
investigation Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 5 11 5 16 45* 17 

Submitted  to 
CCG 11 8 15 40 94 115 55 53 18 4 Nil Nil Nil 

Closed by 
CCG 11 8 15 38 92 114 1 1 1 2 Nil Nil Nil 

** reported as 12 in October and November reports however one event was downgraded from SIRI status 
following completion of the investigation. 
*** reported as 16 in December, January and February reports however one event was downgraded from 
SIRI status following completion of the investigation. 
# reported as 60 in June report however two events downgraded from SIRI status following receipt of the 
post mortem report or completion of the investigation. 
“reported as 11 in July report however two events downgraded from SIRI status; 1 following receipt of the 
post mortem report and one on completion of investigation. 
* reported as 46 in September, report however one event was downgraded from SIRI status following 
completion of the investigation. 
 
Current Never Event Position 2016/17 

Never Event Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct 
New Nil Nil 2 Nil Nil 1 Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 Nil 1 
Under 
investigation Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 Nil 1 

Submitted in 
month to 
CCG 

NA NA 2 NA NA Nil 1 NA NA NA Nil Nil Nil 

Closed by 
CCG NA NA 2 NA NA Nil Nil NA NA NA Nil Nil Nil 

 
New incidents in October 
During October 17 Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI’s) have been reported; 3 breaches of DTA 
target and 14 clinical incidents. The table below provides information on those clinical events reported this 
month, initial grading and the due date for submission of the investigation report to Fareham and Gosport 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). 
Incident date 
Datix/STEIS 
number and 
date reported 
CSC/Ward 

Incident Summary Immediate actions 
taken 

Initial 
Grading 

Date due for 
Submission 

to CCG 
Patient 

outcome 

15/09/2017 
32554 

Hospital acquired 
level 3 pressure 

All preventative 
strategies in place. 

Severe 22.12.2017 Patient 
discharged 
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Incident date 
Datix/STEIS 
number and 
date reported 
CSC/Ward 

Incident Summary Immediate actions 
taken 

Initial 
Grading 

Date due for 
Submission 

to CCG 
Patient 

outcome 

2017/24260 
02/10/2017 
Renal 

damage Investigation 
commenced 

home 

01/10/2017 
32703 
2017/24455 
04/10/2017 
MOPRS 

Unexpected death of 
patient post fall. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Death 26.12.2017 Patient died 

22/09/2017 
32628 
2017/24723 
06/10/2017 
Clinical Support/ 
Pathology 

An under-filled 
sample for an INR 
test on a patient on 
warfarin was not 
flagged to the 
warfarin clinic for re-
sampling. 
Subsequently the 
patient was admitted 
suffering from a 
stroke. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Severe 
harm 

28.12.2017 Patient 
subsequently 
died 

29/09/2017 
32567 
2017/24730 
06/10/2017 
Clinical Support  

Multiple patients in 
ED requiring Mental 
Health intervention 
causing extreme 
pressure on the 
department 

Investigation 
commenced 

No Harm 28.12.2017 No harm to 
any patient or 
member of 
staff. 

16/07/2017 
27815 
2017/25043 
11/10/2017 
Medicine 

Unwitnessed 
inpatient fall resulting 
in subdural 
haemorrhage, 
contributing to 
patient's death. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Death 02.01.2018 Patient died. 

11/10/2017 
33320 
2017/25390 
16/10/2017 
Head & Neck 

Patient death as a 
result of catastrophic 
bleed from 
tracheostomy site 10 
days post tongue & 
neck disection. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Death 05.01.2018 Patient died. 

26/05/2017 
32709 
2017/25358 
16/10/2017 
Medicine 

Post mortem result 
indicated patient died 
potentially from self 
administered 
opiates. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Death 05.01.2018 Patient died. 

27/09/2017 
32860 
2017/25366 
16/10/2017 
Medicine 

Delay in hepatology 
outpatient follow-up 
appointment. Patient 
died whilst on the 
OWL of liver 
carcinoma. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Death 05.01.2018 Patient died. 
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Incident date 
Datix/STEIS 
number and 
date reported 
CSC/Ward 

Incident Summary Immediate actions 
taken 

Initial 
Grading 

Date due for 
Submission 

to CCG 
Patient 

outcome 

02/08/2014 
33175 
2017/25517 
17/10/2017 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Abnormal chest x-ray 
findings in 2014 not 
followed up - CT in 
2017 showed 
widespread 
metastatic disease 

Patient undergoing 
palliative treatment.  
Investigation 
commenced. 

Severe 
Harm 

08.01.2018 Patient being 
treated as 
outpatient. 

17/10/2017 
33621 
2017/26037 
23/10//2017 
Surgery & 
Cancer/CHAT 

Never Event- at end 
of elective C-section 
20/10/2017, noted 
that the patient had a 
mass embedded in 
the adhesions 
around the umbilicus 
found to be a 3cm 
piece of excel port 
tubing. 
Patient underwent 
robotic (hemi-
colectomy) in August 
2016, believed 
tubing remained in 
the patient from this 
procedure. 

Mass removed and 
patient reassured. 
Investigation 
commenced 

Moderate 
Harm 

12.01.2018 Patient 
discharged 
with follow up. 

12/10/2017 
33700 
2017/26059 
23/10/2017 
Head & Neck 

Glaucoma treatment 
delayed for 11 
months resulting in 
irreversible 
peripheral visual field 
damage 

Investigation 
commenced 

Severe 
Harm 

12.01.2018 Patient 
undergoing 
treatment as 
out patient. 

15/09/2017 
31772 
2017/25971 
23/10/2017 
Women & 
Children/A5-6 

Complex patient had 
surgery in which 
bladder damage was 
detected, escalated 
and repaired by the 
urology team; 
subsequently 
sustained a massive 
haemorrhage 
requiring unexpected 
admission to ICU. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Severe 
Harm 

12.01.2018 Patient 
discharged 
home with 
follow up. 

25/08/2017 
33417 
2017/25950 
23/10/2017 
Women & 
Children/A5-6 
 

Patient underwent 
vulval biopsy 
excision by 
generalist 
gynaecologist – 
biopsy has positive 
margins impacting 
on treatment options 
and potential impact 

Investigation 
commenced 

Severe 
Harm 

12.01.2018 Patient  
undergoing 
treatment as 
out patient. 
 
 
 
 
. 
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Incident date 
Datix/STEIS 
number and 
date reported 
CSC/Ward 

Incident Summary Immediate actions 
taken 

Initial 
Grading 

Date due for 
Submission 

to CCG 
Patient 

outcome 

on outcome. 
23/10/2017 
34047 
2017/26523 
27/10/2017 
Head & Neck/ 
D8 

Patient died under 
section 5 (2) - CQC 
notified. 

Investigation 
commenced 

Death 18.01.2018 Patient died 

 
Incidents under investigation in October 
94 SIRI’s remain under investigation (49 DTA breaches).   
There are currently nine SIRIs which have exceeded the target date of 60 working days (03 August, 14 August 
x 2, 28 September, 06 October, 12 October, 26 October, 27 October and 30 October) for submission to the 
Commissioners.  One has an extension approved by the Commissioners, one cannot be investigated until 
police investigation is complete, one has been requested to be removed as a SIRI; of the six without agreed 
extensions, five sit within Medicine CSC and one within Emergency Medicine. 
 
Reports submitted to Commissioner in October. 
The Trust completed, closed and submitted 1 Formal Ambulance Divert report and 9 clinical SIRI investigation 
reports to the CCG during October.  The following actions were identified as a result of the completed clinical 
investigations: 
 

2017/19058 
28770 Actions In month update 

C.Difficile on part 1 of 
death certificate. 

NA NA 

2017/12008 
23264 Actions In month update 

Inadvertent injection of air 
in the patient’s coronary 
artery with consequent 
cardiac arrest. 

1. SOP for setting up will be written and 
disseminated to the teams.   
This SOP will include a pause point 
prior to injection to ensure that ANY 
concerns by ANY team member can 
be voiced and addressed before 
continuation of the procedure. 

2. Reiterate to cardiology teams that 
patients undergoing procedures in the 
Cath Lab should receive sedation that 
results in conscious sedation.  Under 
ideal conditions a dedicated member 
of staff should be observing the 
patient. 

3. Guidelines will be drawn up to be 
used in the event of an abnormal 
waveform to formalise the steps 
required to address and rectify any 
abnormal waveforms. 

4. Discussions in progress with Oxford 

1. Completed 
2. Completed 
3. Completed 
4. Completed 
5. Completed 
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cath labs as they already have this 
protocol in place then for discussion 
with PHT simulation team. 

5. Discuss with all teams about the 
importance of incident reporting, 
especially in relation to near misses 
and improve compliance. 

2017/19009 
28254 

 
Actions In month update 

Hospital acquired level 3 
pressure damage to the 
left leg from lying on flexi 
seal. 

1. Improve overall assessment of skin 
integrity and Braden to ensure that 
effective body mapping, care planning and 
delivery of care specifically meets every 
patient’s need. 

2. Empower staff to ask for support when 
managing complex patients and ensure 
that they remain accountable for care 
delivery. 

3. Flexi seal – staff were not fully briefed in 
relation to the management and ongoing 
care of a flexi seal – staff must feel 
empowered to seek advice if they are 
uncertain about a practice that they have 
no previous knowledge of – Matron to 
undertake focussed sessions with staff. 

1. Completed and ongoing 
2. Completed and ongoing 
3. Completed and ongoing 

 

2017/17588 
26363 

 
Actions In month update 

Hospital acquired level 3 
pressure damage to 
sacrum. 

1. New Matron to work closely with team 
(started 5th Sept 2017) and support 
ongoing staff development. 

2. Work with TVN team to improve skin 
integrity assessment on ward. 

3. Ward staff to request assistance from 
expert TVN team wherever there is 
uncertainty related to a wound or its 
management. 

4. Documentation month – ward to focus on 
documentation. 
Involve Practice Educators in reviewing 
care plans and supporting overall 
improvement. 

 

1. Completed and ongoing 
2. Completed and ongoing 
3. Completed and ongoing 
4. Completed and ongoing 

  

2017/18629 
22444 Actions In month update 

Inappropriate discharge 
and failure to identify a 
deteriorating patient 

1. Review of the Trust admissions policy for 
elderly, frail patients who do not have an 
apparent fracture. 

2. Share learning from investigation with 
trainees and other team members involved. 

3. Update staff on the escalation policy for 
abnormal observations and raised Early 

1. End December 2017 
2. End February 2018 
3. End December 2017 
4. End December 2017 
5. End December 2017 
6. End December 2017 
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Warning Score. 
4. Focused training for staff on recording the 

apical rate and radial pulse for patients with 
atrial fibrillation. – Watch out notice and 
FY1 doctors to receive training on 
management of atrial fibrillation. 

5. T&O to review senior cover of all T&O 
inpatients. 

6. Drug charts must not be used if they have 
expired and have no space for nursing staff 
to sign for administration of medication 

2017/16238 
26041 

 
Actions In month update 

Inpatient fall resulting in 
fractured left hip. 

1. Case to be shared with the physiotherapy 
team, to improve communication of relevant 
findings during assessment.  

2. Pharmacy to discuss ‘drugs & falls’ with 
ward teams. 

1. Completed  
2. Completed 

2017/12716 
23679 

 
Actions In month update 

Inpatient fall resulting in 
fractured left hip. 

1. AMU to share updated action plan and 
complete further training on lying and 
standing blood pressure. 

2. Ongoing work, to be led by the Chief of 
Service about moving patients after 2200. 

3. Both CSCs to continue with falls education 
programme and ECO refresher training. 

4. AMU and Medicine to share learning from 
event via governance communication 
processes (team brief, news letter and 
watch out poster). 

1. Ongoing 
2. Ongoing 
3. End of November 
4. Completed. 

2017/18806 
28181 

 
Actions In month update 

Hospital acquired level 3 
pressure damage to 
sacrum. 

1. Review of all patients with Matron and 
Senior Nurse to ensure that patients with 
potential skin damage were having 
appropriate care. This was completed 
within days of the pressure ulcer being 
identified. 

2. To complete safety learning poster to 
explain the importance of reflecting the 
patient’s risk factors when undertaking the 
Braden score and evidencing 
interventions implemented to reduce the 
risk of a patient developing pressure 
damage. 
This was completed at the outset of the 
investigation and circulated to the rest of 
the CSC and logged at Ward Leaders 
meeting. 

3. An audit to be undertaken weekly on 5 

1. Completed 
2. Completed 
3. Completed and ongoing 
4. Completed and ongoing 
5. Completed 
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patients to check compliance with the 
accuracy of the Braden score and that the 
patients care plan reflects the care being 
provided. To review the audit results and 
provide feedback to team on immediate 
actions required, learning identified or 
good practice. 

4. Nursing team made aware that each 
patient’s plan of care to be completed by a 
Registered Nurse-compliance with this to 
be monitored via the weekly audit.  

5. All staff to be made aware of the need for 
review and action if bruising is noted on 
any patient, along with an investigation as 
to how this has occurred, including a SLE 
and potential safeguarding referral. 

2017/11755 
20881 

 
Actions In month update 

Undiagnosed 
cardiomyopathy 
decompensated peri-
operatively leading to 
multiple cardiac arrests 
following the end of 
surgery 

1. Training on routine CXR interpretation for 
surgical trainees and teams. 

2. Watch out poster on the process of 
reporting of imaging requests. 

3. Each CSC to review roles and 
responsibilities of clinicians who request 
radiological investigations. 

4. Training on ECG interpretation for 
relevant groups assessing patients pre-
operatively. 

5. Trust email from Medical Director 
requiring that ECG’s requested should all 
be signed and dated when reviewed and 
document the outcomes of all 
investigations in the patient notes with the 
date and time. 

6. SOP to be developed and disseminated to 
clinical areas requesting ECG’s via 
specialty governance groups. Implement 
SOP in all areas of the Trust. 

7. Design Watch Out Safety notice on the 
requirement to review ECG’s with 
example of the ECG and implications of 
not recognizing the relevant changes 
demonstrated. 

8. Review and amend pre -operative 
assessment paperwork/ Proforma’s to 
include ‘Family History’ section. 

9. Trust email from Medical Director 
reminding all clinicians of GMC good 
medical practice guidance (21 & 44).  To 
include in Trust Induction. 

10. To be presented at:- 
· Patient Story to Trust Board 
· Patient Safety Group 

1. Completed and ongoing 
2. End November 2017 
3. Completed 
4. End December 2017 
5. Completed 
6. End February 2018 
7. Completed 
8. Completed 
9. Completed 
10. End November 2017 
11. End December 2017 
12. Completed 
13. Completed. 
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· CSC Governance leads to disseminate 
learning  

11. Use the case and lessons learnt as an 
index case scenario for training staff on 
human factors. Communication, 
handovers, situational awareness and 
task (clinical) fixation are specific factors 
to highlight. 

12. Dissemination of learning points and 
discussion relevant lessons for teams. 

13. Debrief arranged for  staff involved and 
share the report with all the staff members 
involved in the incident via their immediate 
line managers, educational supervisors 
and governance leads. 

 

110



 
 

TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017               Agenda Item Number: 223/17 
        Enclosure Number: (5) 

Subject: Examples of Learning from Complaints 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Marion Brown, Head of Complaints & PALS 

Theresa Murphy, Interim Director of Nursing 

Purpose of paper Following the publication of the Mid Staffordshire Inquiry report, NHS 
Commissioners recommended that ‘actual’ examples of complaints 
are taken to Trust Boards to ensure that they have an awareness of 
what people are saying and how the Trust is responding and 
improving as a result of negative patient feedback.  

The two examples of complaints describe how a negative issue has 
been turned into a positive which will in turn help to improve our 
patients’ experience in the future.   

The complaints are in line with the CQC requirements, describe in 
the 5 domains (that services are Safe, Effective, Caring, Responsive 
and Well led). 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

The Board are asked to consider the complaints and the Trust’s 
responses: 

Complaint 1: Family unhappy that they were not offered a private 
room prior to their relative passing and also a delay in obtaining the 
relevant paperwork to register the death, causing the relatives 
unnecessary distress. 

Domain:       Caring, Responsive and Well led 
Improvements as a result of Complaint: 

· The details of this complaint were shared with the whole 
Team for learning purposes and to remind them of the 
importance of ensuring privacy and dignity for patient’s who 
are nearing the end of their life and allow their relatives to 
have privacy and support at such a difficult time.  Practice 
Educator will also ensure that the learning from this is 
discussed on study/training days for staff. 

· As a result of this complaint a more robust process has been 
put in place for doctors to attend the Bereavement Office to 
sign death certificates.  In future if the required paperwork is 
not signed within 48 hours then a new escalation process will 
be used by staff.  

Actions already implemented. 
Complaint 2: Patient unhappy with the process in outpatient clinic, 
leading to long delays.  Describing poor environment with door signs 
and noticeboards not updated. 

Domain:        Responsive, Effective and Well Lead  
Improvements as a result of Complaint: 

· This area is undergoing extensive renovation, with two new 
television screens being installed to help accommodate 
patients and visitors in waiting area.   

· Staff have been reminded to ensure that information on 
notice boards are regularly updated.  

· Feedback from this complaint has been shared with the 
Senior Management Team to ensure that this is used to 111



inform those leading on the renovation of this area. 
Actions already undertaken in part, but further renovation is 
still underway. 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

This paper is for information and to inform discussion. 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

Any action required or recommendations from the Board will be fed 
back to the Head of Complaints & PALS to liaise with the Senior 
Management Team at the Clinical Service Centres involved in the 
complaint. 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

This paper provides an assurance to the public that the Trust is 
eager to respond and learn from patient feedback. 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities N/A 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference N/A 

Risk Description N/A 

CQC Reference Regulation 16:  Receiving and acting on complaints 

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

N/A  
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COMPLAINT 1 
 

COMPLAINTS/PALS  

CONTACT SHEET 

Name of contact Mrs Sarah Cursons 
52 Rosebury Avenue 
Cosham 
PO6 2PZ 
Mob: 07884 837754 
Tel: 02392 388141 

Date / time of contact  30 August 2017 

Method of contact Tel  ÿ 
In person X 

Complaints/PALS Team handler Jane Dunning 

Summary of contact: 

Patient: 
 
Mr Terence Martin 
Dob: 29/3/43 
Dod: 28/8/17 
NHS: 420 045 2146 
 

Mrs Cursons came to the PALS desk today as she wanted to make a complaint about the 
way her father was treated before he passed away and also a problem they have had 
since getting the relevant paperwork. 

She explained that a few days before he passed away, he was on Renal Outpatients in a 
bed in a bay, he was informed with his family present that he only had days left to live and 
that they would find him somewhere comfortable on a ward.  The family were told to go 
ahead to the ward which they did, but when Mr Martin did not turn up after about 20 
minutes, they went back looking for him and he had been left in the corridor, upset and 
distressed and still reeling from the news he had been given.  Mrs Cursons commented 
on this and so a member of staff pushed the bed back into the Bay he had been in 
whereby there was a HCSW who commented “what’s he doing here?” loudly.  She feels 
this is unacceptable, she showed no empathy and she feels that this compromised his 
privacy and dignity being treated in this way. 

He was later taken to G9 where he was only allowed two visitors at a time and his 
grandson was unable to visit due to his age, they were unable as a family to spend time 
all together in his last few days and were not offered a private room.  It was not until they 
mentioned their predicament to a doctor that he organised for him to have somewhere 
private and said that this should have been offered to the family previously. 

Mr Martin passed away early hours of Monday 28 August and they received a call on 
Tuesday from Bereavement Services advising that they were waiting for a doctor to come 
to sign the death certificate, they have only just today (31 August) been able to get this, 
they were told that a doctor did come previously but was unable to sign it for some 
reason.  Mrs Cursons is not happy with this delay and says that this is totally 
unacceptable that the doctor took so long to go to the department to sign it.  They would 113



like to know why it took so long and want to stress how much unnecessary stress this has 
put on them.  They explained that they have five days to register a death which is 
tomorrow so this has been causing them further stress at an already upsetting time. 

 

 

Complaints / PALS ref no.  

Action required Log new complaint/PALS case ÿ 

Info to add to current investigation  ÿ 

Call back/Arrange meeting  ÿ 

Other     ÿ 

No action required   ÿ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

114



 
RESPONSE COMPLAINT 1 
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COMPLAINT 2 
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RESPONSE COMPLAINT 2 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017 Agenda Item Number: 224/17 
Enclosure Number: (6) 

Subject: Board Assurance Framework 

Sponsored & Presented by: Peter Mellor, Director of Corporate Affairs 

Purpose of paper To provide the Trust Board with a monthly update of the Board 
Assurance Framework. 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

Trust Board are asked to note the updated actions – the dates of 
which are highlighted in ‘yellow within the document and the Risk 
number and any change in Rating detailed below. 

BAF 2 - Information management & technology 

BAF 4 – Organisational strategy 

BAF 5 - Organisational culture 

BAF 6 - Skills & knowledge 

BAF 8 – Capital deficit 

BAF 10 - Mental health skills & resources 

BAF 11 - Emergency preparedness & resilience – rating decreased 
from 15 to 12 

BAF 13 - Organisational improvement 

BAF 14 – Governance systems 

BAF 15 - Recruitment & retention 

BAF 16 – Non-employed staff 

BAF 20 – Support functions 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

· Review the Assurance Framework and consider requirement
for further assurance on actions related to significant risks

· Determine any further assurance required on any aspect of
the  Framework

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

Any decisions with regard to the severity and/or removal of the risks 
will be actioned as appropriate and presented at Trust Board. 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

None 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

None 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities All 

Board Assurance Framework/ N/A 120



Risk Register Reference 

Risk Description N/A 

CQC Reference Well Led, Safe 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 
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The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is a process and document via which the Trust Board can record and oversee the management of risks 
to the achievement of the Trust’s corporate strategic objectives and priorities.   The Trust’s priorities for 2017/18 are set out at page 2.  Risks 
to delivery of those objectives are summarised at page 3, and the Board Assurance Framework begins at page 4. 

The BAF is an essential tool in the delivery of corporate objectives, and is reviewed formally at the Trust Board’s meetings on a quarterly basis.  
It is used more frequently by the Trust’s Executive Directors and senior leaders in the operational management of the Trust.  The actions set 
out in the BAF and allocated to Executive Directors are included in individuals’ objectives.  Updates to the action plans described in the BAF are 
sought every quarter prior to the BAF’s presentation to the Trust Board.   

Operational risks managed via the Trust risk register may also have an impact on delivery of corporate objectives.  Where there are relevant 
risks scoring 15 or more on the Trust risk register, these are indicated on the BAF below. 

The risks set out in the BAF are rated according to the matrix set out below, which is in common usage across the NHS and adapted from 
AS/NZS 4360:1999, a globally recognised standard for risk measurement and management.  Impact score x likelihood score = risk rating. 

Likelihood score 
Rare Unlikely Moderate Likely Certain 

Im
pa

ct
 sc

or
e 
Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 
Minor 2 4 6 8 10 
Serious 3 6 9 12 15 
Major 4 8 12 16 20 
Catastrophic 5 10 15 20 25 

Further information about the risk rating matrix and examples of circumstances in which different ratings will apply can be found in the Trust’s 
Risk Management Strategy.  The objective of effective risk management is to bring risk ratings down to a level which the Trust can tolerate (the 
target rating). 

Key to abbreviations and colour codes used in BAF action plans 
Abbreviation Colour code 
CEO Chief Executive Officer COO Chief Operating Officer Complete Action completed 
DoN Director of Nursing DUC Director of Urgent Care On track Action on track for completion by due date 
DoF Director of Finance MD Medical Director At risk Minor threat to completion by due date / minimal delay 
DHR Director of Human 

Resources 
DCA Director of Corporate 

Affairs 
Overdue Action not completed by due date 
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Corporate Priority 
1: Deliver safe, high quality, patient centred care (PS) 
1a Reducing level of HSMR 
1b Increasing Safety Thermometer of harm free care 
1b i Improved timeliness of identification and treatment for sepsis in ED and admission areas 
1b ii Minimising the number of hospital acquired grade 3 and 4 pressure ulcers 
1b iii Reducing level of medication incidents 
2: Continually improve the patient experience (PE) 
2a Ensure patient experience is not compromised by limited capacity (Inc. ambulance holds and patient moves) 
2b Achieve quality & safety metrics as outlined in Urgent Care Improvement Plan 
2c Achieve positive patient experience through full engagement with families, carers and patients 
2d Maintenance of compliance with CQC regulations 
3: Ensure delivery of national constitutional standards (CS) 
3a Achieve 4 hour A&E performance target 
3b Meet the referral to treatment waiting time 
3c Cancer pathway targets are met 
3d Achieve the diagnostic procedure wait target 
3e Reduction in delayed transfers of care 
3f Meet the SAFER target for the percentage of patients discharged by midday seven days a week 
4: Create a healthy organisational culture where staff report they are well led and have high levels of satisfaction working in the trust (OC) 
4a National staff survey results place the Trust in the top 20% for staff engagement 
4b National staff survey results show an improvement in the number of staff reporting bullying and harassment 
4c Achievement of race equality standard 
4d Demonstrate an improvement in the CQC for the well-led domain for leadership and culture 
4e Develop strategies to ensure hard to recruit to roles are filled 
5: Achieve financial health and sustainability (FH) 
5a Delivery of income and expenditure control total 
5b Delivery of cost improvement programme 
5c Management of cash within agreed limits 
5d Management of capital resources within limits in line with business plan objectives 
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No Ref RISK SUMMARY Objective affected Lead Prevailing rating 
PS PE CS OC FH Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

1 BAF1 Urgent Care, Quality, Performance and Patient flow ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ COO 20 
2 BAF2 The Trust’s ICT systems do not provide adequate support for delivery of Trust objectives ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ DHR 20 
3 BAF3 There is a lack of attention to basic, compassionate care in some parts of the Trust ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ DoN 16 
4 BAF4 The Trust’s organisational and clinical strategies are poorly defined ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ CEO 16 
5 BAF5 Organisational culture does not support efficient, effective operation ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ DHR 16 
6 BAF6 Take up of mandatory and other important training is below target ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ DHR 16 

7 BAF7 Some key external partnerships / collaborations fail to provide support for and/or obstruct 
delivery of the Trust’s objectives and priorities ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ CEO 16 

8 BAF8 Demand for capital spending in the Trust exceeds capital sums available ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ DoF 16 
9 BAF9 Demand for radiology services exceeds radiological capacity ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ COO 15 

10 BAF10 Demand for mental health services in the Trust exceeds mental health resource available 
(capacity and quality) ✔ ✔ ✔ MD 15 

11 BAF11 There is insufficient evidence that the Trust’s emergency preparedness, response and 
resilience plans are adequate and embedded ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ COO 15 

12 BAF12 There is a general lack of the awareness and specialist knowledge needed to deliver 
adequate safeguarding for patients and others to whom the Trust has a duty ✔ ✔ DoN 12 

13 BAF13 Implementation of new initiatives, standards and learning from incidents and complaints is 
inconsistent across the Trust ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ MD 12 

14 BAF14 Governance systems across the Trust are ineffective in the delivery and monitoring of high 
standards of care, treatment and performance, and are insufficiently open and transparent ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ CEO 12 

15 BAF15 The Trust is struggling to recruit and retain staff in a number of key areas ✔ ✔ ✔ DHR 12 
16 BAF16 Support for non-employed staff (i.e., trainees and military personnel) is inconsistent ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ DHR 12 
17 BAF17 There is a perceived disconnect between the Trust Board and front line staff and teams ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ CEO 12 
18 BAF18 The physical environment of the Emergency Floor is poor ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ COO 12 

19 BAF19 The Trust’s senior leadership has been unstable, and the leadership structure is unsuitable, 
inhibiting the holding to account of leaders in the Trust ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ CEO 12 

20 BAF20 There is a lack of capacity and expertise in a number of key “back-office” functions, 
including Finance, HR and the Transformation Team ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ CEO 12 
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BAF1:  Urgent Care, Quality, Performance and Patient flow Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date id’d Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Patient flow through the Trust and throughout the wider health and 
social care system in the area is poor, leading to risk of: 

· Delayed transfers of care and associated deterioration in patient
wellbeing 

· Increased patient harm (including from delayed emergency
(SCAS) response arising from prolonged ambulance handover
times)

· Impaired patient experience / patient engagement
· Reduced ability to deliver quality and safety metrics
· Reduced performance against constitutional access standards
· Reduced staff engagement / experience (and consequent high

staff turnover and sickness absence) as a result of sustained
increased workload

· Failure to deliver income and expenditure control total
· Reduced ability to deliver cost improvement programmes

3e, f 

1 

2a – d 
2b 
3a – b 
4 a, b, d 

5a 
5a - b 

COO 09.08.17 Risk 
assm’t 

20 
4x5 

12 
4x3 

20 
4x5 

Rationale for target rating 
Impact is not amenable to reduction; focus for the 17/18 BAF 
is on reducing the frequency / likelihood that the impact on 
patients and staff will continue.  

Trust risk register links 
11, 15, 16, 18, 19, 24, 34, 99, 233, 302, 784, 794 

Causes of the risk · Discharge planning and execution are not consistent across the Trust
· Maintaining escalation capacity attenuates clinical efficiency
· Lack of standardisation in clinical teams, systems and processes across the Trust
· Frailty has become a feature of all clinical services but is not recognised as such in any strategy or service plan
· Working arrangements with Portsmouth City Council and Hampshire County Council (e.g., re: funding decisions,

placements) not effective in ensuring consistently prompt patient discharge
· Clinical Commissioning Group processes for funding decisions and placements etc. slow
· Domiciliary care resources in the area do not meet demand
· Residential care capacity in the area does meet demand
· Local authority funding for complex residential care does not always match market forces

Current methods 
of management 

· Trust has 50 extra beds open and 100 patients outlying, an increase on this point in 2016
· Deployment of, and reliance on, premium cost workforce to manage patient volumes
· Reactive responses to individual patients’ needs
· Usual range of clinical governance monitoring and response
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Current assurance Positive assurance Q2 Negative assurance Q2 
· Decrease in Emergency Department complaints:

o Q1 2016/17 – 33   Q4 2016/17 – 36  Q1 2017/18 - 28
· Reduction in complaints and PALS contacts re: admission,

discharge and transfer
o Q4 2016/17 – 80   Q1 2017/18 - 57

· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)
· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Non-clinical patient moves at night decreased Q2 = 317 (Q1

= 1036)
· SIRIs per 1000 bed days Q2 = 0.4 (Q1 = 1.4)
· Other incidents Q2 = 3278  (Q1 = 4887)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, pages 3 (2 items)
· No 12 hour trolley waits in August (peak of 95 in March)
· I&E control total achieved in Q1 (without A&E STF element)

· Mixed sex accommodation breaches: Q2 = 39 (Q1 = 23)
· Outliers increased: Q2 = 5135 (Q1 = 7953)
· Harm free care Q2 = 98.55% (Q1 = 98.67%)
· One Never Event in Q2
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, pages 2 (1 item), 3 (1 item)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, pages 3 (3 items), 4 (2

items)
· 3 associated “must do” requirements CQC report 24.08.17
· 1 associated “must do” requirement, 4 associated “should

do” requirements CQC report 01.02.17
· Delayed Transfers of Care at 9% in August (target 3.5%)
· Total bed days blocked in August 2689 (July 2294)
· Four hour access standard at 78.6% in August (target 95%)
· A&E element of STF funding not achieved in Q1
· Cost improvement total £1.3m below plan in Q1

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Revise medical model to increase availability of doctors 

at key times of day 
DUC 04.09.17 21.09.17: Revised model implemented.  Impact yet 

to be assessed, but implementation going well so far 
Complete 

2 Exec-Led intensive support programme to transform / 
improve quality and operational performance on Acute 
Medical Unit, aligned to CQC Enforcement Notice 

COO 31.10.17 01.09.17:  Programme has been in place for 6 
months, with new leadership team.  Weekly 
assurance meetings, KPIs agreed with CCG.  
Fortnightly reporting of quality/service outcomes to 
CQC. 

On track 

3 Review and enhance Integrated Discharge Service with 
system partners 

COO 30.11.17 01.09.17:  On-going discussions with A&E Delivery 
Board on current model.  1 year review planned for 
end of September. 

On track 

4 Spread Red/Green Days model consistently across Trust DUC 30.11.17 23.08.17:  25 wards yet to adopt model On track 

5 Intensive externally supported improvement COO 01.12.17 01.09.17:  Procurement of support complete.  Work On track
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programme to embed enhanced patient flow processes starting 05.09.17 
6 Exec-Led intensive support programme to reduce 

average length of stay in MOPRS from 22 days to 14 
days 

COO 31.12.17 01.09.17:  Programme in place, weekly meetings 
with CSC Senior Management Teams, KPIs agreed.  
Only marginal reduction in LoS achieved so far.   

Delayed 

7 Review and revise complex discharge model with 
support of wider system 

DUC 28.02.18 23.08.17:  Weekly Whole System Discharge Delivery 
Board has created a Steering Group to promote the 
review 

On track 
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BAF2:  Information management and technology (IM&T) Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The Trust’s IT systems and information reporting do not provide 
adequate support for delivery of Trust strategic objectives, leading to 
reduced ability to: 

· Produce and deliver timely and accurate diagnoses and treatment
· Monitor and react to patients’ condition and safety
· Support improved patient management processes
· Manage and monitor the timely allocation of resources

1,3 
1,2 
2,3,4,5 
1,2,3,4,5 

DHR 09.08.17 Risk 
assm’t 

20 
4 x 5 

4 
4 x 1 

20 
4 x 5 

Rationale for target rating 
Expectation that new Trust Strategy and 5-year plan will 
identify funding to take forward IM&T Strategy from 2018/19 
Trust risk register links 
Datix 360/IT10 
Datix 362/IT13 

Causes of the risk · Historic lack of investment in IT and information; lack of current capital available for investment (see also BAF8)
· Lack of clarity re: Trust strategy (see also BAF4)
· Historic Trust focus on tactical developments to meet immediate needs rather than strategic

Current methods 
of management 

· Responsive allocation of available capital to most urgent / safety-critical updates and repairs
· Focus of IM&T staff resources on maintaining service and addressing critical risks
· Utilising existing IT Department resource to progress eHospital Programme through SOC, OBC & OBS stages.
· Submitted bids for national digital funding for eHospital Programme via STP

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· 11,764 IT incidents resolved Apr-Oct, 96.7% within SLA

target times. Customer satisfaction rating = 5.68 out of 6
· IT Capital Programme 2017/18 approved Sept to address

most critical priorities within £1.5M allocation
· Cyber security alerts received Oct=30; Impacted on Trust=0
· Virus/Malware Detections by AV in 30 Days to 01/11 = 55
· Virus/Malware Detections by Email Filter = 91
· Malicious Website visits blocked by web filter = 1,511

· Phishing and other Fraud Websites = 138

· Multiple PAS back-up server failures Oct/Nov. Main server
continuing to function, so no impact, but if Main server
fails it may not be possible to restore service quickly.

· Owing to delays in funding required storage capacity
increases, Anti-Virus software causing severe
performance issues, so switched off.  Vulnerability risk
therefore increased, though acceptable in short-term.

· IT Capital Programme unable to address c.£2.0M
identified critical priorities or c.£2.1M additional bids

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Procure specialist IT Financing consultancy services to 

advise Trust on potential financing models for IT 
investments 

DHR 30.09.17 23.10.17: Contract agreed with Deloitte. Complete 
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2 Complete review of potential financing models for IT 
investments & present recommendations 

DHR 30.11.17 23.11.17: Deloitte engagement completed. Draft 
report due 30 Nov, but final report delayed. 

At Risk 

3 Identify funding sources for implementation of 
revised IM&T Strategy 

DoF 31.03.18 23.11.17: Partly dependent upon 2&4. To be 
developed as part of Trust 5-year plan 
underpinning Strategy. 

On track 

4 Develop and adopt a revised IM&T Strategy to 
underpin Trust Strategy with 5-year investment plan 
reflecting agreed funding models 

DHR 30.04.18 23.11.17: Planning SMT & Board workshops for 
Jan/Feb 2018. Developing options and costings for 
consideration. 

On track 
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BAF3:  Lack of attention to basic, compassionate care Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The provision of basic, compassionate care is inconsistent, leading to 
· Reduced patient safety
· Impaired patient experience
· Non-compliance with contractual, constitutional, regulatory and

legal obligations 

1a, b 
2b, c 
2d, 3, 4d 

DoN 23.08.7 CQC 
report 

16 
4 x 4 

4 
2 x 2 

16 
4 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
Improved standardisation will reduce both the impact and 
likelihood of poor care affecting patients and outcomes 
Trust risk register links 
13, 22 

Causes of the risk · Clinical governance systems are ineffective, leading to failure to identify and act on poor care (see also BAF14) 
· The Trust’s systems for learning from incidents and complaints are poor (see also BAF14)
· Variable and inconsistent approaches to managing evidential poor standards or care or treatment

Current methods 
of management 

· CSC governance committees highlight areas of concern or focus and escalate key issues via performance reviews
· Feedback to staff who report incidents is provided by senior leaders in the CSC
· Generic and some specific templates are used for formal reporting
· Data collection for safety, experience and quality metric is available, and more focussed analysis of the data is being

undertaken from August 2017
· Triangulation of complaints, patient feedback, legal reports and incidents has been established to identify trends and

themes and take appropriate action
· Compliance and regulation committee established, focus on regulatory compliance and core standards
· Systematic review of Datix  by the DON – with clear actions set out to the responsible lead.
· Back to the floor patient facing time – Clinical Fridays for all Heads of Nursing, matrons and Director of Nursing

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)
· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Q1 OPD FFT satisfaction score (94%) increase on Q4
· Reduction in formal complaints to Trust for Q1

o 17% reduction on Q4 2016/17
o 28% reduction on Q1 2016/17

· Dementia screening Q2 100%
· SIRIs per 1000 bed days Q2 = 0.4 (Q1 = 1.4)

o Other incidents Q2 = 3278  (Q1 = 4887)

· Mixed sex accommodation breaches: Q2 = 39 (Q1 = 23)
· Harm free care Q2 = 98.55% (Q1 = 98.67%)
· Q2 avoidable grade 3 pressure ulcers = 5 (Q1 = 2)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 4 (1 item)
· 8 associated “must do” requirements CQC report 01.02.17
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· Q2 VTE screening 95.2% (target = 95%)
· No avoidable MRSA in Q2
· Q2 c.diff = 5 (Q1 = 11)

· CQC report 24.08.17, page 2
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 2 (1 item)

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Every head of nursing to have a detailed clinical 

accountability session with the DON, on a weekly or 
monthly basis, to support holding of senior nursing 
teams to account for standards. 

DoN 06.10.17 28.09.17:  Meetings set up 
24.10.17:  review of clinical standards for each CSC 
underway and will be completed by the 10.12.17. 
Completed 

On track 

2 Fundamentals of Care bundle in development - 
guiding principles and outcomes for matrons in 
clinical areas. 

DoN 15.10.17 28.09.17:  Deputy DoN has produced draft, ready for 
implementation by mid-October. 
Final review of draft bundle will be undertaken by 
31.10.17 
Deputy DoN auditing impact 02.12.17 

On track 

3 Annual audit programme to monitor compliance with 
fundamentals of care bundle  

DoN 31.12.17 28.09.17:  Audit programme will commence a month 
after implementation of fundamentals of care 
bundle.  
Ongoing 

On track 

4 Planned Perfect Care two day event booked 28.11.17 
and 29.11.17, to focus on AMU. 

DoN 01.12.17 Planned Kings Fund Programme of supporting 
perfect care through observations, feedback and 
improved nursing focus.  

5 Internal audit will be undertaking a review of CQC 
compliance in January 2018. 

DoN January 
2018 

DoN has set up Terms of Reference for review 

6 Hot Topics (basic care) initiatives  DoN February 
2018 

Key areas of practice, peer reviews and shared 
learning taking place. 
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BAF4: Organisational Strategy Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The Trust’s organisational strategy is poorly defined.  As a result, focus 
is diverted from core functions, leading to  

· Potential for increased patient harm
· Poor / frustrating experience for patients
· Poor performance against contractual / constitutional / regulatory

demands
· Poor / frustrating experience for staff – leading to high turnover
· Difficulty in achieving financial balance / health – leading to

financial unsustainability

1b i, ii, ii 
2 a-c 
2d, 3 
4a, b, d, e 

CEO 24.08.17 Ext 
ass’ment 

16 
4 x 4 

8 
4 x 2 

16 
4 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
The impact of poor organisational strategy is not significantly 
amendable to change, but the introduction of a clear 
organisational strategy, supported by relevant infra-structure 
strategies, will reduce the likelihood that patients and staff 
will suffer as a consequence of unclear or poorly defined 
strategy 
Trust risk register links 
13, 18, 19, 794 

Causes of the risk · There is an imbalance in some parts of the Trust between core DGH functions and sub-specialties
· Lack of clinical strategy, impairing organisational control over best use of resources
· The Trust is required to operate within a number of local delivery systems (e.g., Solent Acute Alliance, Portsmouth /South

East Hampshire Accountable Care system)
Current methods 
of management 

· Usual clinical governance systems used to identify and address problems in patient safety, patient experience, clinical
effectiveness etc.

· Existing performance and financial management systems
Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 

· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)
· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Q1 OPD FFT satisfaction score (94%) increase on Q4
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (2 items)
· 97.9% of patients on 2 Week Wait pathway for breast

cancer seen on time in August (target 93%)
· No patients waiting more than 52 weeks in August
· All 31 day cancer wait targets met during August

· Harm free care Q2 = 98.55% (Q1 = 98.67%)
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (1 item)
· 1 associated “must do” requirement CQC report 24.08.17
· 18 RTT for August 91.1% (target 92%)
· Diagnostic wait for August 98% (target 99%)
· Four hour wait standard in ED 74% in August (target 95%)
· Delayed Transfers of Care in August 9% (target 3.5%)
· Four urgent operations cancelled during August
· 62 day cancer waits (RTT and screening to treatment) both

failed during August
· 11 patients waiting more than 104 days for cancer
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treatment in August 
· Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work 62% in Q1, 65% in Q4

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Develop and implement financial governance systems 

to ensure close alignment of investment decisions 
with clinical and corporate strategy 

DoF 31.12.17 21.09.17:  Review of financial governance in hand 
following NHSI observations. 

On track 

2 Develop and implement clear, appropriately 
networked clinical and corporate strategies to guide 
further organisational development, supported by  

· Long term financial model, including capital and
revenue resourcing plan

· Estates strategy
· IM&T strategy
· Workforce and Organisational development

strategy

CEO 31.03.18 21.09.17: Action will transfer to new Director of 
Strategy, Governance & Performance on 
appointment. 
24.10.17: Tender specification developed to procure 
additional temporary specialist support, to support 
delivery of a revised clinical and organisational 
strategy.  
28.11.17: Appointment of external support for 
strategy development to be made within December. 

On track 

3 Review existing services and plan for adjustment, 
according to clinical and corporate strategies 

COO 30.06.18 21.09.17:  Dependent on delivery of organisational 
strategy. 

On track 
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BAF5:  Organisational culture Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date id’d Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

There is an inconsistent leadership / management model across the 
Trust, leading to risk of: 

· Increased patient harm
· Impaired patient experience
· Failure to deliver change / transformation programmes
· Failure to meet constitutional standards
· Poor outcome re: Well-Led assessment
· Harm to Trust’s reputation and profile
· Impaired staff experience (including inconsistent response to

bullying / harassment) 
· Increased difficulty in recruiting and retaining staff (see BAF15)
· Inability to deliver cost improvement programmes

1a, 1b 
2a, 2b, 2c 
3a-f, 5b 
3a-f 
4a, 4b, 4d 

4a, 4d 
4e 

5b 

DHR 09.08.17 Risk 
assm’t 

16 
4 x 4 

4 
2 x 2 

16 
4 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
The Trust must aspire to reduce both the impact and 
likelihood of poor care and poor patient experience arising 
from poor management and leadership 

Trust risk register links 
302, 303, 304 

Causes of the risk · Changes in senior leadership team
· Current lack of impact of Passport to Manage (new, not embedded, no released time)
· Succession planning is not effective
· Lack of organisational accountability framework
· Workforce strategy no longer reflective of organisation’s needs
· Relative lack of improvement methodologies
· Scheme of delegation no longer fit for purpose
· Medical engagement with management / leadership is inconsistent

Current methods 
of management 

· Passport to Manage – not yet embedded, no released time
· CSCs take individual approach to performance management
· Existing patient safety / patient experience / financial management systems and models
· “Respect Me” hotline providing advice on how to handle bullying and harassment

Current assurance Positive assurance Q2 Negative assurance Q2 
· Reduction in formal complaints to Trust for Q1

o 17% reduction on Q4 2016/17
o 28% reduction on Q1 2016/17

· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)

· Harm free care Q2 = 98.55% (Q1 = 98.67%)
· 1 Never Event in Q2
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, pages 2 (3 items), 3 (4

items)
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· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Q1 OPD FFT satisfaction score (94%) increase on Q4
· SIRIs per 1000 bed days Q2 = 0.4 (Q1 = 1.4)

o Other incidents Q2 = 3278  (Q1 = 4887)
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 4 (1 item)
· Q1 Pulse survey results “I feel able and supported to raise

concerns about unsafe practice”: 76% (Q4 76%)
· 0.9% turnover in August, 1.3% in July
· 54 contacts to new Respect Me hotline
· Essential Skills training at 88.7% in August (above target of

85% since June)

· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (1 item)
· 2 associated “must do” requirements CQC report 24.08.17
· Q1 Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work:  62% (Q4 65%)
· Q1 Pulse survey: bullying, harassment, abuse dealt with

swiftly and appropriately: 56% (Q4 53%)
· Q1 Pulse survey: “ I am able to make improvements

happen”: 64% (Q4 N/A)
· Rolling 12 month staff turnover 12% in August
· Sickness absence above target in August: 3.4%
· Establishment posts 93.6%filled, including MoD personnel
· Cost improvement total £1.3m below plan in Q1

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Workforce strategy to be refreshed DHR 15.11.17 11.08.17:  Refresh work allocated to Head of 

Employee Resourcing.  Revised strategy to be 
presented to November Board. 
23.10.17:  Broad themes for revised strategy 
developed, linked to forming a Workforce 
Committee.  
13.11.17: Strategy meeting arranged for 16.11.17 

On track 

2 Implement NHSI Culture and Leadership (C&L) 
Programme 

CEO 30.11.17 12.09.17:  Listening into Action programme has 
commenced as a forerunner to implementation of 
NHSI C&L Programme. 
23.10.17:  Exec team to be updated on the NHSI 
programme at EMT on 30.10.17 learning from 
experience at Bournemouth NHSFT.   
13.11.17: Board Development workshop scheduled 
30.11.17 

On track 

3 Develop and implement Accountability Framework CEO tbc 21.09.17: likely to be part of the outputs from the 
Culture and Leadership programme.  Date of 
implementation will be clearer once that 
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programme is underway 
4 Review Finance elements of Scheme of Delegation DoF 31.12.17 21.09.17:  Review of Scheme of delegation to be 

part of review of financial governance associated 
with BAF4, action 2 

On track 

5 Develop and introduce suite of cultural improvement 
indicators 

DHR 31.12.17 21.09.17:  Meeting 19.09.17 identified range of 
indicators (e.g. staff survey scores, patient survey 
scores, patient feedback, complaints and 
compliments, staff complaints, bullying and 
harassment and whistle blowing) to use as basis for 
further consultation.  Indicators to be linked to 
wider People Strategy. 
23.10.17:  Range of HR Health Indicators to be key 
theme of revised workforce strategy and currently 
under development using existing integrated 
performance measures.  
13.11.17: HR health indicators developed to support 
development of strategy. 

On track 

6 Board appointments stabilised CEO 31.01.18 12.09.17:  A number of key roles (executive and 
non-exec) out to advert and appointment processes 
in train. 
23.10.17: Recruitment to all executive posts now 
complete. A newly appointed Chairperson has been 
announced. Recruitment ongoing for Clinical NED 
and further NED appointments.  
13.11.17: NED appointment panels scheduled 
29.11.17. All Exec posts expected to be filled 
substantively by 02.11.17 

On track 

7 Review organisational structure CEO 30.04.18 12.09.17: Modification of existing structure to 
ensure appropriate visibility of key risks, 
accountabilities and provide support to CSCs in 
hand. 
23.10.17: Focus group to be set up chaired by COO 
and supported by HRD to review clinical and back 

On track 
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office supporting structures.   
13.11.17: Meeting between DHR and COO scheduled 
17.11.17 

8 External review of bullying and harassment issues 
identified by CQC and associated engagement 
programme (linked to Organisational Development 
Strategy)  

CEO 30.04.18 04.09.17:  Review to start end of September.  
Procurement in hand. 
23.10.17:  Terms of reference amended following 
work already undertaken through the Respect Me 
campaign. External input from December 2017.  
13.11.17: Executive Management Team approved 
proposal from Longbow Associates, work to 
commence December 2017.  

On track 

9 Board / Director development programme to be 
developed and implemented 

CEO 30.06.18 12.09.17:  design and specification to be completed 
once Board appointments closer to completion 

On track 

See also  BAF13 
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BAF6:  Skills and knowledge Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date id’d Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The Trust cannot be assured that all staff have the skills and knowledge 
they need to carry out their role effectively, leading to risk of: 

· Increased patient harm
· Impaired patient experience
· Failure to comply with regulatory requirements
· Failure to deliver constitutional standards
· Poor levels of staff engagement (see BAF5)

1
2
2d 
3 
4b, c, d 

DHR 09.08.17 Risk 
assm’t 

16 
4 x 4 

8 
4 x 2 

16 
4 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
The Trust is unable to reduce the impact of low levels of 
required skills and knowledge, but can aim to reduce the 
likelihood that the risk will arise by ensuring the provision 
and uptake of effective induction, training and development. 
Trust risk register links 
21, 23, 234, 462 

Causes of the risk · Failure to release staff to complete / attend training
· Training capacity offered does not match trainees’ / departments’ needs (including venue, timing, format etc.)
· Inconsistent approach between Clinical Service Centres

Current methods 
of management 

· Military clinical colleagues supporting areas to release staff for backlog of training
· Professional Nursing and Midwifery Forum now reviewing training performance on a monthly basis and holding Heads of

Nursing to account for delivery of improvement
Current assurance Positive assurance Q2 Negative assurance Q2 

· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)
· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Q1 OPD FFT satisfaction score (94%) increase on Q4
· Reduction in formal complaints to Trust for Q1
· 17% reduction on Q4 2016/17
· 28% reduction on Q1 2016/17
· SIRIs per 1000 bed days Q2 = 0.4 (Q1 = 1.4)
o Other incidents Q2 = 3278  (Q1 = 4887)
· Essential Skills training at 88.7% in August (above target of

85% since June)

· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (1 item)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 4 (1 item)
· 1 associated “must do” requirement CQC report 24.08.17
· 1 associated “must do” requirement CQC report 01.02.17
· Appraisal compliance at 77.7% (below target of 85% since

April and deteriorating)
· Q1 Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work:  62% (Q4 65%)

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Develop phased training plan to ensure nursing and 

AHP staff undertake all required training in a timely 
DoN 30.09.17 09.08.17: HoNs have plan under development.  

Production and implementation to be monitored via 
On track 
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way PN&MF 
2 Workforce strategy to be refreshed DHR 15.11.17 11.08.17:  Refresh work allocated to Head of 

Employee Resourcing.  Revised strategy to be 
presented to November Board. 
23.10.17:  Broad themes for revised strategy 
developed, linked to forming a Workforce 
Committee. 
13.11.17: Strategy meeting arranged for 16.11.17 

On track 

3 Introduction of “Training Passport” for whole STP DHR tbc 11.08.17:  UK core skills framework in use across 
 Acute Alliance.  STP wide training passport in 
development with support of external advisers to 
the STP.  Date for implementation not yet known. 
13.11.17: 11 subject areas now agreed for 
‘passporting’. Further meeting 15.11.17 with Board 
paper due to be produced for all HIOW STP 
organisations. 

4 Training Needs Analysis review DHR 31.12.17 11.08.17:  Completed annually, next due for review 
by end of December.   
23.10.17:  Core element to be overseen by potential 
Workforce Committee.   
13.11.17: CSC training needs analysis to be 
completed by the end of November. Workforce 
Committee to oversee approval of HEE funds to 
deliver training against Trust priorities.  

On track 

6 Review of face to face training capacity offer DHR 31.12.17 11.08.17:  Review to include consideration of 
venues, timing, format of face to face training 
sessions to improve accessibility. 

On track 

7 Consider possibility of identifying and reporting on 
learning / training needs as root causes in incidents, 
complaints etc. 

DHR 28.02.18 12.09.17:  Action will be passed to incoming Director 
of Strategy, Governance and Performance on 
appointment. 
23.10.17:  Links to work being undertaken on quality 
improvement methodology and the NHSI culture 
programme BAF5. 

On track 
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5 Further review of Training Needs Analysis to reflect 
changing organisational needs in light of new Clinical / 
Organisational Strategy 

DHR 31.05.18 21.09.17:  Organisational strategy due for 
completion by 31.03.18. 

On track 

See also BAF 2 actions 
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BAF7:  Partnerships Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Some key external partnerships / collaborations fail to provide support 
for, and/or obstruct delivery of, the Trust’s objectives and priorities, 
leading to inability to  

· Deliver safe, high quality patient centred care
· Continually improve patient experience
· Ensure delivery of national constitutional standards
· Achieve financial health and sustainability

1 
2
3
5

CEO 31.08.17 Risk 
ass’ment 

16 
4 x 4 

12 
3 x 4 

16 
4 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
Improvements in the robustness and clarity of the Trust’s 
own organisational and clinical strategies will help to reduce 
the impact of external partnerships on delivery of Trust 
strategic objectives.  Improving the Trust’s own contribution 
to the external partnerships in question should make them 
less likely to hamper deliver of Trust objectives. 
Trust risk register links 
233 

Causes of the risk · Insularity on the part of the Trust, and lack of strong relationships with partners on which to build
· Recent instability of leadership within the Trust over during 2017, leading to inability to influence strategic partnerships

with other organisations
· Wide-spread stress in the local / regional health and social care system, leading to lack of capacity to develop partnerships

and new ways of working etc.
· Some partnerships are newly formed and not yet able to deliver objectives

Current methods 
of management 

· Attending partnership etc. meetings where possible
· Trust has entered into an Aligned Incentives Contract with local commissioners for 17/18 and 18/19

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· I&E control total met during Q1 · Cost improvement total £1.3m below plan in Q1

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Review of trust resources / personnel to ensure best 

match between those who represent the Trust on 
partnerships etc. and subject matter  

CEO 31.10.17 21.09.17:  initial choice of partnership 
representatives may need to be further revised in 
due course in light of coming appointments. 

On track 
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2 Trust to participate in review of effectiveness of 
partnership working at all strategic partnership 
boards to ensure added value 

CEO 31.12.17 21.09.17:  Proposal to be raised with system 
partners. 
24.10.17: PSEH ACS Board has developed a proposal 
setting out how the ACS can support the delivery of 
key system partners and strengthen partnership 
working.  

On track 
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BAF8:  Capital deficit Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The Trust has insufficient capital funds available to meet demand for 
capital spending, leading to inability to  

· Provide adequate quantities of suitable, safe clinical equipment
· Provide safe, suitable and patient / staff friendly premises on the

Emergency Floor 
· Support the Trust’s ICT requirements

1, 2a, 2b 
2a, 2c, 2d, 
4a, 4d, 4e 
2c, 2d, 5b, 
5c, 5d 

DoF 2015 Risk 
ass’ment 

16 
4x4 

8 
4x2 

16 
4x4 

Rationale for target rating 
Impact of inadequate capital funding is unlikely to be 
reduced.  The Trust’s efforts to attract additional resource, 
explore alternative solutions and sources of funding, and 
resolve, with NHSI, technical issues associated with CRL are 
intended to reduce the likelihood of those impacts being felt. 
Trust risk register links 
35, 360, 362, 783, 784, 785, 786, 788 

Causes of the risk · Loan of c£20m taken out in 2009 to replace significant proportion of clinical equipment.  Equipment purchased is now
reaching the end of its life; plans for replacement are not fully developed

· Historic lack of investment in information and communication technology (ICT) systems required to support delivery of
clinical care and associated administration (see also BAF2)

· Decision to exclude Emergency Floor at Queen Alexandra Hospital from PFI and subsequent lack of strategic commitment
to modernisation

· Restriction of spending of capital since 2013 as a result Trust’s I&E performance and associated constrained cash position
· NHSI re-specification of how PFI accounting applies to calculation of CRL, leading to significant reduction in CRL from 2017

Current methods 
of management 

· Responsive repairs to equipment to extend life of assets where possible
· Lease/MES options along with other creative financing options of certain items of equipment (e.g. endoscopes) being

explored
· Continuous prioritisation of spending and active management of CRL through capital programme work-streams

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Decrease in Emergency Department complaints:

o Q1 2016/17 – 33
o Q4 2016/17 – 36
o Q1 2017/18 - 28

· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· 8,521 IT incidents resolved Apr-Aug, 97.8% within SLA

target times. Customer satisfaction rating = 5.68 out of 6

· Significant numbers of incidents associated with damaged
/ missing equipment reported:
o Q1 17/18 = 94
o Q4 16/17= 117
o Q1 16/17 = 76

· 390 patient safety incidents in ED reported during August
– highest number amongst all CSCs
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· IT Capital Programme 2017/18 approved Sept to address
most critical priorities within £1.5M allocation

· Cyber security alerts received = 20; Impacted on trust = 0
Viruses detected & stopped = 8

· Q1 cash balance £0.3m adverse to plan but broadly in line
with expectations

· Q1 capital £0.3m above plan but green rated
· Q2 capital over plan but capital programme under-

committed at year end.

· 2 PAS failures: 27 Aug (14 hours) & 3 Sept (9 hours), one
with data corruption.  System recovered both times & data
restored. No patient harm caused

· To prevent further PAS failures, weekly back-ups
suspended

IT Capital Programme unable to address c.£2M identified 
critical priorities or c.£2.1M additional bids 

· Cost improvement total £1.3m below plan in Q1
· Total capital programme over-subscribed

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
2 Capital Strategy to be revised to optimise the 

management of resources within these constraints 
DoF 07.09.17 07.09.17:  Revised strategy approved by the Board. 

16.10.17:  Capital programme now shared with 
CSCs. Ongoing management and process in place to 
allocate current under-planning margin. 
28.11.17: MES/lease options for equipment 
replacement for priorities in Medicine and Theatre 
currently in development and business cases for Day 
Surgery and Asset Tracking reviewed and revised 
document to go to the next Capital Prioritisation 
Group.  

Complete 

4 Make application to national programme for 
replacement of Linear Accelerator 

DoF 15.10.17 07.09.17:  Response awaited from NHSE. 
16.10.17:  Submission made 13.10.17 to NHSI after 
clarification. 

Complete 

1 Seek change to mechanism for determining Trust’s 
internal capital resource limit  

DoF 31.10.17 06.09.17:  Negotiations with NHSI opened.  
Response to Trust letter promised as part of NHSI 
Deep Dive Review. 
16.10.17:  Will be responded to separately after 
prioritised by NHSI following discussions with CA. 
28.11.17: CRL issues raised at recent oversight 
meeting and trust response to NHS I queries to be 

Off track 
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reviewed for submission 8.12.17 
3 Seek alternative capital sources through STP DoF 30.11.17 07.09.17: Submissions made; Trust awaiting 

response from STP. 
16.10.17: Based upon feedback at Finance Directors 
STP meeting in September, DH announcement now 
expected during November. 
28.11.17: No update yet received from STP.  CA to 
raise at STP DoFs forum 1.12.17 

On track 

6 Review alternative sources of financing capital 
programme through leases, managed equipment 
service contracts and other partnership arrangements 
and present options paper to the Board. 

DoF 15.12.17 07.09.17:  Some leasing already commenced, further 
opportunities under investigation. 
16.10.17:  Guidance on the planned changed to 
accounting rules for leases (IFRS 16) needed to 
understand implications of MES and leasing of 
equipment in the future. 
28.11.17: Financing strategy to be implemented in 
the development of the Trusts strategic plans and 
recovery programme based on review of current 
options 15.12.17 

On track 

5 Develop and implement long term financial model, 
including capital and revenue resourcing plan, to 
support revised clinical and organisational strategy 

DoF 31.03.18 07.09.17:  Revised clinical/organisational strategy 
awaited 
28.11.17: Timeline for developing the Trusts strategy 
and strategic financial plans set out in the 
presentation to NHS I on 28.11.17.  Resourcing and 
action plans to deliver the timetable currently being 
finalised.  

On track 

7 Develop and present ED re-configuration business 
case to Trust Board and key regulators 

DoF 31.03.18 07.09.17: under development 
28.11.17: Timeline for development of project and 
review of existing plans in December and timetable 
for delivery and approval to be set out by 22.12.17 

On track 
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BAF9:  Radiology capacity Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Radiological capacity in the Trust cannot meet demand for radiology 
services, leading to delays in diagnosis and treatment, and consequent 
increased risk of 

· Patient harm
· Poor patient experience
· Failure to meet national constitutional standards and regulatory

requirements and consequent regulatory / legal action
· Financial penalties
· Missed opportunities to maximise income in a timely way

1a 
2a – d 
3a – d, f 

5a 
5a - d 

COO 24.08.17 Risk 
assm’t 

15 
3x5 

6 
3x2 

15 
3x5 

Rationale for target rating 
The impact of inadequate radiological capacity cannot be 
reduced, but the likelihood of patients and the Trust 
experiencing the anticipated problems can be reduced by the 
development of additional, reliable capacity  
Trust risk register links 
13, 19, 31, 321, 784 

Causes of the risk · Rise in demand for diagnostic imaging as a result of increased activity and changed clinical practice
· Capacity has not increased significantly
· Throughput to CT equipment is significantly beyond its expected / specified capacity
· CT equipment reaching the end of its expected life and there are frequent breakdowns
· National shortage of appropriately qualified staff; difficulties in recruiting locally

Current methods 
of management 

· Day to day responsive repairs
· Reactive responses to individual patients’ needs
· Usual range of clinical governance monitoring and response
· Deployment of, and reliance on, additional working hours to manage times when patient volumes exceed capacity
· Outsourcing, including a proportion of plain film reporting

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Clinical Harm review has started; backlog of 2000 images

now reported
· Q1 I&E control total achieved

· Complaints re: scanning and reporting in radiology
significant proportion of complaints and PALS contacts
received in Q1

· 1 associated “must do” requirement CQC report 24.08.17
· Diagnostic wait times in August 98% (target 99%), but

improved on July (93.1%)
Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Review of Board decision re: ED x-ray reporting COO 02.11.17 01.09.17:  Agenda item booked for November 

meeting. 
On track 
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2 Clinical harm review of over 40,000 chest x-rays 
unread over last 2 years to assess impact of previous 
decision not to report ED x-rays 

MD 31.11.17 22.09.17: Reporting radiographers appointed to 
begin this work by 30.09.17.   Assessment of flags to 
be used to highlight significant findings on radiology 
information system trialled successfully.  Small 
sample of 30 films reviewed as part of assessment - 
no findings with any significant impact on patients in 
that sample. 
25.10.17: 2500 CXR have now been reviewed. Of the 
40 flagged as abnormal the vast majority have been 
identified as infection with no further action 
required. Two cases have been identified as 
potentially significant lesions and these are both 
being managed through the SUI process. 

On track 

3 Clinical Harm review of backlog of unreported MR and 
CT scans to be completed  

MD 31.11.17 01.09.17:  Fortnightly meetings commenced 
14.08.17.  
22.09.17: 2,000 unreported MR and CT scans all now 
reported by Imaging dept.   Waiting list categorised 
into 3 groups: cancer waiting times (CWT), urgent 
and routine.  Review will look at all 163 patients in 
the CWT group, all the Urgents and a random 
sample of the Routines (1 in 7 records).  Review of 
the 163 CWT patients begins 26.09.17. All positive 
findings will be dealt with in a proportional manner 
and reported as Safety learning events. 
25.10.17: Prioritised review of CWT scans backlog 
completed and that of the Urgent scans is under way 
with sampling of routines to follow thereafter. 

On track 

4 Trust strategy for imaging and radiology to be 
developed and presented to Board for approval (to 
include full details of capital requirements and 
options for finance) 

COO 31.11.17 12.09.17:  Dependent on outcome of Harm Review 
(see action 1). 

On track 

5 Review need for additional temporary CT scanner for 
winter period and source funding and secure resource 

COO 15.12.17 12.09.17: Funding sources being explored. On track 
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if required 
6 Independent review of governance and decision 

making around radiological capacity and service 
provision to be commissioned and reported to Board 
(plus external regulators) to inform further 
development of service and revision of governance 
arrangements 

CEO ??? 25.09.17:  Terms of reference in development and 
appropriate participants in the review being 
identified. 

On track 
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BAF10:  Mental Health skills and resources Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The quality and availability of mental health care in the Trust do not 
match patients’ needs, leading to increased risk of 

· Safety incidents (patients, staff)
· Poor patient experience
· Failure to deliver services in line with access standards (particularly

in ED)
· Failure to meet legal and regulatory requirements (including in

connection with consent)

1 
2a – d 
3a 

4 

MD 16.08.17 CQC 
report 

16 
4 x 4 

12 
4 x 3 

16 
4 x4 

Rationale for target rating 
The impact of unmet mental health needs is unlikely to be 
reduced, but the likelihood of patients or staff suffering as a 
result will be reduced by the measures planned.  
Trust risk register links 
21, 234 

Causes of the risk · Inconsistency of specific knowledge and training in managing people with mental health vulnerabilities amongst general
staff cohort

· Lack of sufficient numbers of specialist mental health trained staff in the Trust
· Partnership arrangements between the Trust and local mental health care providers do not meet patients’ needs
· Rising demand for mental health care service in the acute setting

Current methods 
of management 

· Use of agency specialist mental health staff
· Embedded Mental health liaison team co-commissioned by PHT and Southern Health
· Fortnightly system-wide teleconference to coordinate services across all relevant providers
· Mental Health Action plan under weekly review

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Mental health risk assessment completed in ED in approx.

85% – 90 % of cases audited
· Incidents associated with unmet mental health need

reducing:  Q1 17/18: 19 reported
 Q4 16/17: 35 reported 

· Trust still required to submit weekly data to CQC
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 2 (3 items)
· 3 associated “must do” requirements CQC report 24.08.17
· 3 associated “must do” requirement, 1 associated “should

do” requirement CQC report 01.02.17
Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Mental health and vulnerability board (including NED 

membership) to be established  
MD 24.10.17 12.09.17: Membership largely agreed.  Terms of 

reference under development . 
25.10.17: First meeting of PHT Mental Health & 
Capacity Board 24/10/17. Established as committee 
reporting into Trust Board, with support of Chair. 

On track 

149



Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 2017/8 Board Assurance Framework    

Excellent engagement and attendance from internal 
and external stakeholders. Will meet alternate 
months overseeing development of robust 
assurance framework and strategy, linked into 
fortnightly ACS mental health discussions. 
10.11.17: KPIs agreed at ACS mental health meeting 
and to be ratified at next Mental Health Board 

2 Complete ligature risk assessments in priority areas 
and develop action plan to address  

MD 31.12.17 12.09.17: Risk assessments underway and complete 
in some areas.  Action plans to address findings in 
development as each assessment completed. 
10.11.17: Risk assessment continues, prioritising 
areas of greatest risk. Risk mitigation process 
following assessment under way 

On track 

3 Increase level of service commissioned from the 
Liaison team  

MD 30.04.18 12.09.17: Negotiations underway, funding agreed. 
Formalisation of agreement and associated 
recruitment etc. awaited. 
25.10.17: Joint commissioning arrangement for 
additional nursing capacity signed off by PHT and 
CCG October 2017. 
10.11.17: Ongoing discussions at  fortnightly ACS 
MH forum to describe and develop future model 

On track 
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BAF11 – Emergency preparedness and resilience Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

There is insufficient evidence that the Trust’s Emergency Preparedness, 
Resilience and Response (EPRR) plans are adequate and embedded, 
leading to  

· Potential for increased risk of patient and staff harm
· Non-compliance with regulatory requirements
· Potential for significant and prolonged disruption to service

delivery (with associated impact on patient harm, patient
experience, delivery against constitutional standards, income)

1
2
1, 2, 3, 5

COO Sept 17 Risk 
Assm’t 

15 
5x3 

6 
3x2 

12 
4x3 

Rationale for target rating 
Effective, embedded Emergency Preparedness, Resilience  
and Response plans will reduce the impact of an emergency 
incident, and the likelihood that the worst of the potential 
impacts arise 
Trust risk register links 
Nothing specifically related 

Causes of the risk · Governance around Emergency preparedness processes inadequate
· Resource available to address EP issues and associated governance inadequate
· Increased profile and requirements for national assurance

Current methods 
of management 

· Emergency preparedness portfolio allocated to COO plus new full time substantive EPRR Manager.
· Monthly EPRR meeting schedule

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· External resource procured and Gap analysis completed

07.09.17 – 46 standards- 38 green, 8 amber.  Reported to
Board 7 September.

· National EPRR Core Standards completed with appropriate
actions to support partial compliance.

· Workstreams developed to support improved position.
· New EPRR manager has undertaken high level review of

current working and identified risks with actions to
improve.

COO and EPRR Manager new in post with potential 
knowledge gaps  

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Emergency EPRR Working Group to begin reporting to 

Quality and Governance Committee 
COO 30.09.17 12.09.17:  EPRR Working Group next meeting 

19.09.17; Quality & Governance Committee 
meeting in October. 

Overdue 
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27.11.17: Next EPRR Meeting 06.12.17, agree next 
Quality and Governance Committee meeting date 

2 Emergency Planning Officer role developed, resourced 
and appointed  

COO 31.10.17 12.09.17:  Experienced individual appointed 
30.10.17 

Complete 

3 Develop and implement plans to address the 8 amber 
rated standards identified in gap analysis that formed 
part of external assessment (see above, assurance 
section)  

COO 31.03.18 12.09.17:  Actions plans in development by part 
time external resource. Completion, refinement 
and implementation of action plans included in 
work plan for new employee. 
27.11.17: Work plan developed and being used 

Close 
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BAF12: Safeguarding Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date id’d Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

There inconsistent levels of the awareness and specialist knowledge 
needed to deliver adequate safeguarding for patients and others to 
whom the Trust has a duty, leading to risk of: 

· Increased patient harm
· Impaired patient experience
· Regulatory non-compliance / intervention (including unlawful

detention / restraint) 
· Staff injury arising from violence

1
2
2d 

4 

DoN 24.08.17 External 
review 

12 
4x3 

8 
4x2 

12 
4x3 

Rationale for target rating 
The impact of poor safeguarding cannot be reduced, but 
increased awareness of signs, symptoms and escalation 
systems will reduce the likelihood of patients or others 
suffering harm 
Trust risk register links 
21, 48, 462 

Causes of the risk · Previous low profile of safeguarding generally within the Trust, but particularly adult safeguarding, Mental Capacity Act
issues (including restraint) and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

· Safeguarding governance arrangements inadequate
· Specialist knowledge not at appropriate levels
· Low levels of understanding, despite reasonable compliance with training programme

Current methods 
of management 

· Named Safeguarding doctors and nurses in post
· New, trained Named Midwife for Safeguarding in post
· Training programme in place
· External support from CCG in place 2.5 days per week
· Head of Adult Safeguarding in post as of 04 September 2017

Current assurance Positive assurance Q2 Negative assurance Q2 
· Combined Safeguarding Level 1 & 2 = 95.9% (target = 85%)

o Safeguarding Children Level 1 = 98.3%
o Safeguarding Children Level 2 = 92.1%
o Safeguarding Adults Level 1 = 98%

· Prevent training uptake - 607 of current staff have
attended HealthWRAP (Classroom training)

· 6,221 staff (88%) have done some form of basic Prevent
and basic MCA & DoLS training via Induction or completing
the Essential Skills booklet in the last 12 months.

· 23.10.17  - 875 staff trained in MCA and Dols( Sept and Oct

· Combined Safeguarding at Level 3 & 4 = 81.3% (target =
85%)
o Safeguarding Children Level 3 = 81.2%
o Safeguarding Children Level 4 = 100%

· DoLS and MCA training uptake
o 2514 of current staff have attended MCA & DoLS

classroom training.
o MCA & DoLS enhanced training uptake 74% (target =

85%)
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (4 items)
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data) · 1 associated “must do” requirement CQC report 24.08.17
Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Separate committees for safeguarding of adults and 

children to be established to ensure appropriate levels 
of focus 

DoN 31.10.17 12.09.17:  Revised terms of reference under 
development.  First meetings of new Committees to 
be booked. 
23.10.17: External overview of new committee 
structure completed. 

On track 

2 Review process for ensuring audits conducted under 
Section 11 Children Act 2004 are fed back to the Trust 
Board and LSCB 

DoN 31.10.17 12.09.17:  2015/16 audit has been submitted.  
Process for 16/17 to be reviewed. 

On track 

3 Training programme and content (including Board level 
training) to be reviewed 

DoN 31.12.17 12.09.17:  New Head of Safeguarding to conduct 
review. 

On track 

4 Band 8c Head of Safeguarding to be appointed DoN 31.12.17 09.08.17:  Post out to advert, interview 26.09.17. On track 

5 External peer review (to be conducted by acute sector 
specialist) of adult and children’s safeguarding services 
(including governance arrangements). 

DoN 31.12.17 12.09.17:  Suitable individuals to be identified 
23.10.17: Peer review completed, findings reported 
back to leads of service and actions to be completed 
by DON. 

On track 

6 Awareness-raising programme to be developed and 
introduced  

DoN 31.01.18 12.09.17:  New Head of Safeguarding to coordinate. On track 

7 Trust to support / cooperate with Pan-Portsmouth 
Safeguarding review led by Local Safeguarding Children 
Board (LSCB) 

DoN tbc 12.09.17: LSCB has not yet indicated date. 
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BAF13:  Organisational improvement Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Implementation of new initiatives, standards and learning is 
inconsistent across the Trust, leading to risk of: 

· Failure to reduce patient harm
· Failure to improve patient experience / engagement
· Failure to deliver improvements against constitutional standards
· Increased staff frustration / disengagement
· Failure to achieve cost improvement programmes and other

financial objectives

1a - b 
2a - d 
3a - f 
4a, c, d 
5a - b 

MD 24.08.17 Staff 
feedback 

12 
3 x 4 

6 
3 x 2 

12 
3 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
Impact of inconsistent improvement methodology is unlikely 
to be reduced, but consistent use and monitoring of a well-
developed and well-implemented methodology across the 
Trust will significantly improve the success of change 
programmes.  
Trust risk register links 
13, 15, 304, 784, 785, 788 

Causes of the risk · Trust has no comprehensive improvement methodology – individual service centres adopt their own preferred approaches
· Trust governance arrangements do not support oversight of local Quality Improvement initiatives (see also BAF14)
· Trust does not rationalise unsuccessful initiatives or disinvest in unsuccessful / unnecessary initiatives (see also BAF5)
· The quality of investigations into incident and complaints is inconsistent

Current methods 
of management 

· Existing clinical, corporate and financial governance
· Pulse staff survey
· Continuous Improvement Steering Group established and meeting regularly

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Reduction in formal complaints to Trust for Q1

· 17% reduction on Q4 2016/17
· 28% reduction on Q1 2016/17

· Q1 I&E control total achieved

· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 2 (1 item)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (1 item)
· Q1 CIP £1.3m behind plan

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Listening into Action event concerning improvement 

methodology to be held and list of staff experienced 
in improvement methodologies (across all 
professions) to be produced 

MD 30.09.17 12.09.17:  Event held and list prepared – to be used 
in consultation process. 
25.10.17: Complete and this has been collated and 
fed into draft Quality Improvement Strategy. 

Complete 
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2 Business Case for the development and implement of 
a standard approach to QI (Quality Academy) to be 
produced and presented for approval  

DHR 30.11.17 12.09.17:  Awaiting Exec level sign off. 
10.11.17: Business case on hold pending approval of 
and incorporation into complete QI Strategy 

On track 

3 Outline strategy for continuous improvement 
(modelled on Institute of Healthcare Improvement 
methodology (Improvement Academy)) to be 
presented to Board  

DHR 31.12.17 12.09.17:  Consultation meetings begin in October. 
10.11.17: Draft Quality Improvement Strategy to be 
reviewed at EMT in December prior to anticipated 
publication in January 2018 

On track 

4 Develop assurance indicators based on 
· Defined improvements in the priorities
· Staff satisfaction and engagement
· Number of registered quality improvement

projects
· Implementation plan compliance

MD 31.12.17 25.09.17:  Indicators will be available once 
methodology is designed and implemented, and 
projects begin to run under the new framework. 

On track 

5 Draft QI Strategy being discussed at staff engagement 
events (x 2 already completed). Following feedback 
from engagement events, Quality Improvement 
strategy to be prepared by January 2018 

MD 31.01.18 10.11.17: Draft Quality Improvement Strategy to be 
reviewed at EMT in December. On track for 
completion and publication in January 2018 

On track 
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BAF14: Governance systems Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Governance systems across the Trust are ineffective in the delivery and 
monitoring of high standards of care, treatment and performance, 
leading to risk of: 

· Failure to identify and address poor quality / unsafe care
· Failure to ensure comprehensive learning, across the Trust, from

incidents and complaints
· Waste and duplication of resources, including staff time
· Failure to improve performance against constitutional access

standards
· Failure to identify and address poor staff experience (see also

BAF5, BAF15)
· Breach of legal, constitutional and contractual obligations

(including, specifically, information governance obligations)

1, 2, 3 
1, 2, 4d 

4a, d 
2a, 2d, 3 

4a, d, e 

CEO 24.08.17 External 
review 

12 
4 x 3 

4 
4x1 

12 
4x3 

Rationale for target rating 
The impact of poor governance on quality, use of resources 
and effective leadership will always be major, but a revision 
of governance systems and the introduction of 
improvements will reduce the likelihood of poor governance 
giving rise to such detrimental effects 

Trust risk register links 
Nothing specifically related 

Causes of the risk · Instability within Board
· Governance systems, processes and structures have not kept pace with the demands of the expanding Trust and its key

regulators
Current methods 
of management 

· Existing corporate and clinical governance systems are in operation

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (6 items)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (1 item), page 4 (1

item)
· 7 associated “must do” requirements CQC report 24.08.17
· 4 associated “must do” requirements, 2 associated

“should do” requirements CQC report 01.02.17
Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Director with explicit responsibility for corporate and 

clinical governance to be appointed 
CEO 31.12.17 12.09.17:  Post out to advert and shortlisted. 

24.10.17:  Successful appointment made to Director 
of Strategy, Governance and Performance.  

On track 
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Interviews for Trust Secretary to be held w/c 30th 
October. 
28.11.17: Interim Director of Integrated Governance 
appointed 01.12.17. 
28.11.17: Director of Strategy and Performance to 
start on 8th January 2018. 

2 Further actions tbc once appointee is in post 

158



Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 2017/8 Board Assurance Framework    

BAF15:  Recruitment and retention Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date id’d Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The Trust is struggling to recruit and retain staff in a number of key 
areas (including, particularly, band 5 nursing, MOPRS, General 
Medicine), leading to a risk of: 

· Increased patient harm
· Impaired patient experience
· Failure to comply with regulatory requirements
· Staff disengagement (see BAF5)

1a, 1b 
2a, 2b, 2c 
2d 
4a, 4d 

DHR 01.08.17 Risk 
assm’t 

12 
3x4 

6 
2x3 

12 
3x4 

Rationale for target rating 
Improved workforce management should ensure that the 
right staff, with the right skills, knowledge and support are 
available and able to meet patients’ needs promptly and 
effectively. 
Trust risk register links 
15, 22, 31, 321, 406, 794 

Causes of the risk · National shortages of key trained staff (e.g., nurses, doctors)
· Geographical location
· Inconsistent approach to staff engagement between Clinical Service Centres
· Continued pressure in a number of clinical areas means that extra capacity beds remain open long term, diverting skilled

substantive staff from ward areas to escalation areas
Current methods 
of management  

· Use of overtime and bank staff to plug gaps in shifts
· Use of agency staff where absolutely necessary to maintain safe staffing
· Re-locate staff across the Trust to maintain safe levels
· Wide range of recruitment methodologies (overseas events, social media, open days, links to Universities, recruitment

consultancies, head hunting)
· Exit interview programme

Current assurance Positive assurance Q2 Negative assurance Q2 
· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)
· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Q1 OPD FFT satisfaction score (94%) increase on Q4
· SIRIs per 1000 bed days Q2 = 0.4 (Q1 = 1.4)

o Other incidents Q2 = 3278  (Q1 = 4887)

· 1 Never Event in Q2
· 1 associated “should do” requirement CQC report

01.02.17
· Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work 62% in Q1, 65% in Q4
· Only 54 exit interviews completed for 529 leavers

01.04.17  - 31.08.17
· Time from vacancy notification to HR to recruitment Q1

99 days, Q2 84 days
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· Rejected job offers: Q1 = 23, Q2 = 27
· Q1 Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work:  62% (Q4 65%)
· Q1 Pulse survey: bullying, harassment, abuse dealt with

swiftly and appropriately: 56% (Q4 53%)
· Q1 Pulse survey: “ I am able to make improvements

happen”: 64% (Q4 N/A)
· Rolling 12 month staff turnover 12% in August
· Sickness absence above target in August: 3.4%
· Establishment posts 93.6% filled, including MoD personnel

Temporary workforce expenditure in August £3,622,018.
Above £3,000,000 consistently since May

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Two further overseas recruitment events (Philippines and 

Italy) 
DHR 30.09.17 11.08.17:  Events booked. 

13.11.17: Events completed, awaiting final numbers 
in terms of recruitment.  

On track 

2 Healthcare Support Worker campaign to reduce agency 
use 

DHR 01.10.17 11.08.17:  Campaign started 11.08.17. 
Implementation monitored through DU Workbook. 
13.11.17: Initial recruitment complete an ongoing in 
partnership with NHSP to increase bank fill rate and 
reduce agency use.  

On track 

3 Workforce strategy to be refreshed DHR 15.11.17 11.08.17:  Refresh work allocated to Head of 
Employee Resourcing.  Revised strategy to be 
presented to November Board. 
23.10.17:  Broad themes for revised strategy 
developed, linked to forming a Workforce 
Committee. 
13.11.17: Strategy meeting arranged for 16.11.17 

On track 

4 Enhance partnership with NHS Professionals to enhance 
the provision of temporary staff including a system wide 
collaborative bank.  

DHR 30.11.17 11.09.17: Meeting with NHSP took place 04.09.17 
with further system wide meeting on collaborative 
bank taking place 14.09.17. 

On track 
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23.10.17: Staff Bank Development letter from NHSI 
CEO to be enacted.  
13.11.17: NHSP improvement plan developed 
including campaign to get more staff to join the 
Bank. Ongoing discussions with partner 
organisations in terms of collaborative bank 
opportunities.  

5 Implement plans for revised and new roles to support 
difficult to recruit posts.  

DHR 30.11.17 21.09.17: Education Director has written to all CSC 
Chiefs of Service to identify the scope for Physician 
Associates role project underway with Portsmouth 
University.  Workshop for Medicine specialties to 
identify further roles for development being 
arranged. 
23.10.17: Workforce summits for Medicine, MOPRS 
and ED/AMU to take place by 30.11.17. 
13.11.17: Workforce summits for Medicine, MOPRS, 
and ED/AMU scheduled for w/c 13.11.17  

On track 

6 Develop and implement a Trust wide retention strategy. DHR 31.12.17 23.10.17: Nursing retention open evening took place 
19th October.  
13.11.17: Draft plan to be submitted to EMT for 
discussion by 11.12.17 

On track 
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BAF16:  Non-employed staff Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Non-employed staff at the Trust (i.e., military and trainee clinicians) 
have inconsistent support, training and experience, leading to risk of 

· Disengagement
· Non-compliance with Trust policies / requirements
· Removal of non-employed staff-groups from the Trust, with

consequent detrimental impact on Trust capacity

1,2,3,4 
1,2,3,4 
1,2,3,4,5 

DHR 11.09.17 Risk 
Assm’t 

12 
3x4 

6 
3x2 

12 
3x4 

Rationale for target rating 
Feedback from staff in training and military staff indicates 
that in some areas there are low levels of engagement and 
an imbalance between service needs and individual training 
needs.  
Trust risk register links 
Nothing specifically related 

Causes of the risk · Inconsistent leadership of non-employed staff groups
· Inconsistent induction arrangements
· Inconsistent understanding of the needs / expectations of non-employed staff groups
· Inconsistent understanding of the expectations of / engagement with Deanery and Military stakeholders

Current methods 
of management 

· Junior doctor engagement opportunities with CEO and Medical Director on a bi-monthly basis
· Quarterly meeting re: Military Defence Contract
· GMC survey action plan

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
None currently available · Pulse survey: employed staff recommendation of PHT as

place to work 62% in Q1, 65% in Q4
· Q1 CIP total £1.3 below target

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Consider whether Military Defence representation at 

Executive / Senior Management team would be 
appropriate 

CEO 31.10.17 21.09.17:  Discussion with CEO awaited. On track 

2 Junior Doctor training improvement plans to form 
part of standard performance management process at 
SMT and CSC level with oversight by Quality 
Committee and Board.  

DHR 30.11.17 11.09.17: Director Medical Education to undertake 
lead role and develop initial plans for discussion at 
SMT 11.10.17. 
23.10.17: Director Medical Education to undertake 

On track 
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lead role and develop initial plans for discussion at 
SMT November 2017 with presentation to Board 
December 2017. 
13.11.17: SMT presentation 08.11.17 agreed to be 
standard agenda item for CSC performance reviews. 
Board update due 07.11.17 

3 Guardian of working hours role clearly defined and 
systems to support contractual compliance 
introduced.   

DHR 30.11.17 11.09.17: Guardian report to be presented to 
October 2017 Trust Board Meeting. 
23.10.17: Further updates required in January 2018. 
13.11.17: Board update due on 07.11.17 

On track 

4 Standard local induction arrangements introduced 
and monitored through local competency 
arrangements.   

DHR 30.11.17 11.09.17:  Meeting with Director Education 13.09.17 
13.11.17: Spot checks undertaken on AHP workforce 
on 30.10.17, fully compliant. Ongoing compliance 
checked through QIP.  

On track 

5 Examine ways to assess experience of military staff 
working in the Trust 

DHR 30.11.17 21.09.17:  Learning & Development team 
considering options for carrying out assessments in 
ways which best support the Trust in the effective 
deployment of military staff.  Existing methods 
already in use by military units to be included in 
consideration.    

On track 

6 Deanery reports, local surveys, informal feedback and 
GMC survey results to be reviewed in detail for 
suitable assurance data  

DHR 30.11.17 21.09.17:  Meeting with Director of Education to 
conduct review planned for end of October. 
23.10.17:  Meeting in October to form basis for SMT 
discussion in November. 
13.11.17: SMT presentation 08.11.17 agreed to be 
standard agenda item for CSC performance reviews. 
Board update due 07.11.17 

On track 
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BAF17:  Disconnect between the Trust Board and other staff Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

Staff have reported a lack of connection between themselves and 
the Trust Board, and associated lack of confidence that the Trust 
Board is a) fully aware of the pressures faced routinely by staff and 
patients or b) committed to addressing them.   
This leads to an increased risk of failure to engage in initiatives to  

· improve patient safety
· improve patient experience
· improve compliance with constitutional access standards
· address and harassment problems
· achieve the Workforce Race Equality Standard
· deliver financial health and sustainability targets

and to poor results in the national staff survey and Well-led 
assessment 

1
2
3
4b 
4c 
5 
4a, d 

CEO 24.08.17 CQC  
report 

12 
3 x 4 

4 
2 x 2 

12 
3 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
The cumulative effect of addressing this risk and the actions 
set out at BAF5, BAF6, BAF8, BAF14, BAF15, BAF16 and 
BAF20 is likely to be a reduction in both the potential impact 
of an actual or perceived disconnect (because there will be 
improved monitoring and management systems in place to 
identify and address such impacts) and in the likelihood that 
any disconnect will be felt.  A reduction in both scores is 
therefore achievable. 
Trust risk register links 
13, 19, 302, 303, 304, 784, 785, 794 

Causes of the risk · Ineffective Clinical Governance systems
· Board and senior leadership instability

Current methods 
of management 

· All Board member engagement / visits / events etc. recorded by Exec admin team
· Clinical Quality Review visits
· Existing Organisational Development Strategy
· Listening into Action and Weekly CEO staff engagement sessions

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Staff survey results are in top quartile for staff

engagement
· Q1 I&E control total achieved

· 24.08.17 CQC report summary, page 2 (2 items)
· Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work 62% in Q1, 65% in Q4
· Q1 CIP £1.3m below plan

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 

See actions set out at 
· BAF5
· BAF6
· BAF8

· BAF14
· BAF15
· BAF16

· BAF20
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BAF18:  Emergency floor Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The physical environment (layout, capacity and fabric) of the 
emergency floor at the Queen Alexandra Hospital is poor, leading to 

· Delays in patient assessment during periods of overcrowding,
including delays to ambulance handover 

· Impaired coordination / delivery of care at times of overcrowding
· Increased risk of patient harm from cold weather in HALO areas
· Increased risk of harm to patients and staff arising from

inadequacy of appropriate environment in which to deliver acute
mental health care

· Poor patient and staff experience

· Inefficiency, including disproportionate rate of admission at peak
times to reduce emergency floor over-crowding

1 

1
1
1

2a – d, 4a, 
4e 
3a – d, 3f, 
5b, 5d 

COO 2010 Risk 
Ass’mt 

12 
3x4 

2 
1x2 

12 
3x4 

Rationale for target rating 
In the long run (3-5 years), redevelopment will remove the 
problems associated with current layout and condition of the 
building.  As a result, the likelihood that anyone (staff 
or patient) will suffer because of the layout will be very 
low.  In the short to mid-term however, the risk will remain 
high until the redevelopment is complete. 
Trust risk register links 
16 

Causes of the risk · Historic lack on investment in the Emergency floor; exclusion of the emergency floor from the PFI project
· Lack of available capital for re-development (see also BAF8)
· Lack of clarity re: Trust strategy (see also BAF8)

Current methods 
of management 

· Deployment of, and reliance on, premium cost workforce to manage times when patient volumes exceed capacity
· Reactive responses to individual patients’ needs
· Usual range of clinical governance monitoring and response

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Decrease in Emergency Department complaints:

o Q1 2016/17 – 33
o Q4 2016/17 – 36
o Q1 2017/18 - 28

· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (1 item)
· No 12 hour trolley waits in August (peak of 95 in March)

· 390 patient safety incidents in ED reported during August
– highest number amongst all CSCs
o 9 SIRIs in ED in August (including 5 DTAs)

· 01.02.17 CQC report summary, page 3 (2 items)
· 1 associated “must do” requirement CQC report 24.08.17
· 1 associated “should do” requirement CQC report

01.02.17
· Four hour access standard at 78.6% in August (target 95%)
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· A&E performance element of STF funding not achieved
during Q1

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Develop and present ED re-configuration business 

case to Trust Board and key regulators 
DoF 31.03.18 07.09.17: under development On track 

2 Creation of Urgent Care Centre commissioned by CCG 
to divert non-ED patients  

COO 31.03.18 25.09.17:  Director of Delivery (Fareham and 
Gosport and South Eastern Hampshire Clinical 
Commissioning Groups) - will be leading/discussing 
commissioning of the new service in terms of 
staffing and immediate operational performance. 
Start-up arrangements to be discussed with Trust 
COO in coming week.  

At risk 
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BAF19:  Trust leadership Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

The Trust’s senior leadership has been unstable, and the leadership 
structure is unsuitable.  These factors inhibit the holding to account of 
leaders in the Trust, leading to impaired ability to deliver improved  

· Patient safety
· Patient experience / engagement
· Performance against national constitutional standards
· Staff satisfaction
· Response to bullying and harassment
· Performance in the well-led assessment
· Financial health and sustainability

1a - b 
2a – d 
3a – f 
4a, 4e 
4b 
4d 
5 

CEO 01.10.17 Risk 
ass’ment 

12 
3 x 4 

4 
2 x 2 

12 
3 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
Improving resilience at all levels of the organisation through 
improved organisational culture, the implementation of an 
accountability framework (BAF5) and revising organisational 
structure will make the Trust as a whole less dependent on 
the most senior tiers of leadership and management, thereby 
reducing the impact of instability at board level.  Making a 
number of key executive appointments in the coming months 
will reduce the likelihood of further instability. 
Trust risk register links 
13, 19, 302, 304, 784 

Causes of the risk · Departure of Chief Executive
· Significant use of interims over last 12 months

Current methods 
of management 

· Usual clinical governance systems

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 
· Reduction in formal complaints to Trust for Q1

o 17% reduction on Q4 2016/17
o 28% reduction on Q1 2016/17

· Q1 Inpatient FFT satisfaction (96.6%) above nat avg (96%)
· Q1 ED FFT satisfaction score (94.5%) above nat avg (87%)
· Q1 OPD FFT satisfaction score (94%) increase on Q4
· SIRIs per 1000 bed days Q2 = 0.4 (Q1 = 1.4)

o Other incidents Q2 = 3278  (Q1 = 4887)
· Q1 Pulse survey results “I feel able and supported to raise

concerns about unsafe practice”: 76% (Q4 76%)
· 0.9% turnover in August, 1.3% in July

· Harm free care Q2 = 98.55% (Q1 = 98.67%)
· 1 Never Event in Q2
· Q1 Pulse survey: staff recommendation of PHT as place to

work:  62% (Q4 65%)
· Q1 Pulse survey: bullying, harassment, abuse dealt with

swiftly and appropriately: 56% (Q4 53%)
· Q1 Pulse survey: “I am able to make improvements

happen”: 64% (Q4 N/A)
· Rolling 12 month staff turnover 12% in August
· Sickness absence above target in August: 3.4%
· Q1 CIP programme £1.3m behind plan

167



Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 2017/8 Board Assurance Framework    

· 54 contacts to new Respect Me hotline
· Q1 I&E control total achieved

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 

See all actions at BAF5 
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BAF20:  Support functions Objectives 
affected 

Lead Date 
id’d 

Source Initial 
rating 

Target 
rating 

Current 
rating 

There is a lack of capacity and expertise in a number of key support 
functions, including Finance, HR, Corporate Governance, strategy and 
the Transformation Team leading to impaired ability to 

· Deliver improvements to patient safety
· Deliver improvements to patient experience
· Deliver against national constitutional standards
· Recruit and retain the best staff to all areas of the Trust
· Achieve financial health & sustainability

1
2
3
4e 
5 

CEO Risk 
ass’ment 

12 
3 x 4 

4 
2 x 2 

12 
3 x 4 

Rationale for target rating 
The introduction of improved systems and processes, 
including an accountability framework (BAF5), and the 
introduction of improved IMT systems (BAF2) will help 
reduce the impact of back-office under capacity.  Addressing 
capacity and expertise issues identified in the planned review 
will also reduce the likelihood that such problems will arise. 
Trust risk register links 
13, 22, 19, 406, 784, 785, 786, 788 

Causes of the risk · Prioritisation of investment in clinical services and functions over back office / support services
· Data Quality Group meets regularly

Current methods 
of management 

· Acknowledgement of the risks presented by lack of both specialist knowledge and skills (e.g., planning) and general capacity
(e.g., for ensuring and assuring data quality)

Current assurance Positive assurance Negative assurance 

None available currently None available currently 

Planned actions to reduce the risk / improve assurance 
Action Lead Due Update Status 
1 Create and appoint to new Director of Strategy, 

Governance and Performance role 
CEO 31.12.17 21.09.17: Advert closed 17.09.17; interviews 

9.10.17. 
24.10.17: As BAF 14. 

On track 

2 Recruit to Trust Secretary post CEO 31.12.17 21.09.17:  model JD and person specs being sought.  
Action to transfer to new Director role upon 
appointment. 
24.10.17: As BAF 14. 

On track 

3 Recruit Head of Strategy to lead and support planning 
functions 

CEO 31.12.17 21.09.17:  model JD and person specs being sought.  
Action to transfer to new Director role upon 

On track 
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appointment. 
24.10.17: Recruitment underway. 
28.11.17: Recruitment successful and appointment 
made 

4 Undertake capacity and capability review of back 
office functions 

CEO 31.12.17 21.09.17:  New Director to undertake. 
24.10.17: CEO in discussion with Executive Directors 
to review effectiveness of their structures.  

On track 

5 Look at alignment of back office functions across STP 
and ACS 

CEO 31.03.18 21.09.17:  To be raised at STP meetings.  Dependent 
on collaboration of partners. 
24.10.17: This is now being led by Director of HR and 
OD. 

On track 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017 Agenda Item Number: 225/17 
Enclosure Number: (7) 

Subject: Operational Winter Resilience Plan 2017/18 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Paul Bostock – Director of Operations Unscheduled Care 

Paul Bytheway – Chief Operating Officer 

Purpose of paper Advise Trust Board on winter preparation 2017/18 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

· To be aware of the national requirements for managing
Winter 17/18

· To be sighted on the predicted demand and capacity
required to meet the demand over Q3 & 4 in 2017/18

· To be sighted on the actions planned to deliver operational
resilience and performance over the Winter period

· To be aware and to approve the indicative additional costs of
delivering the Winter Plan c£2.1m

· To be sighted on the risks of non-delivery of the plan

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

· Approval to implement the actions within the plan

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

· Publication of the Winter Plan

· Implementation of the Winter Plan

· Share with system partners

· Daily/Weekly review of the actions and outcomes through:

o 4 x Daily Ops meetings
o Urgent Care Plan Board
o Senior Management Team
o General Managers Meeting

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     None 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

None 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities 2a; 3a; 4d; 5c 

Board Assurance Framework/ BAF 1, 7, 14 171



Risk Register Reference 

Risk Description 

CQC Reference 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

Executive Management Team 
Trust Board Seminar  

24/10/17 
26/10/17 
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1. Executive Summary 
 

2. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this plan is to describe the arrangements put in place by PHT to secure 
resilience and operational performance through the winter months and to meet the 
national requirements of NHS England and NHS Improvement. 

 
The Winter Resilience Plan will cover the following key elements: 
 

 emergency activity predictions for winter 2017/18 
 capacity, resource and plans needed to support delivery of services to meet 

demand  
 plans to close the forecasted gaps in capacity 
 clinical and operational escalation plans 

The plan will be delivered through Clinical Service Centres (CSCs), and effective Site 
Operations management. At lower levels of escalation CSC’s will be expected to flex and 
manage own pressures; but at higher levels of escalation, an increased focus will be 
through command and control measures.  

3. Context 

In order to ensure that winter, and the pressures that winter brings, is managed safely and 
effectively NHS England and NHS Improvement have set clear expectations about the 
winter operating model and principles they require systems to deliver to.  These include: 

3.1 Local Winter Teams 

Each system is required to establish local winter teams with authority and accountability 
for management and delivery of the winter plans and should include: 

 A hospital doctor, nurse & operating manager who are accountable for the 
management of urgent and emergency care and who have a direct relationship with 
the CEO of the Trust.  

 A local cross-system winter operations team, consisting of the following roles, with 
sufficient capacity released to operate the joint local arrangements and at a level of 
seniority sufficient to commit organisational resources:  

o A senior manager responsible for UEC in the CCG 
o Local Authority Social Care Director – nominated by the Local Authorities.  
o Community Provider Senior Operational Lead.  

3.2 Local Escalation Plans 

 The local escalation plans are to ensure that: 

 All patients who are to be admitted have a timely ‘Decision to Admit’ to ensure they 
do not need to remain in the ED for any longer than is clinically necessary 

 Patients are not cared for on hospital corridors 
 Escalations beds have the necessary staffing and equipment to ensure safe care.  
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 12 hour trolley waits in the ED never happen
 Patients do not wait more than 15 minutes in ambulances before being handed over

to the hospital
 The hospital can manage increasing demand because of flu, norovirus

Portsmouth hospitals has been categorised as a Level 4 Trust which places us amongst 
the 20 most challenge organisations in the country with regard to delivery of the 4 hour 
emergency standard. 

The Trust is expected to deliver a minimum 90% performance against the 4 hour standard 
by the end of Q4. 

4. Aims and Objectives of the Operational Winter Resilience Plan

This plan will ensure that the national requirements are met and will:

 Provide assurance of the planning process undertaken in preparation for Q3 and
Q4 with actions to support operational resilience over winter.

 Ensure capacity and care space meets increased demand
 Ensure plans are in place to respond to business continuity issues such as staff

absence, severe weather, influenza, norovirus and mortuary capacity.
 Ensure sufficient resources are identified and made available for Q3 and Q4 to

maintain patient safety and support delivery of the Constitutional Standards
 Ensure that system partners are clear on the required support required in which to

deliver the plan
 Effective joint working amongst CSCs within the Organisation and with our external

partners

5. Review of previous activity and actions

The learning from previous years will assist in ensuring the plan focusses on addressing
these in time for winter this year.

5.1 Learning from previous years

 Previous year’s plans outlined reliance on a reduction in medically fit numbers and
successful D2A models.  The recent medically fit and other D2A related projects
aimed at reducing the backlog have so far not delivered the reductions that were
anticipated.  As a result, the expectation that this can be solved in time to assist
with winter should not be taken into account

 High number of unexpected Flu cases in ITU meant numerous patients had to be
cohorted in ITU at times.  There is a detailed plan to ensure that Flu patients are
managed across the hospital this year.

 Extended waits for diagnostics meant further delays for patients.  There is a plan
this year to increase CT scanning capacity for Q4

 Increased pressure from Mental Health attendances and slow movement in to
psychiatric beds
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 The Trust experienced a high number of breaches against the 12 hour decision to
admit standard.  The Trust has now adopted a zero tolerance to 12 hour trolley
waits.

 High numbers of Medicine and MOPRs outliers throughout winter.  Actions have
been taken to reconfigure the medical & MOPRs bed base and to reduce the
number of outliers across the Trust.

 Length of Stay within MOPRs increased.  A frailty unit has now been established
and a there has been a reduction in MOPRs length of stay.

 Escalation triggers not always acted upon timely enough to prevent further
deterioration of the Trusts position.  There has been considerable revision of the
OPEL escalation triggers over the past few months.

5.2 Activity review of 2016/7 

Figure 1 shows the non-elective activity through each CSC last year, each given week. 

It can be seen that: 

 On the highest weeks within Emergency Medicine (MAU) the take averaged at
approximately 75 a day.

 With MOPRs and Medicine demand on top of the EM demand, the higher surge
weeks averaged at an approximate take of up to 90

 Particular surges were seen w/c 12.12.17 and the first two weeks in January, this
pattern has been seen year on year

 Surgery saw a particular surge at the end of November and mid January, differing
from the pattern seen within Medicine specialties

Figure 1 – Non-elective Admissions November 2016 – January 2017 
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6. Activity forecasts & Predicted demand 2017/18

In order to aid robust and effective modelling and planning an analysis of predicted 
demand has been produced 

6.1 ED Attendances & Ambulances 

Figure 2 shows the predicted demand in ED attendances and Ambulance arrivals 

Figure 2 – Predicted Demand in ED attendances and Ambulances Arrivals 

A peak can be seen over the New Year period, along with the end of November and this 
plan will explain how these peaks in demand will be managed and mitigated against. 

6.2 Non Elective Admissions 

Figure 3 shows the predicted non-elective activity with bed occupancy set at 92% and a 
2% growth increase applied.  As in previous years there is a particular spike in demand in 
the first week of January.  The plans that are being put in place will mitigate against this 
planned spike in order to return the Trust to ‘business as usual’ as quickly as possible.  
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Figure 3 – Adult Non elective Admissions (exc maternity) 

6.3 Predicted bed capacity deficit 

Based on this predicted activity, and with bed occupancy set at 92% and a 2% growth 
increase, the Trust position before any mitigation is shown below: 

Predicted Bed Demand v Capacity @ 92% Occupancy 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Funded Bed Base 913 913 913 913 913 913

Predicted Bed Demand 
92% occupancy 

1,035 1,036 1,020 1,045 1,055 1,046 

Shortfall 122 123 107 132 142 133 
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6.4 Local Escalation Plans to Mitigate the Deficit 

To deliver 92% average bed occupancy and with the current average length of stay of 7.7 
days the Trust needs the equivalent of c1,000 adult and general beds.  However, over the 
winter period the predicted demand can be as much as 1,055 beds.   

Current bed occupancy for the organisation is c97% although for the medical specialties 
this is much higher and is c120 – 125% 

The current funded bed base is 913 and so to bridge the gap between the actual capacity 
and the predicted capacity there will need to be a combination of plans to create more 
physical capacity (additional beds/use of escalation areas) and to improve operational 
efficiency and performance, through reducing length of stay and the number of patients 
who are delayed, to create virtual bed capacity. 

The plans that are being put in place at present that are a combination of additional 
capacity and/or operational improvement and efficiency can deliver is 1,049 beds.   

Planned Mitigations 

Baseline Capacity 913 

Continue to Use E4 for MOPRs step down patients 18 

Reduce length of stay by 0.5 days in medicine through red2green/SAFER 16 

Reduce length of stay by 2 days in MOPRS through creation of Frailty Unit on 
G4 and Red2Green/SAFER 

23 

Convert an MSK ward (D1) for MOPRs step down patients from Mid-October 28 

Deliver further overall length of stay improvements with additional CT 
scanner from Q4 (0.25 days across emergency bed base) 

16 

Increase capacity with a healthcare@home bridging service for pathway 1 
patients from Q4 

15 

Consider  limited escalation capacity in time of acute operational pressure 20 

Total Actual/Equivalent Beds 1,049 
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Predicted Bed Demand v Capacity with Mitigations @ 92% Occupancy 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Funded Bed Base 913 913 913 913 913 913

Predicted Bed Demand 
92% occupancy 

1,035 1,036 1,020 1,045 1,055 1,046 

Planned Mitigations 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,049 1,049 1,049 

Shortfall 17 18 2 +4 6 +3

The Trust has made no allowance for a reduction in DTOCs or MFFDs so if these numbers 
start to reduce then capacity can be closed or further improvements to occupancy can be 
achieved and the deficits in the capacity required can be mitigated. However, if they 
increase then it is likely that the Trust’s bed occupancy will increase. 

In order to mitigate the capacity deficits in December and February it may be necessary to 
temporarily increase the use of escalation capacity. 

7. Further Detailed Plans to Manage Winter 2017/18

7.1 Local Winter Teams 

In order to meet the requirement for local winter teams the A&E Delivery Board has 
identified a central group of key senior system leaders who form a ‘virtual executive 
escalation team’.  This group forms ‘Gold Command’ with the A&E Delivery Board Chair, 
and is responsible for managing extreme levels of surge and demand including all partners 
declaring OPEL 4. 

Escalation role Name Designation 

A&E Delivery Board Chair Mark Cubbon CEO Portsmouth Hospitals NHS FT 

SRO System Resilience Alison Edgington Director of Delivery PESH CCGs 

SRO for Urgent and Emergency 
Care, and Chair of A&E Operations 
Group 

Sarah Austin Chief Operating Officer and 
Commercial Director for Solent NHS 
Trust 

Chair of the seasonal group and 
chair of the daily teleconference 

Tracy Davies Head of System Resilience 
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Escalation role Name Designation 

Designated leads accountable for the management of urgent and emergency care and having a direct 
relationship with the CEO of the Portsmouth NHS Foundation Trust: 

Designated Senior Hospital Doctor Mark Roland Associate Medical Director 
Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Chief Senior Nurse Theresa Murphy Director of Nursing Portsmouth 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

Designated Operational Manager Paul Bytheway Chief Operating Officer 

Role Name Designation 

Designated local cross-system winter operations team, at a level of seniority sufficient to commit organisational 
resources 

Designated senior manager Alison Edgington Director of Delivery PESH CCGs 

Designated Local Authority Social 
Care Director 

Karen Jackson Hampshire County Council 

Angela Dryer Portsmouth City Council 

Designated Community Senior 
Operational Lead 

Sarah Austin Chief Operating Officer and 
Commercial Director for Solent NHS 
Trust 

Paula Hull Director of Operations Southern 
Health NHS Trust 

7.2 Unscheduled Care Transformation Programme 

The Unscheduled Care Transformation Programme is in progress and many work streams 
are either coming to fruition or will continue through the winter months.  Patient flow remains a 
key issue and schemes are designed to address this. 2020 management consultants are also 
providing intensive support from mid-September until mid-December to support the 
programme and its implementation.   

The schemes within the programme will not only assist in the resilience through winter but will 
continue beyond this and ensure the Trust is working more efficiently for the future. These 
include: 

 A new medical model
 Roll out of the SAFER bundle across every ward in the Organisation
 Roll out of Red to Green across every ward in the Organisation
 End Pyjama Paralysis
 Last 1000 days campaign

7.3 Reduction in Bed Occupancy & Additional Capacity 

In order to secure flow through the hospital and subsequent space in the Emergency 
Department to accept patients, the Trust is working towards reducing bed occupancy in time 
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for winter. The aim is to reduce the bed occupancy to 92%. The following will work towards 
delivering this: 

 Opening of a short stay Frailty Unit and a temporary increase in MOPRS beds in order
to support a reboot of unscheduled care on the 7th October 2017.  The short stay unit
will aim to discharge patients to the appropriate place within 72 hours and is intended
to significantly reduce length of stay.  Early signs are positive and show a reduction in
length of stay for MOPRS patients.

 Patients unable to move on will be transferred to a new dedicated 28 bed ward which is
focussed on intense discharge planning and therapy in order to safely discharge
patients quicker.  This capacity has been created by reducing elective orthopaedic
operating and converting an MSK ward to MOPRS (D1)

 18 surgical beds on D7 have been reallocated to medicine to allow vascular/general
medical patients to be cohorted and overseen by a dedicated team of medical staff.
This will reduce outliers and subsequent safari ward rounds, therefore increasing
efficiency and thus reducing length of stay.

 Focus on Stranded patients and Top 20 Delays.  Stranded patient meetings will
continue and there is now a daily report produced that shows the breakdown of
stranded patients by ward.  There is also a weekly Top 20 delay meeting chaired by
the Chief Operating Officer.

 Provide additional diagnostic capacity issues which support a reduction in length of
stay and more timely clinical decision making.  The hire of a mobile CT scanner will
take place for the winter months for ED and inpatient use only.

 Develop a proposal with healthcare@home for a bridging proposal for pathway 1
patients from Q4

 Continue to use FAB beds until March 2108

7.4 Working with partners to ensure rapid and sustained improvements to the 
unscheduled care pathway, reduce DTOCs and Medically Fit for Discharge numbers 

Overall there has been little change in the overall numbers of patients delayed.  However, 
when the data is split by Portsmouth and Hampshire there has been a reduction in 
Portsmouth delays but this benefit has been negated by a steep increase in Hampshire 
delays. 
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The plans that the system are putting in place to address this include: 

 

 Establishing Trusted Assessor roles within the Organisation; Trusted Assessors 
who can restart packages of care for other Organisations and Trusted Assessors 
who can ratify Continuing Health Care and Fast Track applications 

 Moving towards further implementation of Discharge to Assess on the back of the 
above MFFD work 

 Placing additional Band 3 Discharge Planning Assistants on wards to manage the 
patient discharge planning processes until March 17 
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 To continue to embed Portsmouth Re-enablement & Rehabilitation Team into the
discharge process

 To continue to embed Hampshire’s Community Response Team (CRT) into the
discharge process and for the Enhanced Recovery Team (ERS@Home) to
supplement capacity and progress bridging where required

 Commencing the Red Bag initiative with partners
 Working with partners in implementing the national eight high impact changes for

managing DTOCs:

 Early Discharge Planning
 Systems to Monitor Patient flow
 Multi-Disciplinary Multi-Agency Discharge Teams (Including Voluntary and

Community sector)
 Home First Discharge to Assess
 Seven-Day Services
 Trusted Assessors
 Focus on Choice
 Enhancing Health in Care homes

7.5 ‘Home for Christmas’ 

System partners are working up plans to release capacity in community services for 
patients, either at home or in a community bed, in a way that would give sufficient capacity 
and flow during the Christmas period.  Where a patients discharge is into a care home IDS 
will continue to liaise with the independent sector and work with them to ensure patients are 
moved ahead of Christmas.  During December IDS will utilise and focus the stranded 
patient meetings on moving patients to ensure that the hospital is at 80% occupancy by 
Christmas Eve.  The plan will be signed off by early December.

8. Elective Activity

A significant component of the Operational Winter Resilience Plan is the realignment of
MSK/MOPRS bed capacity.  In order to create more MOPRs bed capacity MSK elective
activity has been curtailed through the winter months.  The activity that can be delivered will
be provided by:

 Up to 35 Elective MSK patients/cases outsourced a month
 Urgent cases and very long waiters cases will be managed through G5 (the Private

Patient Unit)

The implications of this for the MSK waiting list are shown below 

 975 fewer operations between October and March
 272 more patients over 18 weeks at the end of March
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9. Additional winter actions

9.1 Emergency Department and AMU 

 Mental Health nurse on duty 24/7 within the Obs Ward
 UCC – new streaming process to be implemented from 1st November (based on Luton

and Dunstable model) to ensure maximum utilisation of GP pathway.
 Development of the tracker role to assist nursing staff in majors 1
 Additional Medical support OOH to support nights and weekends (night and weekend

Consultant SpR and SHO shifts out to NHSP/Agency)
 Focused work on improving GP pathway (QI fellowship application submitted)
 Early GP assessment in dedicated area with Nursing support
 Working with 20:20 to maximise use of AEC and increase ‘pull’ from ED

9.2 Operational Grip 

 New weekday site meeting at 18.00 in place since beginning of November with senior
management support to agree plan for each night

 Plans to ensure on-site presence at weekends from the on-call managers
 Re-defined roles and responsibilities of CSC Silver Command
 Extra patient flow coordinator on duty to support MOPRS flow and early bird

discharges
 Continue to fully focus on avoiding 4 hour breaches
 Focus on avoiding 12 hour arrival time breaches (ahead of DTA times)
 Focus on obtaining early bird and next day discharges and ensuring patients are ready

to move earlier in the day, making full use of the Discharge Unit
 Oversee all weekend planning, ensuring CSCs have secure plans to manage

weekends and the Bank Holiday
 Continue through winter with Weekend Discharge Team at weekends
 Increased opening hours for the Discharge Unit

35 Spire, 8 Harbour 
beds, 30 planned 

(continued OP WLI & 
OS) 

month on 
month % 
growth 

Average growth 
to be used to 
predict 17/18 
performance 

Monthly elective 
activity lost / 
remaining on 

ADM WL 

Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 

Total WL size (RTT pts only) 1% 0% 155 4069 4261 4457 4656 4859 5065 5275 

Total Backlog 12% 3% 446 487 530 574 620 668 718 

% incompletes 89.0 88.6 88.1 87.7 87.2 86.8 86.4 

Trust Total Position 90.5 90.2 89.9 89.6 89.4 89.1 
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10. Christmas & First 2 weeks of January

10.1 PHT Op’s Centre Leadership 

 Over the Christmas, New Year period and the first 2 weeks of January the Ops meetings 
will be run in a control and command style and led by the triumvirate of Director of 
Operations – Unscheduled Care, Associate Medical Director of Operations and Associate 
Director of Nursing.  There will also be additional senior support until 20.00 each evening 
(nurse/manager/doctor) to support the on-call teams and Duty Hospital Manager. 

10.2  Reduction of all non-essential/emergency activities 

 To create sufficient bed capacity and maintain flow with timely decision making and 
discharge plans each CSC has reviewed their elective and non-emergency commitments 
to ensure that the minimum amount of elective activity takes place. 

By cancelling all non-essential meetings and reducing the elective activity taking place in 
theatres and outpatients this will create: 

 Additional bed capacity
 More senior decision makers to undertake additional ward rounds
 More senior decision makers to vet inter-speciality referrals and diagnostic requests

to ensure timely decision makers
 Support for early discharges and timely transfers
 Additional support to ED and the emergency corridor
 Additional Junior Doctor cover for the wards
 Additional therapy support and cover for the wards
 Sufficient trauma operating capacity

Each CSC has produced detailed plans and will submit a day to day planner as to how this 
will be managed for this period.  Plans include: 

 Additional inpatient lists for procedures/investigations at weekends over the BH
period

 Theatre activity
 Timetable outlining who is available each day from the CSC management teams
 Medical cover
 Staffing plans
 Additional actions to manage predicted surges
 Opening hours of support service

11. Financial Implications

 The current estimated costs of implementing the Winter Plan are shown below and are
estimated to be c£2.1m, this has been included within the current financial estimate.
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12.   Other Actions to Manage Winter 2017/18 

 

12.1 Trust Capacity Management Policy 

 The Trust will continue to follow the national OPEL triggers to identify their escalation 
status. The Trust will follow the Trust Escalation Plan embedded within the Capacity 
Management Policy to ensure all actions are exhausted at each trigger in order to prevent 
deterioration in the position and to cope with any surges or peaks in demand.  Please 
follow link below to view. 

Capacity Management Policy 

12.2 Full Capacity Policy 

 When ED has reached its’ maximum number of patients (or is rapidly approaching this 
maximum) the risk to patient and staff safety is increased.   These pressures can 
occasionally be extreme and normal contingency planning and command and control 
structures are insufficient to promote a speedy return to normal operating. Balancing and 
sharing risk is part of the Trust’s action in discharging its’ duty of care to patients and staff. 
Allocating one extra patient to suitable wards shares this risk across the Trust and reduces 
it in A&E (ECIST 2011) The Full Capacity Protocol must be referred to and describes the 
process of risk sharing across the Trust when the ED department has more patients than it 
can safely care. Please follow link below to view. 

http://www.porthosp.nhs.uk/about-us/policies-and-
guidelines/policies/Management/Full%20Capacity%20Policy.doc 

Winter Plan Assumptions £000's Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar TOTAL

Lost income

Reduce elective activity by removing 28 bedded ward for 6 months 422 844 844 844 844 844 4,641

Impact of AIC offsetting income loss (395) (789) (789) (789) (789) (789) (4,341)

Net Income Loss (non local commissioners) 27 54 54 55 55 55 300

Direct improvement costs

Consumable Savings (90) (180) (180) (180) (180) (180) (988)

Mobile MRI scanner power pad 25 25

Mobile CT Scanner + reporting/consumables 209 210 209 210 838

Additional middle grade overnight in ED 20 20 20 20 20 100

Weekend Discharge Team 9 9 9 9 9 9 52

Domiciliary care capacity or temporary additional ward 50 50 50 50 50 50 300

20:20 consultancy to support delivery of Urgent Care Improvement Plan 100 100 100 300

Acute Frailty Unit 59 84 84 84 84 84 478

Cost of ward changes + additional support 28 41 50 51 61 61 294

PMO to support the execution of all internal (PHT) activities at pace 100 100 100 100 400

Total direct costs 57 149 442 444 353 354 1,799

Total impact on bottom line 84 203 496 499 408 409 2,099
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12.3 Conference calls 

It is intended to hold daily conference calls with system partners to ensure all escalation 
triggers and actions are followed. 

In the event of the position deteriorating in any Organisation across the system the CCG 
may take the decision to hold a conference call. These will be action focussed and held on 
the understanding that individual cases/issues have been discussed prior to the call 
between relevant organisations.  Invites to the call will be sent round by the CCG. The 
Conference Call Terms of Reference, dial in number and phone can be found in the 
Operations Centre. 

12.4  SCAS and Ambulance Diverts 

 The SCAS Escalation Action Plan (REAP) is a structured set of actions to assist in their 
Business Continuity Management (BCM). For the purposes of planning, 6 levels of 
escalation will be utilised within, they have been developed and agreed by the National 
Director of Operations Group (NDOG). These levels will be used to determine what actions 
are necessary to protect the Ambulance Trust’s core services and supply the best possible 
level of service with the resources available. At REAP level 2 and above the Ambulance 
Service will provide a liaison officer at the Trust.  

The Trust is committed to working with SCAS to minimize ambulance handover delays and 
to avoid being in a position where ambulances cannot be released from the QA site. 

12.5 Inclement weather 

 The Trust receives severe weather warnings as well as weather alerts and forecasts from 
the Met Office, this will allow the Trust to put into operation the appropriate plans in a 
timely fashion. In the event of receiving a warning of adverse weather conditions, such as 
snow leading to closed roads and limited transport facilities, the Communications Team 
will cascade warnings along with any actions required. All staff should make an early 
assessment of travel plans during inclement weather and it is their responsibility to 
exhaust every potential transport/ambulatory arrangements that will enable them to attend 
for duty. 

 The Estates Department have a planned process of maintaining the grounds of the Trust 
when ice and snow laden. The plan conforms to best practice in maintaining the access 
and egress of emergency vehicles and main pathways before any additional areas.  The 
Estates Department will also assess and manage the Park and Ride service.  Any break in 
service will be communicated via the Communications Team.  

 The Trusts CSCs Business Continuity Plans will be used to escalate and plan for service 
disruption recovery relating to reduced staffing which cannot be addressed primarily by a 
divisional / departmental Service Business Continuity Plans. 

The Trust Inclement Weather plan should be consulted: 

http://pht/bcep/Emergency%20Planning/Weather/Cold%20Weather%20Snow%20Plan.docx 
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12.6 Influenza 

The Trust has updated the flu plan for 2017/18 and this will be published in early 
December.  It has a clear process for how patients should be managed upon presentation 
to ED or the assessment units and how patients should be cohorted within designated 
wards if admission is required.  It also includes:  

 Staff immunisation campaign
 Stock, equipment and testing
 Fit Testing
 ITU and ED plans to manage patients
 Virtual Ward

12.7  Mortuary capacity 

The mortuary capacity at PHT has a total capacity of 157 spaces with the ability to hire 
further fridge space if required. 

The mortuary holds a Winter Plan outlining how they will manage in the event of excess 
deaths during the winter period.   

Emergency Planning - CPPOLM010 Winter Pressures Mortuary.pdf 

13 Key Performance Indicators 

 There are a number of internal and external metrics that will monitor the progress and 
delivery of the winter plan.  These include SENTINEL metrics and thresholds that have 
been developed with support from NHSI and will be reported daily/weekly/monthly.  The 
metrics include: 

 MFFD numbers
 Escalation beds
 Medical & MOPRS outliers
 AMU speciality triaged patients
 Discharges per day (simple and complex)
 Stranded patients
 4 hour performance
 Length of stay
 Bed occupancy
 Admissions
 Ambulance conveyances
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14. Conclusion

The winter months are always challenging for the NHS with increased admissions and
longer lengths of stay due to increased acuity. This plan has set out the actions that
Portsmouth Hospitals is taking to meet the anticipated demand and how the actions will be
monitored to ensure that patient safety is maintained.

The organisation has the support of external partners who are currently continuing to
reduce the numbers of patients delayed and is supporting the Trust with a number of
initiatives to reduce the number of medically fit significantly over the first two weeks of
December and again in the run up to the Christmas week.

The supporting presentation will show how these initiatives and the overall plan will
support us.  Health economy plan will support the Trust with reducing bed occupancy;
maintaining safety and to continue to show improvement with the Trust Urgent Care
Agenda.
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62 Day Cancer First Definitive Treatment (FDT) Recovery Plan 

1.0 Introduction 

This paper aims to provide a view of the Trust’s current cancer performance, outlining issues 
leading to the deterioration in performance, actions being taken to address this, along with 
forecast performance for the next 3 months and the subsequent recovery trajectory to return 
to a sustainable position of delivery. 

2.0 Background 

The Trust achieved the 62 day FDT cancer standard in April and May 2017; however, since 
June 2017 there has been a decline in performance as shown in Figure 1. 

Figure 1:  Monthly cancer performance against 62 day standard 

3.0 Diagnostic delays and impact on the cancer pathway 

The challenge for the Trust for deliver the 62 day FDT cancer standard has been in relation to 
the diagnostic phase of the pathway.  The majority of the patients referred onto a 2 week wait 
suspected cancer pathway will require diagnostic procedures before a positive or negative 
cancer diagnosis can be made.   Delays to this element of the pathway have had a significant 
impact on performance, especially in complex pathways where multiple diagnostic procedures 
are required. 

The internal standard for a diagnostic report following CT, MRI or biopsy to be available is 7 
days post procedure. However, the Trust has experienced specific challenges in key areas as 
outlined below. 

3.1 Histopathology: 

· The average diagnostic reporting turnaround time for patients on a cancer pathway is
14 days and, following treatment, 21 days.  To improve this delay patients at the 14
day point in their pathway are escalated by each Business Manager to the Pathology
General Manager and this is monitored via the weekly Trust Access Assurance
Meeting, to ensure an improvement in a timely reporting

· Where multiple or repeat diagnostics are required, this can significantly extend the
pathway and lead to breaches of the 62 day FDT cancer standard
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· Enhanced monitoring of those patients that are at 14 days or above is in place via the
weekly Trust Access Assurance meeting to ensure compliance

3.2 MRI and CT Scans: 

· MRI, CT and USS were identified as a challenge in the planning phase for 2017.  The
service has adjusted booking templates to try and support the capacity required

· The ability to meet demand has been impacted by the radiology service experiencing
ongoing challenges to successfully recruit to consultant and allied health professional
vacancies, employment and locum staff and outsourcing is helping to mitigate some of
this risk

· Timely vetting of a scan request reduces the referral to scan time.  Where possible, the
radiology service has delegated this task to suitably qualified allied health
professionals, releasing skilled radiologist time

· Implementation of specialty improvement plans to deliver both cancer and 18 week
RTT (referral to treatment) standards have been agreed and are being managed
through weekly performance meetings

· The Trust Board has supported an investment to outsource a proportion of routine
radiology CT and MRI scan reporting to other providers.  The current plan will need
further review in 2018 to continue with provision of an additional 5000 scan report
capacity per annum, thus releasing time to support the cancer pathway reporting

· The radiology service continues to review processes and pathways to ensure effective
use of capacity to support delivery of the cancer standards (further details in appendix
1)

· A temporary CT scanner will be in place for the Trust through winter to support
inpatient activity.  This will also provide on average an additional 15 scans per day to
support cancer pathway delivery.  However, many cancer CT scans require specifically
skilled personnel and this performance is reliant on their availability

3.3 Urology MRI Ultrasound Fusion Guided Biopsy: 

· USS and MRI are the two main types of imaging used to aid prostate cancer diagnosis.
Recent advancements now recommend use of MRI USS Fusion Guided Biopsy for
some patients suspected of having prostatic cancer.  This procedure requires access
to a skilled radiologist and urologist, along with theatre time.  In 2016/17 average
prostate biopsy procedures was 18 per month, 2017/18 is now experiencing demand of
an average of 23 per month.  The service has developed a backlog of over 30 patients
awaiting prostate biopsy with an average wait of 33 days
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· The Trust has recently been successful in a bid for national cancer funding and has
secured a £91k investment for urology.  This will be used to create additional operating
and pathology capacity to manage the current backlog for fusion guided biopsy.  This
will not have an immediate impact on the delivery of the 62 day FDT cancer standard,
however, the aim is for a patient on a prostate pathway requiring fusion biopsy to have
the wait for this diagnostic procedure reduced from 33 days to 14 days by January
2018.  This will be as an improved pathway and reduction in backlog

· The prostate pathway is also implementing a straight to biopsy element in January
2018 (as per Trust Cancer Improvement and Sustainability Plan), this will further assist
to reduce the length of the current prostate pathway for many patients.  This will have a
positive impact for patient experience and support overall Trust delivery of the 62 day
FDT cancer standard by February 2018

3.4 Trust Standard 62 Day Cancer Pathway: 

· Figure 2 demonstrates the internal standard for delivery of each element of the cancer
pathway as incorporated into the Trust Cancer Access Policy.  Delays in the diagnostic
procedure being conducted and/or reported will clearly have an adverse impact on the
ability to deliver a cancer treatment within a 62 day pathway.  It should also be noted
that patients with complex pathways will require multiple diagnostic procedures,
extending their waits further

· Each tumour site will offer the first outpatient appointment prior to Day 14 to reduce the
overall timed pathway (in most specialties this will be lower)

· More robust adherence to timed pathway management is required across all tumour
sites to enable the opportunity to reduce delays to a patient’s treatment.  This is
incorporated into the Trust Cancer Improvement and Sustainability Plan

· Each patient that is close to breaching the 62 day standard is reviewed on a named
basis at the Trust wide weekly Access Assurance Meeting to determine what can be
done to expedite any element of the pathway to treatment.  Any delays in
histopathology and/or radiology reporting are escalated to the Clinical Support
Services representative to manage this

· IT and Information Services are developing a live system which will enable review of
every potential cancer patient referred for a CT/MRI scan, when the scan has been
performed and when it has been reported.  This will support close monitoring from
within the cancer PTL meetings, but also at the weekly Trust wide Access Assurance
Meeting to expedite any potential delays for patients

· An external review by a “critical friend” will be undertaken in 2018 to confirm
robustness of performance structure to ensure we sustain performance
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Figure 2:  Standard 62 day FDT cancer pathway  
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4.0 Intra-trust cancer referrals (CARP): 

· The Trust is a cancer centre and therefore receives referrals from surrounding trusts
for the treatment of cancer patients and has received 237 such referrals since April 17

· The national cancer breach sharing guidance indicates that the maximum point for a
Trust to receive a referral to allow the receiving trust to treat the patient within 62 days
is 38 days.   65% of referrals were received in 38 days

· However, of the remaining 35%, 19 referrals were received after the 62 day breach
date and 12 referrals after the 104 day breach date, this has an adverse impact on the
Trust being able to deliver a cancer treatment pathway for patients within the 62 day
standard.  Patients who are late referrals are often at the early part of their pathway,
requiring further diagnostic procedures before treatment can commence

· National breach sharing guidance was due to be introduced in April 17, however
technical delays have meant this has not yet been mandated and areas have been left
to make local agreements.  Wessex region have been asked by trusts to facilitate a
local interim arrangement but this not yet been agreed or applied

· The Trust continues to work with neighbouring Trusts to minimise the referral delays to
reduce the impact on patients and aims to treat these patients as soon as is possible to
reduce further delays

· By applying the national guidance the Trusts performance would deliver at 82.5% in
October 2017 (provisional)

5.0 Breaches of the maximum 104 day waiting time: 

· The Trust has been working to an internal maximum wait of 91 days for patients on a
62 day pathway, prior to the implementation of the national standard of 104 days. All
patients who have breached the 62 day FDT standard, along with those who have
breached the 104 day cancer standard are reviewed weekly on a named patient basis
at the Trust wide Access Assurance Meeting. Full RCA (route cause analysis) are
completed for each breach and reviewed monthly at the Trust wide Access Assurance
Meeting with shared learning from delay reasons.  Trends are also shared at the
monthly Trust Cancer Steering Group

· Key themes from the breach analysis have been complex pathways where multiple
diagnostics have been required; late intra-trust referral (CARP); patient compliance
and pathway issues.  Pathway improvements have resulted as an outcome of the key
learning from the RCA process
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6.0 Current Performance and Forecast for Next 3 Months: 

· There are currently 1,762 patients on the cancer 62 day PTL (patient tracking list), of
these, 114 have confirmed cancer and 23 (unadjusted for patient choice) have
breached the 62 day FDT cancer standard.  Appendix 2 shows performance by tumour
site

· 145.5 patients have been, or will be treated within 62 days in October and 29 patients
have or will be treated over 62 days before validation and patient choice adjustment.
(0.5 patients relate to shared breach status of a patient referred to/from another cancer
centre)

· The expected level of treatments in October is 145.5 with a forecast performance of
80.1% (figure 3)

· 88.5 patients have been treated so far in November of these 30 have been potentially
treated past breach date (patient choice delays and validation has not been accounted
for) with a current performance of 81.2% (as at 30th November 2017) which is above
the planned trajectory shown in figure 3

· December’s forecast is based on average treatments and breaches, taking into
account patients often choose to delay treatment in the pre-Christmas period and time
cannot be deducted unless they are awaiting inpatient treatment

· Our plan will ensure there is sufficient capacity in place to avoid delays for patients on
a cancer pathway during Christmas / New Year 2017/18

Figure 3:  Three month forecast for 62 day FDT performance 

7.0 Recovery plan and sustainability 

7.1 Cancer Improvement and Sustainability Plan: (Appendix 2): 

· The Trust has utilised the NHSi template to agree a Cancer Improvement and
Sustainability Plan (Appendix 1), which has been populated by the cancer
management team, along with the speciality managers and lead clinicians for the
challenged tumour sites.  The plan includes overarching actions for the Trust, that have
been identified through external audits and assessments discussed below.  Specific
actions for tumour sites with performance below the require standard, along with
actions for the diagnostic element of the pathway are incorporated into the plan.
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Trajectories for delivery of the 62 day FDT standard are developed within this plan and 
are managed through the Trust Performance Assurance Group 

 
· The Trust is a participant in the Wessex Cancer Collaborative which is working to drive 

improved cancer performance in a number of areas, including specific challenged 
tumour sites where performance is significantly below standard e.g. urology, lower GI.  
Key recommendations from the Collaborative are incorporated into the Trust Cancer 
Improvement and Sustainability Plan 

 
· The Trust has recently undertaken an external audit by TIAA of 62 day FDT cancer 

performance which gave an overall score of reasonable assurance noting several 
areas of good practice but recommending areas for improvement which have also 
been built into the Trust Cancer Improvement and Sustainability Plan. These include 
greater use of the RCA undertaken for all 62 day breaches to drive improvement; 
reporting of cancer training compliance to Cancer Steering group and audit of 
compliance by tumour sites with the Trust Cancer Operational and Access policy 

 
· The planned improvements outlined above will enable the Trust to deliver an improved 

cancer performance and be able to offer treatment to patients within 62 days from 
February 2018 as shown in figure 4 
 

 
Figure 4:  Cancer 62 day FDT improvement trajectory 
 

 
 
 
8.0 Next Steps and Challenges: 
 

· Performance against delivery of the Trust Cancer Improvement and Sustainability Plan 
will be monitored at the weekly Trust wide Access Assurance Meeting, with a special 
measures approach for tumour sites not achieving improvement as outlined. This will 
also be reviewed at the monthly Cancer Steering Group 
 

· Careful monitoring of the diagnostic waiting times and reporting times will take place at 
the Trust wide Access Assurance Meeting, with escalation to the Cancer Steering 
Group and through executive CSC performance review meetings, as appropriate. In 
the interim this will be reported by exception at the weekly Trust wide Access 
Assurance Meeting 
 

· Monitoring of delivery against trajectory and mitigation will be reviewed on a weekly 
basis from December with performance meetings with the Chief Operating Officer, 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer and Head of Performance 
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· Fundamental to sustained delivery will be continued reduction in the waits for access to
diagnostic procedures and subsequent diagnostic reporting. This will be supported by
the additional 4th CT scanner and careful monitoring with the CSC

· Revisiting the provision and resource of cancer management in the Trust.   Currently
there is not a dedicated cancer team or information provision to support improvement
and sustainability and this will need review

· Short to medium term investment in additional theatre sessions to both support
backlog clearance and sustainable performance, specifically in urology

· Input from “critical friend” support from NHSi to determine any further opportunities and
to assure out sustainability plan

9.0 Conclusion: 

· The Trust has experienced deterioration in performance of the 62 day FDT cancer
standard throughout the summer 2017.  This has been as a consequence of increased
demand exacerbating the existing clinical capacity constraints for diagnostic
procedures and some tumour specific treatments

· With additional capacity being created, improvements in the overall patient pathways
are now being realised.  However, there remains a backlog of patients to be treated
before the 62 day FDT cancer standard can be delivered sustainably

· Continued and careful monitoring of waits to diagnostic procedure and subsequent
treatment will be maintained to ensure prompt decision-making to flex short term
capacity to meet demand and deliver treatment within the cancer standard

· A three month rolling forecast report will be reviewed at the Trust wide Weekly Access
Assurance meeting, to further identify any risks to performance, which will be reviewed
weekly at the Chief Operating Officers new weekly performance meetings
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Appendix 1

Month Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18
Breast 85.7 91.3 88.9 91.7 100.0 100.0 86.2 89.1 100.0 92.3 94.7 100.0 88.9 89.8 75.5 75.5 88.5 88.0 83.3
Dermatology 92.2 88.2 94.5 97.6 94 94 97 95.6 96.4 93 100.0 96.4 92.5 97.5 96.9 97.1 92.3 100 97.5
Gynaecology 81.0 90.0 75.0 78.9 100 100 100 85.7 86.7 100 100.0 84.6 100.0 90.0 83.3 82.1 83.3 80.0 93.8
Head & Neck 68.8 62.5 73.3 78.6 87 100 85 92.0 80.0 79 100.0 88.9 81.8 100.0 73.7 76.7 80.0 83.3 73.3
Lower GI 36.4 45.5 75.0 69.2 50 40 56 29.2 47.8 64 61.8 22.2 81.8 57.1 50.0 40.0 59.3 76.0 42.4
Respiratory 56.3 61.5 85.0 85.0 50 90 72 85.7 85.7 75 66.7 100.0 78.6 57.1 80.0 75.0 88.9 70.0 50.0
Upper GI 88.9 87.5 80.0 82.1 100 83 92 87.0 100.0 64 81.8 83.3 100.0 96.2 75.9 68.2 77.3 87.0 73.7
Urology 63.0 64.5 68.8 67.9 67.9 67.3 75.9 76.2 63.6 94 55.6 81.0 66.7 89.7 85.9 64.7 59.3 66.7 83.9
Total Trust 75.0 75.0 80.2 82.6 84.0 85.1 85.0 83.5 82.8 86 84.8 86.1 86.5 88.1 82.0 79.7 79.4 83.5 81.8

62 day FDT by Tumour Site
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Appendix 2

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

1
Audit of compliance with 
cancer national guidance 
and best practice

Timetable of audits agreed to 
cover all tumour sites by end of 
March 2018, audits completed 
and compliance to be included in 
monthly report to cancer steering 
group

Head of 
Performance

Audits 
completed to 
date to be 
reported to 
steering group 
October 17

All tumour sites 
audited and 
outcomes 

reported to 
steering group 

with action 
plans to address 
issues identified 

in the audit

Audit timetable completed to 
ensure all tumour sites 
covered, audit forms revised to 
include specific cancer 
questions to test compliance. 2 
audits completed

on track

2 Training

all relevant staff to have 
completed and passed the cancer 
ESR training in the last 12 
months. To be reported monthly 
to cancer steering group

Head of 
Performance

Training 
module 

refreshed

Update to 
October 
meeting

All tumour 
sites to ensure 
that all staff 
have 
completed 
training and 
this is 
evidenced by 
ESR record

Evidenced by report and this 
was provided to cancer 
steering group

on track

3
Monitoring against key 
stage of treatment 
milestones

achievement of key milestones to 
be part of tumour site PTL 
meetings with exception 
reporting to SAAM

Head of 
Information 

Services

reports to be 
developed and 

tested

outliers 
identified and 

action plan 
developed to 

address

performance 
monitored 

weekly at SAAM

sample report developed and 
tested, report needs to be 
automated and added to 

cancer dashboard so can be 
monitored weekly, to be 

completed by end of 
November

further work 
required to 

deliver by end 
of November

To continue to engage and 
support partners to ensure both 
actual and potential referral alert 
provided as early as possible

Cancer 
Manager

delayed to due delay in 
national solution and 

implementation of breach 
sharing guidance, internal 
solution being progressed

Some 
progress, IOW 

remains a 
challenge 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust - Cancer 62 day Recovery and Sustainability Plan to Support 
2017/18 Improvement Trajectory : Over-arching Actions

Action 
No.

Improvement Need Action Lead
Milestone / Target

Update / Progress Status

  

Monitoring of intratrust referrals against breach sharing 
guidance and show improvement against 15/16

JL Head of Performance Overarching Actions 03/10/17201
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To develop and agree standard 
pathways with key diagnostics 
completed or in place for 
referrals

Cancer 
Manager

25% 
compliance

50% 
compliance

75% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

update required

Forms part of 
Regional 

Timed 
Pathways

To develop monitoring and 
reporting to support new breach 
sharing guidance

Head of 
Information 

Services

Fully in place 
by end of Q1

maintain maintain maintain
national reporting delayed 
further work required to 
deliver internal solution

further work 
required to 

deliver by end 
of November

All tumour to hold CSC level PTL 
meetings weekly recording 
attendance and key actions

Cancer 
Manager/Depu

ty Medical 
Director

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

review compliance and request 
evidence to be reviewed by 
cancer steering group, further 
targeted work to ensure 
compliance and engagement

Actions from 
TIAA - Tighter 
Governance

All tumour sites to attend SAAM
Deputy Chief 

Operating 
Officer

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

All attending on track

Any tumour site not achieving 
trajectory will be required to 
provide a special measures report 
weekly and to attend with general 
manager the weekly special 
measures meeting

Deputy Chief 
Operating 

Officer

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

100% 
compliance

Lower GI and urology in special 
measures action plans being 
reviewed and recovery 
trajectories developed to move 
back to national average 
performance as minimum as 
agreed

MF to review 
and confirm 
actions to 
address and 
agree 
trajectory for 
improvement 
by end 
October

4
Intertrust referral 
pathways

JL Head of Performance Overarching Actions 03/10/17202



Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Version 2

Lead clinician to attend tumour 
site specific PTL meetings to 
inform decision making and 
progression of individual patients 
to treatment.

Cancer 
Manager/ 

Deputy Medical 
Director

timing of 
meetings to be 
reviewed to 
ensure 
compliance, 
record log of 
attendance to 
be kept and 
evidence to be 
provided to 
cancer steering 
group

Progress against compliance by 
tumour site to be reported to 
cancer steering group in 
November

Action from 
TIAA - 
Discussed at 
Oct Cancer 
steering group 
(CSG)

All breaches of the 62 day 
standard will have RCA 
completed, and these reviewed 
and signed off by lead clinician

Cancer 
Manager/ Head 
of Performance

all 62 day 
breaches have 
RCA 
completed, 
however 
quality and 
completion 
needs to be 
improved so 
these are a 
driver for 
change

all tumour 
sites to ensure 
process in 
place so that 
RCA are fully 
completed and 
signed off by 
lead clinician

sample testing of compliance 
to be undertaken and results 
reported to cancer steering 
group in November

Partial 
Compliance 
TIAA Action - 
Discussed at 
Oct CSG

Key themes report for 62 day 
breaches to be developed and 
reviewed at cancer steering group 
and used as the basis for 
improving patient pathways

Cancer 
Manager

Key themes 
report to be 
developed and 
summary 
report to be 
provided both 
to steering 
group and to 
trust board

RCA are completed but key 
themes report needs to be 
developed.

Requested for 
Nov CSG

5 Governance
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All patients breaching 104 day 
standard will have RCA completed 
and signed off by lead clinician 
and these will be reviewed in 
detail at SAAM on a monthly 
basis, key themes and risks will be 
used to improve patient 
pathways

Head of 
Performance

all completed 
and reviewed 
at SAAM

all completed 
and reviewed 
at SAAM

Key themes 
report to be 
developed and 
summary 
report to be 
provided both 
to steering 
group and to 
trust board

RCA are reviewed individually 
at SAAM and included in IPR, 
key themes report needs to be 
developed so that actions can 
be taken to improve pathways

Benchmarking of tumour site 
performance against national 
average performance for 31 day 
and 62 day standards by tumour 
site to be undertaken twice a 
year. Where performance is 
below national average pathways 
and action plans will be reviewed 
in detail to determine blockages 
and plans developed to address 
these.

Head of 
Performance

benchmarkin
g report 
provided to 
cancer 
steering 
group, 
tumour sites 
achieving less 
than national 
average 
tasked with 
reviewing 
pathways to 
ensure 
compliant 
with 
achievement 
of standard

urology have 
reviewed and 
enhanced 
pathway ways 
to change 
sequencing of 
diagnostic tests 
and to create 
more capacity. 
Work has 
commenced on 
review of LGI 
pathways

Further 
diagnostic 
capacity 
agreed and 
delivered for 
urology and 
additional 
theatre 
sessions 
agreed to 
progress to 
treatment.

Further review of LGI pathway 
required to ensure faster 
diagnostics to shorten overall 
pathway length as 31 day 
compliant - end of quarter 3

on track

Development of clinical harm 
review process for patients 
breaching 104 day standard

Deputy Medical 
Director/Medic

al Director

Timetable for 
this to be 
agreed and 
built into 
existing clinical 
harm review 
panels

To be in place and operational 
during Q4
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6 Reporting

Cancer dashboard to be reviewed 
and further developed to enable 
tumour site reporting of 
compliance with overarching 
actions e.g. % of RCA completed 
& signed off

Head of 
Information 

Services / Head 
of Performance

New 
information 
manager now 
in post so this 
can now be 
progressed

Updated 
dashboard in 

place and used

Progress against this to be 
monitored at regular 
performance information 
meetings

delayed work 
to build feed 

from 
diagnostic 

information 
system to be 
completed 

end of 
November
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017 Agenda Item Number: 227/17 
Enclosure Number: (9) 

Subject:  Briefing to Trust Board on CQC Radiology Report 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

John Knighton, Medical Director 

John Knighton, Medical Director 

Purpose of paper  Assurance 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

· CQC Report key findings

· Actions taken following Section 31 Notice 28th July

· Further proposed actions to ensure lessons learned and
ongoing risks identified and mitigated

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

 Support of outline approach 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

Commence external reviews and establishing of Clinical Advisory 
Group (CAG) 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

None specifically 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

Constituent member of CAG? 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference 

Risk Description 

CQC Reference 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 
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Radiology CQC Report and addressing potential ongoing risks 
Trust Board Briefing 

The CQC identified in their Section 31 Notice of 28th July 2017, and in their Quality Report 
published 1st December 2017, a number of failings associated with the Trust’s failure to 
report plain X-Ray films in PHT. These included:  

1. Inconsistent application of  PHT’s policy for reporting ED plain films, since around
2011

2. Inadequate governance around the decision to implement and continue to use a
policy of non-reporting of plain films, between 2007 and the CQC’s  inspection in July
2017

3. A 12 month backlog of Emergency Department (ED)  images of around  23,000
images

4. Delegation of responsibility to interpret CXR films to  inadequately trained individuals,
including junior doctors

5. Harm identified in 3 patients between 2015 - 2017 in whom the lack of a formal chest
X-Ray (CXR) report contributed to a poor outcome

6. Lack of adequate and ongoing risk assessment and audit to ensure that the policy
was appropriate and that risks of its use were quantified and mitigated

PHT Response following the CQC Section 31 Notice 28th July 
Immediately following the publication of the Section 31 Notice PHT took steps to introduce a 
number of measures to ensure the safety of patients: 

· Maximised the use of all additional internal staffing capacity to report plain films
· Secured capacity for increased outsourcing of radiology plain film reporting
· Increased training of radiographers in reporting plain films
· Described an approach to the CQC (outlined below) for ensuring that ED plain film X-

Rays were reported prospectively, and that a detailed retrospective assessment of
potential harm in patients whose films had not been reported was undertaken over a
prolonged period

· PHT reported to the CQC on the 4 stipulations within the Section 31 Notice on a
weekly basis since 21 August 2017

Ongoing assessment and identification of potential risks 
Emergency Department (ED) Plain film X Ray backlog (commenced September 2017) 

1. Retrospective reporting of ED plain films (CXR > 80%, AXR and some axial
musculoskeletal) commenced 20th September 2017 for a specified clinically relevant
18 month period, discussed with the CQC at the feedback session on the day of
inspection. Total backlog figure for 18 months 30,221. Trajectory for completion
February 2018 – on track through maximum use of outsourcing. Additional capacity
continues to be sought to bring this date forward. Currently retrospective reporting
completed back to 1st March 2017 –around 12,000 images

2. Prospective reporting of ED plain films commenced 20th September 2017
3. Thus far there 1.3% of films reported have been recalled for further assessment

(predominantly to confirm resolution of changes seen at initial presentation. In 4
cases there were significant missed lesions that could have led to harm. Each of
these has been reviewed through SI process. Any further cases of potential harm
identified during the backlog review will be managed through  formal SI process
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External review of the Trust’s decisions not to report plain film radiology 
An independent external review, commissioned by the Trust, and undertaken by the 
independent governance experts Verita, has been commissioned.  This will review the risk-
assessment, mitigation and corporate governance underpinning the decision by the Trust not 
to report the majority of plain film radiology from 2007 onwards. It will examine the Trust’s 
subsequent review and handling of those decisions, and the processes of local and 
corporate governance, up to the identification of the risks described by the CQC.  

The scope of this external review will include identifying all opportunities for organisational 
learning, with the specific aim of ensuring a similar occurrence does not happen in the 
future, related to Radiology or another service. 

Clinical Advisory Group (CAG) with stakeholder and external representation to be 
established 
To oversee further audit and assessment of risks and harm related to unreported plain film 
radiology across PHT and in addition, to inform and guide the use of these audits to revise 
the existing PHT Plain Film Reporting and Evaluation Policy.  

Chaired by Non-Exec Director or Medical Director 

Membership to include: 

· PHT Radiology lead
· PHT Chest Physician
· GP Representative x 2
· External Radiographer
· NHSI representative
· External Radiologist (could also potentially bye the NHSI representative)
· Advice available from statistician regarding

Terms of reference to focus on providing external scrutiny and decision-support regarding 
quality, time-frames and appropriate standards for PHT audit and harm review of unreported 
radiology beyond the ED. The CAG will not undertake clinical reviews though might be called 
on to arbitrate over specific cases. 

Extended audit and harm review of unreported plain films from other, non-ED, 
inpatient or outpatient areas to be commenced 

1. Guided and overseen by CAG as defined above
2. Defined time-period for retrospective audit/harm review: to be confirmed by CAG

based on clinically relevant period. Suggested 18 months as per ED
3. Prospective audit to ensure ongoing risk assessment and mitigation
4. Sampling method: to be confirmed by CAG. To be used in both retrospective and

prospective audits. Undertaking formal reporting of all films retrospectively is not
feasible and overall risk likely to be low given that these films will all have been
reviewed by owning teams.  Therefore, as suggested in CQC response, it is
proposed that 10% of the clinically relevant time period in individual clinical services,
across inpatient and outpatient services, are sampled and formally reported using the
same methodology as for ED backlog. These would be reported, using additional
Radiology outsourcing, and any potential instances of harm identified and managed
through the SI process with full disclosure and Duty of Candour to any patients
affected
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5. The results of these sample audits across clinical services will determine need for 
extended sampling or in-depth review, either of number of cases or time frame 

6. The results of these audits across clinical services will inform the review and revision 
of the PHT Plain Film Reporting and Evaluation Policy to ensure that any clinical risk 
of unreported plain film radiology is appropriately mitigated. This will be overseen by 
the CAG.  

 

PHT Plain Film Reporting and Evaluation Policy to be revised 
The policy is now being followed as per its current version. The Medical Director and Chief 
Executive believe that the PHT policy needs revising, with a significantly greater degree of 
risk assessment to support any areas where plain films are not reported by a trained 
specialist .  

 

The policy will be reviewed in the light of the CQC’s National information request and the 
local PHT audits being undertaken, to ensure that PHT plain films are reported appropriately 
and that in any areas of approved non-reporting there is sufficient risk mitigation. The current 
ED backlog reviews, plus the proposed reporting samples across the inpatient and 
outpatient areas will inform the detail of the new policy. Prospective audit will be the ongoing 
assurance of appropriate risk assessment. 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017 Agenda Item Number: 228/17 
Enclosure Number: (10) 

Subject: Charitable Funds Annual Report and Annual Accounts 2016/17 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Lee Williams, Head of Financial Accounting 

Peter Mellor, Director of Corporate Affairs 

Purpose of paper Statutory requirement for the Board to receive and approve the 
Charitable Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2016/17 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

- The Charitable Funds Committee received the draft annual
report and accounts in September

- The External Auditors have completed their testing and will be
issuing their audit results report shortly.  The results report is
expected to give an unqualified opinion and make reference to
two immaterial uncorrected errors

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

- To note the draft Charitable Fund Annual Report and Accounts
2016/17

- To give the Charitable Funds Committee delegated authority to
accept the External Audit Annual Results Report and to make
any final amendments to the accounts if required

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

- Following acceptance of the Annual Results Report the Chief
Executive and the Chairman to sign the Annual Report as
required

- Annual Report and Accounts to be uploaded to the Charity
Commission website by 31st January 2018

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

N/A 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities 2 – Continually Improve the Patient Experience 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference 

N/A 

Risk Description N/A 

CQC Reference N/A 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 
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Portsmouth Hospitals Charity 
A Registered Charity (No.1047986) 

Trustee’s Annual Report for the year ending 31st March 2017 

Foreword 

Welcome to our annual report and accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017, prepared by the Corporate Trustee in 
accordance with the Charities Act 2011 and the Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing 
their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK (FRS102). 

The Charity has a Corporate Trustee: Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust. Decisions are made on behalf of the charity by 
the Trust Board of the NHS Trust. 

The members of the Trust Board who have acted on behalf of the Sole Corporate Trustee during the year to 31st March 
2017 are: - 

Sir Ian Carruthers Chairman 
Mark Nellthorp Non-Executive Director 
Elizabeth Conway Non-Executive Director 
Steve Erskine Non-Executive Director 
Michael Attenborough-Cox Non-Executive Director 
John Smith Non-Executive Director (until 24/03/17) 
Ursula Ward Preceding Chief Executive Officer (until 20/12/16) 
Tim Powell Interim Chief Executive (from 27/05/16) 
Chris Adcock Director of Finance 
Simon Holmes Medical Director 
Simon Jupp Director of Strategy (until 02/01/17) the Executive Director on secondment to 

Solent NHS Trust from 03/01/17 
Rob Haigh Director of Unscheduled Care (from 18/07/16) 
Cathy Stone Director of Nursing 
Tim Powell Director of Workforce and Organisational Development (non voting) (until 26/05/16) 
Rebecca Kopecek Interim Director of Workforce and Organisational Development (non voting) 

(from 27/05/16) 
Sheila Roberts Interim Chief Operating Officer (from 06/02/17) 
Ed Donald Chief Operating Officer (until 02/01/17) then Executive Director 

Reference and Administrative details 

The Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust General Charitable Fund was registered with the Charity Commissioners as a NHS 
Umbrella Charity by Declaration of Trust in July 1995, charity number 1047986. During 2014/15 it was decided to re-
name the charity to Portsmouth Hospitals Charity, the Charity Commission approved this on the 8th June 2015. 

The registered and principal office of the charity is: 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 
Queen Alexandra Hospital 
Southwick Hill Road, Cosham 
Portsmouth, Hampshire PO6 3LY 
The Trust Board have delegated the authority for the management of the charities to the Trust’s Charitable Funds 
Committee. 
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Under the Terms of Reference, the Committee comprises one Non-Executive Director, one Executive Director, two 
divisional representatives, at least one representative from fund-raising, finance and patient experience teams and one 
Governor Representative. The Charitable Funds Committee operates within a reporting framework to the Trust Board. 
 
The Terms of Reference of the Charitable Funds Committee are: 

· To approve expenditure in accordance with charitable policies. 
· To receive and review the quarterly portfolio update. 
· To update and maintain policies and procedures in accordance with Charity Commission guidance and charity 

law. 
· To receive and approve annual expenditure plans. 
· To participate in drafting the charitable fund annual report and accounts. 
· To monitor the progress in attaining Rocky Appeal targets. 
· To ensure costed proposals for new appeals are presented to the Executive Management Team and the Trust 

Board. 
 
The Audit Committee are responsible for reviewing the charitable fund investment policy, the appointment of fund 
advisors and approving the charitable fund annual accounts and report.  
 
Within the Portsmouth Hospitals Charity are a number of delegated funds which relate to various wards, departments and 
specialties directly associated with Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust. Each of these funds has at least two signatories, 
who act as fund holders on a day to day basis. 
 
It is expected that the fund holders manage these funds in accordance with the Standing Financial Instructions, Standing 
Orders, Charitable Funds Code of Procedures and Scheme of Delegation as set by the Corporate Trustee. There have 
been no material changes to these policies and procedures this year.   
 
Principal Professional Advisors 
 
The Trust Board have employed the following professional advisers during the financial year: - 
 
 Bankers     Solicitors 
 HSBC Midland Bank plc   Mills & Reeve 
 118 Commercial Road   Midland House, 132 Hagley Road 
 Portsmouth PO1 1EP   Birmingham, West Midlands, B16 9NN 
 
 Auditors     

Ernst & Young LLP      
 Wessex House, 19 Threefield Lane,   

Southampton, SO14 3QB     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

Structure, Governance and Management 
 
The Umbrella Charity has twenty-three NHS Special Purpose Charities linked to it, all of which were formed by 
Declaration of Trust.   
 
The General Charitable Fund is unrestricted; all donations received by the charity without naming a specific department 
to benefit will be placed in this fund. This fund is administered by the Chief Executive Officer and the Director of 
Finance. 
 
The twenty-two specialty funds are delegated funds. These funds include the Rocky Appeal and the specialty funds held 
within the hospital. 
 
The twenty-one specialty funds (excluding the Rocky Appeal) are then sub-divided into internal departmental/ward 
funds.  
 
The objectives of the Umbrella Charity and its Special Purpose Charities are: 
 
General Charitable Fund (Umbrella Charity) - Funds are held for any charitable purpose relating to the National 
Health Service. 
 
 
Special Purpose Charities - 
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Rocky Appeal Funds are held for the relief of sickness by the development, improvement, and maintenance of clinical 
services provided by Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust. 

The current Rocky Appeal was launched in April 2007 for state-of-the-art Digital Keyhole Operating 
Theatres. Three theatres have been installed and £2.4 million is now being raised to fund a robot to 
complement the operating theatres. 

Twenty one ‘specialty’ charities 

Funds are held for any charitable purpose relating to the specialty services provided by Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust. 

Cardiology  Dermatology 
General Medicine  Renal Medicine 
Accident & Emergency Orthopaedics 
Rheumatology   General Surgery 
Ear, Nose & Throat Maxillofacial 
Intensive Therapy  Ophthalmology  
Radiotherapy  Endoscopy  
Imaging   Pathology 
Paediatrics  Maternity 
Gynaecology  Medicine for Older People  
Urology  

Members of the Trust Board and the Charitable Funds Committee are not individual trustees under charity law but act as 
agents on behalf of the Corporate Trustee. Non-Executive Members’ of the Trust Board are appointed by the NHS 
Appointments Commission and Executive members of the Board are subject to recruitment by the NHS Board. The NHS 
Trust, as Corporate Trustee, appoints a Charitable Funds Committee to manage the charity under delegated authority. 

The structure of the delegated authority administered by the charity is as follows: 

     Corporate Trustee: Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

Trust Board 

Charitable Funds Committee             Audit Committee 

Newly appointed members of the NHS Trust Board undertake a rigorous induction process, which includes an overview 
of the charity.  All new members have an initial one to one meeting with the Chairman, Executive Directors and are 
provided with a mentor. All members of the Board have access to the Charitable Funds Code of Procedures, Charitable 
Fund Committee Terms of Reference, minutes of the committee meetings and two members of the Trust Board are 
appointed to the Charitable Funds Committee, in accordance with the Terms of Reference.  

Acting for the Corporate Trustee, the Charitable Funds Committee is responsible for the overall management of the 
Charitable Fund and meet at least bi-monthly. 

The Charitable Funds Committee is required to: 
· Keep proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the fund held

on trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements in the Charities Act and the
Statement of Recommended Practice by charities (SORP) 2005, updated 2008.

· Establish and monitor a system of internal control.
· Establish arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.
· Advise the Trust Board on the performance and risks of the charity.

The Audit Committee is required to: 
· Review the Annual Report and Financial Statements.
· Review the Governance Report and confirm any non adjusted accounting errors.

The accounting records and day-to-day administration of the fund are dealt with by the Director of Finance located at the 
principal office. 
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Risk Management 

The Trustee has identified the major risks faced by the charity. The risk register shows the controls which exist to 
mitigate each risk.  The main risks are detailed below: 

Investment Risk (portfolio/investment income volatility) 
An Investment Broker will be commissioned to advise and minimise the investment risk to the charity, when placing 
investments. The Trustee’s investment policy is for low risk, moderate income. Investments are currently held in cash 
whilst an investment review is taking place. 

Income Risk (income not received/non-charitable income in funds) 
A receipt for a charitable funds donation must be completed and logged on the donation register. All donations must be 
acknowledged in writing to the donor and cash is banked through the Trust’s Cashier’s Office, which is the boundary for 
recognition of income. The Receipt for a Charitable Donation is controlled stationery. The Cashiers Office polices the 
controlled stationery system. The donation register is reconciled to the ledger on a monthly basis and any non-charitable 
income identified is removed from the fund and transferred into the appropriate NHS budget. 

Expenditure Risk (non-charitable/fraudulent expenditure) 
Expenditure thresholds are in place, as per the scheme of delegation. All expenditure must be authorised by one 
authorised signatory of the fund, then checked and verified by the Charitable Fund Accountant. All expenditure between 
£5,000 and £50,000 must then also be authorised by the Director of Finance, Chief Executive Officer or Charitable Funds 
Committee. Expenditure over £50,000 must be authorised by the Charitable Funds Committee. A sample audit of 
transactions over £500 is carried out each month. Any non-charitable purchases are charged back to the appropriate NHS 
budget. 

Fundraising Risk (fraudulent/unauthorised fundraising) 
The Trust/Rocky Appeal fundraising team co-ordinate the fundraising processes. All fundraisers taking charity branded 
fundraising equipment of site must sign a fundraising agreement form which is obtained from the Fundraising teams.  

Reputational Risk 
In addition to the specific systems detailed above a comprehensive set of generic Trust and Charitable Fund specific 
procedures are in place, which all members of the organisation are obligated to follow. 

Reserves and Investment Policy 

The Trustee encourages funds to be spent within a short to medium term. This excludes the Rocky Appeal, which must 
necessarily accumulate funds. The Rocky Appeal funds are held within the charity until the Trust incurs expenditure on 
the project. 

The reserves policy has the objective of reserving sufficient funds to cover the known commitments and future plans of 
the charity. The Trustee has established a Reserves and Investment policy to achieve its aim of supporting a healthy 
future by assisting the long term future of Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust by supporting research, education, new 
equipment, staff and patient benefits and environmental improvements. 

A reserve equal to £1 million should be held to provide continuity for achievement of objectives in the event of income 
fluctuations. The current level of reserves is £1.28 million, which slightly exceeds this. The reserve level has been 
reduced from £2 million historically to £1 million. Reserves have reduced by £148,000 over the last 12 months. The 
charity needs to maintain the uncommitted reserves at this level.  

Reserves have been calculated on the following basis: 

Total Charity Funds £1,283,000 
Less Rocky Funds held £1,000 
Reserves held £1,282,000 

The investment policy links to the reserves policy by requiring all commitments to be backed by cash or near-cash 
holdings. The objectives of the investment policy are to: 

· Invest cash securely in order to minimise the risk of any loss or decline in value of the sum invested.
· Protect the liquidity of the funds in order that the charity has the ability to meet all financial liabilities as they

fall due.
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At the moment the funds are held in a Business Reserve account. A review will take place during 2017/18 to determine 
whether investment income can be increased, taking into account the level of reserves, the cost of investing via a broker 
and the need to be able to access the funds quickly.  
 
None of the charitable funds administered by Portsmouth Hospitals have governing documents which specifically bind 
the Trustee to particular investment powers. The funds are therefore administered within the powers of the Trustee 
Investment Act 1961, updated by the Trustee Act 2000. The Trustee received an approved pooling scheme for 
investments from the Charity Commissioners sealed by order on the 17th March 1998.  
 
The pooling scheme has been registered as a subsidiary of the main charity. The common investment fund has been 
named ‘Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust (Expendable Funds) Common Investment Fund’ by the Charity Commission. 
 
The charity seeks to invest ethically and ensure that its investments are not opposed to the objects of the charity. 
Therefore the investment policy eschews, as much as practicable, investments in tobacco related holdings.  
 
The charity has a small investment of shares held with the Charities Official Investment Fund’ (COIF). 
 
Strategic Plan – key aims, objectives and policies 
 
The objective of the charity, as stated in the Trust Deed, is as follows: 
 
“Funds are held for any charitable fund purpose or purposes relating to the services provided by Portsmouth Hospitals 
NHS Trust.” 

The vision of Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust is: 
“To be recognised as a world-class hospital, leading the field through 

innovative healthcare solutions, focused on the best outcome for our 

patients, delivered in a safe, caring and inspiring environment." 

The charity aims to support this vision. Therefore the charity’s vision is: 
 

“Supporting a healthy future by providing additional facilities and equipment, supporting research programmes and 
innovation in the development of services and education to both patients and staff of Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust.” 

 
The Trustee has agreed five key objectives for the management of the charity towards achieving its goal: 
 
1. Stewardship of funds:  

· Annual accounts should receive an unqualified audit report 
· Investment performance should be regularly reviewed 
· All returns required by Charity Commission must be received before the due date 
· All expenditure by the Charity should support the aims of Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust and its partners 
 
 

2. Provision of additional facilities and equipment: 
· The Charity aims to commit at least 50% of total annual income towards this objective. 
 

3. Support and encouragement of research and innovation: 
· All grants and their outcomes should be evaluated annually. 
· The charity aims to commit at least 5% of total annual income towards research and service development 

expenditure. 
 

4. Assisting Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust with its planned developments: 
· The Charity should engage with the Trust to develop a shared case for support. 
· The Charity will commit its unallocated reserves to support any developments, where appropriate. 

5. Maximising the Charity’s fundraising potential: 
· The Charity will invest in fundraising to proactively seek new income. 
· The Charity will set realistic fundraising targets. 
 

The charity achieves its purpose by making grants to the Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust and, on occasion to related 
bodies (e.g. Universities) to fund expenditure on equipment and research and by direct expenditure on staff, education, 
environmental improvements and complimentary services. 
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Objectives for 2017-18 
1. Promote Trust-wide fundraising and achieve an income target of £1.3m, an increase of 17% on 2016/17 income

levels.
2. The Rocky Appeal to raise sufficient funds to support the final Da Vinci Robot lease payment.
3. Continue to manage charity reserves appropriate to the level of annual expenditure.
4. Assess how charity cash is held and, if suitable, procure an Investment Management service.
5. Maintain sound governance and financial management.
6. Maintain a ratio of 0.20% of Charity Income to NHS Income and over the next two years aim to achieve a ratio

0.26%.

Our Activities, Achievements and Performance 

The trustees have paid due regard to Charity Commission guidance on public benefit in deciding what activities the 
charity have undertaken during the year and have continued to support a wide range of charitable purposes. These 
activities include the support of a number of equipping, staffing and environmental purchases. 

Charitable funds are used to enhance patient and staff welfare through the purchase of goods, services or research. The 
funds are used to supplement the services provided by Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust and so the funds are expended on 
items considered to be over and above what the NHS Trust must provide from central NHS funding. The charity’s  net 
assets fell by £162,000 during the year. 

The Joint Consultative Negotiating Committee (JCNC) administers a staff welfare and amenity fund. The Committee 
consists of members of the Trust’s management and departmental staff representatives. Bids are presented to JCNC who 
will assess the charitable nature of the bid. This year JCNC have supported the use of a beach hut, general purchases such 
as microwaves and staff room furniture along with other staff welfare items. The Committee continued to support “The 
Best People Awards” ceremony, an annual celebration of individuals who have been awarded the honour of Portsmouth 
Hospitals “Best People” through a nomination and committee selection process, as well as merchandise for the Trusts flu 
campaign, materials for the Trusts bullying and harassment campaign and prizes for a competition for those who 
completed the NHS Staff Survey. 

The Rocky Appeal financed the 60% of the fourth year’s lease of the Da Vinci Robot, with the Radiotherapy charity 
helping to meet the balance. The total cost was £371,000.  

Our 2016/17 objective of increasing total charity income levels by 10% on the 2015-16 level was achieved, achieving a 
16.8% increase. The Fundraising team are now well established and actively promote the charity; their income target for 
2017/18 has been set at £1.3 million, an increase of 17% on 2016-17 income. 

During 2016/17 the charity continued to support non-commercial research projects in areas where the Trust has 
considerable expertise with a view to developing new therapies for treating and caring for patients. The research 
conducted was approved by the Research and Development department within Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust.  

Grant Making Policy 

This year £836,000 was made in grants to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust. In making grants, the trustee requires that 
the activity falls within the objects of the charity, that the grant request is supported by the Trust and that the funds are 
available to meet the request. During the year £677,000 was granted for capital expenditure, £159,000 on revenue grants. 
See note 3a and 3b of the Annual Accounts for details of material grants. 

Partnership Working and Networks 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust is the main beneficiary of the charity and is a related party by virtue of being a 
Corporate Trustee of the charity. However, when the Trust Board is making decisions regarding the charity it does so 
with the best interests of the charity in mind, as well as Charity Commission guidance, charity law and donors wishes. By 
working in partnership with the Trust, the charitable funds are used to best effect for the benefit of patients and staff. 
When deciding upon the most beneficial way to use funds, the Corporate Trustee has regard to the main activities, 
objectives, strategies and plans of the Trust. 

A Review of our Finances 

During 2016/17 the General (Unrestricted) Fund decreased by £144,000 from £194,000 to £50,000 and the 
restricted/delegated funds decreased by £18,000 from £1,251,000 to £1,233,000.  
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The net assets of the Charitable Funds as at the 31st March 2017 were £1,283,000 (2015/16 £1,445,000). Overall net 
assets decreased by £162,000. This decrease is due to the continued drive to encourage fund managers to utilise their 
funds along with the fourth year lease of the Da Vinci Robot from the Rocky Appeal. 

During 2016/17 we achieved total incoming resources of £1,108,000 up from £949,000 in 2015/16, an increase of 
approximately 17% on the previous year. 

Income Source 2016/17 
£’000 

% 2015/16 
£’000 

% 

Donations 377 34 242 25 
Legacies 330 30 234 25 
Charitable activities (grants) 103 9 53 5 
Other trading activities 293 26 414 44 
Investment income 5 1 6 1 
TOTAL 1,108 100 949 100 

Details of the donation and legacy income by charity are as follows: 

Donation Income 2016/17 
£’000 

% 2015/16 
£’000 

% 

The Rocky Appeal 
Radiotherapy 

182 
37 

48 
10 

106 
27 

44 
11 

Paediatrics 27 7 24 10 
Other services 
General Surgery 
Renal 

20 
4 

47 

5
1

13 

18 
16 
13 

7
7
5

All other charities 60 16 38 16 
TOTAL 377 100 242 100 

Legacy Income 2016/17 
£’000 

% 2015/16 
£’000 

% 

The Rocky Appeal 22 7 115 49 
General Amenity (Unrestricted) 
Renal 
Cardiology 
Paediatrics 

8 
50 
41 
20 

3 
15 
12 
6 

54 
20 
17 
10 

23 
9
7
4

All other charities 189 57 18 8 
TOTAL 330 100 234 100 

Expenditure during 2016/17 was £1,286,000 compared to £1,689,000 in 2015/16. The “contribution towards the NHS” 
during the year was £686,000 (£874,000 in 2015/16). This expenditure relates to medical and other equipment purchases 
such as IT and furniture to enhance patient and staff welfare along with an allocation of governance and support costs. 
See note 3a of the Annual Accounts for further analysis of these grants. 

Total Expenditure 2015/16 
£’000 

% 2015/16 
£’000 

% 

Raising funds 
Medical Research 
Contribution to the NHS – Grants paid 
Contribution to the NHS – Governance and support costs 
Patient Welfare and Amenity 
Staff Welfare and Amenity 

264 
48 

647 
39 

154 
134 

21 
4 

50 
3 

12 
10 

272 
61 

836 
38 

282 
200 

16 
4 

49 
2 

17 
12 

TOTAL 1,286 100 1,689 100 

Grants Paid 2016/17 
£’000 

% 2015/16 
£’000 

% 

The Rocky Appeal  
The General Amenity Fund (Unrestricted) 

371 
68 

57 
10 

371 
111 

44 
13 
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Endoscopy – Equipment 
Paediatrics – Equipment 
Renal  – Equipment  
Ophthalmology – Equipment 
General Medicine – Equipment 

0 
44 
32 
7 
1 

0
7
5
1
0

77 
54 
52 
43 
35 

9
7
7
5
4

Radiotherapy – Equipment 75 12 8 1 
All other charities – Equipment 49 8 85 10 
TOTAL 647 100 836 100 

At 31st March 2017 the investments are summarised as: 

C.O.I.F.    Total 
Shares    Investments 

At historical ‘book’ cost    £8,301       £8,301 

Unrealised gain accrued prior to 2016/17      £95,086        £95,086 
Realised gain during 2016/17        - - 
Unrealised loss accrued during 2016/17  £15,683   £15,683 
Closing Unrealised Gain/Loss  £110,769        £110,769 

At market value £119,070      £119,070 

Investments are recorded at market value as at 31st March 2017. The unrealised gain of £110,769 relates to COIF 
investments. No other investments are held. 

Volunteers and the Rocky Appeal 

Fundraising and volunteering are two areas which make considerable and varied contributions to the life of Portsmouth 
Hospitals NHS Trust.  

Fundraising helps provide equipment and resources that otherwise would not normally be available. The Trust has a long 
and well established fundraising history much of which has been linked to various Rocky Appeals. One of the main ways 
in which visitors to Queen Alexandra Hospital come in to contact with The Rocky Appeal is via our ‘Rocky Shop’ 
located within the north entrance. The shop relies on a dedicated team of volunteers currently standing at 30, who ensure 
its smooth operation.  It sells donated items, homemade produce, toys, gifts and ‘Rocky’ products including a selection of 
jams, chutneys and baked goods. As well as the Rocky Appeal, there are a further 58 ward and department funds which 
benefit the various wards and department within the Trust. 

The Rocky Appeal continues to benefit from various events including charity balls, music and tribute nights, garden 
parties, sponsored walks and a variety of local events and activities organised by well wishers throughout the community.  

We would like to take this opportunity to recognise and thank all those involved in fundraising for both the individual 
wards and departments and activities that support the Rocky Appeal. 
Integral to the successful running of the Trust is an ever growing team of volunteers that reliably give their time and 
talents so generously.  Fundraising and the Rocky Appeal is just one example where we can directly see the enormous 
contribution that our volunteers make towards the smooth running of the Trust.  We simply would not be as successful 
without all that our volunteers provide and enable. 

There are many more volunteers within the hospital, all of whom contribute a considerable amount of their time, effort 
and skills by guiding patients around the hospital, and generally assisting within departments to help benefit both patients 
and staff.  

Each year the charity provides a “Thank you” function for our volunteers in recognition of the extremely important role 
they play throughout the Trust. 

Public benefit

In awarding grants the trustee is aware of its responsibilities under charity law in ensuring the maintenance of public 
benefit in all aspects of its work.  Funding patient and staff welfare, improvements and amenities is, by definition, 
meeting public benefit.  
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The Trustee confirms that it has regard to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when reviewing 
the Charity’s purpose and goals and in their plans for future activities. 
 
Our Future Plans 
 
The final year of the Rocky Appeal aims to support the patients of Portsmouth Hospitals by raising funds to pay the fifth 
and final lease payment for the world class robotic surgical facility.  
 
The fund holders have delegated authority to use the specialty funds in the most beneficial way for their specialty and in 
a timely manner.   
 
Plans for the next twelve months will be determined by the equipping needs of the hospital and will include the following 
areas of spend: 
 

· Final payment of the Da Vinci robot lease. 
· Purchase of enhanced Medical equipment. 
· Support of research projects. 
· Staff training, educational books, and conferences. 
· Enhancement of patient facilities. 
· Provision of the Nurse Charitable Ward Fund, which provides inpatient ward areas with an allocation to spend 

on small items to enhance the patients stay in hospital. This allocation is dependent upon sufficient funds being 
available within the General Amenity fund. 

 
Major Commitments 
 
The Rocky Appeal needs to raise £371,000 to pay the final lease payment of the Da Vinci Robot and the charity needs to 
be able to cover its management, administration and fund-raising team costs (approximately £200,000 in total per 
annum). 
 
 
Based on the accounts for the financial year the Trust Board, on behalf of the Sole Corporate Trustee, believes that the 
Umbrella Charity and its linked Special Purpose Charities can meet all their current and future foreseeable commitments. 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Trustee on ……………. : 
 

 
Chairman  …………………………………. 
 
 
 
Chief Executive  …………………………………. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PORTSMOUTH HOSPITALS CHARITY 
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

2016/17 

Registered Charity Number 1047986 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Trustees are required to act in accordance with the trust deed and the rules of the charity 
within the framework of trust law. The trustees are responsible for: 
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· keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the funds held on trust and to enable them to ensure that
the accounts comply with requirements in the Charities Act and those outlined in the
directions issued be the Secretary of State;

· establishing and monitoring a system of internal control; and

· establishing arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.

The Trustee is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Trustee is required under the Charities Act to prepare the trustees annual report and 
accounts for each financial year which shows a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the funds held on trust. In preparing those accounts, the Trustee is required to: 

· apply on a consistent basis accounting policies

· make judgements and estimates which are responsible and prudent;

· state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

· prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charity will continue in business.

The Trustee confirms that it met the responsibilities set out above and complied with the 
requirements for preparing the accounts. The financial statements set out on pages 17 to 25 
attached have been compiled from and are in accordance with the financial records 
maintained by the Trustee. 

By Order of the Trustee 
Signed: 

Chairman …………………………………. Date        /       / 2017 

Trustee ……………………………………. Date     /       / 2017 

Page 1 of Audit Commission Report – Awaiting Audit Commission report, governance 
report suggests an unqualified audit opinion. 
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31st March 2017

Note General Fund Rocky Appeal Specialty Funds Total Total 

(Unrestricted) (Restricted) (Designated) Funds 16-17 Funds 15-16

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income and endowments from: 2

Donations and legacies 17 204 486 707 476

Charitable Activities 103 103 53

Investment Income 5 5 6

Other trading activities 27 103 163 293 414

Total Incoming Resources 44 307 757 1,108 949

Expenditure on: 3

Raising Funds (16) (100) (148) (264) (272)

Charitable Activities:

Medical research (48) (48) (61)

Contributions to the NHS (70) (371) (245) (686) (874)

Patient Welfare and Amenity (89) (65) (154) (282)

Staff Welfare and Amenity (21) (113) (134) (200)

Total Expenditure (196) (471) (619) (1,286) (1,689)

Net gains/(losses) on investments 4 1 1 14 16 (4)

Net income/(expenditure) (151) (163) 152 (162) (744)

Transfers between Funds 9 7 149 (156) 0 0

Net movement in funds (144) (14) (4) (162) (744)

Fund balances brought forward from 
previous year 194 15 1,236 1,445 2,189

Fund balances carried forward 50 1 1,232 1,283 1,445

The notes at pages 17 to 25 form part of this account.
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

Note General Fund Rocky Appeal Specialty Funds Total Total
(Unrestricted) (Restricted) (Designated) 31 March 17 Funds 15-16

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed Assets

 Investments 4 7 1 111 119 103 
Total Fixed Assets 7 1 111 119 103 

Current Assets
 Debtors 6 2 0 9 11 54 
 Stock 1g 2 0 0 2 0 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 51 371 1,163 1,585             1,781            

Total Current Assets 55 371 1,172 1,598             1,835            

Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due within 
one year 7 (12) (371) (51) (434)               (493)              

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) 43 0 1,121 1,164             1,342            

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 50 1 1,232 1,283             1,445            

Funds of the Charity

Income Funds:
 Restricted/Designated 0 1 1,232 1,233             1,251            
 Unrestricted 50 0 0 50 194 

Total Charity Funds 50 1 1,232 1,283             1,445            

The notes at pages 17 to 25 form part of this account.

Signed:

Date: 

223



Statement of cash flows for the year ending 31st March 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Total funds 

2016/17
Total funds 

2015/16
Net cash provided by operating activities (200) (759)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 5 6
Proceeds from the sale of investments 0 258
Net cash provided by investing activities 5 264

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (195) (495)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 1,781 2,276
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 1,586 1,781

Notes to the Accounts 
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1. Accounting Policies 
 
(a) Basis of preparation 
  

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as modified for the revaluation of 
certain investments, and in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended 
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards applicable 
in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011. 
 
The trustee considered that there are no material uncertainties about the Portsmouth Hospitals Charity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. There are no material uncertainties affecting the current year’s accounts 

 
(b) Funds structure 
 

Where there is a legal restriction on the purpose to which the fund may be put, the fund is classified in the accounts 
as a restricted fund. Funds where the capital is held to generate income for charitable purposes and cannot be spent 
are accounted for as endowment funds. The Portsmouth Hospitals Charity does not have any endowment funds. 
Other funds are classified as unrestricted funds. Unrestricted funds are available for application at the discretion of 
the trustee in furtherance of the charitable objectives of the charity. The Trustee may earmark an element of the 
unrestricted funds for a particular project and these are identified as designated funds. This designation does not 
legally restrict the trustees’ discretion to apply the fund. 

 
(c) Incoming Resources 
 

All incoming resources are recognised once the charity has entitlement to the resources, it is probable that the 
resources will be received and the monetary value can be measured with sufficient reliability.  
 
Income is recognised as follows: 
   

· Donations: These are accounted for when received. 
  

· Grants: Where there are terms or conditions attached to incoming resources, particularly grants, then these 
terms or conditions must be met before the income is recognised. Where terms or conditions have not been 
met or uncertainty exists as to whether they can be met then the relevant income is not recognised in the 
year but deferred and shown on the balance sheet as deferred income. 

 
· Legacies: These are accounted for when received or where the receipt of the legacy is probable.  
 

Receipt is probable when: 
- Confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate and probate has been 

granted. 
- The executors have established that there are sufficient assets in the estate, after settling any 

liabilities, to pay the legacy; and 
- Any conditions attached to the legacy are either within the control of the charity or have been met. 

 
If there is uncertainty as to the amount of the legacy and it cannot be reliably estimated then the legacy is 
shown as a contingent asset. 

 
· Gifts in kind: Donated goods, facilities and services (including Volunteers) are recognised as income when 

the following criteria are met: 
- Entitlement – control over the expected economic benefits that flow from the donation has 

passed to the charity, 
- Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits associated with the donated 

item will flow to the charity; and 
- Measurement – the fair value or value to the charity of the donated item can be measured, the 

measurement. 
 

· Activities for generating funds: These are activities carried out by the charity to generate incoming 
resources which will be used to undertake its charitable activities. These are not part of the direct charitable 
activities but are carried out in order to generate incoming resources to support those activities.  

 
· Investment Income: is apportioned to funds based on their weighted average balances throughout the year. 
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(d) Recognition of expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as resources expended as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the
charity to the expenditure, which is probable and measureable. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis
and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related to this category.

· Raising funds:
The costs of raising funds are the costs associated with generating income for the funds held on trust. This
includes the cost of the fundraising staff and purchases of goods to sell  at a profit and investment management
fees.

· Charitable Activities:
Costs of charitable activities comprise all costs incurred in the pursuit of the charitable objectives of the charity.
These costs, where not wholly attributable, are apportioned between the categories of charitable expenditure in
addition to direct costs.

· Grants Payable:
These are payments made to third parties, including NHS bodies, in furtherance of the charity’s objectives to
relieve those who are sick. They are accounted for on an accruals basis where the conditions for their payment
have been met or where a third party has a reasonable expectation that they will receive the grant.

· Support costs:
Support costs are those costs which do not relate directly to a single activity. These include support staff, cost of
administration, internal and external audit costs. Support costs have been apportioned between fundraising costs
and charitable activities on an appropriate basis, the analysis of support costs and the bases of apportionment
applied are shown in note 3c.

· Irrecoverable VAT:
Non-exempt and irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was
incurred

(e) Fixed Asset Investments

Fixed asset investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and are subsequently measured at their fair
value (market value) as at the balance sheet date. The Statement of Financial Activities includes the net gains and
losses arising on revaluation and disposals throughout the year.

(f) Realised Gains and Losses

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise. Realised gains and losses on
investment are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening market value (or purchase date if 
later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between market value at the year end and opening 
market value (or date of purchase if later). 

(g) Stocks

The charity’s stock comprises mainly charity branded fleeces and Christmas cards. The stock is valued on a first in
first out (FIFO) basis.

(h) Debtors

Debtors are amounts owed to the charity. They are measured on the basis of their recoverable amount

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Short term investments would be shown on the face of the balance sheet. As these are very liquid funds they are
classified as cash equivalents and would be shown as part of cash and cash equivalents.

(j) Creditors

Creditors are amounts owed by the charity. They are measured at the amount the charity expects to have to pay to
settle the debt.
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(k) Change in basis of accounting

There has been no change in the basis of accounting during the year.

(l) Prior Year Adjustments

There have been no changes to the accounts of prior years.

(m) Pooling Scheme

An official pooling scheme is operated for investments relating to the Portsmouth Hospitals Charity. The scheme is
named Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust (Expendable Funds) Common Investment Fund. Distribution of income is
made annually and reflects the individual funds interest in the pool. The scheme was registered with the Charity
Commission on 17th March 1998.

2. Income and endowments

a) Income sources

Income Source Unrestricted/Designated 
Funds 2016/17 

£’000 

Restricted 
Funds 

2016/17 
£’000 

Total 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2015/16 

£’000 
Donations 195 182 377 242 
Legacies 308 22 330 234 
Charitable activities (grants) 103 0 103 53 
Other trading activities 190 103 293 414 
Investment income 5 0 5 6 
TOTAL 801 307 1,108 949 

b) Other trading activities analysis

Other activities Unrestricted/Designated 
Funds 2016/17 

£’000 

Restricted Funds 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2015/16 

£’000 
Fundraising activities (including 
corporate events, local fundraising 
events etc)) 

175 50 225 390 

Rocky shop income 0 53 53 14 
Staff lottery income 15 0 15 10 
TOTAL 190 103 293 414 

c) Charitable activities – grants received

Charitable activities – grants 
received 

Unrestricted/Designated 
Funds 2016/17 

£’000 

Restricted Funds 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2015/16 

£’000 
Ickle Pickles 
Walk the Walk Charity 
Echo Trust 

98 
3
2

0
0
0

98 
3
2

35 
0
0

League of Friends  0 0 0 18 
TOTAL 103 0 103 53 

d) Volunteers

Like all charities, the Portsmouth Hospitals Charity is reliant on a team of volunteers to assist us in achieving our
objectives. In accordance with the SORP, due to the absence of any reliable measurement basis, the financial
contribution of these volunteers is not recognised in the accounts.

e) Investment Income

Investment Income Unrestricted/D Restricted Total Total 
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 esignated  
Funds 2016/17 

£’000 

Funds 2016/17 
 

£’000 

2016/17 
 

£’000 

2015/16 
 

£’000 
Charities Official Investment Fund 
HSBC Short Term Deposit Account 

4 
1 

0 
0 

4 
1 

4 
2 

TOTAL 5 0 5 6 
Investment income is distributed on a weighted balance basis, the unrestricted funds held are small, and the investment 
income associated to unrestricted is below £1,000. 
 
3. Resources expended 
 
a) Details of resources expended  

 
Contribution to the NHS  Unrestricted 

Fund 
£’000 

Restricted/ 
Designated Funds 

£’000 

Total   
2016/17 

£’000 

Total  
2015/16 

£’000 
Research Grants 0 0 0 0 
Grants payable (generally equipment) 
Allocation of  Support Costs 

68 
2 

579 
37 

647 
39 

836 
38 

TOTAL 70 616 686 874 
 
b) Details of Material Contributions to the NHS – Grants payable 
 
Grant details Amount 

£’000 
Charity 

Da Vinci Robot (4th Year lease) 
Ward hotboards 
Medical equipment 
Medical equipment 
Furniture/Room changes/IT equipment 
Medical equipment/Lockers/room changes 
Medical equipment/Furniture 
Ultrasound Bladder Scanner 
Other - equipment/furniture/refurbishments 

371 
33 
39 
39 
36 
32 
35 
5 

57 

The Rocky Appeal 
Nurse Ward Fund 
Neonatal ICU 
Cancer services 
Cancer services 
Renal 
General Amenity Fund 
Urology 
Various charities 

TOTAL 647  
 
c) Support and Governance Costs 
 
Governance Cost Unrestricted 

Fund 
 

£’000 

Restricted/ 
Designated  

Funds 
£’000 

Total 
2016 

 
£’000 

Total 
2015 

 
£’000 

Services bought in from NHS 2 34 36 35 
Audit Fees (external) 0 6 6 6 
Other i.e. Insurance, conference fees 0 0 0 1 
TOTAL  2 40 42 42 
Governance costs are apportioned on a weighted balance basis. 
 
d) Raising funds 
 
Type of cost Total 

2016/17 
£’000 

Total 
2015/16 

£’000 
Fundraising Staff salaries 
Fundraising Expenses  
Rocky Shop purchases 
Governance costs 
Investment Management Fee 

195 
57 
9 
3 
0 

190 
77 
1 
4 
0 

TOTAL 264 272 
 
The Rocky Appeal fundraising costs are directly attributable to the Rocky Appeal; all other fundraising costs are 
apportioned across the funds on a weighted average balance basis. 
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e) Analysis of Total Resources Expended

Resource Expended Raising 
Funds 
£’000 

Charitable 
Activities 

£’000 

Total 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2015/16 

£’000 
Fundraising Staff costs 
Fundraising Costs 
Audit Fee 

195 
65 
0 

0
0
6

195 
65 
6 

190 
78 
6 

Indemnity Insurance 0 0 0 1 
Services bought in from NHS 
Investment Management  

3
0

34 
0 

37 
0 

35 
0 

Research 
Welfare & Amenities 

0
0

48 
288 

48 
288 

61 
482 

Contributed to NHS 0 647 647 836 
TOTAL 263 1,023 1,286 1,689 

f) Analysis of Staff Costs

Staff Cost Research 

£’000 

Fundraising 

£’000 

Patient 
Welfare 

£’000 

Total 
2016/17 

£’000 

Total 
2015/16 

£’000 
Salaries and Wages 20 157 47 224 239 
Social Security Costs 2 15 5 22 18 
Other Pension Costs 3 23 7 33 33 
TOTAL 25 195 59 279 290 

The average number of employees in the year was 10 (2015/16 = 10). 

There are no employees with emoluments above £60,000. 

The total emoluments of employees (remuneration plus benefits for tax purposes) for 2016/17 was £225,000 (2015/16 
£239,000). 

g) Analysis of pension contributions for Senior Employees

All staff is contracted to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust. There were no senior employees charged to the charity
during the year.

4. Analysis of Fixed Investments

a) Analysis of Fixed Asset Investment total

Fixed Asset Investments 2016/17 
£000 

2015/16 
£000 

Opening Investment value 
Less: Disposals 
Add: Acquisitions 
Portfolio Income * 
Net (loss)/gain on COIF revaluation * 

103 
0
0
0

16 

365 
(258) 

0
0

(4) 
Closing Investment value  119 103 

* COIF is the Charities Official Investment Fund

b) Analysis of Fixed Asset Investment holdings

Market Value as at 31st March Held Held 2016/17  2015/16 
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in UK 

£000 

outside 
UK 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Total 

£000 
Charities Official Investment Fund 119 0 119 103 
TOTAL 119 0 119 103 

c) Financial Instruments

A small investment is placed with the Charities Official Investment Fund. The fund consists of diversified investments, 
principally equities and is designed specifically for charities. The investments are valued at market value. 

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

Cash (HSBC Current Account) 
Deposit Account (HSBC Reserve) 

5 
1,580 

9 
1,772 

TOTAL 1,585 1,781 

6. Analysis of Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year 2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

Trade Debtors and prepayments 6 2 
Reclaim of exemptible VAT 
Other debtors – Gift Aid Reclaim 
Legacy debtors 

2
3
0

14 
4 

34 
TOTAL 11 54 

There were no long term debtors. 

7. Analysis of creditors

Amounts falling due within one year 2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

Trade Creditors (434) (493)

The majority of the trade creditors are represented by the fourth lease payment owed for the Da Vinci Robot (£371k) and 
the sum owed to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust (£63k), for costs incurred by the Trust on behalf of the charity – 
predominantly payments to suppliers and staff costs.  

There were no long term creditors. 

8. Analysis of funds

a) Analysis of Fund balances

230



Charity Balance 
as at 

01/04/16 
£000 

Incoming 
Resources 

£000 

Resources 
Expended 

£000 

Transfers 

£000 

Gains/ 
Losses 

£000 

Balance 
as at 

31/03/17 
£000 

Cardiology 54 43 (20) 0 1 78 
Dermatology 6 0 (4) 0 0 2 
General Medicine 36 16 (14) 0 0 38 
Renal Medicine 134 126 (74) 0 2 188 
Accident & Emergency 1 3 (2) 0 0 2 
Rheumatology 96 3 (25) 0 1 75 
Orthopaedics 0 1 0 0 0 1 
General Surgery 116 49 (26) 0 1 140 
ENT 4 2 5 (1) 0 10 
Maxillofacial 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Intensive Therapy 16 26 (15) 0 0 27 
Ophthalmology 25 2 (10) 0 0 17 
Radiotherapy 341 133 (179) (150) 3 148 
Endoscopy 4 31 (5) 0 0 30 
Imaging Services 10 0 (1) 0 0 9 
Pathology 85 5 (41) 0 1 50 
Paediatrics 58 195 (86) (1) 1 167 
Gynaecology 7 10 (8) 0 0 9 
Maternity 3 3 (4) 0 0 2 
Urology 36 7 (7) 0 0 36 
Rocky Appeal (inc Fundraising) 15 312 (476) 149 1 1 
Medicine of Older People 27 61 (29) (5) 1 55 
Other Services 177 36 (68) 0 3 148 
Unrestricted 194 44 (197) 8 1 50 
TOTAL 1,445 1,108 (1,286) 0 16 1,283 

b) Fund purposes

See pages 2 and 3 of the Annual Report for details of the fund purposes.

9. Details of transfers between funds

The only material transfer between funds during 2016/17 was a temporary loan of £150,000 from the Radiotherapy
fund to the Rocky Appeal to cover the shortfall in funds raised to pay for the fourth year Da Vinci Robot invoice.
This loan will be repaid in 2017/18.

10. Contingencies

There are no contingent gains or losses included in the accounts.

11. Commitments, Liabilities and Provisions
The Trustee recognises liabilities in the accounts once a legal or constructive obligation to expend funds occurs.

No provisions for liabilities and charges have been included in this set of accounts.

The charity does not make grants to individuals. All grants for the year have been made to Portsmouth Hospitals
NHS Trust. All commitments occur at the point of requisition and do not cross over financial years.

12. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2016-17 2015-16 
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£ £ 
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the 
statement of financial activities) (162) (744) 
Depreciation charges 0 0 
(Gains)/losses on investments (16) 4 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (5) (6) 
Loss/(profit) on the sale of fixed assets 0 0 
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (2) 0 
(Increase)/decrease in debtors 43 (16) 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors (59) 3 
Net cash provided by operating activities (201) (759)

13. Trustee and Connected Persons Transactions

a) Trustee expenses reimbursed

No member of the Trust Board received reimbursement during the year for their duties in relation to the Charity. 

b) Trustee remuneration

No member of the Trust Board received remuneration from the charity during the year. The Trust Board is 
remunerated by Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust for their role as Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the 
Trust. 

14. Auditor’s Remuneration

The auditor’s remuneration of £6,211 (£6,211 2015/16) related solely to the audit with no additional work being
carried out.

15. Trustee Indemnity Insurance

Due to an administrative error, the cost of this insurance was charged to the NHS Trust accounts, rather than the
Charity. The cost in 2016/17 was £1,095 (2015/16 £1,060).

16. Loans or Guarantees Secured against assets of the charity

There are no assets subject to mortgage or charge.

17. Connected Organisations

The charity has had no dealings with connected organisations during the year.

18. Post Balance Sheet Review

Our COIF investment holding has slightly increased in value, it currently stands at £121,168 at 30th June 2017
compared to £119,070 at 31st March 2017.

19. Related Party Transactions

During the year none of the Trust Board or members of key management staff or parties related to them have
undertaken any material transactions with the Portsmouth Hospitals Charity.

The charity made revenue and capital payments to the Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust, whose board of Directors,
listed below, also act as Sole Corporate Trustee.

The voting members of the Board of Directors, who have acted on behalf of the Sole Corporate Trustee can be seen
on page 1 of the annual report.
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20. Contacting the charity

Fundraising advice can be obtained from the following contacts:

The Rocky Appeal Team on 023 9228 6487.

The Charity Fundraising Team on 023 9228 6000 ext 5927.
Website: www.porthosp.nhs.uk/charity
Email: fundraising@porthosp.nhs.uk

Please direct any other query relating to the charity to the Director of Finance 023 9228 6649. 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017 Agenda Item Number: 229/17 
Enclosure Number: (11) 

Subject: Quarterly Report – Guardian of Safe Working Hours 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Dr P Young and Ms Clare Drake 

John Knighton, Medical Director 

Purpose of paper For information 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

Exception Reporting – Numbers & Details 

Guardian Fines  

Trainee Vacancy Rates 

Safe Working Hours 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

 None 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

 Continued Quarterly Reporting by Guardian 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

N/A 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities Assurance of safe working hours for junior doctors 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference 

Risk Description 

CQC Reference 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

None 
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Q3 Board 

1. Exception Reports
Summary

Total 78

By Specialty By Grade By Rota 

Medicine 32 SHO (FY2-CT)  38 T&O SHO 11 

T&O  21 FY1   34 Gastro SHO  8 

MOPRS 13 ST/SpR   6 MOPRS FY1  8 

Obstetrics  4 Cardio FY1  8 

ENT   4 T&O FY1  8 

Psychiatry  2 

Anaesthesia  1 

75 complete, 3 open 

67 hours and rest 

16 education 

Narrative 

Numbers and patterns are very similar to Q2 and again reflect rotas that are known 
to be busy or experience difficulty filling posts. There remains a problem with timely 
response by some educational supervisors but the medical HR team are now issuing 
regular reminders when delays occur. Where there is an unacceptable delay some 
exception reports have been dealt with by the medical HR team with support from the 
Guardian. A particular effort has been made to close all exception reports before 
trainees change posts so that TOIL/payment can be arranged appropriately. 

2. Work Schedule Reviews
No formal work schedule reviews requested by Guardian

Narrative 

The medical HR team/Guardian will be meeting informally with departments that 
have persistently seen large numbers of exception reports to see if rotas could be 
revised to better reflect working patterns. Following meetings between HR and some 
rota coordinators it is clear that some departments manage their trainees more 
proactively than others. Some potential changes that could lead to improvements for 
trainees and departments will be taken to LNC/DDNC. The Chief Registrar  is now 
also involved in the process. 

3. Locum Data
Data incomplete.

Narrative 

As the Q2 report the only available data is from NHSP with the same difficulties of 
analysis and interpretation. It has not been possible to refine this data since the last 
report. There is a meeting scheduled for December 6th 2017 between MHSP and the 
Medical HR team to see if it is possible to extract accurately data about junior doctor 
locum shifts. This would at least allow checking that no trainee is exceeding the 56 
hour per week average maximum. 
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4. Vacancy Report 
 

  Deanery Trust  Overall 

July  13 (3%)  33 (28%) 46 (9%) 

August  23 (6%)  40 (34%) 63 (14%) 

September 19 (5%)  33 (28%) 52 (12%) 

 

Trust      116 

Deanery Funded    312 

Trust Funded Deanery Approved    85 

 

Detail of Vacancies in August 

Orthopaedics 1 FY1 vacant – Trust post 

Psychiatry 1 FY2 vacant – Deanery post – trainee was on long term sick 

Neonates 1 FY2 vacant – Deanery post – trainee required extension to FY1 training 

AMU 11 SHOs vacant – 4 x Deanery and 7 x Trust – 1 CMT (trainee withdrew from 
offer), 1 ACCS (Deanery couldn’t recruit enough), 2 x GP (Deanery couldn’t recruit 
enough) 

Emergency 1 SHO vacant – Deanery post – GP can’t recruit enough to fill posts 

ENT 1 SHO vacant – Trust post 

Cardiology 1 SHO vacant – Trust post 

Gastro 1 SHO vacant – Trust post 

General Medicine 5 SHO vacant – Trust post 

Respiratory 1 SHO vacant – Trust post 

MOPRS 11 SHO vacant – Trust posts 

Renal 2 SHO vacant – Trust posts 

Haem Onc 2 SHO vacant – Trust posts 

Paediatrics 1 SHO vacant – Deanery post – not enough military GP recruits 

Obs and Gynae 2 SHO vacant – Deanery posts – GP can’t recruit enough to fill posts 

Critical Care 2 SpRs vacant – 1 Deanery and 1 Trust – Trust post converted to 
Deanery post but then unfilled by national recruitment 

Histopathology 1 SPR vacant – Deanery post – Trainee left on a Inter Deanery 
Transfer 

AMU 3 SpRs vacant – 1 Deanery and 2 Trust – challenges with national recruitment 

Emergency 1 SpR vacant – Deanery post – challenges with national recruitment 

ENT 1 SpR vacant – Deanery post – Trainee on out of programme research 

Dermatology 1 SpR vacant – Trust post 

Cardiology 1 SpR vacant – Trust post 

MOPRS 3 SpRs vacant – Deanery posts – 1 in Stroke, 1 in Renal (GiM component) 
and 1 in Geriatrics – training programmes unable to fill 

Renal 4 SpRs vacant – 2 x Deanery and 2 x Trust – challenges with national 
recruitment 
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Clinical Oncology 2 SpRs vacant – 1 x Deanery and 1 x Trust – additional post added 
for 2017 but not in time for national recruitment. To be filled from round 2 

Neonates 2 SpRs vacant – Deanery posts – 1 x maty leave and 1 x challenges with 
recruitment 

Narrative 

The data for July and September are similar. August breakdown presented in more 
detail to convey an idea of how broad and significant recruitment problems are 
across the organisation. There is a national problem with recruitment to certain 
disciplines. There remains a broader issue with trainees not choosing to move into 
specialty training after their FY2/CMT period which is not specific to Portsmouth. 

The vacancy rate has been broadly stable over the last three quarters. 

5. Fines
Single fine currently being processed; levied for exceeding 48 hour average working 
week. 

Narrative 

There has been an improvement in the data available to the Guardian that allows the 
determination of some fines. I have access to the work schedules for every trainee in 
the Trust. Thus data on rota cycles and contracted hours is available, which, together 
with exception report data allows the calculation of actual mean hours worked across 
each rota cycle. 

There have been no exception reports to indicate working more than 72 hours in a 
consecutive 7 day period. There have been no exception reports related to 
insufficient rest between shifts. 

6. Guardian Comments
Progress has been made over the last quarter with better availability of data allowing 
the issue of the first Guardian fine and also allowing me to provide assurance that the 
vast majority of trainees are not exceeding a 48 hour week based on exception 
reporting. 

Additional support from Medical HR has allowed better chasing of open exception 
reports with a focus on closing reports before trainees move on to ensure they 
receive any TOIL or additional payments. Regular summaries of exception reports, 
together with TOIL and additional payments due are being made available to 
departmental rota coordinators. 

A process is being established via ePay to allow individual trainees to claim agreed 
additional payments. A similar process will be used for trainees to claim that part of 
any Guardian fine due to them. The SBS system is capable of doing this as fines 
have already been levied in other Trusts. The advantage of an electronic system is 
that it is easily audited and can generate reports of additional staff spend incurred as 
a consequence of exception reports. Trainees already use ePay to request other 
expenses so there should be very little extra training needed. 

The level of engagement with the Guardian forum has been disappointing. The Chief 
Registrar has established an informal forum and it may be that these could be 
merged in future. For the moment I will continue to schedule a quarterly meeting with 
trainee representatives spread across the CSCs, together with LNC Chair and DME. 

Work to spread ‘best practice’ in writing rotas is ongoing with a view to ensuring 
transparency and equality between specialties. Certain areas have taken a very 
proactive approach to managing rotas and therefore improving trainees’ experience. 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017 Agenda Item Number: 230/17 
Enclosure Number: (12) 

Subject: GMC Trainee Survey 2017 Results 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Paul Sadler, Director of Education, Consultant in Critical Care 

Tim Powell, Director of Workforce and Organisation Development 

Purpose of paper Update Board on latest feedback from doctors in training of 
experience in Portsmouth Hospitals 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

· Note the Annual Report returned to HEE Wessex by PHT

· Training in Portsmouth on the whole is of a good standard with
improvements evidenced especially in General Surgery

· There remain concerns about trainee experience in T&O, AMU,
and a number of medical sub-specialities

· Major issues raised are around workload, but some examples of
senior behaviour impacting on training

· Workforce re-design to develop resilience in rotas is required

· Trainer feedback in a number of areas highlights a perceived
lack of support for the supervisor role

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

Support for Workforce initiatives to help address workload issues 

Work with senior teams under strain to clarify causes of poor 
behaviour and then address them 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

Nil 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

Nil 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference 

Risk Description 

CQC Reference 
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Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

SMT 08/11/2017 
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GMC Trainee Survey and HEE 
Visits 2017 

Paul Sadler 
Director of Education 
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Trainee Feedback 

• “You want to know what is going on in a
hospital, ask a trainee”

• Lots of feedback
– GMC Survey – Trainer and Trainee
– ARCP
– Visit reports
– Local – surveys, face to face, corridor gossip
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GMC survey 2017 

• Why worry?
– 100% trainee response rate
– 60% trainer response rate
– Organised by the GMC
– HEE review and expect response / visit
– Year on year mirrors what we find (and CQC)

• What does it not do?
– DETAIL
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TRAINEE 

• Dermatology a national number 1! 
• Surgery F2 – hangover from late 2016? 
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TRAINER 

• Renal in both 
• Plastics – only one ST – difficulty with service 
• AMU – lots of change, CQC 

247



Established outliers (3 or more years) 

• EM – still an outlier but better! 
• Surgery – well supported, most like the experience 
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• Overall satisfaction     Trainee Trainer 
 

• Supportive Environment 

 
• Handover 

 
• Curriculum Coverage 

 
• Educational Governance (escalating concerns) 

 
 

• Renal – conflict / workload / gaps in rotas / few standards or protocols / 
lack of teaching 

• GIM – on call work / changes / who is in charge – DHM / medical team? / 
LACK OF FEEDBACK 
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What do we do with it? 

• Twice yearly local surveys 
• Focussed on concerns 
• Tutor / Senior team feedback with trainees 
• DME at least once a year face to face 
• Pooled feedback 
• Meet with senior team 
• Agreed documented plan 

– Issue / Action / Timeline / Lead 
– Monitored 
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Can we make things better? 

• General Surgery  
• 2016 

– Multiple concerns 
– Damning visit report 
– ?GMC 

• 2017 
– GMC survey in limits (still some of last years) 
– Series of impressive visit reports 
– Leadership 
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Concerns going forward 

• Specific Areas 
– T&O, Renal, AMU, GIM, Cardiology, O&G 

• Time to train – finding supervisors 
• The Full Hospital effect 
• Changing Curriculum 

– More specific requirements incl rota design 

• Behaviour 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Executive summary 
Overview of the last 12 months / Trust-wide challenges 

The trust has had another busy 12 months with challenging increases in workload across the hospital. We have been subject to a high degree of scrutiny from NHSI and 
particularly the CQC with a number of visits which have raised significant concerns over how the trust is performing. In response to this HEE and other education and training 
organisations have rightly put us under scrutiny as well. What has been reassuring from our end, is the robust response of the organisation to the issues raised with progress 
already being made. The scrutiny from HEE has also come with support and this has been greatly appreciated. During this period we have received a number of HEE visits 
as well as a further set of GMC survey results. The survey as a whole was reassuring. It flagged a number of specialities with strong feedback, and the areas of concern were 
in specialities / programmes the education team were already aware of. I would particularly draw attention to the feedback in the survey and also the visit reports for General 
Surgery which showed continued improvement in the trainee experience over recent years. The areas of concern in the GMC survey also mirror those raised by the CQC 
being centred around the Acute Medical Unit. A detailed action plan is in place and has been progressed though there is still a good amount of work to do. The areas of 
concern also mirror those areas which are struggling to recruit and a “chicken and egg” debate is often had about this. We have been more successful in recruiting to 
vacancies this year with a junior grade medical fill rate now approaching 90%. This is now being supported by other workstreams to bolster the workforce in difficult to staff 
areas including, employing ACPs, ACCPs, and a variety of more junior technical and support roles for medical staff. We are currently reviewing our whole workforce strategy 
to try and take a more joined up approach to all these positive developments. We are progressing with the University of Portsmouth to develop a School for Physicians 
Associates to try and tap in to another clinical workforce. We appreciate the support offered by HEE again to encourage further developments in this area. 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Red rated posts 
Please provide an update in the last column. Please note that all Amber rated posts are on the GMC Dean’s Report. 

Post 
Date post 
became 
Amber/Red 

Findings from most 
recent visit Latest Trust update (brief summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 
(programme grp unless 
specified otherwise) 

2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested rating 

AMU 
(F1-2; 
GP; CT1-
2; ST3+) 

F1-2: May 
2015 
 
All others: 
May 2017 

May 2017 
Lack of consistent 
doctor-doctor handover 
between ED & AMU.  
 
Trainees found 12 hour 
night shifts exhausting. 
 
Night shifts regularly 
understaffed.  
 
Trainees moved from 
training opportunities 
on ambulatory unit to 
cover gaps on AMU. 
 
Inconsistent access to 
teaching (CMT/GP); 
struggled to attend 
regional teaching. 

June 2017 
New 3-shift rota approved for August.  
Medical Model live in Sept - additional 
support & consultant cover until 10pm 
7 days a week.  
 
Safety huddles introduced - clinical 
staff can highlight safety concerns 
earlier.  
 
Proposals for on call junior to work 
alongside on call physician.  MOPRS 
and Medicine CSC have taken over 
responsibility for Hospital at Night. 
 
All locum shifts in ambulatory 
reallocated to trainees. Trainees to 
request SLEs at morning handover 
and consultants have made 
provisions. 
 
Re-iterated protected teaching (1 hr 3 
x a week). 2 substantive members of 
admin staff dealing with rota 
management. 

Trainee survey 
Patient safety comments 
4 comments relating to 
workload/staffing in ED, its 
impact on AMU & poor 
patient flow.  
 
Acute Med (post specialty) 
3 red (clinical supervision; 
teamwork; induction) 

 
 

Trainer survey 
Acute Med trainers 
4 red (handover; 
supportive environment; 
time for training; rota 
design);  
2 pink (educational 
governance; support for 
trainers) 
 

There have been sustained improvements in AMU since the 
Foundation School visit in March 2017 and the Deanery visit in 
May 2017.  Since August 2017, the rotas have been adjusted 
so that the night shift can present some of their cases before 
their shift ends at 10.30am.  All trainees received induction in 
August 2017.  It is clear at handover who is working in each 
area and which consultant is responsible for this 
area.  Teaching is occurring more regularly, both on ward 
rounds and at formal sessions, and the culture in the 
department has improved with better role modelling from 
consultants.  There have been issues with the new rota and 
trainees accessing annual leave.  Trainees report high 
workload and don’t always feel valued by the nurses and their 
seniors.  They do feel supported by the consultants and STs on 
AMU and know how to obtain help and advice.  FTPDs have 
had regular contact with the leads for AMU (Dr Ali Bartens 
and Dr Howard Buchan. 
 

 Rating suggested:       Red ☐        Amber ☒      Green 2 ☐ 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Amber rated posts 
Please provide an update in the last column. Please note that all Amber rated posts are on the GMC Dean’s Report. 

Post 
Date 

became 
Amber/Red 

Findings from most 
recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested rating 

T&O  
F1-2 

March 2017 March 2017 
Daily in-patient ward 
rounds carried out by 
FY docs. No senior 
input.  
 
Lack of theatre 
opportunity because 
ward requirements. 
No educational 
value. 
 

None on file. Trainee survey 
Surgery F1: No outliers 
 
Surgery F2 
4 red (overall satisfaction; clinical 
supervision; workload; feedback) 
5 pink (clinical supervision out of 
hours; supportive environment; 
induction; adequate experience; 
curriculum coverage) 
 
Trainer survey: No outliers  

F1s are still expressing concerns about workload, lack of teaching and 
lack of senior T&O doctor input on ward rounds.  They felt induction 
was variable and have been asked to update the FY1 Survival Guide 
to assist their colleagues in subsequent rotations.  There is a 
designated orthopaedic consultant who conducts a lot of the induction 
who was disappointed by this feedback, but is reviewing the 
programme in light of this. They still do not perceive the posts to be 
educational.  They value the input from the orthogeriatric team and 
the Resident Medical Officers for medical problems on the ward. 
 
F2s report being able to attend theatre at times and feel they receive 
better education.  They report some workload issues due to rota gaps. 
 
FTPDs are working with consultants in T&O to address the issues 
raised by trainees and improve the educational and training 
experience for Foundation doctors. 

 Rating suggested:       Red ☐        Amber ☒      Green 2 ☐ 
 
Gastro. 
ST3+ 

Oct 2016 None September 2016 
Extremely busy ward area for significant 
time despite reorganisations workload. 
Trainees feel well supported during 
normal hours. Hepatology & GIM 
workloads are high. Daily consultant ward 
rounds; some trainees do not feel they 
get chance to 'run a ward' & develop 
independent working.  
 
Plan to appoint Clinicians Associate & 2 
Medical Technicians to ward to help with 
workload. IT improvements to save time 
are progressing with introduction of 
electronic requesting of radiology. 
Handover is generally good with senior 
leadership and Hospital at Night helping 
coordinate. An issue may still be 
handover from day to twilight cover.   

Trainee survey 
5 red (workload; handover; 
supportive environment; 
induction; educational 
governance) 
5 pink (overall satisfaction; 
clinical supervision; reporting 
systems; teamwork; adequate 
experience) 
 
 

Trainer survey 
2 red (educational 
governance, rota design) 
1 pink (supportive 
environment) 

I have met face to face with the gastro ST’s, and the feedback from 
them has been excellent. They report experience and education is 
excellent especially relating to training opportunities. The 
improvement has come about with having two trust middle grades on 
top of the training posts, meaning ward rounds are better staffed and 
they are freed to go to clinics and endoscopy sessions which are 
supervised. 
The ward round manager helps the rounds run better and frees up 
junior to better remain on the round and continue without un-
necessary delays. 
The timing of the start and finish of twilight shifts is being reviewed 
with the chief registrar and department, as still felt could be better to 
clarify handover arrangements. 
The ward is still busy and workload is challenging for the ward team 
especially if large outlier numbers. 
I have had no concerns raised by the trainers over the last 12 months 
to me and Dr Longcroft Wheaton is repeatedly flagged by trainees as 
a hard working and supportive consultant 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Post 
Date 

became 
Amber/Red 

Findings from most 
recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested rating 

 Rating suggested:       Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 2 X 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Green 2 rated posts 
a) Please either: tick the box to note that issues have been resolved / improvements have been sustained and the post can be rated Green 1; 
b) If the issues are not resolved, provide an update in the last column, remembering to tick a rating. 

Post 
Date 
became 
Green 2 

Findings from 
most recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme grp 
unless specified otherwise) 

Is it on 
Dean’s 

Report? 

(Tick) 
Issues 

resolved? 
Rate Green 

1? 

If no… provide update on issues and tick 
a rating suggestion below 

Emergency 
Med (all 
grades) 

June 
2017 

June 2017 
PITSTOP & 
Navigator initiatives 
helped during 
daytimes but issues 
persisted out of 
hours.  
 
Trainees not aware 
of formal escalation 
plan out of hours. 
Additional clinical 
support out of hours 
would help. 
 
Too few supervisors 
for number of 
trainees - explicit 
adequate time 
needed in job plans. 
 
Risk to trainers - 
often worked late 
hours.  

December  2016 
Business case prepared recognising 
need for enhanced senior numbers 
to deliver 24/7 service and 
enhanced weekend / evening cover. 
Trust recruited 5 ACP trainees and 
provided 'PITSTOP capacity' to 
deliver 15 min. assessment. Trust 
developed Urgent Care 
Improvement Programme, 
delivering new medical model, 
designed to improve flow. 
 
Physical limitations of ED 
recognised; programme of 
developing integrated unscheduled 
care system, maximising early 
senior input for all non-elective 
admissions. Integrated Single Point 
of Access for Paediatrics is at 
advanced stage & implementation. 
Work ongoing with CCGs & 
community partners to try and slow 
attendances to ED. 

Trainee survey 
Patient safety comments 
2 comments relating to workload/ 
staffing in ED. Long waits for 
patients to be seen; trainees 
covering too many patients. 
 
Em med: No outliers 
 
Em med F2 
2 red (workload; study leave) 
 
GP Em med 
2 red (workload; supportive 
environment);  
3 pink (teamwork; curriculum 
coverage; educational 
supervision) 

 
 

Trainer survey 
Em Med trainers 
2 red (workload; time for training);  
1 pink (supportive environment) 

YES Yes ☐ 
No  ☒ 

Except for workload though alternative 
staffing and excellent senior support has 
improved the experience. 
Number of supervisors not sorted yet but 
new appointments in process which will help 
significantly 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☒ 
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Post 
Date 
became 
Green 2 

Findings from 
most recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme grp 
unless specified otherwise) 

Is it on 
Dean’s 

Report? 

(Tick) 
Issues 

resolved? 
Rate Green 

1? 

If no… provide update on issues and tick 
a rating suggestion below 

GP ENT Nov 2016 None Sept 2016 
Issues around induction ironed 
out, teaching has been ok just 
not as good as before due to 
maternity leave of lead.  
 
Confusion over payment by 
trainees for ENT introductory 
course – already paid to out of 
tariff by L&D.  
 
Specialty Tutor singled out as 
extremely supportive. Overall 
feedback was this is a good job 
where you learn loads. 

Trainee survey 
GP Surgery: <3 trainees 
 
ENT (post specialty) 
1 light green (reporting systems) 

 
 

Trainer survey 
ENT trainers 
1 green (handover) 
5 light green (supportive 
environment, curriculum coverage, 
educational governance, resources 
for trainers, support for trainers) 

NO Yes ☒ 
No  ☐ 

 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☐ 
 
GP O&G 2013 None Sept 2015 

No undermining concerns 
except incident between senior 
staff at meeting. No concerns re 
relations with midwives which 
has been recurrent theme in 
past. STOPIT course run 
previously & course now 
becoming embedded more 
widely in trust with local faculty 
being developed later in 2015. 
 
Local feedback extremely 
positive with GP trainees' needs 
now being considered 
separately to Core & FY. 

Trainee survey 
Undermining comments 
1 comment relating to an individual 
who may face disciplinary action. 
 
1 red (regional teaching) 
2 green (clinical supervision; 
handover) 

 
 

Trainer survey 
O&G trainers 
1 red (time for training) 
2 pink (supportive environment; 
support for trainers) 
1 light green (handover) 

NO Yes ☐ 
No  ☒ 

As seen in recent school report and recent 
face to face feedback with DME, this issue is 
not yet resolved fully. The leadership of the 
department is being changed and needs to 
be settled and address these issues. The 
new Specialty Tutor Claire Burton has made 
an excellent start. 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☒ 
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Post 
Date 
became 
Green 2 

Findings from 
most recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme grp 
unless specified otherwise) 

Is it on 
Dean’s 

Report? 

(Tick) 
Issues 

resolved? 
Rate Green 

1? 

If no… provide update on issues and tick 
a rating suggestion below 

GIM ST3+ 2013 None June 2017 
Safety huddles introduced - 
clinical staff can highlight safety 
concerns earlier.  
 
Proposals for on call junior to 
work alongside on call 
physician.  MOPRS and 
Medicine CSC have taken over 
responsibility for Hospital at 
Night. 
 
Plan to introduce care space 
magnets to identify patients with 
time critical medications. 7/7 
pharmacy support. 
 
Organised educational sessions 
to multiple medical training 
groups. 

Trainee survey 
Patient safety comments 
4 comments relating to 
workload/staffing in ED, its impact 
on AMU & poor patient flow. 
 
GIM (post specialty) 
3 red (clinical supervision, 
induction, educational supervision) 
8 pink (overall satisfaction; 
reporting systems; work load; 
teamwork; supportive environment; 
adequate experience; curriculum 
coverage; study leave) 

 
Trainer survey 

2 red (supportive environment; 
curriculum coverage) 
2 pink (educational governance, 
rota design) 

NO Yes ☐ 
No  ☒ 

The difficulty in retaining substantive 
consultants in GIM is on going. Numbers are 
better and the new medical model has put 
the responsibility for a number of GIM 
patients back with the sub-specialties. 
Greater consultant presence until later in the 
evening is also helping the support for what 
is viewed the main GIM work for trainees, 
which is when they are on take. 
There is a project manager just started to 
look at medical rotas and producing a central 
e-rostering system to be used across the 
trust which would be welcomed. 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☒ 
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Post 
Date 
became 
Green 2 

Findings from 
most recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme grp 
unless specified otherwise) 

Is it on 
Dean’s 

Report? 

(Tick) 
Issues 

resolved? 
Rate Green 

1? 

If no… provide update on issues and tick 
a rating suggestion below 

Respiratory 
Med ST3+ 

October 
2016 

October 2016 
Visit took place 
following poor GMC 
Survey feedback (6 
reds). 
 
Progress was good 
and no significant 
concerns were 
identified. 
 
Areas for 
improvement: 
Implementation of 
opportunities to 
present post-take 
patients to 
consultants 
required. Training 
opportunities need 
increasing through 
rota management. 
Adequate clinic 
space required. 

December 2016 
Changes to consultant working 
pattern e.g. starting at 0730 would 
allow time for post-take feedback to 
night ST. 
 
Organisation of AMU medical team 
changed to better clarify which 
consultant a trainee will be working to. 
Role of evening ST and need for 
handover to be reviewed & clarified - 
ensure either role is changed or 
potential missed learning 
opportunities now utilised. Include 
supervised post-taking in ring-fenced 
time. 
 
Access for ST to spend time in 
Ambulatory area with high level of 
consultant presence. Review, 
recognise & highlight training 
opportunities available in AMU –done 
as part required work schedule with 
learning opportunities for new 
contract. 
 
Already taken measures to ensure 
induction for medical STs in 
subspecialties will cover AMU. 

Trainee survey 
1 pink (clinical supervision out 
of hours) 

 
Trainer survey 

1 green (resources for 
trainers) 
3 light green (educational 
governance, support for 
trainers, trainer development) 

NO Yes ☒ 
No  ☐ 

Excellent feedback from this trainee group 
over last 12 months 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☐ 
 
Core 
Surgical 
Training 

March 
2017 

March 2017 
Good training 
opportunities, 
dedicated lists. 
 
Rating change: 
Amber to Green 2. 

None required after positive visit 
 

Sept. 2016 (Annual Report) 
Some trainees lacked experienced 
and logged procedures according to 
reports. Positive ARCP outcomes 
were a surprise. Suggest: Amber. 

Trainee survey 
1 red (regional teaching) 
 
Trainer survey not included 
as could relate to multiple 

specialties. 

YES Yes ☐ 
No  ☒ 

Release for training is better with the re-
structure of the rota. I would not go for Green 
1 yet until happy that sub-specialty 
experience has  reached required standard 
across specialty areas. Some concerns 
raised by Plastics and T&O before but feel 
they are improving. 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☒ 
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Post 
Date 
became 
Green 2 

Findings from 
most recent visit 

Latest Trust update (brief 
summary) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme grp 
unless specified otherwise) 

Is it on 
Dean’s 

Report? 

(Tick) 
Issues 

resolved? 
Rate Green 

1? 

If no… provide update on issues and tick 
a rating suggestion below 

General 
Surgery 
ST3+ 

March 
2017 

March 2017 
Initiatives put in 
place at previous 
visit sustained and 
further built upon. 
Trainees praised 
the support of 
consultants & said 
culture changed 
dramatically since 
new Chief of 
Service in post. 
Trainees felt valued 
& supported in 
roles.  
 
All trainees would 
now recommend 
jobs to colleagues 
(compared to none 
at initial visit). 

None required following positive visit 
 

Previous: July 2016 
Trial senior nurse practitioner/ 
consultant taking ST on call bleep. 
Staff grade cover to be reviewed. 
Consultant numbers recruited to with 
special focus on colorectal & 
emergency service cover. Review on 
call patterns to optimise experience of 
emergency work & maintain access to 
subspecialty experience.  
 
Enhance role/number of surgical 
nurse practitioners in ambulatory. 
Ward based consultant to increase 
teaching input into SAU. Standardise 
working practices across the 
consultant cadre. 
 
Re-emphasise that filling gaps is paid 
and voluntary & paid. Avoid 
miscommunication around 'requests' 
to swap. 
 
Colorectal - review job plans. Weekly 
training meeting to identify suitable 
training opportunities in advance and 
match to training needs. Proactive 
recruitment to Trust Grade Drs to 
allow the rota to function effectively. 

Trainee survey 
2 red (reporting systems; 
work load) 
4 pink (clinical supervision, 
clinical supervision out of 
hours, supportive 
environment, feedback) 
 
 

Trainer survey 
1 red (work load) 
1 light green (handover) 

YES Yes ☒ 
No  ☐ 

Very positive feedback again from this group. 
Such a change over the last two years 
should be rewarded with a G1 grading 

 Rating:   Red ☐      Amber ☐    Green 2 ☐ 
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Green 1 rated posts – with open issues 
Please complete the last column with an update on the areas we have requested, and tick a suggested rating. 

Post 
Findings from most 
recent visit & latest 
update (if applicable) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 

Is this 
on 

Dean’s 
Report? 

Areas we would like an update on 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested 
rating 

Cardiology 
ST3+ 

Sept. 2016, (AQR) 
Reporting systems was 
a red outlier in 2016; 
School of Medicine 
noted trainees did not 
raise concerns with 
reporting systems when 
findings were 
investigated via an 
additional specialty 
survey. No concerns = 
remain Green 1. 

Trainee survey 
2 red (adequate experience; 
curriculum coverage) 
2 pink (induction; educational 
supervision) 

 
Trainer survey 

8 red (overall satisfaction, work load, 
handover, educational governance, 
time for training, rota design, 
resources for trainers, support for 
trainers) 
3 pink (supportive environment, 
curriculum coverage, trainer 
development) 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Trainer survey – every indicator 
flagged red or pink. Triangulation? 
 
Trainee survey – N/A (didn’t suggest 
issues upon question drill down) 

There is an issue with adequate experience. This has 
improved over recent weeks and the STs tell me they are 
happier but this needs to be sustained. The issue relates 
primarily to having extra bed capacity open with emergency 
patients blocking admissions for procedures thus 
decreasing experience. When experience limited 
competition between fellows and trainees can result. 
I would rate Green 2 pending a sustained resolution of this 
issue 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☐ 
 
GP 
Medicine 

None Trainee survey 
1 red (induction) 
6 pink (overall satisfaction; teamwork; 
supportive environment; adequate 
experience; curriculum coverage; 
educational supervision) 

 
Trainer survey not included as could 

relate to multiple specialties. 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Induction: 18% disagree/ strongly 
disagree they get all info needed at 
start of post; 36% said no-one 
explained their role at start of post; 18% 
said induction quality poor/v poor; 27% 
had no objectives with ES. 
 
Pink outliers – any triangulation? 

Induction process have been reviewed and improved 
across AMU where this was reported as the main area of 
concern. We hope to further improve these posts if we can 
recruit better to allow chronic disease experience and the 
plan is all in place for when numbers allow. 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 
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Post 
Findings from most 
recent visit & latest 
update (if applicable) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 

Is this 
on 

Dean’s 
Report? 

Areas we would like an update on 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested 
rating 

GP 
Paediatrics 

None Trainee survey 
1 red (local teaching) 
1 pink (study leave) 
4 green (clinical supervision, clinical 
supervision out of hours, induction, 
educational governance) 

 
Trainer survey 

Paediatrics trainers 
1 green (handover) 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Local teaching: 25% say teaching less 
than 1 hr per week; 100% bleeped during 
teaching sometimes; 100% say their work 
not covering during teaching; 50% 
teaching provided by trainees without 
supervision 

 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 
 
Renal Med 
ST3+ 

August 2014, (Annual 
Trust Report) 

Workload & rota 
compliance remains a 
challenge. Extra medical 
staff recruited in Surgery 
& Medicine; clinician's 
associate role has been 
expanded. 

Trainee survey 
6 red (Overall satisfaction; 
supportive environment; adequate 
experience; curriculum coverage; 
educational governance; local 
teaching) 
2 pink (teamwork; induction) 

 
Trainer survey 

4 red (overall satisfaction; 
supportive environment; educational 
governance; time for training) 
1 pink (support for trainers) 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Supportive environment: 100% neither 
agree/disagree that: environment is 
supportive; staff are treated fairly & with 
respect; senior colleagues were open to 
their opinions. 33% disagree (1 trainee) 
that environment builds confidence of 
trainees (67% neither agree/disagree) 
 
Educational governance: 33% agree 
(67% neither agree/disagree)concern 
would be addressed & they knew how to 
escalate concern 
 
Local teaching: 67% said teaching was 
less than 1hr per week; 100% left teaching 
to answer bleeps (67% at least once every 
session); 100% said work wasn't covered 
whilst at teaching 
 
Trainer survey reds - any triangulation? 

Difficult relationships amongst the senior team have been 
allowed to affect the trainee experience. The DME has 
met with the trainees and then the senior department and 
received reassurance and a plan that this will be 
resolved. The gaps in the ST and junior level rotas has 
also not helped. 
Plans are now in place led by the CD with the addition of 
a new TPD and local tutor to manage the improvements. 
Gaps are being recruited to 
The CD is managing with the Trust senior team the 
issues in the senior team 
Clinics and sub-specialty experience is now to be 
protected 
A proper induction has been developed for STs led by the 
CD 
Teaching has been highlighted as the responsibility of the 
department not just one or two people. 
The department should be Amber pending a review by 
DME and TPD 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☒      Green 1 ☐ 
 

264



Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Post 
Findings from most 
recent visit & latest 
update (if applicable) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 

Is this 
on 

Dean’s 
Report? 

Areas we would like an update on 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested 
rating 

Radiology 
ST1+ (all 
modules) 

Nov 2016 (visit) 
All modules rated Green 1; 
no significant concerns with 
training. 

Trainee survey 
1 red (work load) 
1 pink (educational governance) 

 
Trainer survey 

2 green (rota design, resources 
for trainers) 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Work load: 43% worked beyond hours 
weekly; 43% night hrs heavy/v heavy; 
71% short of sleep daily/weekly 

 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 
 
Rheum. 
ST3+ 

September 2016 
(Annual Trust Report) 

2016 GMC feedback was much 
improved. Local trainee feedback 
also shows significant improvement.  
 
Access to regional teaching has not 
flagged as an issue, though Trust 
will keep under close review and 
meet with trainees again to ensure 
concerns do not arise again. 

Trainee survey: <3 trainees 
 

Trainer survey: No outliers 

YES Dean’s Report open item 
(original concern = outliers in 2015 
GMC Survey) 
Can you confirm improvements have 
been sustained and we can close this 
item from the Dean’s Report? 

Recent face to face feedback with trainees says 
improvements are sustained currently. New consultant 
appointments will further improve experience. 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 
 
O&G 
ST1-2 
& ST3+ 

September 2017 (visit) 
Number of issues raised in 
report (still being finalised at 
time of writing. 
 
July 2017 (Trust response to 

undermining comment) 
Discussed with consultant 
formally & informally. 
Continued lack of 
engagement. Potential 
disciplinary. 

Trainee survey 
Undermining comments 
1 comment relating to an individual 
consultant. 
 
No outliers. 

 
Trainer survey 

1 red (time for training) 
2 pink (supportive environment, 
support for trainers) 
1 light green (handover) 

NO Visit 
Issues raised in report (still being 
finalised at time of writing this 
template). 

Please see GP O&G update as issue the same. At recent 
feedback with DME no other issues flagged by more junior 
trainees 
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Post 
Findings from most 
recent visit & latest 
update (if applicable) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 

Is this 
on 

Dean’s 
Report? 

Areas we would like an update on 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested 
rating 

Surgery 
F2 

Feb. 2015 (visit) 
No significant concerns 
identified. 
 
Demonstrably improved, 
with good educational 
leadership. 

Trainee survey 
4 red (overall satisfaction; 
clinical supervision; workload; 
feedback) 
5 pink (clinical supervision out 
of hours; supportive 
environment; induction; 
adequate experience; curriculum 
coverage) 

 
Trainer survey not included as 

could relate to multiple 
specialties. 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Overall satisfaction: 50% rated teaching 
poor; 33% rated clinical supervision poor (67% 
neither good/poor); 33% rated experience 
quality poor; 50% would describe post poor/v 
poor to friend; 17% disagree post useful for 
career 
 
Clinical supervision: 67% forced to cope with 
clinical problems beyond competence 
weekly/monthly; 17% obtained consent when 
didn't know risks monthly; 33% rated 
supervision quality poor (67% neither 
good/poor); 50% didn't know who provided 
clinical supervision (but usually someone to 
contact) 33% knew who but weren't easy to 
access 
 
Work load: 83% rate day workload as heavy/v 
heavy; 67% rate night workload as heavy/v 
heavy; 100% worked beyond hours (50% daily, 
33% weekly/monthly); 83% felt short of sleep 
(17% daily, 50% monthly) 

Only good feedback over last 12 months received by 
Foundation Programme Directors. The previous actions for 
surgical CT and ST training has positively impacted on 
foundation as well. 
The recruitment of new consultants and clarity of work 
arrangements around the emergency work, has had an 
especially positive impact. 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 
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Post 
Findings from most 
recent visit & latest 
update (if applicable) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 

Is this 
on 

Dean’s 
Report? 

Areas we would like an update on 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested 
rating 

T&O 
ST3+ 

Sept. 2016, 
(Annual Trust Report) 

(Following red outliers in 
2016 GMC Survey), 
feedback is a lot more 
positive than negative. Main 
point that needs improving is 
induction and new tutor has 
this in hand. 

Trainee survey 
7 red (overall satisfaction; 
workload; teamwork; adequate 
experience; curriculum 
coverage; feedback; study 
leave) 
6 pink (clinical supervision; 
clinical supervision out of hours; 
reporting systems; supportive 
environment; induction; 
educational supervision) 

 
Trainer survey: No outliers  

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Overall satisfaction: 10% rate quality of 
both teaching & clinical supervision as 
poor; 20% rate experience quality as 
poor/v poor; 20% describe post as v poor 
to friend 
  
Work load: 90% heavy/v heavy in daytime; 
50% heavy/v heavy at night; 100% worked 
over hours weekly. 
 
Teamwork: 10% disagree organisation 
encourages multiprofessional working; 
30% disagree/strongly disagree there is 
culture of teamwork between depts. 
 
Feedback: 30% want feedback but not 
received it, 40% want formal assessment 
of performance in post but have not had it 
 
Study leave: 20% rate encouragement to 
take leave as poor, 40% say not enough 
funding, 67% had difficulty obtaining leave 

Many areas reported as excellent training but two main 
areas where issues reported in direct feedback, which are 
arthroplasty work, and trauma. Both relate closely to how 
busy the hospital has been with elective work cancellations 
curtailing available arthroplasty experience.  
 
The senior team and TPD have engaged in discussions to 
try and organise this experience elsewhere e.g. local 
private hospitals treating NHS patients.  
 
The trauma issues have been illustrated by a recent bleep 
audit with multiple calls especially to ED preventing the ST 
from doing much else but answer the phone. The senior 
departmental team have met with the ED team to review 
how ED triage their calls to orthopaedics, and orthopaedics 
have put through a business case for a trauma nurse 
practitioner to triage calls and deal with some of the 
common issues that do not require the ST to be involved.  
 
The support the STs have received when issues have 
arisen in relations with ED from the senior orthopaedic 
team was on the whole good, but with some exceptions. 
This was discussed at a joint meeting of the consultants 
and STs and feedback on this has improved. 
 
 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☒      Green 1 ☐ 
 
Urology 
ST3+ 

Sept. 2016, 
(Annual Trust Report) 
Excellent feedback 
consistent over last 2 
years from ST's. Green 
1 

Trainee survey 
1 red (handover) 
2 pink (teamwork, feedback) 

 
Trainer survey 

1 pink (curriculum coverage) 
1 green (support for trainers) 
2 light green (resources for trainers, 
trainer development) 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Handover: 33% disagree handover 
between shifts ensures continuity of care; 
33% disagree handover between depts. 
ensures continuity of care (67% neither 
agree/disagree); 67% disagree appropriate 
multiprofessional team included in 
handover (33% neither agree/disagree) 

Feedback is currently excellent from all STs with no 
concerns raised to me over last year 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 
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Post 
Findings from most 
recent visit & latest 
update (if applicable) 

GMC Survey 2017 (programme 
grp unless specified otherwise) 

Is this 
on 

Dean’s 
Report? 

Areas we would like an update on 2017 - Trust update on issues – please tick a suggested 
rating 

Plastic 
Surgery 
ST3+ 

None Trainee survey 
1 green (work load) 
1 pink (clinical supervision out of hours) 

 
Trainer survey 

4 red (handover, curriculum coverage, 
educational governance, rota design) 
1 pink (support for trainers) 

NO GMC Survey feedback 
Trainer survey reds - any 
triangulation? 

There is concern over the sustainability of training with just 
one ST3 allocated. The consultant team are in discussion 
with the Trust over what service is to be provided going 
forward. Experience for the trainee is currently good. 

 Rating:     Red ☐        Amber ☐      Green 1 ☒ 

 

Green 1 rated posts – with no known issues 
Please check the status of the post with the relevant department and either: 

c) Tick the box to declare that there continue to be no issues and the post should remain Green 1; 
d) Write a summary of the issues in the third column, remembering to tick an Amber/Red rating. 

Post I declare there are no known issues & this 
post should remain Green 1 (tick box) 

If box is ticked… leave this section blank 
If box is unticked…  provide brief summary of issue, and tick a rating 

ACCS Anaesthetics ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

ACCS ICM ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Anaesthetics ST3+ ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Core Anaesthetics ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Clinical Oncology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

CMT 
☐ Workload across medicine is high particularly in gastroenterology and cardiology. Clinic access has been an 

issue but there is now a clear plan in place e.g. critical care going to rheumatology clinic.Attendance at training in 
the busy areas also is being monitored due to the workload issue.  

Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 
Diabetes & 
Endocrinology 

☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Dermatology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 
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Post I declare there are no known issues & this 
post should remain Green 1 (tick box) 

If box is ticked… leave this section blank 
If box is unticked…  provide brief summary of issue, and tick a rating 

ENT ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

ENT F1-2 ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Gastroenterology F1 
☐ As with CMT the workload issue is still present. This has been helped by better staff numbers with two trust 

middle grades added to the ST tier. One consultant reported as excellent and extremely supportive, but rest of 
consultant team though present, not perceived as appreciative or as supportive as their colleague. 

Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Geriatrics ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

GU Medicine ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Gynae-oncology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Haematology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Histopathology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

ICM ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

ICM F2 ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Med Microbiology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Medical Oncology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Medicine F1 ☐ Workload is an issue 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Medicine F2 ☐ Workload is an issue 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Neonatal Med ST1-3 ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Neonatal Med ST4+ ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Neurology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

OMFS ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 
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Post I declare there are no known issues & this 
post should remain Green 1 (tick box) 

If box is ticked… leave this section blank 
If box is unticked…  provide brief summary of issue, and tick a rating 

Ophthalmology ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Paediatric Em Med ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Paediatrics ST1-3 ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Paediatrics ST4-8 ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology (Breast) ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology (GI/GU) ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology (Head & 
Neck) 

☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology 
(Interventional) 

☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology (MSK) ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology (Oncology) ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology 
(Paediatric) 

☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Radiology (Nuclear 
Med) 

☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Rehab Med ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 

Surgery F1 ☒ Summary of issues… 
Rating:     Red ☐         Amber ☐ 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Unrated posts 
No unrated posts for this Trust. 

 

Your feedback 
Comments on this reporting process and how we could improve? 

Relatively easy to complete compared to previous versions. It was nice to be specifically asked to highlight good practice in the past, but if that going separately in future 
then that is fine. Would be great if HEE Thames Valley and Wessex used the same format. 
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Annual PGME Quality Trust Report 

Appendix 1: Rating definitions 
Rating Definition 

Green 1 Meets all national standards for education and provides an appropriate training experience. Clear action plans for any 
challenges which arise, with the impact of difficult to resolve issues minimised. 

Green 2 Meets all national standards for education and provides an appropriate training experience. Sustainability of improvements 
to previously Amber or Red rated posts require monitoring. 

Amber Requires improvement: trainees mostly able to achieve required outcomes, but if issues left unaddressed trainee 
education/patient safety could be at risk. 

Red 
Requires significant improvement: patient/trainees potentially at risk or trainees are likely to be unable to achieved 
required competencies due to quality of post. 
Red rated posts may be placed under GMC Enhanced Monitoring. 

 
 

Appendix 2: GMC Survey definitions 
Key for colours 

 
 

What is the difference between programme group and post specialty reports? 
Programme group: data from trainees in a department broken down by training grade / programme; for example, a programme group report labelled ‘Anaesthetics’ would 
comprise data only from specialty Anaesthetics ST3+ trainees. 

Post specialty: combines data of all trainees in a post, regardless of training grade / programme; for example a post specialty report labelled ‘Anaesthetics’ would 
comprise data from all Anaesthetics F2, ACCS, Core anaesthetics, Anaesthetics ST3+ who were in an anaesthetics post. Post specialty reports are useful if looking at 
small units/departments which otherwise would not have enough trainees at each programme level to generate a result. 

272



 
 

 
 

TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017  Agenda Item Number: 231/17 
        Enclosure Number: (13) 
Subject: Nursing - Safe Staffing 

Prepared by: 
 

 
Nicky Sinden, Lead Nurse for Workforce 
 
Theresa Murphy, Interim Director of Nursing 
 

Purpose of paper § The report details the methodology, findings, risk 
assessment and recommendations arising from the six 
monthly ward staffing review undertaken October 2017.  
 

§ To show analysis of actual nurse staffing levels, including 
escalation wards, against National Quality Board required 
nurse staffing metrics. 

 
§ Provide information regarding vacancies and recruitment 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet point 
format the main points and key 
issues that the Trust Board 
members should focus on 
including conclusions and 
proposals 

In November 2013, the National Quality Board published a 
guide to nursing midwifery and care staffing capacity and 
capability as a national response to the finding in the Francis 
report. This guidance was updated in July 2016 with a focus on 
safe, sustainable and productive staffing 
 
This paper provides the board with a report on the Autumn 
2017 ward based staffing review findings. The findings 
evidence that PHT wards budgeted staffing broadly meets 
national recommendation of a 65:35 RN to HCSW skill mix and 
all wards have at least 1 RN to 8 patients on day shifts and 1 
RN to 10 patients on night shifts.   
 
Budgeted average total Care Hours per Patient Day (CHPPD) 
across wards is 6.77 against a national range of 6.3 – 15.48 
(Model Hospital Aug 2017)  
 
The budgeted ward establishments have been reviewed 
against the Safer Nursing Care Tool. These results show the 
impact of the high numbers of medically fit for discharge 
patients against the staffing required to care for patients within 
an acute setting. There are no recommendations to rebalance 
staffing as a result of this review. 
 

Options and decisions 
required 
 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

Trust Board are requested to discuss the attached report at 
open board as a requirement of the National Quality Board 
(2103, 2016) expectations on ensuring safe staffing capacity 
and capability. 

Next steps / future actions: 
 
Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

The next full review will take place in 6 months (April 2018) 
reporting to Board in June 2018. Interim reviews are planned 
bi-monthly to review data quality related to daily data 
collection.  
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Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

 
 
 

 
Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 
Strategic Aim Strategic Aim 1: To deliver safe, high quality patient centred care 

Strategic Aim 4: Be a hospital whose staff recommend the Trust as 
a place to work and a place to receive treatment. 

BAF/Corporate Risk 
Register Reference (if 
applicable) 

1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.9, 4.1, 4.3 

Risk Description  
CQC Reference All Domains 
 
Committees/Meetings at which paper has been approved: Date 
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 Introduction 1.
 

NHS provider boards are accountable for ensuring their organisation has the right culture, 
leadership and skills in place for safe, sustainable and productive staffing. They are also 
responsible for ensuring proactive, robust and consistent approaches to measurement and 
continuous improvement, including the use of a local quality framework for staffing that will 
support safe, effective, caring, responsive and well-led care (National Quality Board, 2016).  
 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Board an update on the National Quality Board 
guidance for safe staffing, to provide evidence of the recent six monthly review of safe staffing 
that has occurred and that it meets this latest guidance. 

 
In 2013, the National Quality Board (NQB) set out 10 expectations and a framework within 
which organisations and staff should make decisions about staffing that put patients first. 
Putting people first remains the NQB priority and they state ‘is central to the delivery of high 
quality care that is safe, effective, caring and responsive’. The 2016 NQB document builds on 
the 2013 guidance to provide an updated safe staffing improvement resource.  

This guidance states ‘Key to high quality care for all is our ability to deliver services that are 
sustainable and well-led. In the past, quality and financial objectives have too often been 
regarded as being at odds with each other and therefore pursued in isolation. As set out in the 
Five Year Forward View, it is vital that we have a single, shared goal to maintain and improve 
quality, to improve health outcomes, and to do this within the financial resources entrusted to 
the health service. This requires a relentless focus on planning and delivering services in ways 
that both improve quality and reduce avoidable costs, underpinned by the following three 
principles’: 

 Right care: Doing the right thing, first time, in the right setting will ensure patients get the 
care that is right for them, avoiding unnecessary complications and longer stays in hospital 
and helping them recover as soon as possible. 
 Minimising avoidable harm: A relentless focus on quality, based on understanding the 
drivers and human factors involved in delivering high quality care, will reduce avoidable harm, 
prevent the unnecessary cost of treating that harm, and reduce costs associated with litigation. 
 Maximising the value of available resources: Providing high quality care to everyone 
accessing health and care services requires organisations and health economies to use their 
resources in the most efficient way for the benefit of their community – any waste has an 
opportunity cost in terms of care that could otherwise be provided. 
 
As the Carter productivity and efficiency report (2016) makes clear, improving workforce 
efficiency can benefit patient care through better recruitment and retention of permanent staff, 
better rostering, reduced sickness absence, matching work patterns to patient need, and 
reduced dependency on agency staff.  

 
 

 Policy Context 2.
In February 2013, Sir Robert Francis QC published his final report of the inquiry into failings at 
Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust. The report told a story of appalling suffering of many 
patients within a culture of secrecy and defensiveness, and highlighted a whole system failure. 
Compassion in Practice, the strategy for nurses, midwives and care staff (2012), the Francis 
report and the government response, Hard Truths: the journey to putting patients first, led to 
fundamental changes in how NHS provider boards are expected to assure they are making 
safe staffing decisions. The National Quality Board in November 2013 set out these 
expectations in relation to getting nursing, midwifery and care staffing right. It provided a clear 
governance and oversight framework alongside recommended evidence-based tools, 
resources and examples of good practice, to support NHS providers in delivering safe patient 
care and the best possible outcomes for their patients. The National Institute for Health and 
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Care Excellence (NICE) undertook work to produce guidelines on safe staffing for specific care 
settings, which led to the publication of Safe staffing for nursing in adult inpatient wards in 
acute hospitals and Safe midwifery staffing for maternity settings. 

The Carter report and the NHS Five Year Forward View planning guidance make it clear that 
workforce and financial plans must be consistent to optimise clinical quality and the use of 
resources. The Carter report highlighted variation in how acute trusts currently manage staff, 
from annual leave, shift patterns and flexible working through to using technology and E-
Rostering. It underlined that, in addition to good governance and oversight, NHS providers 
need a framework to evaluate information and data, measure impact, and enable them to 
improve the productive use of staff resources, care quality, and financial control. Lord Carter’s 
report recommended a new metric, care hours per patient day (CHPPD), as the first step in 
developing a single consistent way of recording and reporting staff deployments.  

Jim Mackey, Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, and Professor Sir Mike Richards, Chief 
Inspector of Hospitals at the Care Quality Commission, stated in a letter to Trusts that provider 
leaders have to deliver the right quality outcomes within available resources. They reiterated 
their joint commitment to working together on a single national regulatory framework for this 
purpose. 

Nursing and midwifery leaders have built on Compassion in Practice to create a national 
nursing, midwifery and care staff framework: Leading change, Adding value. This framework is 
aligned to the Five Year Forward View, with a central focus on reducing unwarranted variation 
and meeting the ‘Triple Aim’ measure of better health outcomes, better patient experience of 
care and better use of resources. 

The 2015 Shape of Caring report recommended changes to education, training and career 
structures for registered nurses and care staff. There is a need to continue this work and 
identify both nationally and locally how we maximise the capabilities and contribution of 
healthcare assistants/support workers/nursing associates to meet patient needs and provide 
fulfilling job roles and career pathways.  
 
As an integral part of developing their Sustainability and Transformation Plans, local health 
and care systems are developing local plans for how they will develop, support and retain a 
workforce with the rights skills, values and behaviours in sufficient numbers and in the right 
locations.  
 
The NQB (2016) builds on the 2013 guidance to provide an updated safe staffing improvement 
resource. The updated guidance states ‘Key to high quality care for all is our ability to deliver 
services that are sustainable and well-led.’ In the past, quality and financial objectives have 
too often been regarded as being at odds with each other and therefore pursued in isolation. 
As set out in the Five Year Forward View, it is vital that we have a single, shared goal to 
maintain and improve quality, to improve health outcomes, and to do this within the financial 
resources entrusted to the health service. This means a relentless focus on planning and 
delivering services in ways that both improve quality and reduce avoidable costs, underpinned 
by the following three principles’: 

 Right care: Doing the right thing, first time, in the right setting will ensure patients get the 
care that is right for them, avoiding unnecessary complications and longer stays in hospital 
and helping them recover as soon as possible. 
 Minimising avoidable harm: A relentless focus on quality, based on understanding the 
drivers and human factors involved in delivering high quality care, will reduce avoidable harm, 
prevent the unnecessary cost of treating that harm, and reduce costs associated with litigation. 
 Maximising the value of available resources: Providing high quality care to everyone 
who uses health and care services requires organisations and health economies to use their 
resources in the most efficient way for the benefit of their community – any waste has an 
opportunity cost in terms of care that could otherwise be provided. See Diagram 1. 
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Diagram 1 – Expectations required to meet to deliver safe, effective, caring, responsive 
and well-led care 

 

 
Expectation 1 – Right Staff 
 
 

Boards should ensure there is sufficient and sustainable staffing capacity and capability to 
provide safe and effective care to patients at all times, across all care settings in NHS 
provider organisations.  

Boards should ensure there is an annual strategic staffing review, with evidence that this is 
developed using a triangulated approach (the use of evidence-based tools, professional 
judgement and comparison with peers), which takes account of all healthcare professional 
groups and is in line with financial plans. This should be followed with a comprehensive 
staffing report to the board after six months to ensure workforce plans are still appropriate. 
There should also be a review following any service change or where quality or workforce 
concerns are identified.  

Safe staffing is a fundamental part of good quality care, and CQC will therefore always 
include a focus on staffing in the inspection frameworks for NHS provider organisations. 

Commissioners should actively seek to assure themselves that providers have sufficient 
care staffing capacity and capability, and to monitor outcomes and quality standards, using 
information that providers supply under the NHS Standard Contract. 

 
The principles are evidence based workforce planning, professional judgement and 
comparing staffing with peers. 
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Expectation 2 – Right Skills 

 
Boards should ensure clinical leaders and managers are appropriately developed and 
supported to deliver high quality, efficient services, and there is a staffing resource that 
reflects a multi-professional team approach. Decisions about staffing should be based on 
delivering safe, sustainable and productive services. 

Clinical leaders should use the competencies of the existing workforce to the full, further 
developing and introducing new roles as appropriate to their skills and expertise, where 
there is an identified need or skills gap. 

 
The principles are mandatory training, development and education, working as a multi-
professional team and recruitment and retention. 

 
Expectation 3 – Right Place and Right Time 

 
Boards should ensure staff are deployed in ways that ensure patients receive the right care, 
first time, in the right setting. This will include effective management and rostering of staff 
with clear escalation policies, from local service delivery to reporting at board, if concerns 
arise. 

 
Directors of nursing, medical directors, directors of finance and directors of workforce 
should take a collective leadership role in ensuring clinical workforce planning forecasts 
reflect the organisation’s service vision and plan, while supporting the development of a 
flexible workforce able to respond effectively to future patient care needs and expectations. 

 
The principles are productive working and eliminating waste, efficient deployment and 
flexibility and efficient employment minimising agency use. 

 
 

3.  How PHT meet the expectations 
 

Expectation 1 – Right Staff 
 

The Trust undertakes a comprehensive bi-annual review of adult in-patient safe staffing 
levels which is presented to Trust Board. This review uses the Safer Nursing Care Tool as 
recommended in Table 2 as one of the methods for workforce planning.  The findings of the 
tool are then subjected to a professional nursing judgement exercise by the Deputy Director 
of Nursing, Lead Nurse for Workforce and the relevant Head of Nursing and Matron, as 
also recommended in Table 2. This staffing review is then converted into a staffing 
establishment and a workable roster for each ward with agreed headroom to cover annual 
leave and sickness – this headroom is currently at 20.5% and 90% supervisory time (60% 
for small wards under 20 beds) is also included for ward managers to lead and manage 
their departments. The midwifery staffing is reviewed by the Director of Midwifery using the 
activity monitoring tool Birthrate Plus as shown in Table 2. These reviews are also 
presented to Trust Board for approval. 

 
Expectation 2 – Right Skills 
The responsibility of the Learning and Development Department is to provide staff with 
access to education and development.  There are clear requirements for essential training 
and these are monitored via performance reviews and at Trust board. The minimum 
expectation has been met with 88.6% of staff in date with their essential skills. Professional 
competencies and requirements are monitored through appraisals. An annual training 
needs analysis is undertaken in the autumn. This informs the training plan that is submitted 
to Health Education England Wessex for external funding to provide education, training and 

279



 
 

development for both clinical and non-clinical across bands 1-4 and 5-9. Consideration of 
both local and national priorities alongside workforce redesign is incorporated in the 
plan.  The allocation of monies is determined via headcount and divided by CSC to ensure 
fair and equitable access.  Any key Trust priorities are given consideration via the Strategic 
Education and Workforce Development Meeting and funding top sliced or additional bids 
made as required.  This group oversees the CSC requirements throughout the year to 
ensure that staff have the requisites skills to meet the changing needs of the service.  An 
example is the Associate Practitioner route via a foundation degree and 14 trainees are in 
post to become associate practitioners in nursing teams.  Another key development is the 
advanced practitioner role, both clinical and nursing, and funding has been awarded to 
progress this role to enhance the skills of existing staff to address workforce and acute care 
needs. 

 
The Trust has a very positive reputation across Wessex for the work done locally on 
recruitment.  PHT continues to have fewer vacancies than local Trusts following its very 
proactive recruitment in Europe, the Philippines and UK. Annual plans are put in place for 
recruitment from the local population, nationally, from Europe and internationally. In 2018 
the Trust will be recruiting in either the Philippines or India every other month from January 
through to December. The Trust is also a major provider of placements for students from 
many universities and these placements are continually evaluated and have high 
satisfaction levels – further enhancing the ability of the trust to recruit and retain staff. 
 
A more recent project is to participate in the Global Learners Programme provided by 
Health Education England. HEE work with International healthcare providers to recruit 
International RN’s to work in the UK and enhance their education and skills, with a view to 
return after 3 years 

 
 

Expectation 3 – Right place and time 
 

The Trust has incorporated the productive ward into the Portsmouth Quality Bundle and 
has completed several cycles over the year of lean methodology using this process. An 
annual review of ‘contact hours’ is also undertaken to review what percentage of the 
allocated hours are being used for direct care.  This exercise is then benchmarked and fed 
back to staff to review any changes that can be made. 

 

Staffing concerns and other risks are escalated via the ‘safety learning event’ process and 
reported to CSCs and board on a regular basis.  Staffing incidents and ‘red flag’ staffing 
incidents are regularly reviewed and reported into the bi-annual staffing reports. There is a 
daily process in and out of hours to manage staffing across the organisation with escalation 
to senior members of the nursing team if additional staffing is required or there are any 
safety concerns.  This is formally reported and cascaded three times a day, seven days a 
week. 

 
Staffing levels are publically displayed in all wards in the form of planned and actual 
staffing.  This data is captured, collated and submitted to NHS England monthly and then 
displayed by NHS choices. Data is reported monthly in the workforce section of the 
Integrated Performance Report in the form of the NQB data and now includes the CHPPD 
data. 

 
 

Triangulation of this data 
 
The impact of staffing decisions on the quality of patient care and patient outcomes is 
monitored and reported to Trust Board in the Quality Section of the Integrated Performance 
Report. The Trust has a very healthy quality scorecard and benchmarks well to other Trusts 
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as can be seen in the monthly safety thermometer data which compares the Trust across 
the country for four quality metrics; falls, pressure ulcers, cdiff incidents and catheter 
acquired UTI’s. The experience of care delivery is also monitored through patient, carer and 
staff feedback e.g. FFT, In-patient survey results and the staff survey results.  

 
Overall the Trust remains in a good position with staffing, is recognised nationally for the 
learning and development standards, the robust methods of rostering and agency reduction 
and is leading the way for quality monitoring with ward accreditation, perfect care, quality 
care reviews etc. 

 
 
 

4. October 2017 Ward Based Staffing Review 
 

A full ward based staffing review took place in October 2017. (full data attached in appendix 
1) This was the 2nd review following the rebalance of ward based staffing in Sep 16, which 
informed 2017/18 ward based establishments and budget. All results were analysed and 
discussed with all CSC Heads of Nursing, to consider professional judgement. The 
outcome of the nurse staffing review has not suggested any changes to ward based 
staffing.  
 
Analysis of the data over the last 6 months has seen a change in the acuity and 
dependency of our patients, showing an increasing number of non-acute patients. It is 
suggested that this is a result of the high numbers of MFFD patients and a further review 
will take place in 3 months following some further support from the Research nurse. 

 
Funding through a NIHR research project, with the University of Southampton, has 
facilitated the introduction of twice daily dependency and acuity scoring. (SNCT) This is 
now captured electronically using the ‘Bed View’ system assigning n acuity score to each 
individual patient morning and evening. The research is supported by a Workforce 
Research Sister, who is providing education, support and quality assurance to the wards 
and departments. This has improved the quality of the data and allowed for early 
intervention when patient scores do not reflect the ‘normal’ acuity and dependency 
expected for the patient group. 

 
In addition to the assessment of patients in the funded bed base, the use of Bed View to 
score the SNCT has allowed for some assessment of the patients being cared for on 
escalation wards and departments, with further plans to cover all additional capacity 

  
The implementation of a live SNCT score for each ward is being considered to support the 
daily staffing reviews and movement of nurses and care support workers to support 
changes in the dependency and acuity of the patients. 

 
 
4.1 Nurse to patient ratios by registered and total nursing 
 

· The budgeted ward establishments across PHT allow for registered nurse to patient 
ratios during the day range from 1:3 to 1:7 depending on specialty and overall 
staffing model. It should be noted that the ratio can increase when wards are not 
fully covered. 

· Planned staffing ratios at night require continuous oversight to ensure the staffing is 
sufficient to provide the care required for patients out of hours. The range of RN to 
patient is 3.3 to 9.3.  

· All planned PHT nurse staffing meets the CQC minimum required RN to patient 
ratios of 1:8 on day shifts and 1:10. 
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4.2 Registered to unregistered ratios 
 

· PHT ward areas have been reviewed against a minimum 60:40 registered to 
unregistered staff ratio as a level that a ward should not fall below unless planned 
into the establishment model. 

· 19 wards are established between 60:40 and 70:30 skill mix. 
· 2 wards are established below this range. These are approved for wards caring for 

MFFD patients 
· 8 wards are established above a 70:30 skill mix. These are wards that provide level 

2 care facilities or are emergency admission areas (hyperacute stroke, SHCU, 
AMU, CCU) 

· The development of the band 4 role continues within PHT which will lead to the 
introduction of the Nursing Associate. Focus will continue on reviewing the overall 
registered to unregistered ratios to ensure any changes are linked to a planned 
model of care for the individual wards. 

4.3  Allowance for additional headroom requirements and supervisory ward 
leader  
 
· All areas have 20.5% funding allocated to allow for requirements arising from non-

direct care time. (Annual leave, sick leave, study leave) 
· PHT has a model of 90% band 7 supervisory time on each ward (60% on small 

wards) It should be noted that the ongoing position on vacancies, particularly in 
Medicine and MOPRS, has resulted in the leaders with supervisory time working as 
part of the baseline numbers. The full benefits of the supervisory model will not be 
realised until substantive staffing levels improve.  

4.4 Increasing patient acuity and dependency 
 

· The daily recording of dependency and acuity has provided evidence of an increase 
in acuity and dependency of patients cared for in our general wards. Some of this 
can be explained by the high numbers of MFFD patients we see across all CSC 
wards. In addition a higher number of patients have an increased dependence on 
nurses to provide care for all their activities of living. 

4.5 Increasing enhanced care needs 
 
· The introduction of the daily SNCT review has allowed for more accurate capture of 

the number of patients requiring enhanced care needs. (ECO) This explains the 
additional use of unregistered workforce being utilised to be able to provide 1:1 care 
over a 24 hour period. Further review and the development of a a new model to 
manage this patient group is under way. 

 
4.6 Review of Quality Metrics 

 
· The NICE recommendations outline some key quality metrics that should be 

considered as part of the staffing reviews. The safety metrics defined are patient 
falls, pressure ulcers and medicine administration errors. These are already 
monitored through our quality dashboard and considered as part of the professional 
judgement methodology reviews. These metrics are now routinely captured via the 
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nursing dashboard and form part of the model hospital reporting. (dashboard 
appendix 2) 

 
 

 Vacancies, Recruitment and Turnover 5.
 

5.1 Vacancies 

The overall vacancy position for Nursing and Midwifery is 173 wte as of end Oct 2017. This 
is 6.17% vacancies overall. This is broken down into 234 wte registered staff (bands 5-9) 
and -61.5 wte unregistered staff. (bands 1-4) There are approx. 45 Nurses awaiting Pin 
numbers working as either a band 3 or 4. These are either UK trained RN’s or International 
RN’s without IELTS or OSCE passes. Current registered nurse and midwife vacancies are 
13% reducing to 10% once registration is complete. 

 
The highest vacancies for registered nurses are in the ward and department based teams, 
in particular Medicine (24% RN vacancies) and Medicine for Older People (23% RN 
vacancies) 

 
In addition to our substantive and temporary (as required) workforce, we utilise some 
contracted band 5 and 2 NHSP staff. These workers are filling a vacancy for up to an 
eighteen month period. After adding these into the vacancies the result is 200 wte 
vacancies, which equates to 4.6% vacancies overall. Although booked and paid through the 
temporary staff NHSP platform, we manage this group as a substantive worker in 
partnership with NHSP. The majority of this workforce transfer into a substantive role on 
completion of their contract with NHSP. These are mainly RN’s recruited from the EU 
through NHSP or CSW trainees who work solely in one ward and undertake the Care 
Certificate with NHSP. 

 
 
5.2 Recruitment 

Generic pro-active recruitment for band 5 Registered Nurses and band 2 Health Care 
Support workers is managed centrally from within the Corporate Nursing team. This is 
supplemented by targeted CSC recruitment. The Trust has recruited nurses from Europe 
the Philippines and the UK over the last six months. The total recruited substantively to the 
Trust was 68 registered nurses. In addition to this, 6 contracted Registered Nurses in 
conjunction with NHSP. This is a total of 74 RN’s recruited  

 
The Trust has recruited 80 band HCSW’s over the last 3 months. The majority were 
recruited through the HCSW open day held in August with a further day planned for 
January 2018. 
 
The net effect of recruitment and turnover has decreased our vacancies overall but the 
Registered Nurse and Midwife vacancies increased by 0.8% over the last 6 months. 

 
Generic recruitment consists of constant band 5 and band 2 adverts via NHS Jobs. We 
have been recruiting Registered Nurses in the EU, but this pipeline has completely ceased 
over the last 6 months, with occasional applicants which are picked up individually. 
Intelligence from our recruitment agencies advise this is due to Brexit, IELTS requirements 
and the strength of the pound. There is currently and increase in our EU nurses leaving the 
Trust to return home. Our most recent cohort of 9 commenced in September 2017. 

 
In February, May & October 2017 the Trust recruited in the Philippines. The total job offers 
made to band 5 nurses is 440 across all CSC’s. Due to strict visa, language and NMC 
requirements, the prediction is that we would expect to achieve one third of the successful 
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candidates arriving to commence their post in PHT over the course of 18 months. Details of 
all confirmed and predicted new starters are shown below.  
 
The nursing recruitment strategy is designed to create a continuous supply of RN’s and 
CSW’s through a pipeline achieved through proactive recruitment without restrictions. 
 
Table 3 shows confirmed new starters highlighted in grey boxes and predicted not 
highlighted. The arrival of International RN’s is difficult to predict due to the essential 
requirements to apply for the visa. We are kept up to date weekly by the recruitment teams 
in the recruiting country. 
 

 
 
Table 1. The generic recruitment pipeline for 2017/2018  
 
Date RN’s Source HCSW’s Source Total 
November 17 4 Philippines 50 Trainee CSW 51 
January 18 9 Philippines 10 Generic 19 
February 18 6 Philippines 50 Recruitment 

Day (Jan 18) 
56 

March 18 9 Philippines    
April18 
onwards 

70 in 
pipeline 

Philippines    

Totals 77  110  187 
 
 

Table 2 shows the confirmed recruitment trips for 2017/2018 
 
Table 2. Confirmed recruitment campaigns 
 
Date Country 
December 2017 Philippines 
January 2018 India 
March 2018 Philippines 
May 2018 India 
July 2018 Philippines 
September 2018 India 
November 2018 Philippines 
 

 
5.3 Turnover 

· Turnover for band 5 RN’s is 16%. This is above national average. The range of 
band 5 leavers since April 2017 is 8-26 wte per month.  

· Turnover for band 6-9 RN’s is 7.8%. The range of band 6-9 leavers since April 2017 
is 2-10 per month. 

· Turnover for band 1-4 RN’s is 14%. The range of band 1-4 leavers since April 2017 
is 3-19. 

Turnover reports are attached in appendix 3. 
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6 Incidents in connection with nurse staffing  

 
NICE Safer Staffing Guidelines identified the requirement for Trusts to report any red flag 
incidents that occur.  NICE specify a list of red flag incidents which include less than 2 
Registered Nurses per shift, more than 25% reduction in planned staffing, care omissions e.g. 
turns, feeding, observations, pain relief.  In line with neighbouring providers, the Trust have 
added the red flags to the Datix reporting system and briefed ward sisters and teams on their 
importance and how to report red flag event.  
  
Table 3 and Table 4 below demonstrate the incidents reported in ******** in relation to nursing 
and midwifery staffing. There has been a decrease in staffing incidents reported compared to 
Aug & Sep 2016 which were both above 100.  
 

 
Table 3: Staffing incidents by month March 2017 – October  2017. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 4: Staffing level incidents by severity 
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7 NQB Fill Rate during 2017 and Care Hours per Patient Day (CHPPD) 
 

NHS England published guidance in March 2014 requiring Trusts to publish monthly 
information in public board papers on the planned and actual staff numbers on duty for each 
ward in the Trust. Since June 2014 this has been uploaded via Unify and published on NHS 
Choices. The board receives this monthly information on the percentage of staff shifts filled 
and ward staff display publicly daily information shift by shift the staff available versus those 
that were planned for the shift. 

 
Table 5: Actual staff numbers and skill mix 

 

 
 

Table 6 evidences that the Trust is maintaining a good RN fill rate, however the increasing 
CSW fill to provide Enhanced Care Observation (ECO) and supplement RN gaps is decreasing 
the RN:CSW skill mix to below acute setting recommended skill mix of 65% RNs to 35% 
HCSWs. This has improved slightly from Sep 2017 and recent restrictions in the use of agency 
HCSW will improve the actual skill mix.  

 
Care Hours per Patient Day (CHPPD) 
 
CHPPD is calculated by adding the hours of registered nurses and the hours of healthcare 
support workers and dividing the total by every 24 hours of inpatient admissions (or 
approximating 24 patient hours by counts of patients at midnight). CHPPD is reported as a 
total and split by registered nurses and healthcare support workers to provide a complete 
picture of care and skill mix. See diagram 2. 
 
 
Diagram 2 – Formula for calculating CHPPD 
 

 

Registered 
Nurses HCSW

% %
Sep-16 91.1% 113.9% 70.8% : 29.2% 66.0% : 34.0%
Oct-16 93.3% 116.0% 70.5% : 29.5% 65.8% : 34.2%
Nov-16 95.2% 116.4% 70.8% : 29.2% 66.4% : 33.6%
Dec-16 93.1% 109.3% 70.4% : 29.6% 66.9% : 33.1%
Jan-17 93.0% 113.5% 70.4% : 29.6% 66.0% : 34.0%
Feb-17 92.5% 115.7% 70.4% : 29.6% 65.5% : 34.5%
Mar-17 93.7% 118.3% 70.0% : 30.0% 64.9% : 35.1%
Apr-17 93.5% 125.7% 70.3% : 29.7% 63.8% : 36.2%

May-17 94.4% 127.9% 70.2% : 29.8% 63.5% : 36.5%
Jun-17 93.7% 127.6% 70.1% : 29.9% 63.3% : 36.7%
Jul-17 92.8% 127.5% 69.9% : 30.1% 62.8% : 37.2%

Aug-17 91.8% 127.7% 69.9% : 30.1% 62.5% : 37.5%
Sep-17 93.6% 124.3% 69.8% : 30.2% 63.5% : 36.5%
Oct-17 98.6% 124.0% 69.2% : 30.8% 64.1% : 35.9%

RN:HCSW RN:HCSW

Actual Staff Numbers and Skill Mix

Skill Mix

Planned Actual

Average Fill Rate
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Table 6 . Oct 2017 planned versus actual care hours per patient day per ward 

 

Ward 
RNs 

planned 
CHPPD  

RNs 
Actual 
CHPPD  

HCSW 
Planned 

CHPPD  

HCSW 
Actual 
CHPPD  

Total  
Planned 

CHPPD  

Total 
Actual 
CHPPD  

E2 3.69 3.16 2.04 2.09 5.73 5.25 

E3 3.66 3.20 1.83 1.71 5.49 4.91 

SAU 5.07 4.30 2.05 2.32 7.12 6.62 

D7 3.67 2.99 1.87 1.96 5.54 4.95 

SHCU 7.98 7.41 1.38 1.47 9.36 8.88 

F5/6/7 4.72 4.55 1.76 1.69 6.48 6.24 

C5 3.61 3.75 1.97 2.59 5.58 6.34 

C6 3.32 3.49 1.99 2.49 5.31 5.98 

C7 5.5 5.4 1.0 1.05 6.5 6.45 

E6/7 4.74 4.65 2.21 2.53 6.95 7.18 

E8 3.44 3.38 2.06 2.77 5.50 6.15 

D2 3.54 3.68 1.97 2.73 5.51 6.41 

D3 3.36 3.09 2.00 3.18 5.36 6.27 

F1 6.59 5.80 4.63 6.47 11.22 12.27 
F2 3.86 3.53 2.47 3.71 6.33 7.24 

F3 3.98 3.40 2.55 3.82 6.53 7.22 
F4 5.42 5.56 2.17 3.68 7.59 9.24 

G2 3.99 3.62 2.55 3.68 6.54 7.30 

G3 3.88 3.31 2.48 3.72 6.36 7.03 

G1 3.67 3.30 2.68 3.46 6.35 6.76 

G4 4.10 3.61 2.87 4.02 6.97 7.63 

D8 4.13 3.76 1.80 2.08 5.93 5.84 

G6 6.21 5.79 1.72 2.13 7.93 7.92 

G7 6.20 5.43 2.83 2.38 9.03 7.81 

G9 6.17 5.74 2.75 2.09 8.92 7.83 

A5/6 4.27 3.73 2.76 2.51 7.03 6.24 

D1 3.16 3.29 4.14 3.98 7.30 7.27 

D6 3.86 3.45 2.79 2.92 6.65 6.37 

D4 4.19 4.26 2.00 2.52 6.19 6.78 

D5 3.55 3.59 2.19 2.49 5.74 6.08 

AMU 6.56 6.51 2.87 3.01 9.43 9.52 

 
 
 

Table 7 shows the planned and actual care hours available to each patient on the relevant 
ward per 24 hour period. The Lord Carter worked showed that PHT sit in the lower quartile 
range for care hours. Latest Model Hospital data (Aug 2017) shows this remains the case. It 
should be noted that as in the above table 6 the workforce is regularly being supported by 
additional care support workers when there is a deficit in registered nurses and to provide 
Enhanced Care Observation (ECO)  
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8 Safe Staffing – Flexible Escalation Areas 
 

In addition to the budgeted bed base, nurse staffing is required for several escalation areas. 
Some areas are open continuously, with others opened intermittently. These areas do not 
have an establishment and rely solely on bank and agency staff. E4 does have a budgeted 
establishment but only 3 wte in post. This ward relies on a temporary workforce and 
movement of staff from other CSC’s, which does impact on turnover 
 
Table 7. Staffing requirements for flexible escalation wards (RN+CSW) 
 

 
Area 

wte 
required 
RN 

wte 
required 
CSW 

Total 
wte 

Max Bed 
numbers 

N:B 
ratio 

Skill mix 
RN:CSW 

Comments 

AMU Pink 5.0 5.0 10.0 5 2.0 50:50 Supported by AMU co-
ordinator 

E4 15.0 17.5 32.5 18 1.8 46:54 Managed within 
MOPRS CSC 

Cardiac Day Unit 12.85 6.42 19.27 12 1.6 67:33  
Renal Day Unit 6.42 6.42 12.84 7 1.83 50:50  
Recovery 6.42 6.42 12.84 7 1.83 50:50  
Endoscopy on G5 5.0 0.0 5.0 2 2.5 100:0  
Additional ED 25.0 0.0 25.0 n/a n/a n/a Additional nurses to 

achieve 1:4 ratio 
Total additional wte 75.69 41.76 117.45 57    
 

 
Table 8 shows the staffing requirements for additional capacity. Due to the poor economy of 
scale in these areas the nurse to bed ratio is very high compared to the budgeted wards. The 
cost to employ this workforce substantively per annum would be in the region of 3.5 million. 
The current cost using temporary staff exceeds this as we often utilise higher cost agency staff 
due to the ‘last minute’ requirements. An approximate cost when taking the mid-range agency 
charge rate would be in excess of 5 million per annum. 

 
 
 

 
9 Maternity Staffing Review – Birth Rate Plus 
 

The Royal College of Midwives (RCM) and the Royal College of Obstetricians and 
Gynaecologists (RCOG) recommend the use of Birthrate  Plus® (BRP) which was endorsed by 
the RCM Council in 1999 and in the Unit Commission Report: First Class Delivery (1997). 
There is no other research-based methodology for workforce planning in maternity services 
and traditional methods are of little value in today’s health service. 
 
Birthrate Plus® is the most widely used system for classifying women and babies according to 
their needs, using clinical outcome data to calculate the number of midwives required to 
provide antenatal, intrapartum and postnatal care. Together with the case mix, the number of 
midwife hours per woman category based on the well-established standard of one midwife to 
one woman throughout labour, plus extra midwife time needed for complicated categories III, 
IV & V, calculates the clinical staffing for the annual number of women delivered. 
 
Analysis of the casemix for women using Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust Maternity Services 
in 2015  indicated that approximately only 33% of the births are in the lower categories (I and 
II), with 67% in the moderate to high categories. This case mix is also an indicator of the 
antenatal and postnatal requirements of the women and is used to calculate staffing. 
 
The Trust supported the increase in maternity establishment in 2016 and the service has been 
proactively recruiting throughout 2017. The service has seen an increase in the number of 
staff reducing hours, particularly following maternity leave.  
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The current vacancies as of October 2017 are identified below:  

             
 Establishment  In Post Vacancies at 

October 2017 
Midwives 200.13 181 19.13* 
Maternity Support 
Workers Band 3 

33.78 29.42 4.36 

Maternity Support 
Worker Band 2 

54.52 51.27 3.25 

 
*the service has recently recruited to 10WTE newly qualifying midwife who will take up post 
from December 2017 and February 2018 
The remaining post are planned to go through WCP in November 2017 
 

 
 
 
 

 
10 Summary 

 
This report provides an overview to Trust board of the requirements for the October  2017 
National Quality Board (NQB) paper – Supporting NHS Providers to deliver the right staff, with 
the right skills, in the right place at the right time.  It also provides assurance to Trust Board 
that the Director of Nursing has undertaken a comprehensive Safer Staffing Review as 
required bi-annually and the table shows that safe staffing levels are being maintained across 
all wards following the 2016 re-balance of resources. 
 
The report also provides detailed information on the actual fill rates month by month of staffing 
numbers at ward level and details any ‘red flag’ staffing incidents that occur as a result of 
staffing. 
 
The Trust remains in a positive position in terms of recruitment to RN vacancies when 
compared to the local and national RN shortages that are well publicised, however the position 
is deteriorating month upon month. There is a comprehensive process for managing vacancies 
and shortages that occur on a daily position with a senior nurse reviewing this throughout the 
twenty four hour period. This oversight helps to reduce the need for bank and agency staff 
being utilised in the Trust and this helps to provide continuity of care for patients, although we 
must not be complacent and need to continually monitor nurse staffing. It supports the 
requirement for ongoing commitment from the board with regard to supporting continuous RN 
recruitment both in the UK, EU and Internationally. It should be noted that to prevent a further 
reduction in the actual versus planned skill mix, this is essential. 
 
Quality metrics demonstrate a safe position for patient care within the organisation as a result 
of staff deployment, qualifications, skills and competencies. There is a need to continually 
review this quality position monthly to ensure all patients receives a high standard of care and 
this information is provided in the monthly quality section of the IPR. 
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Appendix 1 October 2017 Nurse staffing review 

04._Turnover - Band 
1 - 4.pdf

04._Turnover - Band 
5.pdf

04._Turnover - Band 
6 - 9.pdf  

 
Appendix 2 Nurse Quality Dashboard 
 

October 2017 Nurse 
staffing review NS No   
 
Appendix 3 Nurse Turnover charts 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017    Agenda Item Number: 232/17 
        Enclosure Number: (14) 

Subject: 2016 National Cancer Patient Experience Results 

 
Prepared by: 
 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Ruth Carter, Head of Nursing for Surgery & Cancer and 
Constantinos Yiangou, Associate Medical Director 

Paul Bytheway, Chief Operating Officer 

Purpose of paper Feedback results of the National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 
2016 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

Key headlines of the report – Positive and Negative 

What we are doing with the results  

 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

 N/A 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

National Cancer Patient Experience Survey2017 currently being 
collected 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

5 question speciality questionnaires given out by CNS’s 

Posters up to encourage people to  take part in 2017 survey 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities N/A 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference N/A 

Risk Description N/A 

CQC Reference Patient involvement 

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

Caner Steering Committee, discussed monthly since July 2017  
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National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 2016 
 
 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Examples of areas were 
Portsmouth Hospitals  did 
better than the National 
average (not exclusive): 

 

PHT National 
Average 

 

Patient felt they were told 
sensitively that they had 
cancer 

86%  84% 

Patient definitely involved in 
decisions about care and 
treatment                    
 

80%  78% 
 

Hospital staff gave 
information about support 
groups                                 

88%  84% 
 

Staff explained how 
operation had gone in 
understandable way 

82%  79% 
 

Key Headlines: 
 

On a scale of zero (very poor) to 10 (very good) patients rated their care within the Trust 
as 8.8, compared to 8.7 nationally. 
 

80% of respondents said they were definitely involved as much as they wanted to be in 
the decisions about their care and treatments = 2015 
 

90% of respondents said that they were given the name of a Clinical Nurse Specialist 
(CNS) who would support them through their treatment = 2015 
 

89% of respondents said that, overall they were always treated with dignity and respect 
when they were in Hospital up 2% on 2015 
 

94% of respondents said that hospital staff told them who to contact if they were worried 
about their condition or treatment after they left hospital = 2015 
 

82% of respondents said it had been quite easy or very easy to contact their CNS down 
3 % on 2015 
 

60% of respondents said that the GPs and Nurses at their General Practice definitely did 
everything they could to support them while the were having cancer treatment down 5% 
on 2016 
 

The Annual National Cancer Patient Experience Survey was published by Quality Health on 21st July 2017.  A total of 146 Trust’s 
participated. 
972 (911 - Adjusted) people from Portsmouth were invited to participate in the survey during September to November 2016.   
A total of 666 questionnaires were returned; providing a response rate of 73% against a national response rate of 67%.  This 
compares to 69% for Southampton General Hospital and 73% for Poole (Dorset Cancer Centre). 
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017    Agenda Item Number: 233/17 
          Enclosure Number: (15) 

Subject: Board Performance Report, Quarter 2 – 2017/18 

Research and Innovation 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Professor Anoop Chauhan Director of Research & Innovation 

Mark Cubbon, Chief Executive 

Purpose of paper To brief the Board on research and innovation performance at PHT 
against local and national bench marks.  

For Information only 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

Patient recruitment into clinical trials and research studies is on 
target and the Trust is currently ranked 5th nationally. 

PHT is ranked in the top 3 nationally for recruitment in the following 
specialities: cancer, surgery, ophthalmology, respiratory disorders, 
gastroenterology, critical care, dermatology, aging, injuries and 
emergencies and children.  

PHT is ranked in the top 10 nationally for recruitment in the 
additional following specialities: renal, cardiovascular disease, 
diabetes, genetics, neurological disorders, primary care and 
hepatology. 

Our performance initiating and delivering research against national 
standards remains high; currently 69% of all commercial studies 
have delivered to time and target. 

Feedback from patients involved in PHT research studies is positive; 
96% of patients stated they would recommend our service. The 
average “I Want Great Care” score was 4.85 (max 5). 

PHT continues to deliver high impact research and offer more 
patients the opportunity to take part in studies. Recent data 
published by the NIHR ranked PHT in the top ten acute trusts 
reporting the biggest increase of research activity. 

As a department we are continuing to build our infrastructure and 
support the development of more PHT led research for the benefit of 
our patients. We have recently secured a commitment from the 
University of Portsmouth to collaborate in the development of a joint 
Clinical Trials and Research Unit. We anticipate that this initiative 
will be launched in the spring of 2018. 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

For information 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

Clinical Research Facility (bricks and mortar) 

Greater scrutiny on 70 day target for commercial studies 

Further embed research into clinical services  

Refresh the R&I strategy 2018-2020 

Continue to develop our infrastructure to support PHT led research 

Expand on our success working in partnership with SMEs 
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Consideration of legal issues 
(including Equality Impact 
Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities Strategic Aim 2: Develop a reputation for excellence in innovation, 
research and development and education in the top 20% of our peers 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference 

 

Risk Description  

CQC Reference  

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 
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SECTION 1:        PATIENT EXPERIENCE   

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust is one of the top ten acute trusts nationally reporting the biggest increase of 
research activity in the last year, a report shows. PHT has increased its research activity significantly in the last year 
offering more patients access to better care, services and treatments, according to a league table published in 
recently by the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) Clinical Research Network (CRN).  
 
The figures also show the QA Hospital research teams recruited 5,605 participants into research studies in 2016/17; 
a 52% increase on 2015/16 when 3,678 participants were recruited. The Trust also saw a 16% increase in the number 
of research studies it is able to offer to patients – from 172 in 2015/16 to 200 in 2016/17. 
 
Forty-three-year-old Rosellen Lambert, from Gosport, was one of those who took up the opportunity to participate 
in research at QA Hospital. Rosellen was diagnosed with ovarian cancer in August 2015 after finding a lump in her 
abdomen. A month later she was on the operating table having a full hysterectomy, followed by six rounds of 
chemotherapy and a single course of radiotherapy.  
 
“The diagnosis really did come as quite a shock,” she said. “Looking back I had all the classic symptoms – tiredness, 
bloating, loss of appetite, needing to pee more and all the rest that comes with ovarian cancer but they are all such 
generic symptoms that you just put them down to being busy and getting older. That’s the trouble with this 
particular type of cancer.” 
 
At the end of last year Rosellen was given the all-clear. She went on to take part in a research study looking at 
mindfulness sessions to improve mental health and wellbeing in patients with recurrent ovarian cancer. The study, 
called MoVA, was funded by the National Institute of Health Research National School of Primary Care Research 
(NSPCR) and organised by Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust (PHT) and the University of Southampton. Dr Chit Cheng 
Yeoh, Consultant Medical Oncologist at QA Hospital, got in touch with Rosellen at the start of the year regarding the 
study.  
 
“I had already had conversations with Cheng about complimentary approaches and meditation to help me deal with 
what had happened to me and so she knew I was interested in things like that,” said Rosellen. “The timing of the 
study was perfect for me. Up until the end of my treatment I was so busy getting from appointment to appointment 
that I didn’t have time to actually face the fact that I had been diagnosed with cancer, you just go through the 
process. So,  because of that, the mindfulness study really appealed to me – especially with regards to taking control 
of things on my own and learning how to deal with these thoughts and feelings on my own and in my normal day-to-
day life.  
 
“I really found the sessions useful in all aspects of my life – not just my cancer and health.  I still do some of the 
practices now even though the study has ended – I set up daily reminders on my phone to do a mindfulness practice 
in the middle of the afternoon. It really helps you process things and live in the moment –it’s very cleverly done. 
 
“I would definitely look to take part in any future research studies, especially because there doesn’t seem to be as 
many treatment options for ovarian cancer compared to some other cancers. Anything I can do to help improve 
knowledge, awareness and understanding of ovarian cancer for myself and for other people can only be a good 
thing. 
 
“I would like to say how fantastically well looked after I was at QA. I cannot sing their praises enough; they were so 
supportive and caring. Cheng, especially, is just amazing. I feel very lucky to have been in an area with a hospital that 
does do so much research.  I’m in touch with women in other areas of the country who haven’t had the same 
support, opportunities and positive experience that I was lucky enough to have. 
 
“To anyone thinking of getting involved in research - look at the possibilities and the opportunities that research 
studies offer because it’s a chance to get extra support, extra help and possibly extra treatment and by doing that 
potentially helping to provide the evidence that this is what everyone should be having from the beginning. Go for 
it.” 
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SECTION 2:  RESEARCH IMPACT STORIES 

                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                               

 

                                                                                                            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Nuno Tavares, a respiratory nurse at QAH studying for a 
PhD at the University of Southampton as a Wessex 
CLAHRC Fellow, has just published a systematic review in 
ERJ Open Research, examining end of life care in patients 
with Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD), a 
chronic life-limiting disorder characterised by persistent 
airflow obstruction and progressive breathlessness.  

 The findings indicated that the frequency and quality of 
palliative care conversations is generally poor. Patients and 
physicians identified many barriers and important topics 
were not discussed. Patients and clinicians reported 
tension between remaining hopeful and the reality of the 
patients' condition. When discussions did happen, they 
often occurred at an advanced stage of illness and in 
respiratory wards and intensive care units. 

In conclusion, current care practices do not facilitate 
satisfactory conversations about palliative care between 
COPD patients and clinicians. Nuno aims to improve this 
situation through the research he is carrying out for the 
remainder of his PHD. 
 

“One of the hardest things about 
COPD is the unpredictability of the 
disease. People can get very ill very 
quickly, and it can be too late to 
discuss what patients or their family 
want. That’s why we need to have 
those discussions earlier.” 

We now ask our patients for 
feedback of their research 
experience. 96.23% of patients 
asked would recommend our 
service.  
The average “I Want Great Care” 
score was 4.85 (max 5). We will 
continue to report this to the 
Board every quarter.  
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SECTION 3:        RESEARCH RECRUITMENT 

CHART 3.1    PHT PORTFOLIO (NON-COMMERCIAL/COMMERCIAL) MONTHLY AND CUMULATIVE RECRUITMENT 
SET AGAINST WESSEX CLINICAL RESEARCH NETWORK (CRN) GOAL 

 

 
Source: NIHR Open Data Platform.  

  

Chart 3.1 shows all PHT monthly and cumulative Porfolio recruitment for April – September 2017 against the 
recruitment goal set by the Clinical Research Network (CRN) Wessex and recruitment in 2016/17. Porfolio 
recruitment includes all patients and staff recruited into high quality research studies as defined by the National 
Institute of Health Research (NIHR) and adopted onto the NIHR Portfolio. This chart does not include recruitment 
into other studies i.e student studies etc (non-portfolio). Chart 3.2 shows research activity by Wessex NHS 
organisations set against goal. Chart 3.3 shows the ranking of the first 20 large acute NHS organisations (total n=42). 
PHT is 5th (12%); the aim is to remain in the top 20% among our peers.  

CHART 3.2    NIHR PORTFOLIO RECRUITMENT BY WESSEX NHS ORGANISATIONS SET AGAINST GOAL  

                           
Source: NIHR Open Data Platform (10/11/2017) 
Please note: PHT’s total recruitment figure shown in chart 3.2 differs to the rest of the report as a result of the six week data upload period 
and the date the Wessex CRN Board Report data was pulled.  
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CHART 3.3 PHT POSITION ENGLAND BY 2017/2018 RECRUITMENT (LARGE ACUTE TRUSTS ONLY n= 42) 

  

Source: NIHR Open Data Platform 

CHART 3.4 Q2 RESEARCH RECRUITMENT BY CLINICAL SERVICE CENTRES AGAINST ANNUAL RECRUITMENT 
GOALS 

 

Source: NIHR Open Data Platform. 
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TABLE 3.1 SUMMARY OF RESEARCH RECRUITMENT BY CSC & SPECIALITY  SET AGAINST MONTHLY & ANNUAL RECRUITMENT GOAL 

    

Source: NIHR Open Data Platform 
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TABLE 3.2 RESEARCH RECRUITMENT BY CSC & SPECIALITY - PHT RANKED AGAINST ALL LARGE ACUTE TRUSTS (n=42) IN ENGLAND 

 

Source: NIHR Open Data Platform
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SECTION 4: PERFORMANCE IN INITIATING & DELIVERING (PID) CLINICAL 
RESEARCH 

 
The Department of Health, via the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) contracts, requires the quarterly 
publication of the 70-day benchmark for clinical trial initiation (Chart 4.1) and the recruitment to time and target for 
commercial contract clinical trials*(Chart4.2). These reports must be published on the public NHS organisation 
website. The 70-day performance measures the date the NHS organisation receives a valid research application to 
the time the first patient is recruited into that study. If a benchmark has not been achieved the reason for not doing 
so must be published. Research funding will be conditional on meeting the national benchmarks and performance 
will now affect funding (TBC). 
 
CHART 4.1 PERFORMANCES IN INITIATING CLINICAL RESEARCH  

 
 
Source: Original Source:  PHT Performance in Initiating and Delivery Report September 2017 (n=32) (Original Source: Edge Research Management 
System). Clinical trial is defined as a: Clinical trial of an investigational medicinal product, Clinical investigation or other study of a medical device, 
Combined trial of an investigational medicinal product and an investigational medical device, Other clinical trial to study a novel intervention or 
randomised clinical trial to compare interventions in clinical practice.  

 
CHART 4.2 PERFORMANCES IN DELIVERING CLINICAL COMMERCIAL RESEARCH  

 
Source: PHT Performance in Initiating and Delivery Report, September 2017 (n=13) (Original Source: Edge Research Management System).  
Commercial' is defined as a study both sponsored and funded by a commercial funder                  
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017    Agenda Item Number: 234/17 
        Enclosure Number: (16) 

Subject: Solent Acute Alliance (SAA) Update 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Tristan Chapman, Programme Director (SAA) 

Peter Mellor, Director of Corporate Affairs 

Purpose of paper  For noting 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

Progress in regard to: 

· Spinal/Orthopaedics 
· STP MSK Transformation Project 
· Pathology 
· Solent Acute Alliance in 18/19 
· Renal 
· Plastics 
· Radiology 
· Pharmacy 
· Back Office 

 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

 N/A 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

 N/A 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

N/A 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

N/A 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities N/A 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference N/A 

Risk Description N/A 

CQC Reference N/A 

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

Solent Acute Alliance Steering Group 06.11.17 304



Solent Acute Alliance Steering Board Notes 
6 November 2017:   The Queen Alexandra Hospital, Room Trust HQ 

No Item Notes 
1. Welcome, 

introductions/apologies  
In attendance:  Chair - Melloney Poole,  Fiona Dalton,  Mark Cubbon,  Tristan 
Chapman,  John Knighton,  Steve Emerton, Richard Samuel 
Sarah Turner (admin) 
Dial In:  Steve Parker,  Vaughan Thomas, Frank Sims,  David French,  John Richards 
Apologies:  Peter Hollins 

2. Review of minutes and 
actions from 18.9.17  
 

3.  IoW Paper:  IOW undertaking further review and will table at a later date when 
formalised.   DS/JK confirmed will be actively involved in future development with 
IoW and McKinseys. 
5.  Renal:  Clinical model agreed.  PAs agreed and so work and recruitment can go 
ahead,   Financial agreement in review.  MC stated would like all FDs to agree 
financial elements rapidly before resources are allocated.   
ACTION:  MC to confirm PHT financial position/agreement by 20 November. 
14. Vascular:   
ACTION:  Arrange system vascular review meeting with all parties (PMO).  Steve 
Bolan reviewing vascular from NHSE Specialist Commissioners.  ToR and 
outcomes to be brought back to the December SAA Board from both groups 
(DS/SE) 
All other actions reviewed throughout  meeting. 

For Decision 
3. Spinal/Orthopaedic (TC) Overview: 

Background update for Board members. Commissioners holding progress 
meetings with all parties to maintain start date of 31 Jan 2017. 
UHS developed draft Business Case/Options appraisal, with Option 3 as the 
recommendation ie 31 Jan start date – UHS theatre capacity sourced privately. 
Priorities: 
SAA view: The SAA noted the business case produced by UHS with activity, 
income and costing (including a small loss). Option 3 did not preclude a future 
move of orthopaedics (hips) in the future.  Equivalent business case needed 
for PHT on spinal move 
 
UHS View:  UHS requested that any loss was mitigated for 17/18 and 18/19 
 
Commissioners view: Commissioners need to consider numbers before 
supporting the case 
 
Decision:  The preference for Option 3 was agreed with a January start 
(dependent on timely commissioner support) 
 
ACTION:  PHT to review financial impact of spinal move (MC) 
ACTION:  Commissioners and Specialist Commissioners to review UHS proposal 
(RS). 
ACTION:  Final proposal to be presented at SAA December 17 Board for decision. 
ACTION:  Develop a process and structure for strategic service reviews presented 
at SAA Board incorporating provider and commissioner perspectives. (PMO)  
 
Spinal Post Meeting Note (RS) Spinal services: Just a follow up note to say 
that, as you probably gathered, I didn’t get sign off from commissioners by the 
end of the meeting, on the reasonable basis that they hadn’t seen the paper 
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in advance and weren’t sighted on financial risk and mitigation. They have the 
paper and have agreed. Consequently I have agreed that they will meet and 
confirm their preferred way forward by this Thursday and then work with the 
Finance Directors (Chris and David) to confirm the funding proposals for the 
spinal services including the transition. They are aware of the Alliance 
preference to commence the new service in January 2018 (indeed this is the 
commissioner preference). Alex Berry and Michelle Spandley are the best link 
point on this. 
 

Update 
4. STP MSK (TC) 

 
Overview: 
STP commissioned project to analyse total spend across STP, pathway working 
and clinical variation.  STP appointed SAA to lead and GE Finnamore to provide 
project support. Activity information requested –IG issues. Service Pathways 
mapped. 
STP view:  STP bringing in IG expert to develop IG process as a system. 
Commissioner’s view:  concern about project and duplication with existing 
commissioner activity.  SAA should be focused on supply side.   
SAA view:  STP project must be data driven and collectively evaluated without 
predjudice.  
ACTION:  Outcome of data analysis to be presented to MSK executive steering 
group and noted at EDG and SAA December 17 Board. 

5. Pathology (TC) Overview: 
Trusts received NHSI letter to form S6 Pathology network with actions and 
timeline for responses. 
HHFT requested to join S6.  NHSI pushed back on the request.  Awaiting outcome. 
3 sub-groups developed:  MSC (MES), LIMS and Reconfiguration. 
Discussion around current tenders and way forward for organisations and 
network. 
SAA View: Network requires resource and expertise, which the SAA Board agrees 
needs to happen. 
ACTION:  Clarity on way forward required by 31 January 2018 – to be agreed by 
all executive partners in the S6 network. 
ACTION:  Consensus by the Board to give the network opportunity serious 
consideration and not rush into individual tenders.  All MSC and service tenders to 
be referred to the network. Clear principle of collaboration and maximising 
system benefit. 
ACTION:  Executive leads confirmed for project board: UHS Jane Hayward; PHT 
Paul Bytheway and IoW Frank Sims. 

6. SAA 18/19 (FD) Overview: 
Reflection on SAA performance to date. Should the SAA extend? SFT potentially 
an Associate Member.  STP has suggested HHFT be a member. 
Trade-off between the balance of a wider larger group or faster group. 
STP view: looking at strategic system reform, clarifies direction of travel and 
organisational form.  Looking to develop system Acute Service Strategy across the 
HIoW. 
ACTION:  TC to collect views of partners around table and feed them back to the 
December Board. 
ACTION:  Decision required on SAA priorities and resourcing for 18/19 informed 
by a paper documenting SAA activity and outcomes (TC) 

To Note 
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7. Renal  · Renal Agreement Appx. 4 
8. Plastics · SFT leading project group:  Project Plan attached Appx. 7 
9. Radiology  · PID written – attached 

· Task and finish groups to be formed. 
Appx. 8 

10. Pharmacy  · Outpatients 
· Procurement and Distribution 
· Aseptic Pharmacy - expected milestones 

Appx. 9 

11. Back Office 
 

· IOW/PHT plans  
STP back office project assessing opportunities for scalability and 
efficiency.  Individual organisations to decide whether to move 
horizontally through the SAA or vertically through the LDSs. 

Appx. 
10/11 

AOB:    ACTION:  TC to review and confirm membership of the SAA Board. 
12. Dates of next meeting:  10 am, Monday 18th December,  UHS   
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TRUST BOARD PUBLIC – DECEMBER 2017    Agenda Item Number: 235/17 
        Enclosure Number: (17) 

Subject: Charitable Funds Activity 

Prepared by: 
Sponsored & Presented by: 

Amanda Lipsham, Financial Accountant 

Peter Mellor, Director of Corporate Affairs 

Purpose of paper To update the Trust Board, in their capacity as Trustee, on recent 
charity activity. 

Key points for Trust Board 
members 
Briefly summarise in bullet 
point format the main points 
and key issues that the Trust 
Board members should focus 
on including conclusions and 
proposals 

The report provides information on total funds, income, and 
expenditure for the period up to October 2017. 

 

Options and decisions 
required 
Clearly identify options that 
are to be considered and any 
decisions required 

To note and receive the report. 

Next steps / future actions: 

Clearly identify what will follow 
the Trust Board’s discussion 

To be reported monthly 

Consideration of legal 
issues (including Equality 
Impact Assessment)?     

Not applicable. 

Consideration of Public and 
Patient Involvement and 
Communications 
Implications? 

Not applicable. 

 

Links to Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust  Board Organisational Priorities, Assurance 
Framework/ Risk Register 

Organisational Priorities Not applicable 

Board Assurance Framework/ 
Risk Register Reference Not applicable 

Risk Description Not applicable 

CQC Reference Not applicable 

 

Committees/Meetings at which paper has been discussed/ approved: Date 

Charitable Funds Committee  9th Nov 2017 308



 
PORTSMOUTH HOSPITALS NHS TRUST GENERAL CHARITABLE FUND 
REPORT TO TRUST BOARD – December 2017 
 
Issue for consideration: 
To update the Trust Board, in their capacity as Trustee, on recent charity activity. 
 
 
1. Total Funds 

Portsmouth Hospitals NHS Trust General Charitable Fund has a fund balance 
of £1,371,024 as at 31st October 2017.  

  
2. Charitable Income 

During the month, the charity received donations, legacy and fundraising 
income of £70,439, including the following items of note:  

 
· Legacies totalling £9,858 were received for the Cancer Res and General 

Amenity funds 
 

3. Charitable Expenditure 
During the month, expenditure of £39,878 was processed, including the 
following items of note: 
 
· The Airsim Advance Combo (Armboard) purchased by Anaesthetics 

Education fund  for £2,600  
· Equipment purchased by Breast Care fund for £2750.40 
· O3 AFIB Ambulatory equipment purchased by Cardiac Card Fund for 

£5,382 
 

4. The Rocky Appeal 
The Rocky appeal needs to raise £240,840 to complete its appeal in June 
2018.  
 
The amount required to complete the appeal was discussed at the charitable 
funds committee meeting. There are still concerns that the appeal will not 
raise sufficient funds to cover the cost of the final payment for the Da Vinci 
Robot. The Rocky fundraising team are working hard to achieving his target. 
The committee is aware that if the target is not achieved the Trust will be 
liable for any residual costs, including the potential VAT liability of £74,000. 
The committee agreed to continue to monitor the progress of the appeal over 
the coming months, and keep the board updated. 

 
5. Investments 

The only investment held is with CCLA of £124,000. 
  
6. Fundraising 

 
7. Press Releases 

October saw a high number of press releases with 16 articles, this equates to 
just over 3 articles a week being published. 
 
15 x The Portsmouth News – 37,257print, 28,485 online 
1 x Isle of Wight Country Press- 25,827 print 
 
Social media support as of end October standing at: 
Facebook followers: 1,274 (+13)  
Twitter followers: 1,156 (+33) 
LinkedIn: 76 (+2) 
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8. Community and Events 
 

· Lasting Legacy for Cancer Patients 
Lorraine, family and friends, turned the sad passing of Lorraine’s 
husband, Jack, into a lasting legacy for cancer patients at QA Hospital by 
fundraising and providing two exercise bikes to Haematology & Oncology.   
Lorraine abseiled down the Spinnaker Tower and raise £1,600 for the 
bikes which will help cancer patients stay active while undergoing long 
treatments in hospital, for greater physical function and quality of life 
 
£4,500 from Community golf day for Children’s Bubbles Fund 

 
· Make a Will Month throughout October.  This has been successful with 

its take up and two solicitors run out of allocated ‘free’ wills within the first 
week.  We should have the total income generated from this event by 
January 2018.  On the back of this event, we have had three 
conversations with individuals mentioning that they are leaving a gift in 
their will to the hospital 
 

· Gifts in Kind 
Looking at the total of gifts in kind received from April to October 2017 (of 
which the Fundraising Department are aware of) the charity/ hospital has 
received approximately £14,600.  This includes gifts to raffle /auction, toys 
and activities for Paediatrics, specific equipment for Oncology and other 
departments, fundraising posters and literature, among a few 
 

9. Legacies 
 

£9,858 split between General Fund and Cancer Research & Oncology 
 

10. The following charity led events have been arranged: 
 

· Christmas Raffle – raising funds for General Fund and Rocky Appeal 
(drawn on 18th December) 

· Lights for Love- 7th December, St Coleman’s Church, Cosham 
· Christmas Jumper Day- 15th December 
· Choirs in QA- 2nd to 21st December 
· Great Wall of China Trek- 22nd to 30th September 2018 
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Trust Board – Rolling Annual Work Plan 2017 
 

 

Trust Board 
Date Item Item 

February 

§ Staff Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Review Finance & Performance Committee 

TOR 
§ Trust Guardian Report 

 
§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Incident 
§ Q3 forecast review 
§ Quarterly Legal Services Report 
§ Summary of Governors Business 

 

March 

§ Urgent Care Patient Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Contract Negotiations 
§ Equality & Diversity Annual Report 
§ Quarterly Complaints Report 
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Quarterly Research and Innovation Report 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Complaint 

April 

§ Staff Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ National Staff Survey 
§ Annual Education, Learning & Development 

Report 
§ Audit Committee Report 
§ Audit Committee Forward Planner 
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Incident 
§ Draft Quality Account Priorities 
§ Quarterly Legal Services Report 
§ Summary of Governors Business 

May 

§ Patient Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Trust Guardian Report 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Complaint 
§ Draft Quality Accounts 

June 

§ Staff Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update 
§ Annual Paediatric Safeguarding Report  
§ Quarterly Complaint Report 
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Final Quality Accounts 
§ Quarterly Research and Innovation Report 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Incident 
§ Summary of Governor Business 
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July 

§ Urgent Care Patient Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Safer Staffing Report Nursing & Midwifery 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Final Annual Governance Statement 
§ Final Annual Accounts 
§ Final Annual Report 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Complaint 
§ Quarterly Legal Services Report 

September 

§ Staff Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Audit Committee Report 
§ Annual Complaints Report 
§ Department of Infection Prevention 

Committee Annual Report 
§ Revalidation 
§ Annual Adult Safeguarding Report 
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Trust Guardian Report 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Incident 
§ Q1 forecast review 
§ Summary of Governor Business 
 

October 

§ Urgent Care Patient Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Winter Plan 
§ Information Risk SIRO Annual Report 
§ Quarterly Complaint Report 
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Complaint 
§ Quarterly Legal Services Report 

November 

§ Staff Story 
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Annual Staff Health and Well-being 

Report 
§ Trust Guardian Report 

 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Incident 
§ Q2 forecast review 
§ Summary of Governor Business 

December 

§ Patient Story  
§ Chief Executive Report 
§ Integrated Performance Report 
§ Charitable Funds Update  
§ Charitable Funds Report and Accounts 
§ Care Quality Commission Update 
§ Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
§ Safer Staffing Report Nursing & Midwifery 
§ Quarterly Research and Innovation Report 

§ Quality Report (SUI’s) 
§ Papers for noting 
§ Example of Complaint 
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01-D
ec-16

02-Feb-17

02-M
ar-17

06-A
pr-17

04-M
ay-17

01-Jun-17

06-Jul-17

01-Sep-17

05-O
ct-17

02-N
ov-17

Directors

Mark Cubbon ü ü ü
Tim Powell ü ü ü X ü ü ü ü ü ü
John Knighton X ü ü ü
Chris Adcock ü ü ü ü ü ü X ü ü ü
Theresa Murphy ü ü ü
Paul Bytheway ü ü
Peter Mellor ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü
Rob Haigh ü ü X ü ü ü ü ü X
Sheila Roberts ü ü ü ü ü ü
Nicola Ryley ü ü
Ed Donald ü ü ü ü ü ü ü
Rebecca Kopecek ü ü ü ü ü X ü
Simon Holmes ü ü ü ü ü ü
Cathy Stone ü ü ü
Simon Jupp ü

Non-Executive Directors

Melloney Poole ü X ü ü ü ü
Christine Slaymaker ü ü ü ü ü
David Parfitt ü ü ü ü ü
Mark Nellthorp ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü
Michael Attenborough-Cox X ü ü X ü ü X ü X
Sir Ian Carruthers ü X ü ü ü ü
Elizabeth Conway ü X ü ü
Steve Erskine ü ü ü
Dr John Smith ü X X

ü

X

t

Attended

Apologies given

Absent on Trust Business

TRUST BOARD ATTENDANCE RECORD
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